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Sainsbury’s Group at a glance

Helping customers live well for less has been at the
heart of what we do for 150 years, since John James
and Mary Ann Sainsbury opened the doors of
our first shop in Drury Lane in 1869.

We employ 178,000 colleagues who work hard every (i) Read more about our business madel on page 08
day to make our customers’ lives easier and provide (T) read more about our business strategy on page 09
them with great products, quality and service.

Food

We are committed te helping our customers
live well for less. We offer customers quality
and convenience as well as great value. Our
distinctive ranges and innovative partnerships
differentiate our offer. Cuslomers consistently
rate the quality of our food as market-leading
and continue to switch to us frem more
premium competitors.

O Sce more on page 10

2.2%

Growth in Taste the Difference volumes

57%

Of UK households benefit from
Same Day delivery

General Merchandise
and Clothing

We are one of the largest general merchandise
and clathing retailers in the UK, offering

a wide range of products across Argos,
Sainsbury's Home and Habitat, in stores

and online. We are a market ieader in tays,
electricals and technolagy and it clothing
offers high street style at supermarket prices.

@ See more on page 12

281

Argos stores in
Sainsbury’s supermarkets

1bn+

Visits to the Argos website
every year and sales generated
through mobile devices passed
£2 billion for the first time

Financial Services

Financial Services are an integral part of our
business. Sainsbury's Bank offers accessible
products such as credit cards, insurance,
travel money and personal icans that reward
loyalty to the Group. Sainsbury’s Bank and
Argos Financial Services each have over two
million active custorners.

() Seemore on page 14

2m+

Active customers at Sainsbury’s Bank
and two million active customers at
Argos Financial Services

45%

Of Argos Card balance payments
made via our app last year

Cover images ©The Sainsbury Archive, Museum of London Docklands



Strategic Report

Performance highlights

£32,412m

Group sales (inc VAT), up
2.1percent

£635m

Underlying profit before tax,
up 7.8 per cent

(0.2)%

Group like-for-like sales

11.0p

Proposed full-year dividend,
up 7.8 per cent

22.0p

Underlying basic earnings
per share, up 7.8 per cent

9.1p

Basic earnings per share,
down 31.6 per cent

£239m

Statutory profit before tax,
down 41.6 per cent

8.5%

Return on capital employed

949/,

Of stores partnered with local
charities, up from 91 per cent

35%

Absolute reduction in carbon
emissions against our 2005
baseline, achieving our 2020
target early

@ Read more about our financial KPIs on page 28

Non-financial information statement

We are pleased to set out below where you can find information relating to
non-financial matters in our Strategic Report, as required under sections 414CA

and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006.

where ta find the information in the

Matter Annual Report Page
Environmental matters  Sourcing with integrity 22and 23
Respect for sur environment 24and 25
Colleagues Great place to work 26and 27
Social matters Living healthier lives 20
Making a positive difference 21
to our community
Sourcing with integrity 22 and 23
Humanrights Sourcing with integrity 22 and 23
Great place towork 26 and 27
Anti-corruption and Great place towork 26

anti-bribery

Reference to our policies, due diligence processes and information on how we
are performing on various measures in these areas are contained throughout
the Strategic Report. Information on our principal risks and uncertainties can
be found on pages 30 to 36, information on our non-financial key performance
indicators can be found on page 29 and a description of our busmess model can

be found on page 08
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02 Strategic Report

Chairman’s letter

Chairman Martin Scicluna sets out how
we plan to deliver on our strategy and grow
value for shareholders.

1 Sainsbury ple Annual Report 2019

2018/19 highlights

11.0p

Proposed full-year dividend
22.0p
Underlying basic
earnings per share

8.5"/0

Return on capital employed

£461m

Free cash flow

I joined the Sainsbury'’s Board in the knowledge
that it is a highly respected, values-driven
business, known for quality, value and
customer service. Sainsbury’s has a long and
distinguished heritage and I'm delighted to
have become Chairman during the Company’s
150th anniversary year.

(14

The retail market remains highly
competitive. We have the right strategy in
place and a clear plan for the year ahead.
Combined with committed, hard-working
colleagues led by a talented, experienced
leadership team, I believe we are well
placed for the future”

Martin Scicluna
Chairman
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Joining the Board

[ joined Sainsbury's Board as Chairman
Designate in Novernber 2018 and took over
as Chairman of Sainsbury’s Group in March
2(19. 1did sc in the knowledge that [ was
joining a highly respected, values-driven
business, known for quality, value and
customer service. Sainsbury's has a long
and distinguished heritage and I'm delighted
to have become Chairman during the
Company's 150th anniversary year.

I have spent my first few months learning as
much as I can about the business by visiting
stores, distribution centres and store support
centres around the country. Intalking to
colleagues at all levels of the business, as
well as to suppliers and other key industry
stakeholders, T have heen struck by a
number of things.

Firstly, that in Sainsbury’s, Argos and
Sainsbury’s Bank, we have three of the mast
trusted brands in UK retail. We offer
customers strong, distinctive ranges of high
quality feod, clothing, general merchandise
and financial services, available through
convenient, well-established channels and
with home delivery and Click & Collect.

I have also been hugely impressed by the
enthusiasm and commitment of our
colleagues, by their passion for our business
and by their relentless focus on quality and
customer service. Though the retail
environment has become fiercely
competitive and fast moving, T believe that
our strong management team, working
under the leadership of Mike Coupe, will
continue to enhance our strong business.

This has been a big year of change across
the business and 1 would like Lo thank Mike,
the Operating Board and all of our colleagues
for their hard work and commitment.

Strategy

In the current retall market, it is obvicus

that standing still is not an option. We must
continue to adapt to market forces and
meet the needs of our customers. We were,
therefore, very disappointed by the
Competition and Markets Autherity's
decision on our proposed merger with Asda.
We strongly believe that the deal would have
benefited our custorners and our business.

Since we changed the way we run
Sainsbury's stores last year, our colleagues
have worked hard to improve store
standards, service and availability for our
custorners. We have also reduced costs,
which supperts our drive to invest in making
commodity products better value for our
customers. Customers continue to rate us
top for quality feod and we are growing our
premium ranges.

3 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 03

We have an excellent store estate in great
locations and will invest in over 800
supermarkets and convenience stores this
yedr, rolling out our beauty concept, weliness
aisles, food to go and integrated general
merchandise and clothing sections.

£4 7 billion of our sales are generated
through cur digital channels and we will
invest more in technology to make shopping
across Sainsbury's, Argos and Sainsbury's
Bank as easy and seamiess as possible.
Integrating Nectar more fully into the
business also supports our strateqgy of
knowing our customers better than

anyone else.

We are delivering on our strategic objective
to grow the proportion of secured lending
on Sainsbury's Bank’s balance sheet and to
reduce regulatory capital requirerments.

In a very competitive market, we have
increased underlying profits to £635 million,
growing underlying earnings per share by
7.8 per cent to 22.0 pence per share.

We have announced a number of steps we
are taking to grow value for our shareholders.
We will continue to strengthen our balance
sheet and reduce net debt significantly

and improve free cash flow over the next
three years.

Business activity in the year

Our customers continue to rate the quality of
our food ahead of our competitors and we
outperformed the market in our premium
food ranges as well as in our growing
convenience store and online grocery
channels. We have successfully integrated
Argos, which outperformed a highly
competitive and promational market this
year and delivered £160 million of synergies
nine months ahead of our original schedule.
We have 281 Arqos stores in our
supermarkets, making shopping easy and
convenient for our customners. Clothing sales
declined in an extremely competitive market
but full-price clothing sales increased after
we removed one of our promotional events.

Sainsbury's Bank is well positioned in a
competitive financial services market and
its underlying operating profits were inline
with our guidance, at £31 million. We will
continue to grow our mortgage business,
increase revenues and drive customer
loyalty over the coming year.

Technology has enabled us to improve
efficiency and custormer service across the
business. SmartShop — available in aver 100
supermarkets —allows customers to scan
their purchases using a hand-held device
or their mobile phone and customers

can use Pay@Browse in 162 Arqos stores,
enabling themn to pay digitally, without
queuing at a till.

Our values are integral to our business and

I am delighted that we are celebrating our
150th year by intreducing a volunteering
scherne that builds on our heritage, enabling
our colleagues to make a reat difference in
their local commmunities.

Board changes

I would like to thank David Tyler for his
significant contribution to the business and
for his leadership of the Board during his
time as Chairrnan. [ am also personally
grateful for the smooth transition he ensured
for me when 1 joined the Board as Chairrman
Designate. I look forward to leading cur
strong and diverse Board, with its mix of
skills, gender and ethnicity.

We appointed Cladagh Moriarty to the
Cperating Board in June o lead the Group's
digital strategy, ensuring custemers have an
integrated and seamless digital experience
across Sainsbury's, Argos, Sainsbury’s Bank
and Nectar.

Dividend

In tine with our policy of paying a dividend
that is covered 2.0 times by underlying
earnings, we propase to pay a final dividend
of 7.5 pence per share, bringing our full-year
dividend to 11.0 pence per share, an increase
of 7.8 per cent.

Outlook

The retail market remains highly competitive.
We have the right strategy in place and a
clear plan for the year ahead. Combined with
cormmitted, hard-working colleagues led by
a talented, experienced leadership tearn,

i believe we are well placed for the fulure.

Martin Scicluna
Chairman
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04 Strategic Report

As we celebrate our 150th anniversary,
Group Chief Executive Officer Mike Coupe
looks back on the year.

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

2018/19 highlights

£635m  £32,412m

Underlying profit before tax Group sales (inc VAT}

£220m  £222m

Cost savings Reduction in net debt

When we opened our doors on Drury Lane

n 1869, Mary Ann and John James Sainsbury
promised customers ‘quality perfect, prices
lower'. I'm proud to say that our focus on giving
customers high quality food at good value
remains as true today as it was 150 years ago.

(14

We have been delivering on our strategy
for the past four and a half years and
the last year in particular has been
a big year of change for the business.
Shopping habits continue to evolve and
we are therefore updating our strategic
priorities. We have set the business up
for the long term and have a clear plan
for the year ahead.”

Mike Coupe
Group Chief Executive Officer
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How would you sum up the

last year?

We are committed to helping customers
live well for less, so Twas disappointed by
the Competition and Markets Authority's
decision on our proposed merger with Asda,
which would have enabled us to reduce the
cost of living for millions of househelds
through £1 billion of lower prices.

[ remain confident in our strategy as a
standalone business. We know what we
need tc do to respond to changing customer
shopping habits and an increasing focus

on value.

We have achieved a lot this year and we
know there is more to do. Some of the key
achievernents include completing the largest
reorganisation in Sainsbury's stores for more
than a decade. This transformed the way

we worl by creating a maore efficient and
effective management structure. A single fair
and consistent contract for all Sainsbury's
store colleagues gives us greater flexibility

to ensure colleagues are always in the right
place for our customers. In recognition of this,
we Increased base rates of pay Lo an industry-
leading £9.20 per hour, taking Sainsbury’s
store colleagues’ total pay increase over the
past four years to 30 per cent,

We completed the integration of Argos,
delivering synergies of £160 million nine
rmonths ahead of our original schedule.

We have 281 Argos stores in Sainsbury’s
superrnarkets, as we make better use of the
space in our stores to enable customers to do
more of their shopping easily and convertiently
under one raof.

We continue to adapt to changing customer
shopping habits. Our digital capability

is increasingly important, both te support
colleagues and improve the shopping
experience for our customers. Argosis a
technolegy-led retailer and sales generated
through mobile devices passed £2 billien this
year. SmartShop is now available in over 100
supermarkets, allowing customers to scan
their shopping using a hand-held device or
their mobile phone. We were the first grocer
in the UK to introduce SmartShop Mobile
Pay, enabling customers in eight of our
convenience stores to pay on their
smartphone from anywhere in the store,
saving them time and helping therm manage
their budgets. As we develop our Nectar
offer, we are trialling a new digital
propesition in Wales which gives customers
greater choice over their rewards managed
conveniently via their mobile phones.

We are committed to paying above the
National Living Wage, rewarding great work
with great pay. We increased the hourly rate
of pay far the majority of Argos colleagues
from £8 to £8.50 from April, bringing

the total increase to 18 per cent since

we acquired Argos in September 2016.

1 Sainsbury ple Annual Repart 2019 05

Are you pleased with the

Group’s performance?

I am pleased that we have increased
underlying profits, reduced ret debt and
increased the dividend. In the context of 2
very cormpetitive retail market, though Group
like-for-like sales decreased by 0.2 per cent,
we continued to deliver on our strategy,
growing underlying profit before tax to £635
million, driven by a sclid food performance
and the Argos synergies we have delivered
ahead of schedule.

Food remains at the heart of our business.
Our strength and growth in premium,
value-added ranges help us to invest in
making our commeadity ranges better value.
In this highly competitive area, we know we
have more to do to grow sales. Following the
important structural changes we made in
Sainsbury’s stores fast year, we have made
significant improvernents to store standards
in recent months, which remain a focus. Our
Convenience and Groceries Online channels
rermain strong drivers of growth, with sales
increases of 3.7 per cent and 6.9 per cent
respectively.

General Merchandise and Clothing

delivered a solid performance, with Argos
outperforming a highly competitive and
prornotional market. Having reduced the
number of promotional events, our Tu ctothing
range cutperformed a chalienging market and
increased full price sales.

Our focus on increasing efficiencies delivered
overall cost savings of £220 million. We have
reduced net debt by £222 million te £1,636
millicn and we are targeting a further
reduction in net debt of at least £600 million
in the next three years. We have strong cash
generation with retail free cash flow of £461
rnillicn. In line with our affordable dividend
policy, this year’s final dividend is 7.9 pence
per share, bringing the full-year dividend to
110 pence per share, an increase of

7.8 per cent caompared to last year.

How are you celebrating your
150th anniversary and what will
the next 150 years look like?

When we opened our doors on Drury Lane

in 1869, Mary Ann and John James Sainsbury
promised customers “guality perfect, prices
lower”. I'm proud to say that our focus on
giving customers high quality food at good
value remains as true today as it was 150
years ago.

In that time, we've remained true to our
values, which continue to be integral to the
way we do business and allew us to drive
lasting, positive change in the communities
we serve. 50, one way we are marking our
anniversary is by giving all of our colleagues
the chance to volunteer for one day with

a locai charity or community initiative,

Wwith our experienced management team
and talented colleagues, we are well placed
to maximise the opportunities for growth
and create value for our stakeholders. As we
look to the next 150 years, our success will be
rooted in knowing what our customers want
and we will continue to strive to ensure that
our colleagues reflect the great diversity of
the communities we serve. We must also
keep pace with our customers’ changing
lives., so that shopping with us remains easy
and convenient and new technology will
play an important role in this.

What is the Group’s focus

for the year ahead?

We have been delivering on our strateqy for
the past four and a half years and the last year
in particular has been a big year of change for
the business. Shopping habits continue to
evolve and we are therefore updating our
strateqic priorities for the year ahead.

Customers rate us first for food quality,

but we know there is more to do to make

our commodity products better value for
custorners and grow sales in those categories.
We have completed the Sainsbury's store
transformation and made significant
improvements to store standards in recent
months and this will continue to be a focus
this year, using cur new custormer feedback
service, Lettuce Know, to inform store
managers on how customers feel about
shopping in their specific store inreal time.
We are investing significantly in cur store
estate this year — we trialled enhancad
beauty ranges, wellness aisles and new
concession partnerships last year and will

be rolling these out to mare stores this year.
In total, we will invest in over 400 supermarkets
this year.

We have completed the Argos integration,
delivering the £160 million of synergies and
there is more we can do this year to continue
to bring the businesses closer together to
drive efficiencies and also to improve the
customer experience.

£4.7 billion of our revenue now comes from
our online businesses and we are increasing
investment in technalogy to make shopping
across Sainsbury's, Argos and Sainsbury’s
Bank as quick and convenient as possible
and to make the business more efficient.

wWe will also continue to strengthen our
balance sheet and are making a new
commitment to reduce net debt by at least
£600 million over the next three years.

We have set the business up for the long term
and have a clear plan for the year ahead.

Mike Coupe
Group Chief Executive Officer
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Market context

The market

Economic conditions eased slightly for UK consumers over the last

12 moenths, as average weekly earnings grew ahead of a reducing
inflaticn burden for most of the year. Despite this, consumer confidence
was impacted by the continuing uncertainty around Brexit.

Lower levels of inflation and declining consumer confidence have
resulted in reduced sales growth in both the food and nan-food
sectors. Non-food retailers were particularly impacted by weak
dernand, rising costs and the ongoing impact of increasing online
penetration, driving further consolidation and restructuring of
the secior.

Retail trends

The past year has seen continued rapid change in how custormers
shop in the UK. With greater access to a variety of shopping channels,
the UK consumer has mare flexibility and choice than ever in how
and when they shop for foed, general merchandise and clothing.
Barriers to entry in some of these channels are far lower than before,
giving disruptors the opportunity to gain strong footholds across the
retail landscape. The impact of this can be seen in the record levels
of store closures, traditional retail business collapses and redundancy
for retail colleagues. Restructuring of the UK retail industry is likely
to continue for sorme time given rising cost nressures in wages, rates
and other fixed costs.

Consumers are shopping for groceries maore frequently across
different channels and store formats, with online and convenience
channels showing strong growth. There is limited new space being
added to the market from traditional grocers but discount and
bargain retailers continue to open significant numbers of new stores
and gain market share. Consumers are alse eating more meals
outside the home and the growth of food delivery services such as
Deliveroo, Just Eat and Uber Eats is also impacting grocery spending,

High streets and retall parks continue to experience footfall and
sales declines as online participation grows. A key driver of the trend
towards general merchandise and clothing being bought online is
the wide choice of delivery and pick-up ontions. Delivery services
have improved in terms of speed and reliability, while Click & Collect
is both cost-effective and convenient for custormers and accounts
for a significant proportion of online general merchandise and
clothing sales.

Retailers that can fulfil their customers’ needs flexibly, rapidiy and
conveniently, offering a consistent experience to consumers across
all channels, will be set up to succeed in this increasingly tough and
cornpetitive retail environment.
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Sainsbury’s response to a competitive

J Sainsbury ple Annual Report 2019

and evolving market

Our strategy is to respond to the changing needs of our customers
and enable them to shop with us whenever and wherever they want.

The quality of our food continues to be a strong differentiator and

we are working in partnership with our suppliers to bring exclusive,
innovative and distinctive products to our customers. We are adapting
our supermarket space (o serve a wide variety of shopping missions,
ensuring we offer customers a broad range of products and services
under one roof. This includes Argos stores as well as popular brands
such as Specsavers, Sushi Gourmet and Explore Learning. Maximising
the productivity of our supermarket space in this way is driving an
increase in trading intensity across our supermarket estate. We have
alsc transformed the way we run Sainsbury’s stores, fundamentally
changing how our managers and colleagues work, aligning better
with the ways custormers shop.

In the fast-growing Groceries Online channel, technological
improvements have improved productivity and helped to drive sales,
making this channel ta market more profitable. Qur convenience
store estate consists of over 800 stores and is outperforming the
market in value and volume as we continue to tailor the ranges we
offer to ensure they reflect the local demographics and different
shopping missions in each store.

Our General Merchandise and Clothing business is performing well

in a highly competitive market and we had 281 Argos stores in our
supermarkets at year end. Argos’s unique hub and spoke distribution
netwaork enables quick, convenient and efficient fulfilment of
customer orders for collection or home delivery. Cur Fast Track
collection and delivery channels have grewn significantly as the
combination of a strong online proposition and a wide availability of
delivery and pick-up opticns continues to be popular with customers.

We have accelerated the rate of change across the Group, with a
focus on technology-led innevation that makes shopping faster,
easier and more convenient for our custermers. SmartShop self-scan,
which enables customers 1o scan their shopping directly on to their
phone or hand-held device, is available in aver 100 supermarkets.
We wore the first grocer in the UK to introduce SmartShop mobile
pay in eight convenience stores, enabling customers to bypass the
checkeut and pay on their smartphone from anywhere in the store.
Pay@Browse is currently available in 162 Argos stores, offering
customers a convenient payment optiocn without the need to queue
at a till. we have also intreduced a visual search function which
allows customers to search the Argos product range using a photo
of the product they want.

We have delivered £1650 million EBITDA of synergies from the acquisition
of Argos. Together with ongoing cost savings progress and a focus

on maintaining balance sheet strength, we are confident that we have
the resaurces to remain competitive tn our rapidly changing markets.

07

w
-
a
-+
o
1=}
-
n
b
o
o
=]
=
-

Ji0day adueBA0g

i

SIUBWIRIEIS |B1IULRL J




08

Strategic Report

3 Sainsbury ptc Annual Report 2019

Our business model

Creates value for our sharehalders, customers and colleagues,

Quality

Qur passion for quality extends to everything
wesell  food, general merchandise, clothing
and financial services. We are consistently
ranked ahead of our peers on the quality of
our food and we regularly review and improve
our own-brand product ranges.

Value

Offering great quatity products and services

at faw prices is part of our commitment to help
our customers live well for less. Quality and
price are both important in the value
propasition and our regular lower prices
reassure custamers that they can always

get good value at Sainsbury's.

both now and in the future,

Service

We employ 178,000 colleagues who are the
foundation of our business. They rmake a real
difference in the communities they serve,
offering customers great service day in, day
out, inour stores, online and over the phone,

Choice
Thraugh our Sainsbury's, Argos and Habitat

brands, we are one of the UK's largest retailers,

offering a range of branded and own-brand
products across food, general merchandise,
clothing and financial services.

Supply chain

We source products from over 70 countries,
according to the ability of suppliers to
meet our quality, safety and ethical
standards, We invest in British farming
through 1,300 members of our farmer and
grower Development Groups and we are
involved in 12 research projects to improve
agricultural productivity and reduce the
environmental impact of British farming.

Logistics

Seven days a week, we deliver fresh food,
groceries, general merchandise and
clothing from suppliers around the world,
via 23 distribution centres, ta our store
and online customers, meeting their
requirements for flexible, convenient
snopping. Argas's unique Hub and Spoke
logistics network enables us to fulfil Fase
Track same day home deliveries and store
collections.

Channels

We have over 2,300 Sainsbury’s
supermarkets, convenience stores and
Argos stores across the UK and lreland and
growing online businesses. Cur popular
Groceries Online app now accourts for
around 20 per cent of food orders, while
Qlr convenience stores outgrew the
rmarket on both value and volume. Argos is
a technology-led retailer and the third
most visited website in the UK, with more
than ane billion visits avery year, This
strong multi-channel, multi-product
proposition means customers can shop
with us whenever and wherever they want.

our values key

€7 Living healthier lives

Ci,_@é Making a positive difference
to our community

‘g% Sourcing with integrity
73 Respect for our environment

mjlli«" A great place to work
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Our business strategy

Our vision is to be the most trusted retailer where people love to work and shop.
Our goal is to make our customers’ lives easier every day by offering great quality
and service at fair prices.

What makes us different
We are a muiti-brand, multi-channel
business with a strong,
differentiated proposition across
Sainsbury's, Sainsbury’s Bank.
Arqos, Habitat and Nectar.

we benefit from an experienced
management tearn, a structuratly
advantaged store estate, world-class
property assets, an efficient supply
chain and a significant digital
presence with fast delivery
networks. All this is underpinned

by customer insights that enable

us to adapt our business to
customers’ changing lives.

Our values

Our values underpin everything
we do as a business and help us
strengthen relationships with all
our stakeholders. They enable us
to build trust, reduce operating
costs, mitigate risks and attract
and retain talent.

As a business with a global footpring,

our values help us to drive tasting,
positive change in the UK and
internationally.

(@) Seemore on page 18

Investment case

A strong, differentiated food
and grocery business

Growth opportunities in
Clothing, General Merchandise
and Financial Services

Leveraging our assets:
store estate, brands, online presence,
customer knowledge, logistics

Generating strong, consistent
cash flows, which:
« Fund a consistent dividend
* Reduce leverage
» Can be reinvested in higher return
growth opportunities

Our strategy

We are delivering the strategy we
set out in Novernber 2014. The
market is competitive and the way
customers shap continues to evolve
in the ways we anticipated.

Our strateqgy is based on five pillars:
knowing our customers better than
anyone else; great products and
services at fair prices; being there for
our customers whenever and
wherever, colleagues making the
difference; and our values raking
us different.

Our priorities

As shopping habits evolve, we
continue to update our strategic
priotities. This will help to develop
and differentiate our customer offer
and to grow and create value for our
shareholders. Our five updated
priorities are:

Priority 1

Differentiate food and grocery
through quality, value and
service

@ See morte on page 10
Priority 2

Grow General Merchandise
and Clothing

@ See more on page 12
Priority 3

oOffer our customers easy
access to financial services

® See more on page 14

Priority 4

Generate efficiencies to invest
in our digital future

@ See more on page 15
Priority 5

Strengthen the balance sheet
@ See more on page 17
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Priority 1

Differentiate food
and grocery through quality,
value and service

Great quality food has been at the
heart of our business since John
James and Mary Ann Sainsbury
opened the doors of our first shop
in Drury Lane in 1869.

150 years later, we continue to invest in
quality, value and choice, differentiating
our offer in a highlyy competitive market.

Grocery sales increased by 0.6 per cent,
predominantly in the first half of the year.
Sales in Convenience and Grocerigs Online
grew 3.7 per cent and 6.9 per cent respectively
and Convenience outperformed the market.

Grocery shopping habits continue to change
rapidly as customers seek higher quality at
lower prices. Qualily is a key differentiator
for us. Customers consistently rate the
quality of cur food as market-leading” and
continue to switch to us frorm moere premium
competitors®. We cutperform the market

in our top ticr categories® such as Taste

the Difference, which grew faster than the
market, with volume growth of 2.2 per cent.

Our strength and growth in premium,
value-added ranges help us to invest in
making our commedity ranges better value.
But in this highly cornpetitive area, we know
we have more work to do to grow sales. We
continue to review our ranges to ensure we
offer our customers the right combination
of value and choice. Qur cheese category is
a goad exarmple of this. By reducing costs

in our supply chain, we were able to lower
prices at the value end of the category,
making us more competitive on price and
driving volurne growth. Together with an
improverment in quality and greater choice
at the premium end, we improved aur
market share position® and drove growth

in chease volurnes of six per cent compared
to the pericd before we implemented

the changes.

(11

Quality is a key differentiator for
us and customers consistently
rate the quality of our food as

market-leading.”

In fresh produce, we have worked closely
with suppliers to develop our Ripe & Ready
ranges. As a result, we have grown velumes
by 72 per cent over the last five years, with
prices on average 13 per cent lower than the
market leader in this category.

We are well positioned in a number of

high growth food categeries where we can
add value for our customers. For exampte,
we have a strong share in the fast-growing
vegetarian and vegan markets and we have
invested in new ranges of plant-based meals
for custormers who want more alternatives to
meat. Our free-from ranges contribute cver
£100 million in sales and we cutperform the
growing allergen-free market®. We also
increased volumes in our dairy alternatives
category by 8.4 per cent and outperformed
the market by offering a wide choice of
branded products.

Customers want distinctive products they
can't find anywhere else and the number of
customers who said this was thelr primary
reason for shopping with us increased. Our
dedicated Future Brands team works closely
with small, specialist suppliers to bring
these innovative and exclusive ranges to our
customers. We have a longstanding history
of working in genuine partnership with our
suppliers and, over the last seven years, they
have consistently ranked us first or second
for supplier relationships in the industry's
largest independent supplier survey’. We
now have 126 Future Brands in our stores.
Every £1 of profit made from a Future Brand
is more than 50p of profit that we would not
have otherwise made.

Our strategy is to enable our custormcers to
shop with us whenever and wherever they
want. Qur supermarkets are the right size,
in high quality locations and we continue
to invest in them. By regularly reviewing
our ranges, introducing new and exclusive
products and opening Argos stores in
Sainsbury’s supermarkets, we have
increased trading intensity in supermarkets.
We have further invested in our store estate
by refitting our General Merchandise

and Iu clothing areas and bringing in

the right ranges to serve local customer
needs. We will increase investment in

our supermarkets in 2019/20.

We work with selected concession partners
such as Sushi Gourmet, Timpsons and
Specsavers so that our customers can do
more of their shopping under one roof.

We trialled a major upgrade of our beauty
range in eight stores, with new and exclusive
products and larger, more inspiring store
layouts. This has proved popular and
elerents of this will be rolled out further
next year.

In food and grocery, online and convenience
sales continue to grow faster than
supermarket sales. Both of these channels
continue to be strong drivers of profitable
growth for us. Increasingly, ranges in our
convenience stores are specifically tailored
to local custarner demagraphics, generating
market-leading trading intensities.
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We are investing in our Groceries Online offer
s0 that we can continue to improve the ease,
speed and reliability of the service for
customers. Qur Groceries Online app now
accounts for over 20 per cent of orders.

we offer Same Day delvery to 57 per cent

of UK households, up from 40 per cent in
201718, Customers can also collect online
orders from 124 superrmarkets. Our Chop
Chop one-hour delivery service now operates
in London zones one and two, covering over
1.7 rnillion customers.

We are also investing in technology in
supermarkets to make shopping easier and
rmore convenient. SmartShop, which allows
customers to scan their shopping using

a hand-held device or their mobile phone,
is now available in over 100 supermarkets,
helping customers save time and manage
thetr budgets. We introduced SmartShop
Mobile Pay in eight convenience stores,
enabling customers to scan their shopping
and pay on their smartphone from anywhere
in the store — a first for the UK grocery
market. Custorners who use SmartShop

are more likely to buy more and to be more
loyal to Sainsbury's.

During the year we completed the largest
reprganisation in our stores for maore than

a decade. We made twe major changes to
the way Sainsbury’s stores operate, to ensure
we are fit for the future and able to adapt to
evolving shopping habits. Firstly, we created
a more efficient and effective management
structure which is designed to ensure that
our managers are genuinely managing our
stores and our colleagues and that our
customer-facing colleagues have more time
to spend with customers on the shop floor.
We also inlroduced one fair and consistent
colieague contract, which includes greater
flexibility, so that we can make sure our
colleagues are glways in the right place

at the right time for our custormers. In
recognition of these changes, we made an
industry-leading investment in celleague
pay, taking the base rate to £9.20 per hour
and bringing the total pay increase to

30 per cent aver the last four years for
Sainsbury’s store colleagues.

We have made significant improvements

to store standards in recent months, which
rerain a focus. Qur new customer feedback
service, Lettuce Know, provides detailed data
to each of our stores individually, enabling
them to respond te customer feedback in
real time. We would like to thank our store
colleagues for all their commitment and hard
work as we have worked through a year of
significant change.

J Sainsbury ple Annual Repart 2019

self-scan

Our strategy in action

Vegan and vegetarian range
expansion

we have a strong share in the fast-
growing vegetarian and vegan market
and we have invested in new ranges of
plant-based meals for customers who
want more alternatives to meat. The
flexitarian market is predicted to reach
£658 million by 2021%.

100+

Plant-based meal options in ranges
such as Love Your Veg

Making shopping easier -
SmartShop and SmartShop

Mobile Pay

We have introduced new technology such
as Smartshop self-scan to rake shopping
in our steres faster and mare convenient
for our customers. We were the first
grocery retailer in the UK to offer
customers the ability te shop checkout-
free using their smartphone, through
SrmartShop Mobile Pay.

100+

Supermarkets now offer SmartShop

—_
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Sales growth — Food
Definition: Year-on-year growth of total
sales, induding VAT,

Sales growth
Definition: Year-on-year growth of total
sales, including VAT, excluding fuel.

Nigtsen EPOS Conwerience Tatal Bus ness. Quarterly data
to (311819

satnshury's Brand Tracker

Nielsen Panel Market Uriverse : Tatal Outlet | 52 weeks data
Lo P131843

Nietsen FPOS Data Markel Urverse: Grocer Multiples,

42 weeks pnding 9 Marc b 2019

Nielsen Parel and LPOS Report, as at week 24

Nielsen Parel Market Uriverse - Total Qutlet {52 weeks data
ta P13 18/19

Advantage Suppler Survey

Mintel,

2016/17 excludes Argos stares in Sa.nsbury's supermarkets
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Priority 2

Grow General
Merchandise
and Clothing

We are one of the largest general
merchandise retailers in the UK,
offering customers choice, value,
convenience, flexibility and fast
delivery.

The majority of cur General Merchandise
sales are through Argas, which we continue
to integrate with the Sainshury's General
Merchandise business to drive scale and
efficiency. We have delivered £160 million
in Argos EBITDA synergies nine months
ahead of our original schedule.

Overall, General Merchandise sales were

flat in a declining market. Argos sales grow,
outperforming a highly competitive and
very promaotional market by 2.2 per cent’.
Margins remamned under pressure, Impdcted
by strong sales of lower margin consurmer
technology products.

Sainsbury’s General Merchandise sales,
particularly electricals, declined as we
continued to streamline our ranges in nearly
300 supermarkets in favour of Argos General
Merchandise. We continued to rebalance
Sainsbury’s ranges away from lower margin
products such as electricals towards higher
mnargin ranges such as clothing.

Argos saw sales growth in electricals, leisure
and toys and, during the het summer, in

seasonal categories such as garden furniture,

outdoor games and barbeques. We are
investing in our home, garden and furniture
categories with an emphasis on our
own-brand ranges.

We have 281 Argos stores in Sainsbury's
supermarkets, achieving aur 2018/19
year-end target of 280. These stores now
account for around 20 per cent of Argos store
sales. Sales in Argos stores in Sainsbury’s
supermarkets that have been trading for
more than three years are 43 per cent higher
than in their first year and sales in stores
trading for more than two years are

31 per cent higher than their first year

of trading. We continue to see an uplift in
grocery sales in supermarkets that have an
Argos store. We opened our first Argos in

a Sainsbury's conventence store in Ascot,
Berkshire, as we trial new ways to bring our
broader Focd and General Merchandise offer
to more customers.

£160m

Argos EBITDA synergies delivered
nine months ahead of our original
schedule

As the third most visited website in the UK,
Argos is already a leading online retailer.
Around 60 per cent of Argoes sales start
online, exceeding £3 billion in the year,

and sales generated through mabile
devices have now passed £2 billion. Over
the last twa Years we have significantly
impraved the Arges cnline shopping
experience, making our website easier to
use and giving customers more information
on product availability and more contral
over delivery times. We have improved the
display of homewares and furniture online,
making browsing easier and more inspiring.
We alsc improved the online experience

to make it quicker for customers to buy
through Argos Financial Services, increasing

penetration to 19 per cent of Argos store sales,

Argos has a market-leading delivery and
collection proposition and we have invested
in improving our ability to rapidly fulfil online
orders. We can deliver to over 90 per cent

of UK postcodes within four hours and offer
immediate in-store collection. Sales through
our unique Fast Track delivery service
increased by 13 per cent and Fast Track Click
& Collect by 10 per cent. We offer customers
a number of convenient options for online
delivery and collection. 85 per cent of
customers who order online choose to collect
from Argos's 1,200 physical locations across
the UK, including 594 standalone Argos
stores, 281 Argos stores in Sainsburiy's
supermarkets and 317 collection points

in supermarkets and convenience stores

We opened our regional fulfilment centre in
Croydon last year to improve cur service to
3.4 million households across London and
the South East. This enables us to deliver cur
full range the same day to over 50 per cent
of the country. We had on average over
20,000 products stocked in our stores
available for delivery within four hours
through our Fast Track service. This service is
available to over 90 per cent of UK postcodes.

({4

As the third most visited
website in the UK, Argos is
already a leading online retailer.
Around 60 per cent of sales start
online, exceeding £3 billion in
the year, and sales generated
through mobile devices have now
passed £2 billion.”
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We continue to invest in technology to
make customers’ lives easier. Since we
acquired the business in 2016, we have
rmade significant progress in ungrading the
Argos store estate to digital stores. We have
476 digital Argos stores, including 281in
Sainsbury's supermarkets, compared to 104
digital stores at the end of 2016/17. We will
have 650 by the end of 2019/20. We have
introduced Pay@Browse (o 162 Argos stores,
which enables customers to pay digitally,
without queuing at a till, and we will roll
this out to a further 200 stores in 2019/20.

We are pleased that Argos's customer
satisfaction levels, measured through

our Net Promater Scores, increased in the
year. We are also delighted that, in an
independent UK-wide survey, cur ranking
for customer service satisfaction jumped
from 46th place last year to eighth place
this year?,

In recogniticn of the great service Argos
colleagues give custorners every day,

we awarded a pay increase for the majority
of Argos colleagues from £8 to £8.50 from
April 2019, bringing the total increase to

18 per cent since we acquired Argos in
September 2016.

1 Sainsbury plc Annuat Report 2019 13

The general merchandise market will remain
highly competitive as online shopping offers
customers greater choice and convenience.
We continue to drive efficiency throughout
the business sc that we can give customers
better value for money. We combined cur
Sainsbury’s and Argos General Merchandise
commercial teams this year. By buying

and managing our ranges together we

are able to improve our offer to custorners
and reduce costs. For exampie, we brought
together our homewares ranges under

our own brand, Home, sold through both
Sainsbury’s and Argos.

Offering high street quality at supermarket
prices has made Tu the sixth largest clothing
brand in the UK by volume. Tis clothing
outperformed the market and while sales
declined, our decision to remove a key
promoticnal event during the year helped
increase full price clothing sales by

12 per cent. We continued to develop our

Tu online offer and online sales of Tu clothing
grew by 55 per cent in the year. We have also
launched Tu clothing on the Argos website
for home delivery or collection from Argos
stores and collection peints in Sainsbury’s
stores across the UK.

1

Sales growth
DPefinition: Year-on-year growth of total
sales, including VAT,

British Retatl Consort um, market data 52 weeks ended
9 Marech 29

Insttute of Customer Service LK Customner Satisfaction
Tndex ranking

2016417 excludes Argos

201718 ralculated including Argos inthe base

—_
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Our strategy in action

Growth of Fast Track delivery

and collection

Our Fast Track delivery and collection
service is a key point of difference for us.
Argos is the only UK retatler that offers
cuslomers same day delivery across over
90 per cent of UK postcodes as well as free
of charge, immediate in-store collection.

13%

Growth in Fast Track delivery.
Fast Track Click & Collect grew by
10 per cent

Trialling new store formats

In our new Selly Oak supermarket, we are
trialling a General Merchandise layout that
inspires customers and makes it easier for
thern to browse our ranges, with products
such as Argos and Habitat furniture on
display in attractive room settings.

Ranked by the IGD as cne of the top 16 stores
to visit globally, it sees Argos and Habitat
fully integrated within the supermarket and
a selection of Argos jewellery and watches
prominently displayed in the u clothing
area, making it easier for customers to
accessorise their outfits.

(11

Our Selly Oak supermarket
is ranked by the IGD
as one of the top 16 stores
to visit globally.”

Tu clothing

Our Be You Tu lingerie campaign has
focused on making wormen feel body
confident. The campaign drove a

five per cent increase in sales compared
to the same period last year.

55%

Increase in online sales
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Priority 3

Offer our customers
easy access to
financial services

We are focused on delivering
great value financial services
to more customers across the
Sainsbury’s Group.

Customer numbers increased by

five per cent to two million at Sainsbury’s
Bank and by six per cent at Argos Financial
Services, to two million. Nectar is a key
differentiator for Sainsbury’s Bank and
around 74 per cent of our customers have a
Nectar card and benefit from Nectar paints
across a range of products.

Hnancial Services underlying operating profits

decreased to £31 million, as we previously
guided. This is because of a combination of
higher bad debt charges due to the adeption
of IFRS §, higher costs and a more cautious
approach to unsecured lending. Our new
strategy focuses on growing our mortgage
book and cornmission products. Customer
lending increased by £1.3 billion. Growth

in mortgage balances accounted for the
majority of the increase, alongside increases
in Credit Card and Argos Financial Services
card balances, while persenal loan balances
were slightly down year-on-year.

Income was three per cent lower, reflecting
the incrermental cost of Tier 2 capital of

£8 million and an increase in the cost

of savings as interest rates rose.

We continue to grow martgages, focusing
on high quality, low loan-to-value lending,
and had lent £1.4 billion at the year end.
Margins were under some pressure in the
first half of the year, but this eased in the
second half, in line with the market, and
overall returns on marlgages continue fo
be strong. Mortgage balances now account
for 21 per cent of customer lending, up from
five per cent last year.

Argos Financial Services customer numbers
grew, with 19 per cent of Argos store sales
rnade on Argos Cards and balances up

11 per cent.

Our Commissions business has grown
significantly this year, with combined Home,
Car, Pet and Life Insurance new husiness
volumes up 25 per cent, while Travel Money
incorme increased 14 per cent. ATM income
decreased due to a fall in transacticns

£1.4bn

Mortgage lending — a fivefold increase
on last year

wWe are focused on improving our digital offer
to help customers access information and
manage their finances in real time. During
the year, we launched Insurance and Credit
Card apps and enhanced the My Argos Card
app. improving custorner experience and
reducing costs. We will continue to enhance
our digital offer over the coming year.

While we expect the banking market to
rermain competitive, we are well positioned
to grow revenue and increase custormer
loyalty. we will continue to grow our
mortgage business and maintain our
cautious approach to unsecured lending,
focusing on custormers with a Nectar

card and on increasing Argos Financial
Services sales.

Sales growth
Definition: Year-on-year growth of total
sales, including VAT.

1 2016/17 excludes Argos Financ.al Services,
2 2017118 calculated imcluding Argos F.nanc.al Services
1 the base

Our strategy in action

Helping customers manage their
finances

Our mobile apps help customers manage
their finances and access the information
they need in real time. Mare than

1.2 million customers are registered

to use the My Argos Card app. with

45 per cent of Argos Card balance
payments made via the app in the last
year. During the year we launched our
Sainsbury's Bank credit card app and

a home and car insurance app.

459,

Of all Argos Card balance
payments are now made via
the My Argos Card app




Strategic Report

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 15

Priority 4

Generate efficiencies

to invest in

our digital future

Over the last four years we

have built a business serving
customers with a broader range
of products and services. We
offer great quality at fair prices
across food, grocery, general
merchandise and clothing.

Through our network of well-located
supermarkets, convenience and Argos stores,
our online offer and our delivery network,
customers can shop with us whenever and
wherever they want. We help our customers
manage their finances — making it easter for
them to shop with us — and we reward them
for their loyalty through Mectar. This gives us
unique insight into our customers across the
Group, which means we can make their lives
easier while rewarding them for shopping
with us.

The traditional physical retail model remains
under pressure. The continued shift towards
online requires investment in new digital and
delivery infrastructures, while physical store
costs continue 1o rise. We are well placed to
address these challenges and become more
efficient. Bringing Sainsbury's and Argos
together is one example of how we have
already delivered a step change in reducing
our costs. In 2018/18, we delivered £220 million
of cost savings in addition to the £160 million
cumulative EBITDA synergies delivered
through the integration of Argos.

We have an excellent store estate in great
locations and, by integrating Argos stores
into Sainsbury's, we are capitalising on our
property portfolio to rake Argos maore
accessible Lo Sainsbury's customers. We will
continue to open Argos stores in Sainsbury'’s
supermarkets and build further concession
partnerships to offer customers a broader
range of products and services, increasing
trading intensity in stores, driving additional
profit and making shopping with us easier.
Offering customers products and services
fram Specsavers, Timpsons, Explore Learning
and Sushi Gourmet make our stores more
attractive shopping destinations.

The next stage in delivering our strategy
requires closer integration across our Group.
In 2018/19 wie brought tegether the
Sainsbury’s and Argos General Merchandise
commercial tearns and we now have one
team creating ranges, negotiating with

our suppliers and selling through both the
Sainsbury’s and Argos brands. Over time

this will allow us to lower our costs and
create efficiencies in our General Merchandise
own-brand development and supply chain
operations. We are developing the Argos
Tinancial Services offer, using the expertise
and capability we have in Sainsbury’s Bank.
Bringing together some central functions
across Sainsbury’s and Argos has reduced
our costs and there 1s more to de in the future.

We are well positioned to benefit from the
shift to online shopping in feod and grocery,
general merchandise, clothing and financial
services. We have enhanced our digital scale
and capability in recent years and, across the
Group, £4.7 billion of our sales are generated
online. We are developing new technologies
to improve the customer experience and
make shopping with us easy, fast and
convenient. For example, we are focused on
improving our digital financial services offer
to help customers manage their finances
and access the information they need in real
time. During the year, we launched apps for
Insurance and Credit Cards and enhanced
the My Argos Card app, improving customer
experience and reducing costs.

€€

We are well positioned to benefit
from the shift to ontine shopping.
We have enhanced our digital
scale and capability in recent
years and, across the Group,
£4.7 billion of our sales are
generated ontine.”

We will continue to invest in technology
that will make it easier for custormers to
shop with us and in technology that will
help us make the business mare efficient.

This will support cur long-term profitability.
we will bring our digital offer together to
make it easy for customers to shop across
all of our channels and access a variety of
financial services products, with increasingly
personalised rewards.

As we strive to make our customers” lives
easier, we will invest in innovative new
services that enable themn 1o browse, select,
pay, earn rewards, save and borrow with us
in just a few clicks. As well as digitising the
Argos store estate, we will continue to
develop technologies such as SmartShop,
helping customers save time and manage
their budgets.

£4.7bn

Group online sales
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We have also developed a number of digital
tools that make it easier for our colleagues
to provide good service and availability

to olir custorners across all of our channels.
For example, we improved the productivity
of Sainsbury’s online pickers by 13 per cent
in the last year by using technologically
advanced handsets. We have introduced
new apps in Sainsbury’s stores, which are
helping colleagues to replenish stock and
reduce waste in the most efficient way.

As part of our focus on investing in data and
techrology, we acquired Nectar in February
2018. Nectar has 18.5 million registered users,
1.2 million of whom actively use the Nectar
app —an increase of eight per cent compared
to last year. We signed up five new partners
in the year, including Esso and EE, and
renewed our long-term agreements with

a number of key partners including eBay
and Brakes.

Nectar deepens our understanding of how
customers are shopping across the Group,
enabling us to provide more of what they
want. We are trialling a new digital Nectar
proposition in Wales which allows customers
to collect, spend and manage their Nectar
rewards using thelr mobile phone, making

it easier and guicker far customers to shop
with us.

Trading intensity
We are improving the use of space in our
stores to serve more shopping missions.

Definition: Change in year-on-year sales
per sq ft.

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

| Our strategy in action

Developing our Nectar offer

We want to reward loyalty in a way that is
increasingly personalised to our customers,
As we develop our Nectar offer, we are
trialling a new digital proposition in Wales
which gives customers greater choice over
their rewards, managed conveniently via
their mobile phones.

1.2m

Regular Nectar app users

Digitising Argos stores

We have made significant progress in
upgrading the Argos store estate to
digital stores since we acquired the
business in 2016. 476 stores are now
digital, compared to 104 at the end of
2016/17. We have introduced Pay@Browse
to 162 Argos stores, which enables
custormers to pay digitally, without
queuing at a till, and will roll it out to
moere than 200 further stores in 2019/20.

162

Argos stores now offer Pay@Browse
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Strengthen the
balance sheet

We continue to maintain a
strong balance sheet and have
reduced net debt by £222 million
to £1,636 million (including
perpetual securities).

This represents a decrease of £162 million
before fair value movermnents on derivatives
and exceeds our target £100 million reduction
far the year.

Our focus en nel debt reduction will continue
and we are introducing a new target lo
reduce this by at least £600 million over

the next three years through a disciplined
approach to cash generation and capital
allocatior’.

Gross retail capital expenditure of £554 million
(including Argos integration) remains low
cornpared te the preceding five years and
capex is expected to rermain at around

£550 million next year.

14

Our focus on net debt reduction
will continue and we will
target to reduce this by at least
£600 million over the next three
years through a disciplined
approach to cash generation
and capital allocation.”

We are targeting adjusted net debt to
EBITDAR {treating perpetual securities as
debt) of less than three times and fixed
charge cover above three times in the
rmedium term supported by the reduction
innet debt-.

The pension scherne moved from a

£261 million deficit at the end of 2017/18 1o
a £743 million surplus at the end of 2018/19.
This was a result of both experience and
actuarial gains in relation to changes in
demographic assumptions.

Net debt

Definition: Net debt including perpetual
securities (Em) over the last four years
and our larget for net debt reduction over
the next three years to 2021/22.

17

Net debt/EBITDAR
Definition: Lease adjusted net debt/
underlying EBITDAR.

Fixed charge cover

Definition: Group underiying EBITDAR/
net rent and underlying net interest costs
(including interest on perpetual
securities).

Our strategy in action

Sustainable cash generation

We will continue to have a disciplined
and focused approach to cash generation
and debt reduction. We have exceeded
our £100 mitlion net debt reduction
target by more than 60 per cent in
2018/19. we will target to deliver

further net debt reductions of at least
£600 rnillion over the next three years
to 2021/22.°

£600m

Target for net debt reduction over
the next three years to 2021/22'?
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The Group has financing facilities of

£3.6 billion, of which only £2.1 billion was
drawn down at the year end. As aresult
of the repayment of the securitised loan
in April 2018, nel finance costs reduced
by £23 million. We expect finance costs
in 2019/20 1o remain i line with 2018/13.

[N

Unless ptherwise stated. all farward guidance s stated
hefore thempact of IFRS 16

Net debt including petpetual securntics

2017118 lease adjusted net debt/EBI1DAR reported as 3.5
2M7/18 capitalised lease obligations of £5.931 rullon have
been updated following a review of kease cost profile

This does nzt impact total lease ohhgations of £10 b~
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Our values make

us different
Y3

Our values are integral to how we do business
and they enable us to help our customers
to live well, and drive lasting, positive change
in communities across the UK and overseas.
They help us grow trust with our stakehaclders,
as we work closely with our partners to build
a more sustainable future”

Mike Coupe
Group Chief Executive Officer

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

2018/19 progress on our 2020
commitments includes

o

Page 20

Living healthier lives
Offering customers nutritious and healthy foed and
encouraging active lifestyles

78%

of our own-brand products are labelled with green and/or
amber traffic lights, just one of the ways we are helping
our customers to eat and live well

Making a positive difference

to our community
Generating positive impact in the communities we serve
and source from, locally and glebally

949,

of our stores partnered with local charities this year,
raising £2.6 million to make a big local impact

5o

Page 22

Sourcing with integrity
Building resilient supply chains by sourcing products
ethically and sustainably

Winner

of the Marine Stewardship Council (MSC) UK Supermarket
of the Year Award for the fifth year in a row, and leading
UK retailer, with the most MSC labelled products

Respect for our environment
Reducing emissions, water use and waste across our
value chain

= 100m+
iterns with reduced or zerg plastic packaging through
design changes this year, with further reductions in
the pipeline
&y Great place to work
), Being an inclusive employar where colleagues
Pagezg  lovetowork

31.4%

of senior roles are now held by women, making progress
towards achieving our target of 40 per cent

For all our 2018/19 sustainability performance indicators,
see our Sustainability Update on our corporate website
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As part of our efforts to be the most
inclusive retailer, Mike Coupe has set
corporate objectives to increase fernale
and Black, Asian and Mingarity Ethnic
{BAME]) colleagues in senior roles.

Page 26.

Over 4,500 children took part in our
new Active Kids holiday clubs, helping
keep kids active and healthy over the
sumrmer. Page 20.

Over 50,000 trees for individuals,
schools, community groups and MPs to
plant in their communities through our
support for the Queen’s Commonwealth
Canopy. Page 23.

35 per cent absolute reduction in
carbon emissions against our 2005
baseline, meaning that we achieved our
2020 reduction target early, as a result
aof our efficlency savings and National
Grid decarbonisation. Page 24.

Over one miltion donations through
our Brighten a Million Christmases
campaign, focusing on food donations
in Sainsbury's and toy donations in
Argos. Page 21.
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Making the difference

Our Sustainability Plan is structured around
our values and is our guide for building a
more sustainable future. working closealy
with our partners, we focus our efforts
where we can make the greatest difference.
Our 2020 targets have driven remarkable
progress since we launched thern in 2011
We will be publishing our full 2020
performance review in the coming year,
along with new targets, which we are
developing in discussion with our colleagues,
partners and experts.

United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals

we fully support the UN’s Sustainable
Development Goals to end poverty, fight
inequality and stop climate change. Working
closely with our partners, our sustainability
activities contribute towards many of the
goals, helping address local and global
challenges.
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Living
healthier lives

Related UN Sustainable Development Goats

We help our customers to live
well and living well starts with
eating well.

With over 28 million customer transactions
everl) week, we have a responsibility to
make sure our customers can always choose
nutritious and healthy focd when shopping
with us.

Inspiring healthier choices through
new products

This year we introduced over 50 new
products within Love your Veg, grain
pouches and Slim Choice meals, along with
the first mushrooms on the market fortified
with vitamins D and B12. We also extended
our Little Ones brand to include 60 food
praducts, all balanced towards savoury

flavaurs and guided by our ‘veg first” approach.

9m-+ Love your Veg and Little Ones food
products sold

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Repert 2019

Collaborating for our customers

We are partnering with Oxford University,
the Wellcome Trust and others on LEAP
(Livestock, Ervironment and People),

a world-leading research project. This aims
to provide evidence and tools to promote
healthy and sustainable dicts.

The number of peaple aged 85 and over

is projected to double in the UK by 2041
Through the Protein for Life research project,
wie are working with partners to help develop
guidelines for higher-protein snack foods for
clder adults.

To make shopping easier for people with
food allergies and intolerances, we have
partnered with food search platform
FocdMaestro on an app that over 52,000

of our customers have used Lo create
personalised allergen profiles, autormatically
checking products online for allergens.

Inspiring kids to live healthier
lifestyles

Through Active Kids, we continue to help
children get active and understand the
importance of diet and exercise. We donated
over £186 million worth cf equipment and
experiences through our Active Kids voucher
scheme from 2005 to 2017, In 2018, to help
keep kids active and healthy over the
summer, we trialled holiday clubs in 25
schools and plan to run more in 2019,

4 500+ children tock part in Active Kids
heliday clubs

&6

We want to help our customers to
eat well. Even small changes to the
food in their baskets can make a big
impact on people’s health, which is
why we continue to make everyday
products healthier and contribute to
collaborations designed to help nudge
people towards healthier choices when
shopping with us.”

Nilani Sritharan
Company Nutritionist at Sainsbury’s

Making everyday products healthier
We have been cutting sugar, saturated fat
and salt in our products for several uears,
at the same time as continuing ta offer

a wide variety of choice to our custormers.

To help reduce childhood obesity, Public
Health England challenged the food industry
to cut 20 per cent of sugar from a range

of products by 2020, This year, building on
earlier savings, we reduced sugar in our deep
filled rince pies by 14 per cent and cut sugar
across our frozen dessert range

We continue to suppoert the Food
Foundation’s Peas Please initiative, which
makes a pledge for more veg. Vegetables
cornprise 18.8 per cent of our own-brand

food sales by volume.

78% green and/or amber traffic lights
on our own-brand products, up from
77 per cent in 2017/18°

(P020 target: 79 per cent)

Living Well Index

Qur ambition has always been to help our
customers live well for less. To explare what
living well rneans, we work with leading
researchers to survey 8,000 people every
six months.

Our third Living well Index revealed that the
UK’s sense of wellbeing has fallen since 2017,
identifying social interaction and community
connections as key drivers for living well.

To bring people together, we trialled Talking
Tables in 20 stores, often hosted by our
colleagues and community partners.

For our Living Well Index, visit our corporate
website.

1 Offce tor Nahondl Stas1stics Matonal popuiation projections
for the U {2016-based}

2 Bascdondata from January 1o March 2014 for focd praducts with
nutntional labels
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000
Making a positive
difference to our

community

Related UN Sustainable Development Goals

Our long-term business success
relies on resilient, thriving
communities in the UK and
internationally.

In the context of social challenges such as
inequality, health issues and an ageing
population, we are working with partners to
support social cohesion, economic prosperity
and inclusive growth.

Alongside our community investment,

we rake positive ecanomic contributions
through our supply chain, our market-leading
pay for colleagues and our responsible
approach to tax, confributing £2.3 billion

in taxes borne and collected this year.

£30m generated for charities and
communities, bringing total investment
since 2011/12 to £330 million

(2020 target. £400 milhon)!

Contributing to our local communities
Our Local Charity of the Year programme has
been making a big positive impact in our
local communities for ten years. This year
our colleagues and custormers raised

£2.6 million for their favourite local charities,
supporting them through fundraising,
volunteering and donations.

94% of stores took part in our Local
Charity of the Year, up from 91 per cent
in 201718

(2020 target: 100 per cent)

7 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2018 21
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We can't thank Sainsbury’s enough
for all the help provided to residents
of Betel UK who have been rescued
from desperate situations. Thanks to
Sainsbury’s support, we can look to
the future with hope.”

Timon Rabins
Fundraising Director for rehabilitation
charity Betel UK, partnered with 15 of our
Birmingham stores

Tackling food poverty in our
communities

As more UK families struggle to pay basic
living costs and food bank use scars?,

we have expanded our food donation
programme to 1,425 stares, making it the
UK's largest scheme of its kind. 87 per cent of
our stores have a community food partner
—arecord, as we work towards 100 per cent.

This year we launched food bank fnendly
labelling on shelves to alert custemers to
pricrity items, after a trial led to a three-fold
rise in donations. The initiative was
suggested by teenage National Citizen
Service graduates.

1Im+ donations through our Brighten a
Millicn Christmases campaign, focusing
on food donations in Sainsbury’s and toy

donations in Argos

Collaborating for greater impact

With 850,000 people living in the UK with

a farm of dementia’ our Argos colleagues
chose the Alzheimer's Society as their
charity of the year, raising enough to fund
15 dementia support workers and advisers
for a whole year. All colleagues have been
offered the opportunity to become Dementia
Friends, increasing their awareness and
understanding of those affected by
dementia. This builds on the success of
Argos's award-winning three-year
partnership with Macmillan Cancer Support
and the Irish Cancer Society, which raised
£33 miltion.

As a partner of The Royal British Legion for
25 years, our activities to mark the centenary
of the end of the First World War included
partnering with 11iconic brands that were
staples in British homes 100 years ago and
are still sold in-store today.

This year marks the 20th anniversary of our
partnership with Comic Relief. Since 1859 we
have raised over £130 million for the charity,
helping nearly 1.5 million people across

the UK and over 71 million internationally.
Key activities include selling red noses and
merchandise, colleague fundraising and
partnerships with multiple brands.

£11m raised for Comic Relief this year,
bringing the 20-year total to over

£130 million

£3.8mraised for The Royal British
Legicn, up from £3.4 million last year
£422 000 raised for the Alzhelimer’s
Society, exceeding our £400,000 target

{4

Sainsbury’s is a brilliant long-
standing partner of ours. Since
1999 they have raised an incredible
amount of money for Comic Relief.
Together with Sainsbury’s and Argos
employees, we help fund projects
locally and abroad — saving and
changing lives.”

Liz Warner
CEO of Comic Relief

As part of our support for our communities
internationally, we responded when we
heard that Kerala, where we source Fairtrade
cashew nuts frorm, had been hit by floods.
Our funds jeined those of other organisations
to help rebuild the area and restore
livelihoods. In addition, nearly 8,000
custormers contributed to emergency charity
appeals through Nectar this year, donating
points and cash te help communities in crisis.

1 Thisincludes corporate donations, volunteenng, fundraising
and commynity investmeant.

2 Inseph Rowntree Foundatien, Destitubicnin the UK (2018)

% The Alsheimer's Society, Dementla UK Update (2014)
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5o
Sourcing with
integrity

Related UN Sustainable Development Goals

With over 1,200 own-brand
products sourced from more than
70 countries, we have a vital role
to play in supporting our farmers,
growers and suppliers across

the world.

Our approach is to work collaboratively

1o tackle climate change, reduce the
environmental impact of our raw materials,
advance respecl for human rights across

our supply chain and imprave the livelihoods
of our farmers, growers and suppliers.

Sustainable sourcing

To help develop more resilient supply chains,
we have worked with independent experts
on our sustainability standards for the key
materials used in our own-brand products.

These standards are designed te help our
farmers and growers identify opportunities
to strengthen their economic sustainability,
enhance worker wellbeing and reduce
environmental impacts. We are trialling cur
standards for prawns, tea, sugar cane and
flowers in Central America, Fast Africa and
South East Asia. We trained 100 suppliers,
farmers, growers and co-operative
representatives in our sustainability
standards this year.

We also continue to source products such
as palm oil and Limber to international
standards. See page 23.

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Trading for a fatrer future

We support farmers and workers in challenged
value chains through our ewn Fairly Traded
programme and the Fairtrade brand.

We source Sainsbury’s Fairly Traded tea from
producer groups in Rwanda, Kenya and
Malawi, who we work with on environmental,
economic and sccial challenges. Alongside
our mintimum price guarantee, tea farmers
have received a $260,000 social premiumn to
invest in their businesses and communities.
We have sel up the Sainsbury’s Foundation
to oversee social, economic and
environmental activities in our Fairly Traded
producer communities. Members include
external experts and colleagues.

Through our wider sourcing commitments,
we continue to work with the Fairtrade
brand, which we have supportaed since 1994,
empeowering farmers and workers in
developing countries.

Responsible fishing

We are leading the way in sourcing fish
responsibly, so our fish populations remain
healthy and our customers can enjoy great
quality fish, now and in the years to come.

In addition te line and pole caught tuna, this
year we expanded our responsibly fished
tuna offer to include Fishing Aggregation
Device (FAD}-free fishing. This avoids the use
of FADs that attract lots of fish and can lead
to other marine life being caught. Non-profit
organisation OceanMind uses the latest
technology to independently verify that our
suppliers’ fishing practices are FAD-free.

We also continue to support fishery
improvernent projects, working towards
an environmentally sustatnable fulure for
UK fisheries.

Winner of the Marine Stewardship
Council (MSC) UK Supermarket of the
Year for the fifth time, and leading UK
retailer, with the most MSC iabelled
products

82.5% of wild caught seafood and

100 per cent of farmed seafood sourced
sustainably to an independent standard,
compared to 86 and 100 per cent
respectively in 2017718

(7070 targets., 100 per cent)

Backing British farming

As a UK retailer, we are proud to support
British producers. In addition to boosting
the natienal economy and contributing
to rural communities, this reduces food
transport miles.

Nearly 500 of our farmers, growers and
suppliers attended our ninth annual Farming
Conference. Speakers included Mike Coupe.
Food Commercial Birector Paul Mills-Hicks
and, for the first time, National Farmers
Union President, Minette Batters.

We returned as a principal sponscr of Open
Farm Sunday for the third year, with around
360 British farms opening their gates to over
290,000 visitars and sharing educational
resources we developed with Linking
tnvironment and Farming (LEAF). We are
also supporting LEAF's FaceTime a Farmer
initiative, which connects schools and
farmers an curriculum areas linked to
farrming. This is inspiring young people and
raising awareness of careers in farming.

Five farmers and growers in our supply
chain completed our 18-month Farm Tech
Scholarship, delivered in partnership with
Irperial College. Supported by mentors
from our teamns, they worked on projects
to develop technological solutions and use
data to drive efficiency in their businesses.

100% of our fresh chicken, eqgs and
rmilk are British

Sustainable crops

Building on over ten years of collaboration
with cur growers and suppliers through cur
Crop Action Groups, this year we launched
Grower Interaction Groups, which bring
diverse growers together to find solutions
to shared challenges. We also introduced

a Wheat Development Network linking

our celleagues and suppliers to combine
expertise.

120+ attendances at our Crop Action
and Grewer Interaction Groups
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Sustainable dairy farming

We have been working closely with cur
dairy farmers through the Sainsbury’s Dairy
Developrnent Group since 2007, protecting
their livelihoods and ensuring a sustainable
milk supply for our customers.

Together, we continue to improve herd health
and efficiency, ensure a fair price for milk for
dairy farmers and reduce costs in our milk
supply chain.

This year we trialled cur first small group
tackling a specific issue, feed efficiency. Qver
40 farmers were invited to attend workshops,
receive consultancy support and test
technology innovations, including ear tags
that give real-time health alerts and a smart
device for feed wagons.

235 farmers attended our Dairy
Development Group regional meetings

Caring for animal health and welfare
Healthy, well-managed animals are more
likely to deliver belter tasting, higher guality
products for our customers. Our current
collaborations for animal welfare incdlude

a three-year research project with industry
partrers to test the use of 3D cameras to
help stop pig tait biting.

No. 1 UK retailer for RSPCA Assured
products, selling 30 per cent of all
RSPCA Assured products sold in the
LUK in 2018

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 23

Protecting human rights

Our vision is to be the most trusted retailer
where people love to work and shop. This
includes treating people fairly wherever they
are in gur business and supply chain.

This year we expanded our Modern Slavery
Risk Assessment Tool, became founding
sponsors of the Responsible Recruitment
Toolkit and piloted initiatives as members
of the Responsible Car Wash Scheme. Mike
Coupe spoke about our efforts to tackle
rodern slavery at The Consumer Goods
Forum’s Sustainable Retail Surnmit and tock
on the role of Retailer College Chair for the
Forum’s sustainability pillar. The Business
and Human Rights Resource Centre
identified Sainsbury’s as a leader for
transparency on Modern Slavery Act
requirerments.

For our Hurnan Rights Policy and Modern
Slavery Staternent, visit our corporate
website.

Protecting forests

with many of the world's tropical forests at

risk, we have a long history of collaborating

to progress sustainable sourcing of palm oil,
cacoa, soy and timber globally.

A common ingredient In many products —
from shampoo to biscuits —we continue tc
source palm ofl certified sustainable by the
Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Qil. We
belleve this is the best way to drive global
change, conserving natural resources and
biodiversity, respecting human rights and
protecting livelihoods.

This year we joined the World Cocoa
Foundation, working towards a sustainable
cecoa sector. We also continued our
collaborative efforts on sustainable soy,

as signatories to the Cerrado Manifesto

and the UK Roundtable on Sustainable Soya,
as well as working with our suppliers and
updating our policy.

Together with cther retailers, we are
engaging with CDP ¢ its revised
methodology for forest disclosures, which
affected scores across our sector this year.

98.7% of paim oil and 97 per cent of
timber in our products certified to
international sustainability standards:,
tmproving on 98 and 495 per cent
respectively in 2017718

(2020 targets 100 per cent)

We have raised £8.6 million for the Woodland
Trust since 2004, planting 3.3 million native
treas and involving over 1 million volunteers.
This year we funded over 50,000 trees for
individuals, schools, community groups and
MPs as part of the Queen’s Commonwealth
Canopy and we were lead sponscr for the
First World War Centenary Woodland Project,
which created four new woods.

Sustainable general merchandise
and clothing

As one of the largest general merchandise
and clothing retailers in the UK, we can
make a real difference. At our annual
supplier conference, we highlighted our
sustainabllity targets, ethical sourcing
policies and modern slavery risks. In the
coming year, we will publish our first tier
manufacturing sites for clothing and
footwear on our Tu website.

68% of our cotton certified to
international sustainability standards?,
up from 61 per cent in 2017/18, working
with the Better Cotton Initiative

(2020 target: 100 per cent)

Collaborating on global goals

We have a strong track record of partnering
to help address global challenges and drive
change in our value chains. We are currently
involved in over 40 collaborations, including:

— Cerrado Manifesto to protect Brazil's
Cerrado savannah

— The Consurner Geods Forum's Sustainable
Supply Chain Initiative

— Ethical Trading Initiative
— Roundtable on Suslainable Palm Oil
— UK Roundtable for Sustainable Soya

— UN Task Force on Digital Financing of
Sustainable Developrment Goals

-— World Cocoa Foundation

1 Palm cildata provided by calendar year. Timher and ¢atton data
provided by financial year in atrears
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Respect for our
environment

Related UN Sustainable Development Goals

Climate change and resource
scarcity are complex, global
challenges, which affect every
part of our business.

To grow our business sustainably, we are
cutting carbon, maximising encrgy and
water efficiency, keeping food waste at
a minimum and upgrading oL fleet.

Cutting carbon emissions
To help tackle climate change, we have a
bold ambiticn to be the Greenest Grocer by

cutting carbon emissions from our heating,

cooling, lighting and logistics.

Sainsbury’s Argos has also implemented
a colleague engagement programme that
encourages simple changes in behavicur
to save energy, bullding on our successful
Greenest Grocer programme,

Across the Group we have reduced

energy use by four per cent year-on-year.
through our colieague behavioural change
programime, cutting carbon emissions
and costs.

We achieve further emissions reductions
by sourcing 18 per cent af aur electricity
from on-site renewables generation and
renewable power purchase agreements.

J sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Following a successful trial that reduced
energy use in store by 15 per cent, this year
we rolled out aerofoil technology across
1,400 Sainsbury's stores. Inspired by Formula
1 innovations, aerofoil prevents cold air from
fridges spilling out into aisles, sowe reduce
our environmental impacts and energy costs
and our custorners enjoy warmer aisles.

In the coming year we will continue to test
opportunities for the Internet of Things
technology linked to metering (o identify
ways to further enhance energy efficiency
in stores.

35% absctute reduction in carbon
ernissions against our 2005 baseline,
achieving our target early
(2020 target; 30 per cent reduclion}
55% relative reduction in carbon
emissions against cur 2005 baseline,
as a result of our efficiency savings
and National Grid decarbaonisation
(2020 target: 65 per cent reduction)

For more on cur greenhouse gas
emissions see pages 87 and 88

CDP A rating for our climate change
disdosure for the fifth year running -
the only UK feod retailer to achieve this
score for so many years

|

Setting science-based targets
Science-based targets seek to deliver on the
cornrmitment made by international leaders
to limit global wariming to a maximum
increase of 2°C. When we sel our 2020
carbon reduction targets in 2011, the Science
Based Targets initiative had not yet been
established. Analysis shows that our Scope 1
and 2 reductions are in line with the
science-based target trajectory. We are
particularly proud that we have reduced
absolute carbon emissions by 35 per cent
since 2005, while growing our business.

We are now working with the Carbon Trust
to develop science-based reduction targets,
which we will publish in the coming year

as part of our post-2020 plan.

14

Sainsbury’s has made great progress
in reducing its carbon foetprint
through energy efficiency measures,
Best practice now requires companies
to set long-term targets to limit i

global warming to below 2°C and
we are pleased to see Sainsbury’s
taking a leadership position,
working in partnership to develop
science-based targets”

Mark Reynolds
Account Director at the Carbon Trust

Improving air quality

Wwe recognise the impact of vehicle
ernissions on air quality and human health
and continue to trial and roll out new
technologies to minimise emissions across
our fleet.

Following successful trials of refrigerated
vehicles powered by alternative technologies
and fuels, rather than diesel, we are now
purchasing gas vehicles as part of our fleet
replacement programme. This will
dramatically reduce nitrogen oxide outputs
across our operations and cut carbon
emissions. All our vehicles in Londan's Ultra
Low Emission Zones are Furo 6 compliant
for 1 April 2025, when fees come into effect,
supporting the Mayor's efforts to improve
air quality.

30+ gas vehicles joined our fleet, having ‘
been the first retailer in the world to trial
refrigerated vehicles cooled by €O,
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Reducing, reusing and recycling

With UK households generating 27 million
tonnes of waste each year', we provide
facilities to help our customers recycle
unwanted clothing, metal cans, glass, paper,
batteries and other materials, as well as
supperting global efforts ta reduce food
waste and working to minimise our own
packaging.

We support the UN Sustainable Development
Goal 12.3 to halve food waste by 2030 and are
a signatory to the Courtauld Commitment

to cut food waste by 20 per cent by 2025

87% of our stares have foed donation
partners for unseld food, up from

73 per cent in 2017/18

{2020 target: 106 per cent)

To belp cur customers divert unwanted
clothing from landfill, this year we expanded
our partnership with Oxfam, providing

a netwaork of 356 clothing recycling banks

in our store car parks. This also generates
valuable funds for the charity's work Lo
create a world without poverty.

78% of available sites have Sainsbury's-
rnanaged recycting facilities,
maintaining our 2017/18 performance
(2020 target: 100 per cent}

Collectively, they recycled 29,500+
tonnes of waste —an estimated
1 million items per site

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Pledging to cut plastic

Plastic has become one of the biggest
environmental issues of our time, polluting
our oceans and harming wildlife. We all need
to work harder and act together to reduce
our reliance on plastic and improve reuse
and recycling rates.

This year we redesigned packaging to reduce
plastic across over 100 million items, including
water bottles, bananas, cauliflowers,
tomatoes, chicken, clive cil, bedding, clothing
and greeting cards. We also reduced black
plastic use ¢n fresh produce, meat, fish and
paultry. We continue to explore additional
opportunities to cut plastic across the Group.

We made substantial progress towards
eliminating single-use plastic in our Group
office restaurants and Argos store cafés and
plan to expand this approach to all our cafés,
as well as continuing our packaging redesign
prograrmme.

As members of WRAP's UK Plastics Pact, we
are collaborating to eliminate unnecessary
single-use packaging by 2025 and working
towards all plastic packaging being

100 per cent reusable, recyclable or
compostable, as well as containing at least
30 per cent recycled content.

100m+ iterns with reduced or zero
plastic packaging through design
changes this year, with further
reductions in the pipeline

Im+ disposable plastic itemns set to be
saved annually from our Group offices
and support centres, with further
savings planned in our Group cafés

Saving water
: Having achieved our 2020 water reduction
targets early, we continue to drive efficiency
across the Group. In the coming year, we will
be rolling out low-flow water taps.

25

30% absolute reduction in water use
and 57 per cent relative reduction
against 2005 haseline, achieving our
2020 reduction targets early

(2020 targets 30 and 35 per cent

reduciions respechively)

CDP A-rating for our water disclosure
for the second year running

Collaborating on global challenges

We are now in the ninth year of our
partnership with Imperial College London,
which provides us with academic
independence and quality research.

MSc students from around the world have
completed innovation projects as part of our
carbon reduction programme, supporting
the transition to a low carbon future.

14

The partnership between Imperial
College and Sainsbury’s is a great
example of the power of collaboration
between academia and business.
We welcome the progress made
by Sainsbury’s and look forward
to continued engagement to
further reduce emissions.”

Dr Neil Jennings
Partnership Development Manager
at the Grantham Institute,
Irmperial College Lendon

1 Depariment for Envirenmen:, Food and Rural atairs.
UK Statisaics on Was:e (2015)
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Great place
to work

Related UN Sustainable Development Goals

We want to be the most inclusive
retailer, where every single one
of our colleagues can fulfil their
potential and where all our
customers feel welcome when
they shop anywhere in our Group.

Our custorers value excellent service,
which our colleagues strive to provide across
our Sainsbury's, Argos and Habitat stores,
Sainsbury’'s Bank, Travel Money outlets

and customer management centres.

A place where colleagues love to work
we invest in our colleagues (o make sure
they feel rewarded and motivated to do the
best possible job for our customers every
day. This sets us up to run the best shops
and banks in the industry, delivering the
best possible service for our customers.

This year we launched our new online
colleague recognition portal with discounts
and benefits, ‘Love it'. Sainsbury's Argos
embedded our Group values and ‘Love It".
Values Ambassadors in Argos stores engage
colleagues in our values, supported by
regular features in our communication
channels.

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

We completed the largest recrganisation

in our Sainshuiny’s stores for more than a
decade, designed to meet the challenges

of today’s retail environment and help us

to deliver the best possible service Tor our
customers. This included introducing one fair
and consistent contract, giving us greater
flexibility to ensure store colleagues are
always in the right place at the right time for
our custorners. In recognition of this, as part
of our Winning Teams strategy, we invested
over £100 million in store colleagues, taking
the base rate of pay to £9.20 per hour.

69% of our colleagues across our
Group stores, banks, support centres
and depots feel that we're a great place
o work

£9.20 per hour base rate of pay in
Sainsbury's stores, an industry-leading
Investrment in pay, up from £8.00

[ 14

“We want to be a place where people
love to work and shop. That means
hamessing the talent, creativity and
diversity of our colleagues to ensure
that customers receive great service
every time they shop with us.”

Angie Risley
Group HR Director

A place where colleagues learn

and grow

Apprenticeships give colleagues cn-the-job
skills and training and help us secure

our talent pipeline. We have offered
apprenticeships since 1974 and continue
to expand our offer.

We introduced 19 new apprenticeship
programmes this year, bringing the total
available across the Group to 33, from
fundamental skills all the way up to degree
level. These reflect the diverse range of
skills we rely on, from traditional food crafts
such as bakery, butchery and fish, to retail
skills such as hospitality and merchandising,
and business skills such as analytics, cyber
security, finance, risk, software and supply
chain management. Qur Group-wide
programme saw 120 Sainsbury's Argos
apprentices develop skills in areas from
team leadership to data analysis, and

15 Sainsbury's Bank colleagues complete

a modern apprenticeship with Microcom.
We also Urialled our first supplier
apprenticeship collaboration, helping

The Lakes Free Range Egg Company support
one of their colleagues through the Supply
Chain Practitioner Apprenticeship.

887 cclieagues enrclied on
apprenticeships across our Group, with
156 completing their programme

Investors in People Gold

Ethical policies

We are committed to complying with laws
and regulations and set high ethical
standards for our colleagues and suppliers.
we expect all colleagues to abide by our
Ethical Conduct Paolicy, which covers areas
including anti-bribery and corruption,
conflicts of interest, suppliers. fraud and
whistleblowing. Training in support of our
ethical policies is provided to colleagues,
especially in the commercial divisions, both
as part of their induction and through annual
refreshers.

Inclusive leadership

Mike Coupe has set corporate objectives

to increase female and Black, Asian and
Minority Ethnic (BAME) colleagues in senior
management and department director rales.
In addition, our department directors

have inclusion objectives linked to their
annual bonus,

To support the delivery of these goals, we
have invested in engaging and upskilling cur
leadership teams through deep dive sessions
on inclusive leadership and an inclusion
training module for new line managers.

Our aspirational targets for seniar
management and department directors:

40% of senior roles held by wormen,
currently 314 per cent

10% of senior roles held by BAME
colleagues, currently 7.5 per cent

Our well-established Group Diversity and
Inclusion Steering Group, which consists of
six Operating Board sponscrs and cther key
stakeholders, meets requiarly to influence
aur strategy and govern progress.
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Recognised in the Best Empioyers for
Race list by Business in the Community

Three of gur colleagues recognised

in the Financial Times EMpower Ethnic
Minority Leaders and Advecates lists
far their outstanding achieverments,
and two of our colleagues nominated
for the prestigious British LGBT awards

Disability Confident Leader status —
the highest tier of accreditation in

the Government’s Disahility Confident
Programme

Celebrating and empowering

diverse colleagues

Through our Embrace the Difference
inclusion campaign we continue 1o explore
challenging topics with our colleagues, such
as banter. This year during our Inclusion
week we equipped colleagues to call out
exclusive behaviour. Our colleague networks
hosted poputar events, connecting diverse
groups and providing insights into the lived
experience of our colleagues. We also

launched our everyday role model campaign,

#thisisme, through which diverse colleagues
share their stories.

Colleagues invited to wear an 'Embrace
the Difference’ badge to demonstrate
their support for diversity and inclusion
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Inclusive recruitment and development
We have trialled several initiatives in recent
years to reduce recruitment bias, such

as anonymised CVs and strengths-based
assessment. We continue to integrate

best practices chtained through these
experiments 1o improve our recruitment
processes. This year we also created an
in-house executive recruitment team, who
are taking proactive steps to increase the
diversity of senior teams.

Inclusion is at the heart of our approach to
talent development. This year, following a
successful trial of our women's development
prograrmme, we have rolled it out across the
Group. In the coming year we will trial a
BAME colleague development programime.

Purple Day events at stores across the
Group, celebrating our disabled customers
and explering opportunities to make our
store experience even more inclusive

Pride events across the UK attended
by colleagues, in partnership with cur
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans and Allies
{LGBTA) networks

éé

I am proud to be the Group Board
sponsor for Disability, Age and Carers.
Creating a great place to work, where
every colleague feels included, is not

only the right thing to do, it helps

us to drive colleague engagement,
productivity and to boost our overall

business performance.”

Tim Fallowfield
Company Secretary and Corporate
Services Director

Gender pay balance

We continue to work hard to improve gender
balance across the Group and wetcome the
opportunity to report on our gender pay gap.
This year we reduced our median gender
pay gap by 0.6 per cent tc 3.8 per cent and
our mean gap by 2.5 per cent 1o 12.1 per cent.
We recognise that we have more to do.

To find out more about aur gender pay gap
and initiatives to improve gender balance,
please read our Gender Pay Gap Report on
our corporate website.
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Our KPIs

Financial key performance indicators are critical to
understanding and measuring our financial health.

Group measures

Underlying profit

before tax (Em)*

Dehrition: Profit before tax adjusted
for certain iteins in note 3 which, by
virtue of their size and/or nature, do
nol reflect the Group’s underlying
perforrmance

Retail underlying

EBITDAR margin (%)

Defimtion: Underlying profit before
tax before underlying net finance
costs, underlying share of post-

tax results from joint ventures,
depreciation, amortisation and
rent, divided by sales excluding VAT,
including fuel, excluding Financial
Services

1 Refer lo APMs on page 185

Underlying basic earnings

per share (pence)!

Definition: Earnings per share using
underlying profit

Retail underlying

operating margin (%)*
Definition: Underlying profit before
tax before underlying net finance
costs and underlying share of
post-tax results from joint ventures,

divided by retail sales excluding VAT,

including fuel, excluding Financial
Services

2 Retal free cash How wes omly defined as o KPIrom 2015/16 orwards
3 2016/17 restated to include Argos on a post acquisition censohdation basis

Retail operating cash flow (£m)
Definition. Retall cash generated
from operations after changes
inworking capital and pension
contributions, and before
exceptional pension contributions

Pividend per share (pence)
Definition: Total proposed
dividend per share in relation
to the financial year

Retail free cash flow (Em)
Definition: Net cash generated
from retail operations, adjusted for
exceptional pension contributions,
after cash capital expenditure but
before strategic capital expenditure
and after investments in joint
venitures and associates and
Sainsbury’s Bank capital injections

Core retail capital
expenditure {Em)?

Definition: Capital expenditure
excluding Financial Services, after
nraceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment and before
strategic capital expenditure
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Maintaining balance sheet strength

Pre-tax return on

capital employed (%)
Definition: Underlying profit before
interest, and tax, divided by the
average of opening and closing
capital employed {net assets
before net debt)

Retail

Like-for-like sales 2018/19 (%)*
Definition: Year-on-year growth

n sales including VAT, excluding
fuel, excluding Financial Services,
for stores that have been open for
more than one year

Gearing (%)*
Defimtion: Net debt divided by
net assets

Retail sales growth 2018/19 (%)
Definition: Year-on-year growth in
sales including VAT, excluding fuel,
excluding Financial Services

Non-financial KPIs?

Colleague engagement (%)
Definition: Percentage of our
colleagues wha feel that we are
a great place to worl®

1 Refer lo APMs on page 185,

Community investment (£m)
Definition: Total investrment
generated for good causes

since 2011*

2 P016¢17 and 201418 Lf L growth both include Argos in the base.
3 2018/19data s fur the Group and prior data is for Satnshury’s Arges dala has beemincorporated inta the greenhouse gas emiss’ans 2005 hasehne
4 Including all corperate donatians, volunteering. fundraising. awarcness-rais'ng and investment in commumty pragrammes
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Lease adjusted net debt/
underlying EBITDAR (%)*
Defimitton Net debt plus capitalised
lease obligations (55 per cent
discount tate) divided by Group
underlying EBITDAR

Cost savings (%)

Definition: Excludes Financial
Services and Argos and represents
cost reductions as a result of
identified initiatives

Like-for-like transactions
growth 2018/19 (%)
Definilion: Year-on-year growth
in transactions, excluding fuel,
excluding Fimancial Services,
for stores that have been open
for more than one year

Greenhouse gas emissions
reduction (%)

Definilion: Percentage reduction in
absolute greenhause gas emissions
since 2005/06
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Our principal risks
and uncertainties

Risk is an inherent part of doing business. The management of risk is
based on the balance between risk and reward, determined through
careful assessment of both the potential outcomes and impact as
well as risk appetite. Consideration is given to both reputational as
well as financial impact, recegnising the significant commercial
value of the Sainsbury’s brand. The risk management process is
aligned to our strategy and each principal risk and uncertainty is
considered in the context of how it relates to the achievernent of

the Group's strategic objectives.

Qur corporate risk map captures the principal risks to achieving
Sainsbury's business objectives. Sainsbury’s Operating Board
farmally reviews this twice a year. The appetite for each kel risk is
also discussed and assessed with a target risk position agreed to
reflect the level of risk that the business is willing to accept. This
enables the Board to agree and monitor appropriate actions as
required. Please see the risk framewark on page 67 for further detail

The gross risk movement from the prior year for each principal risk
and uncertainty has been assessed and is presented as follows:

Reduced gross @ New
risk exposure risk

Mitigations in place, supporting the managerment of the risk to a net
risk position, are also described for each principal risk and uncertainty.

No Increased gross
change risk exposure

Where principal risks have been included in the risk rmodelling,
undertaken as part of the preparation of the viability statement
{see page 37), this has been indicated with the following symbal: @
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Key risk movements

As noted, the principal and emerging risks are discussed and
monitored throughout the year to identify changes to the risk
landscape. Risks are reviewed in line with the Company’s
strategic objectives.

Following the review of the principal risks and our strategic key
drivers, we have included two new principal risks and uncertainties.
One relates to the cngoing heightened levels of political and
regulatory uncertainty in the UK following the referendum vote to
leave the EU in June 2016, and the second is to separate out the
Sainsbury’s Bank plc's risks from our Finance and Treasury principal
risk and uncertainty disclosure. The Bank has a defined risk appetite
aligned to the delivery of its own strategic objectives.

The most significant principal risks identified by the Board, and
the corresponding mitigating controls, are set aut below inno order
of priority.

@ Brand perception

Risk

We are a multi-brand, multi-channel business incorporating
Sainshury's, Arges, Habitat, Tu, Nectar and Sainsbury's Bank.
Our business must continue Lo evolve to meet customer
needs and maintain customer loyalty. Customer lifestyles,
behaviours and expectations are changing and we need

to continue to differentiate our offer to retain and attract
custorners. We also need to protect our brands so that
customers, suppliers and stakeholders continue to trust us.

Direct oversight -- Operating Board, Food Management Board,
Sainsbury’s Argos Management Board and Sainsbury's Bank
Executive Committee

Mitigations

— We continually focus on evolving our ways of working to ensure
we meet our customers’ needs so that our brands remain relevant

— We have a wide, differentiated product offer, which gives our
customers rmore reasons to shop with us

— We change and evolve to meet the needs of our customers
through cur digital strategy and technclogy developments,
so that we are there for them whenever and wherever they want
to shop with us, with great products and services at fair prices.
To deliver this, we will continue te listen to and understand our
customers

— The purchase of Nectar supports our strategy of knowing our
customers better than anyone else. The acquisition has given us
more control over how we reward and recognise our customers
and we have since launched trials in the Isle of Wight and Wales
that are digital and give customers offers which are completely
personalised to them

~- Our Living Well Index helps us to understand what ‘living well’
means Lo people across the UK today and te track how that
picture changes over time. The most recent research identified
that the UK's sense of wellbeing had fallen {ast year, with
loneliness a key factor. By bringing people together though our
Talking Tables initiative, we utilised our café store-space to help
people be better connected to the communities they live and
work in, bridging the loneliness gap

— In terms of brand protection, many of the mitigation activities
set out against the risks above also help prevent or reduce the
risk of losing the trust and loyalty of customers, suppliers and
broader stakeholders
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@ Brexit

Risk

There remain heightened levels of pelitical and regulatory
uncertainty in the UK following the referendum vote to leave
the EU in June 2016 and the lack of clarity around the date

of departure. These uncertainties could have an adverse
effect on customers, supply chains and colleagues, potentially
impacting trading performance across the sector.

Direct oversight — Operating Board

Mitigations

— We have co-ordinated activities across the Trading, Retail, HR,
Legal and Finance teams to help ensure that, in the cvent of a
ro deal, appropriate mitigations are in place toreduce the impact
on customers, supply chains and colleagues

These activities specifically relate to three key areas of risk in the
event of a no deal:

1. Delays at borders, reducing product availability and choice
2. Costimpact associated with tariffs, loss of trade and
currency fluctuations
3. Impact of changes in EU migration throughout cur supply chains
— We continue to engage actively with key stakeholders to assess
the specific impact an our business
— We continue to assess and monitor the potential risks and
impacts of these changes on our custorners, supply chains and
colleagues s¢ that we can take appropriate action
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@ Business continuity, operational resilience and
major incident response

@ Business strategy and change

Risk

Risk

A rmajor incident or catastrophic event could impact on the
Group's or individual brands’ ability to trade. Sainsbury's
exposure to operational restlience and major incident risks
may be greater following the acquisition of Argos and Nectar
given the increased size and complexity of the business.

Direct oversight — Group Operational Resilience Committee

Mitigations

— The aperational resilience (OR) strategy, including incident
rmanagement, resilicnce exercises and testing, has been aligned
across the Group

— The Group Operational Resilience Committee meets quarterly
chaired by the CFQ, with support from our Cornpany Secretary
and C10. The Committee sets the operational resilience strategy
for the Group and monitors progress against this

— Ta support this, Operational Resilience Committees which include
representatives from Sainsbury’s Foad, Argos, the Bank, and
Habitat, meet regularly to ensure that the OR policy and strategy
is implernented. In addition, they oversee the mitigation of all
risks associated with OR and IT disaster recovery

— Group-wide resiliencea exercises are undertaken to imitate real
life business continuily scenarios and test the Group's ability to
respond effectively

— Key strategic locations have secondary backup sites which
would be made available within pre-defined timescales and
are regularly tested

Incident management

— In the event of any unplanned or unforeseen events, the Incident
Response Tearn is convened at short notice to manage the
response and any assoclated risk to the business

- The Group has plans in place, supported by senior representatives

who have the experience and the authority levels to make
decisions in the event of a potentially disruptive incident

If the Board adopts the wrong business strategy or does not
communicate or implement its strategies effectively, the
business may be negatively impacted. Risks to delivering the
strategy, change initiatives forming part of the strategy and
other significant supporting change such as the integration
with Argos need to be properly understood and managed Lo
deliver long-term growth for the benefit of all stakeholders
alongside management of business as usual.

Direct oversight — Board of ) Sainsbury plc

Mitigations

— The business strategy is focused an the fellowing:
1. We know our customers better than anyone else
2. We will be there wherever and whenever they need us
3. we will offer great products and services at fair prices
4. Our colleagues make the difference
5. Our values make us different

—- The progress against strategic programmes and any risks to
delivery, such as the ability to implement and deliver change and
new business inittatives, is regularly reviewed by the Board and
the overall strategy is reviewed al the annual two-day Strategy
Conference

— The Operating Board also has regular sessions to discuss strategy,
supparted by a dedicated strategy team

— The strategy is communicated and the Group engages with a
wide range of stakeholders, including shareholders, colleagues,
customers and suppliers, on a continual basis

— Inaddition, management performs ongoing monitering of
business as usual performance to determine indicators of
potential negative performance because of change initiatives
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@ Colleague engagement, retention and capability

@ Data security

Risk

Risk

The Group employs 178,000 colleagues who are critical to the
success of our business. Attracting talented colleagues,
investing in training and development, maintaining good
relations, and rewarding colleagues fairly are essential to the
efficiency and sustainability of the Group's operations.
Delivery of the strateqic objectives, including integraticn with
Argos, increases the impact of an inability to attract, motivate
and retain talent, specific skill sets and capability. In addition,
the challenging trading environment requires a focus on
efficient aperations, which may include change initiatives
affecting colleagues, therefore presenting a risk of loss of
colleague trust or engagerment.

Direct aversight — Food Management Board, Sainsbury’s Argos
Management Beard and Sainsbury's Bank Executive Committee

Mitigations

— The Group's employment policies and rermuneration and
benefits packages are regularly reviewed and are designed to be
competitive with other companies, fair and consistent, as well
as providing colleagues with fulfilling career opportunities

-— In addition to strong leadership and nurturing of talent by line
managers, formal processes are also in place to identify talent and
actively manage succession planning throughout the business

— Reviews are performed (o help develop the skills colleagues need
to deliver objectives and this is supported by embracing new
ways of attracting talent

— Colleague surveys, perfarmance reviews, listening groups,
communications with trade unions, reguiar communication of
business activities and colleague netwarking forums such as
Yarnmer, the updated colleague portal (Our Sainsbury's) and the
colleague learning portal are some of the methods the Group uses
to understand and respond to colleagues’ needs

-0ur corporate value ‘Great Place to Work reinforces our commitrment
to giving people the opportunity to be the best they can be

— As change initiatives are implemented, the methods described
above will continue to be employed to understand and maintain
colleague trust and engagernent

It is essential that the security of customer, colleague and
company confidential data be rmaintained. A major breach of
information security could have a major negative financial and
reputational impact on the business. The risk landscape is
increasingly challenging with deliberate acts of cybercrime on
the rise, targeting all markets and heightening the risk exposure,

Direct oversight — Greup Data Governance Committee

Mitigations

— A Group Data Governance Comimittee is established and is
supported by focused working groups looking at the managarment
of colleague data, customer data, information security, commercial
data and awareness and training

— The Chief Information Security Officer continues to develop
information security strategies and te build the necessary
capability to deliver against those strategies

— The Head of Data Governance focuses on improving how we
handle data across the organisation

— Various information security policies and standards are in place,
which focus on encryption, network security, access controls,
systern security, data protection and information handling

— All colleagues are required to complete mandatory training on
how to keep our information safe. This is supplemented by regular
awareness campaigns, focusing on specific aspects of data and
information security

— A review of key third parties who hold sensitive custerner or
colleague data continues to take place, and pregress is monitored
by the Data Governance Cormmitteg

— A risk-based security testing appreach across Group IT
infrastructure and applications is in place to identify ongoing
vulnerabilities

— Reflecting the impartance of data security, the Chief Infermation
Security Officer and the Head of Data Governance provide regular
updates to the Audit Committee on mitigating controls and
activities to manage this risk. These discussions are conveyed
to the Board as part of our normal governance processes
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@ Environment and sustainability

@ Financial and treasury

Risk

Risk

The environment and sustainabilily are core to Sainsbury’s
values, The key risk facing the Group in this area relates 1o
reducing the environmental impact of the business, which
could result in a financial and/or reputational risk

Direct oversight — Operating Board

Mitigations

— The Corporate Respensibility and Sustainability Committee met
twice during the year. The Committee oversees the impact of
Sainsbury's corporate responsibility and sustainability strategy
against ‘Live well for Less' and building custorner trust

— The Cornrnittee has relaunched Sainsbury’s Value Management
Groups, which are responsible for driving and executing the
strategy. Five Value Management Groups have been formed:

-— Health Management Group

— Community Management Group

— Environment Management Group

— Sourcing With Integrity Management Group
— Great Place to Work Management Group

The main financial risks are the availability of short- and
long-term funding to meet business needs and fluctuations
ininterest, commedity and foreign currency rates. In addition,
there remains a risk around the Group defined benefit pensicn
arrangement that is subject to risks in relation to liabilities as
aresull of changes ininterest rates, life expectancy, inflation
and their alignment to the value of investrments and the
returns derived from such investments.

Direct aversight — Board of J Sainsbury plc

Miligations

-— The Treasury Comimittee is responsible for reviewing Retall
Treasury proposals, approving Retail Treasury transactions and
monitoring compliance with Retail Treasury policy

— The Group Treasury function is responsible for managing the
Group's liquid resources, funding requirements, mandates,
interest rate and currency exposures and the associated risks
as set out in line with the Group Treasury policy

— The Group Treasury function has clear policies and operating
procedures, which are regularly reviewed and audited

— The Cash Action Group is responsible for the optimisation of
activities to continually review and improve our cash generation,
and meets periodically

— On a periodic basis Finance Commercial review sessions are held,
chaired by the CFO to review the Company balance sheet, income
statement and net debt in detail, with relevant actions and
mitigations agreed

— The Group's funding strateqy is approved annualiy by the Board
and includes maintaining appropriate levels of working capital.
The audit Committee reviews and approves annually the viability
and going concern staternents and reports into the Board

— There is a long-term funding framework in place for the pension
deficit and there is ongoing commmunication and engagement
with the Pension Trustees

— We have rabust cost savings plans in place to offset the impact of
operating cost inflation

— With regard to pensions, investment strategies are in place which
have been developed by the pension trustees, in consultation
with the Company, to manage the volatility risk of liabilities,
to diversify investment risk and to manage cash
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@ Health and safety — people and preduct

@ Political and regulatory environment

Risk

Risk

Prevention of injury or loss of life for both colleagues

and customers is of utmaost impartance and is paramount
to maintaining the confidence our customners have in

our business.

There is an increasing trend of regulation, together with
enforcemnent action, across all areas of our business. This adds
additional cost as we respond to the regulations and drives
complexity into our business processes.

Direct oversight — Group Safety Committee

Direct oversight - Operating Board

Mitigations

Mitigations

— Clear policies and procedures are in place detailing the controls
required to manage health and safety and product safety risks
across the business and to comply with all applicable regulations

— These cover the end-te-end operations, from the auditing and
velting of construction contractors to the health and safety
processes in place in our depots, stores and offices, and including
the controls to ensure pecple and product safety

— In additicn, established product testing programmes are in place
to support rigorous monitoring of product traceability and provide
assurance over product safety and integrity

— Supplier terms, conditions and product specifications set clear
standards for preduct, raw material safety and quality with which
suppliers are expected 1o comply

— Process compliance is supported by external accreditation and
internal training programmes, which align to both health and
safety laws and Sainsbury’s internal policies

— In addition, resource is dedicated to manage the risk effectively,
in the form of the Group Safety Cornmittee and specialist
safety tearms

— We complete a bi-annual regulatory risk assessment with key
areas of the business to identify current and ernerging regulation
affecting the Group, so that we can respond appropriately

— Requlatory updates are regularly presented to our oversight
boards and committees, including the Reqgulatory Pay Forum,
which was established in 2019 to oversee National Living Wage
and National Minimum Wage compliance across the Sainsbury’s
Group, with flexibility to support other areas of reward compliance
if necessary

— To influence current and emerging regulatory requirements,
we cantinue to engage activelu with Government, industry and
regulatory bodies

— We publicly communicate matters where we believe industry
change is required, with a view to enabling fair competition that
is bereficial to our customers
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@ Sainsbury’'s Bank

Risk

@ Trading environment and competitive landscape

Risk

Sainsbury's Bank is exposed to a number of risks. These
include operational risk, requlatory risk, credit risk, capital risk,
funding and liquidity risk and rmarket risk.

Direct oversight — Board of J Sainsbury plc and Sainsbury’s Bank plc

Mitigations

— The Bank is managed through defined governance structures
that include the Board of Sainsbury’s Bank plc, its Risk Committee
and Audit Committee. The Board of Sainsbury's Bank plc is
comprised of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
a } Sainsbury ple Executive Director

— The Bank has a defined risk appetite aligned to delivery of strategic
objectives and has implemented a risk managernent framework
that is overseen by its Risk Committee. This Committee monitors
the effectiveness of risk managerment activities against strategic,
operational, compliance and financial risks, and is updated on
and discusses emerging risk areas. In particular, the Committee
reviews the results of stress testing including the internal Liquidity
and Capital Adequacy Assessments

— The actual rmanagement of risks is through an executive
governance structure, which manages the day-to-day operations
of the business. This includes the Sainsbury's Bank Management
Board, an Executive Risk Committee and an Asset and Liability
Committee

Group oversight is provided through:

— Membership of the Board of Sainsbury’s Bank plc — one
of 1 Sainsbury ple Executive Directors is on the Board of
Sainsbury’s Bank plc and provides updates to the Board
of 1 Sainsbury plc on Bank matters

- Updales on key matters arising from meetings of the
Risk Commiittee and Audit Committee are reported to the
1 Sainsbury plc Audit Committee

— There are a number of reserved matters where Sainsbury’s
Bank plc needs to obtain permission from J Sainsbury plc

The secter outlook has been and is set to remain highly
competitive. The trading environment, driven by ongoing
competitive retail pricing cornbined with growing inflationary
cost pressures, may adversely affect our performance.

There is also an ongoing risk of supplier failure, with possible
operational or financial consequences for the Group.

Direct oversight - Food Management Beard, Sainsbury’s Argos
Management Board and Sainsbury’s Bank Executive Committee

Mitigations

— We adopt a differentiated strateqy with a continued focus on
delivering quality products and services with universal appeal,
at fair prices, helping our customers live well for less

— This is achieved through the continuous review of our product
quality, key customer metrics, maonitoring of current market
trends and price points across competitors, active management
of price positions, development of sales propositions and
increased promotional and marketing activity

— We continue with our comrnitrment to offer customers even better
value with lower regular prices

-— In delivering cur strategic plan, including our price investment,
we will maintain the strength of our balance sheet and have
identified a series of measures to conserve cash in the business

-— Through these measures, we will deliver sustainable operating
cost savings

— Concerning supplier continuity, Sainsbury’s maintains regular,
open dialogue with key suppliers concerning their ability to trade
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Statement of Viability

1 How Sainsbury’s assesses its prospects

The Group's business activities and strategy are central to assessing its
future prospects. These, together with factors likely to affect its future
develoepment, performance and position are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 1to 43. The financial position of the Group, its

cash flows and liquidity are highlighted in the Financial Review on
pages 38 to 43. The Group manages its financing by diversifying
funding sources, structuring core borrowings with long-term
maturities and maintaining sufficient levels of standby liquidity.

The Group’s prospects are assessed primarily through its corporate
planning process. This includes an annual review which considers
profitahility, the Group's cash flows, committed funding and liquidity
positions and forecast future funding requirermnents over three years,
with a further two years of indicative movements. The most recent
was signed of f in Navernber 2018, and refreshed in March 2015 as part
of the normal budgeting process. This is reviewed by the Operating
Board and ultimately by the plc Board. Part of the Board's role is to
consider the appropriateness of any key assumptions, taking into
account the external environment, business strategy and model.
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2 The assessment period

The Directors have deterrnined that the three years to March 2022 is
an apprepriate period over which to provide its viability statement.
This period is consistent with that used for the Group’s corporate
planning process as detailed above, and reflects the Directors’ best
estimate of the future prospects of the husiness.

3 Assessment of viability

To make the assessment of viability, additional scenarios have

been tested over and above those in the corporate plan, based
upon a number of the Group's principal risks and uncertainties

{as documented on pages 30 to 36). The scenarios were averlaid into
the corporate plan to quantify the potential impact of one or more
of these crystallising over the assessment period.

whilst each of the risks on pages 30 to 36 has a potential impact and
has been considered as part of the assessment, enly those that
represent severe but plausible scenarics were selected for modelling
through the corporate plan. These were:

Scenario modelted

Link to principal uncertainties

Scenario 1
Competitive price cutting/price matching

Gwen the challenging trading environment, driven hy engoing competitve retail pricing combined with growing nflationary cost pressures,
additional price investrment of £150 mullion per year has been maodelled in each of the three assessment years

~=- Trading envirenrment and compelitive
landscape

Scenario 2
Data breaches

Tre impact of any regulatony fimes has been considered The nggest of these 1s the General Data Protection Regulation ([GOPR) fine for data

— Data security

breaches, which was enacted in May 2018. Fines were considered both in 1salation, and in conjunction with a fallin sales volumes as a result

of any reputational brand damage in each of the assessment years.

Scenario 3
Legal breaches

sirmilar 1o the above, we considered the reputational impact of any legal ar health and safety incidents, madelling a fatl n sales volumes
neachyear of the assessment period. Falls in sales volumes were madelled in each year in1sclation, as well as a sustained year-on-year

— Health and safety, people and product
— - Palitical and regulatory environment

two per cent reduction. We also considered regulatory fines such as those levied by the Grocenes Supply Code of Practice (GSCOP}

Scenario 4
UK's withdrawal from the EY

Uncertainty around the UK's future relationship with the FU restricts the Group's ability to fully mitigate risks for customners, suppliers and
colleagues. The impacts of a range of outcomes have been rmodelled and considerad [ointly on a reasonable worst case basis Modelling

— Hnancial and treasury risk
— Brexit

has taken account of the lkely distuption of goods entering the UK. sales reductions. margie pressures resulting from tariff increases,

operational and labour cost increases and small suppher working capital considerations

Scenario 5

It was considered what level of sustamed loss would be required in Sainshury’s Bank before wts capital ratios were breached

— Samnsbury's Bank

Scenario 6
Failure to deliver sustainabte cost savings

The Group Corporale Plan assumes savings of $500 million over the next three years. A scenarnio has therefore been madelied in which all

planned savings/synergies are not fully reahsed.

— Business strategy and change

A number of berrowing facilities mature during the three-year
assessment period, including the £200 million bank loan due in 2019
and the first tranche of the revolving credit facility of £300 million
(see note 28 to the accounts). The Group’s £450 million convertible
bands also mature in 2019. In performing the above analysis, the
Directors have made certain assumptions around the availability
of future funding options and the ability to raise future finance.
In doing so a variety of viable and scalable options available to
refinance the upcorming maturities over the assessment period
have been considered, with a prudent view taken that 50 per cent
of these could be raised over the assessment period.

The scenarios above are hypothetical and severe for the purpose of
creating outcomes that have the ability to threaten the viability of
the Group; however, multiple control measures are in place to prevent
and mitigate any such occurrences from taking place. In the case

of these scenarios arising, various oplions are available to the

Group in order to maintain liquidity so as to continue in operation.

These include reducing any non-essential capital expenditure
and operating expenditure on projects, bonuses, as well as not
paying dividends.

The resutlts of the above stress testing showed that the Group would
be able to withstand the impact of these scenarios occurring over the
assessment period.

4 Viability statement

Taking into account the Group's current position and principal risks
and uncertainties, the Directors confirm that they have a reascnable
expectation that the Group wili be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three years to March 2022.

5 Going concern

The Directors also considered it appropriate te adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements which are shown
on pages 89 10 1838,
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Financial Review

2018/19 has been another year of progress
against our strategic priorities which saw us
deliver strong growth in underlying profit and
retail free cash flow and a reduction in net debt
ahead of expectations. During the year we
completed the Argos integration programme
and delivered the target synergies nine months
ahead of schedule, consolidated the Nectar
business following the acquisition in 2017/18
and completed a significant management
reorganisation in Sainsbury'’s steres.
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In a ighly competitive market Sainsbury's underlying Group sales
(including VAT) were up 2.1 per cent to £32412 million. Gn a 52-week rolling
basis 5ainshury’s grocery market share (as measured by Kantar) declined
37 basis points, with the discounters and Co-op gaining share from the rest
of the market largely as a result of new store openings. Argos sales grew,
outperforming a declining and highly competitive general merchandise
market (as measured by the British Retail Cansortium, ‘BRCY). Tu clothing
held share as sales declined in line with the market whilst full price sales
increased as a result of reduced promational activity.

In 2018/18, retail underlying EBITDAR margin increased eight basis points to
7.52 per cent and retail underlying operating margin improved 19 basis points
to 2.43 per cent. Underlying profit before tax (UPBT) increased by 7.8 per
cent to £635 million (2017/18; £589 mullicn) driven by strong retail underlying
profit growth and reduced interest costs, partly offset by lower Financial
Services profit Profit after tax of £219 million (2017/18: £309 million) was
down 29.1 per cent as a result of a £396 million charge recognised outside of
underlying proht. This charge includes the restructuring charge for changes
to Sainsbury's store operations implemented during the year, the final Argos
integration costs, Samnsbury's Bank transition costs, Asda transaction costs
and a £98 million pension provision following the guaranteed minimurm
pensions ruling.

£220 million of cost savings were delivered during the year to offset the
impact of cost inflation and the increase in Sainshury's colleague base rate
of pay to a market leading £9.20 per hour. we have well developed plans in
place to continue Lo deliver efficiencies to offset cost inflation in future years,

Fmancial Services underlying operating profits decreased to £31 million,

as guided in May 2018 {2017/18: £69 rmillicn), primarily due to additional bad
debt charges following the adoption of IFRS 9 as well as a more cautious
approach to unsecured lending and higher costs. we have focused on
growing our martgage book and commisson products and have seen Bank
customer numbers grow by five per cent and customer lending increase

by £1.3 billion, driven mainly by mortgage balance growth. Argos Financial
Services customer numbers increased by six per cent

The balance sheet remains strong with a further reduction in net debt. Net
debt (including perpetual securities) was £1.636 million as at 9 March 2019
(10 March 2018 £1,858 million), a total decrease of £222 million in the year
and a decrease of £162 million before fair value movements on derivatives,
ahead of our guidance of £100 miltion reduction. The business generated
retail free cash flow of £461 million which resulted in a dividend cash cover
of 2.1. We will remain disciplined and focused on cash management, taking
action to reduce net debt. we are aiming to reduce net debt by at leasta
further £600 million over the next three years. The Group has facilities of
£3.6 billion with only £2.1 billion drawn at the end of the year.

The Graup pension scheme TAS 19 accounting surplus (net of deferred tax)
has improved to £743 million (2017/18: £261 million deficit) as at 9 March 2019
as a result of both experience and actuarial gains in relation to changes in
rmortality assumptions.

Underlying basic earnings per share increased 7.8 per cent ta 22.0 pence
(2017/18: 20.4 pence). Basic earnings per share decreased 31.6 per cent to
5.1 pence (2017/18 13.3 pence) due to the £396 million charge recognised
outside of underlying results.

The Board has recornmended a final dividend of 79 pence (2017/18
7.1 pence), resulting in a full-year dividend of 11.0 pence per share (2017/18:
10.2 pence per sharg), an increase of 7.8 per cent.

Kevin 0’Byrne
Chief Financial Officer
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52weeks to 52 weeksto ﬂ
9March2019  10March 2018 Change a
Summary income statement £m £m % =4
=
Underlying Group sales (including VAT) 32412 31,735 21 o
o
Underlying Retail sales (including VAT) 31,871 31,220 21 =
Underlying Group sales (excluding VAT)! 29,0607 28,453 19 ?,
Underlying Retail sales {(excluding VAT)* 28,466 27,938 19
Underlying operating profit
Retail 692 625 10.7
Financial Services 31 69 (551)
Total underlying operating profit 723 694 42
Underlying net finance costs® (96) (119) 193
Underlying share of past-tax profit from Jvs* 8 14 {42.9) .
Underlying profit before tax 635 5&9 78 é‘
Items excluded from underlying results ) (396) {180) (120.0) E
Profit before tax 239 409 (416) 5
Incorne tax expense (20) (100) 80.0 2
[1c}
Profit for the financial period 219 309 (26.1) =
Underlying basic earnings per share 22.0p 204p 78 -
Basic eamings per share 9.1p 133p (31.6)
Dividend per share 11.0p 10.2p 78
1 201718 underly ng Graup revenue of §28.459 millien. disclosed innote 4 of the accounts. includes £6 iillion of revenue consalidated post the acquisit on of Nectar that 15 excluded [rorm the underlying
Group sales
7 2017418 underlying reta.l revenue of £27944 millon, d.sclosed mnate 4 of the accaunts, includes £6 rmdbon of revenue consahdated post the acquisib.on of Nectar that is excdluded from the underlying
retail sales
2 et finance costs including perpetual secur.tes coupons before non-underlying hinance movements
4 The underly:ng share of pest-tax profit from jo'nt ventures and associates (Jvs) s stated before investment property ta'r value moverment s, non-underiying finance movernents and profiton o
d.sposal af praperties. '5‘"
g
Group sales increased by 2.1 per cent. Retail sales (including VAT, excluding fuel) &
Underlying Group sales {including VAT, including fuel) increased by 2.2 per increased by 0.4 per cent driven by new space. Fuel sales grew 12.3 per cent, g
cent year-on-year. Underlying retail sales (including VAT, including fuel) driven by both retail price inflation and volume growth. =
3
52 weeks to 52 weeks to =2
gMarch2019  10March2018 Change “
Total sales performance by category £m £m %
Grocery 19453 15,330 06
General Merchandise 6,561 6,561 00
Clothing 953 961 0.8
Retail (exc. fuel) 26,967 26,852 0.4
Fuel sales 4,904 4,368 123
Retail (inc. fuel) 31,871 31,220 21

Grocery and General Merchandise sales grew in the first half, benefiting from
the hot summer, with a more subdued performance in the second half of the
year. Grocery sales grew by 0.6 per cent year-on-year driven by retail price
inflation and wnproved sales mix, partly offset by volume deciine. General
Merchandise sales were flat year-on-year in a highly competitive market.
Clothing sales declined by 0.8 per cent due to reduced promotional activity
whilst full price sales increased

Convenience sales growth was nearly four per cent, primarily driven by like-
for-like growth, with fewer new store openings than the prior year. Groceries
Online sales growth was nearly seven per cent, driven by order growth.
Supermarkets (including Argos stores in Sainsbury's) sales increased by one
per cent, driven by supermarket space being repurposed to Argos.

52 weeks to 52 weeks to

B March 2019 10March 2018

Total sales performance by channel % %
Supermarkets (inc, Argos stares in Sainsbury's): 1.0 21
Convenience 3.7 75
Groceries Online 6.9 6.8

1 Supermarkets channel naw includes sales from Argos stores installed 'n a Sainsbury’s supermarket with the comparative for the 52 weeks to 10 March 2018 adjusted to be presented on a congistent basis,

Retail like-for-like sales (excluding fuel) decreased by 0.2 per cent (2017/18: 1.3 per cent increase) mainly as a result of like-for-like sales declines in General

Merchandise and Clothing.

52 weeks 1o 52 weeksto

9 March 2019 10 March2gg

Retail like-for-like sales performance % %
Like-for-like sales {exc. fuel) {0.2) 13
1.5 14

Like-for-like sales (inc. fuel)
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Space

In 2018/19 Sainsbury’s opened three new supermarkets and dosed three
(2017/18: three new supermarkets opened and none closed). Sainsbury’s
opened 10 new convenience stores in the year and closed five (2017/18&:
24 stores opened and 15 closed).
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The 181,000 sq ft reduction in Sainsbury's supermarket space is mainly
driven by 164,000 sg ft repurposed to Argos stores in Sainsbury’s. During the
year Argos apened 90 new stores in Sainsbury’s and closed 46 standalone
Arqos stores. The number of Argos collection points in Sansbury’s stores
increased ta 317, with 169 apemings partially offset by 44 closures replaced
by Argos stores in supermarkets As al 9 March 2019, Argos had 883 stores
and 317 collection points of which 207 are within Sainsbury's conventence
stares. Habitat continues to trade 16 stores.

As at Extensions/ Asat
10 march Disposals!  refurbishmentss 9 March
‘Store numbers and retailing space 2018 New stores closures downsizes 2019
Supermarkets 608 3 (3} - 608
Supermarkets area 000 sq ft, 21,295 158 (3 (197} 21,210
Convenience 815 10 (5) - 820
Convenience area ‘000 sq ft } 1913 29 9) 1 1,934
Sainsbury's total store numbers 1423 12 (8) - 1428
Argos stores 639 1 4€) - 594
Argos stores in Sainsbury's 191 90 - 281
Argos in Homebase 14 - (3] 8
Argos total store numbers 844 91 (52) - 883
Argos collection points 02 169 (44) 317
Habitat 16 ¥ @ - 16

In 2019/20, Sainsbury's expects 10 open two new supermarkets and around
10 new conventence stores.

In 2019/20, Sainshury's expects to open around 10 Argos stores in
superrmarkets (of which three are relocations) resulting in around 290 Argos
stores in supermmarkets.

Retail underlying operating profit
Retail underlying operating profit increased by 10.7 per cent to £692 million
(2017/18. £625 millior).

Retall underlying operating margin improved by 15 basis points year-on-year
to 243 per cent (2017/18. 2.24 per cent), equivalent to a 21 basis point increase
at constant fuel prices.

52 weeks ta 52 weeksto Change at

9 March 10 March constant fuel

Retail underlying eperating profit 2019 2018 Change prices
Retail underlying operating profit (£m)* 692 625 10.7%

Retail underlying operating margin (%} 243 2.24 19bps 21bps
Retail underlying EBITDAR (£m)’ 2,140 2.078 3.0%

Retail underlying EBITDAR margin (%)* 7.52 744 8bps 15bps

L Retail undetlying earmuogs belare witarest. tar and Samshury's undetbng share of post-tax proafit fram ymnt ventures.

2 Retalunderlying operating profit divided by underlying reta sales exclud ng VAT

3 Retal underlying nperating profit before rent of £733 million (201718 §740 m.[lion) and underlying depreciationand amert sation of £715 milfon (2017/18 £713 mmlhon)

4 Retal underlying EBITDAR divided by underluing retal sales excluding VAT

In 2019/20, Sainsbury’s expects cost inflation of around three per cent and
will continue to deliver cost savings to offset the impact.

1n 2019720, Sainsbury's expects an underlying retail depreciation and
amortisation charge of around £720 million (2018/19: £715 million).

Financial Services

Synergies arising from the acquisition of Argos

I 2018/19, Sainsbury’s achieved the target £160 million cumnulative EBITDA
synergies (€150 miflion EBIT), of which £73 million (£68 million EBIT) were
incremental to prior years. The three-year target £160 million was achieved
nine months ahead of schedule

Total exceptional costs of £276 million were incurred to deliver the synergies
over the course of the integration programme, in line with guidance.

Financial Services results

12 months to 28 February 2019 2019 2018 Change
Underlying revenue () 541 515 5%
Interest and fees payable (Em) _ {102) 64) 58%
Total income (£rm) i 439 451 3%
Underlying operating profit (Erm} 31 59 (55)%
Costincome ratio (%) 71 70 (100)bps
Active custorners (m) — Bank 2.02 192 5%
Active customers (m) — AFS 2.06 1.95 6%
Net interest margin (%) 3.8 49 (110)bps
Bad debt as a percentage of lending (%)? 1.6 13 (30)bps
Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 13.7 14.1 {40)bps
Total capital ratio (%)* 16.7 171 (40)bps
Customer lending (£m)> 6,987 5,691 23%
Customer deposits (Em) (5,950) (4.580) 19%

1 Netinterest recevable divided by average interest-bearing assets
? Bad debt expense divided by average net lending.

3 Common equity Tier 1 capital divided by nsk-we'ghted assets

4 Total capital divided by risk-weighted assets.

5

Amounts due trom customers at the Balance Sheet date inrespect ot Toans, mortgages. credht cards and store cards net of provisians
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Financial Services total income decreased by three per cent, as higher
interest and commission incorme was offset by increased interest payable.
Financial Services underlying operating profit decreased by 55 per cent year-
an-year to £31 million, in ine with previous guidance, as a result of additional
bad debt charges (largely due to IFRS 9 adoption), a more cauticus approach
ta unsecured lending and higher costs.

Financial Services costincome ratio has increased by 100 basis points due to
an increase in administrative expenses. This was principally driven by higher
operating expenses and amortisation relating to the new banking platforms
brought into use as the Bank migrates away from Lloyds Banking Group. The
number of active Bank customers increased by five per cent year-on-year to
2.02 million (2017/18: 1.2 million).

Net interest margin decreased by 110 basis ponts year-on-year to 3.8 per
cent [2017/18: 4.9 per cent) driven by margin pressure and mix of business.
This was largely due to the launch of mortgages and the issuance of Tier 2
toan notes in 2017/18. Bad debt levels as a percentage of lending increased
10 1.6 per cent (2017/18. 1.3 per cent) primarily driven by the impact of 1IFRS
9 on the bad debt charge. However underlying arrears remain low relative to
competitors and have remained stable year-on-year.

The CET 1capital ratio decreased by 40 basis points year-on-year to

13.7 per cent {2017/18. 14.1 per cent), reflecting lending growth partially
offset by the effect of additicnal funds contributed from the Parent 1n the
prior financial year.

Customer lending increased by 23 per cent to £6,987 million, mainly due
to growth in mortgages which were launched n 2017 Custormer depasits
increased by 19 per cent to £5,950 miltion

Transition costs of £70 million were £10 million lower than previous guidance
of £80 million. Sainsbury’s Bank transition costs in 2019/20 are expected to
be around £30 million, £10 million of which is a result of the underspend in
2018/18.

Financial Services undetlying operating profit is expected to be around £45
miilion in 2019/20. including a £10 million benefit as a result of a change n
transfer pricing between Argos and Argos Financial Services.

Capital injections into the Bank are expected to be £80 million in 2019/20.
This is to cover card and loan platforms, regulatory capital and growth in
loan, card and mortgage balances

Underlying net finance costs

underlying net finance costs reduced by 19 per cent to £96 million (2017/18:
£119 rnillion), driven by the £568 million repayment in April 2018 of the
securitised loan taken out in 2006,

Sainsbury's expects net finance costs in 2019/20 to be in line with 2018/19.

Joint ventures

Share of undetlying profit from joint ventures was £8 million (2017/18. £14
million). The reduction is mainly driven by the previously reported Insight 2
Communication business now fully consolidated following the acquisition
of Nectar, and reduced Bnitish Land profits due to property disposals during
the year.

Items excluded from underlying results

In order to provide shareholders with insight into the underlying
perfarmance of the business, itemns recognised in reported profit or loss
before tax which, by virtue of their size and or nature, do not reflect the
Group's underlying performance are excluded from the Group’'s underlying
results and shown in the table to the right.

J sainsbury ple Annual Report 2019 41

S2weeks to 52 weeksto

8 March 10 March

2013 2018

Iterns excluded from underlying results £m £m

Satnsbury's Bank transition (70} (38)

Argas integration (a0) (85)

Property-related (22) 12

Restructuring costs (81) (85)
Asda transaction costs (46)

IAS 19 pension financing charge and (118) (5)

schemne expenses
Other (19) 21
Iterns excluded from underlying results (396) (180)

Sainsbury's Bank transition costs of £70 million were part of the
previously announced costs incurred in transitioning to a new, more
flexible banking platform and will complete in the first half of 2019/20.

— Argos integration costs for the year of £40 million were part of the
previously announced requirement over three years and are now complete.

— Property-related itemns of £22 million comprise losses on disposal of
properties and investrnent property fair vatue movements.

— Retail restructuring costs in the year of £81 rmillion relate to previously
announced material changes to Sainsbury’s management and store
colleague structures and working practices.

— £46 million of transaction costs were incurred in relation to the proposed
combination with Asda. and principally comprised deat preparation,
integration preparation and financing.

- Following a High Court judgment in October 2018 relating to Lloyds
Banking Group, Sainsbury’s was required to recogmse a guaranteed
minimum pension provision of £98 million for the estimated cost of
equalising historic pension benefits between men and women. The £38
miltion charge is non-cash and does not impact contractual pension
contributions. In addition, £20 million was recognised in relation to
pension scheme expenses and financing charges

— Other includes the unwind of non-cash fair value adjustrments arising on
previous acquisitions of Sainsbury's Bank, Home Retail Group and Nectar
acqguisitions

I 2019720 cash outflows as a result of items excluded from underiying
results should not exceed £160 militon,

Taxation

The tax charge was £20 million (2017/18; £100 rrullion), with anunderlying tax
rate of 23.8 per cent (2017718 24 1 per cent) and an effective tax rate of 8.4 per
cent (2017/18: 24.4 per cent).

The underlying tax rate was lower year-on-year, partly due to a reduction in
the statutory tax rate.

The effective tax rate in 2018/19 decreased to 8.4 per cent, mainly due to
prior year adjustments to current and deferred tax. This includes a prior year
deferred tax credit of £50 miillion ansing on the recognition of a previously
unrecognised capital loss

In 2019720, Sainsbury’s expects the full-year underlying tax rate to be around
24 per cent.

Earnings per share

Underlying basic earnings per share increased to 22.0 pence (2017/18:

204 pence) driven by the increase inunderlying earnings year-on-year.
Basic earnings per share decreased to 9.1 pence (2017/18: 13.3 pence), mainly
as a result of the £396 million charge for iterns excluded from underlying
results (2017/18. £180 million charge), offset by a lower effective tax rate.

Dividends

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 7.9 pence per share (2017/18
71 pence). This will be paid on 12 July 2019 to shareholders on the Register

of Members at the close of business on 7 June 2015. In line with the Groups
policy to keep the dividend covered two times by underlying earnings. this will
result in an increased full-year dividend of 11.0 pence (2017/18: 10.2 pence).

Sainsbury’s plans to maintain a full-year dividend covered two times by our
full-year underlying earnings.
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Net debt and retail cash flows

Group net debt includes the impact of capital injections into Sainsbury's Bank,

but excludes Fimancial Services’ own net debt balances. Tinandial Services
balances are excluded because they are required for business as usual
activities. As at 9 March 2019, net debt (including perpetual securities

as debt) was £1,636 million (10 March 2018 £1.858 million), a decrease of
£222 millicn.

Retail Retail
52 weeks to 52 weeks to
9 March 10 March
2019 2018
Summary cash flow statement* £m £m
Adjusted retail operating cash flow before 1,264 1,193
changes in working capital*?
(Increase)/decrease in working capital (45) 196
Cash generated from retail operations® 1,219 1389
Pension cash contributions . {63) - (130)
Net interes! paid® (89) {105)
Corporation tax paid (61) (72)
Net cash generated from retail operating 1,006 1082
activities
Cash capital expenditure before strategic capital (512} (542)
expenditure®
Proceeds frorn disposal of property, plant and 64 54
equipment
Bank capital injections (110) (150}
Dividends and distributions received from Jvs 13 28
net of capital imjections
Retail free cash flow o 461 3
Dividends paid on ordinary shares (224) (212)
Strategic capital expenditure  Argos integration® (36) (50)
Acquisition of subsidiaries” - 135
Repayrment of borrowings including finance leases® (a51) (174)
Other® 8) 2
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash (258) 99
equivalents
Decrease in debt 451 174
Acquisition movements - (15)
Cther non-cash and net interest moverments’ (31) (22)
Movement in net debt before fair value 162 236
movements on derivatives
Fair value movements on derivatives T (123)
Movement in net debt 222 113
Opening net debt (1,364) (L477)
Closing net debt ‘1,142) (1.364)
Closing net debt (1,6363” (1.358)

(inc. perpetual securities as debt)

—-

See note 4 for a reconciliation between the Retall and Group cash flaws

Excludes working capital and pension cash contrbutions

2017718 adjustment of £21 mulion relating to noh-cash pension scherme expenses previously
included in retirernent benefit obligations. Normpact to net cash generated from retal
operat’ng aclivities

Lxcludes pension cash contributions

Refer to the Alternative Performance Measures on page 185 for reconciliat:on

Fxcludes Argos integration capital expenditure

Net interest excluding dividends paid on perpetual securit'es

W

~ @

Adjusted retail operating cash flow before changes in working capital
increased by £71 milllon year-on-year to £1,264 million (2017718, £1,163
million) due to higher retail underlying operating profit partially offset by
retail one-off items. Working capital increased by £45 rmillion (2017/18: £196
million decrease). Capital expenditure before strategic capital expenditure
was £512 million (2017/18: £542 million) driven by a reduction in Samsbury's
core retail capital expenditure. Bank capital injections of £110 million were
made in the year (2017/18: £190 million)
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Retail free cash flow increased by £29 million year-on-year to £461 million
(2017/18: £422 million). Free cash flow was used to fund dividends and repay
debt. Dividends of £224 million were paid in the year, which are covered 2.1
times hy free cash tlow (2017/18. 2.0 times). Strategic capital expenditure,
relating to Argos integration capital expenditure was £36 million, £44 million
lower year-on-year (2017/18; £80 million) driven by the completion of the
Argos integration programme.

Net debt before fair vatue movements on derivatives reduced by £162 million
in the year {2017/18: £236 million reduction). Fair value movernents on
derivatives of £60 million were primarily driven by an increase in the value of
US dollar foreign exchange derivatives held Lo mitigate the Group's exposure
to fluctuations in US dollar denominated purchases. The weighted average
hedge rate (WAHR) at § March 2015 was abave the spot rate, generating an
unrealised fair value gain {2017/18: unrealised loss as the WAHR at 10 March
2018 was below the spot rate).

As at 9 March 2019, Sainsbury's had drawn debt facilities of £2.1 billion
including the perpetual securities (2017/18 £2.5 billion) and additional
undrawn committed credit facilities of £1.4 billion. The Group also held
£85 million of uncommitted facilities, which were undrawn as at 9 March
2019. It April 2018, Sainsbury's repaid debt of £568 million in relation to
Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities.

Sainsbury's expects 2019/20 year-end net debt before fair value movements
on derivatives to reduce by at least £200 million. Sainsbury’s is targeting to
reduce net debt by at least £600 million over the next threc years.!

Sainsbury’s 1s targeting adjusted net debt to EBITDAR (treating the perpetual
securities as debt) to reduce to below three times in the mediurn term

Sainsbury's 15 largeting fixed charge cover of mare than three times in the
medium term !

1 Stated heofore the impact of IFRS 14

Capital expenditure

Retail capital expenditure (including Argos integration capital expenditure)
was £554 million (2017/18: £629 million), the decrease driven by Lhe
completion of the Argos integration prograrmime and reduced new stare
developrnent Retail capital expenditure (excluding Argos integration) was
£518 million (2017/18: £549 rillion). Retail capital expenditure net of proceeds
was £420 million (2017/18: £575 million).

In 2019/20, Sainsbury’s expects gross retail capital expenditure to be around
€550 million. Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are expected to be in line with 2018/19.

Gross retail capital expenditure is expected to be around £550 million per
annum gver the medium term.

52waeks to 52 weeks to

9 March 10 March

2019 2018

Retail capital expenditure £m £m

Core capital expenditure (518) (549)

Strategic capital expenditure  Argos integration (36) (80)

Gross capital expenditure {554) (629}

Proceeds from the disposat of property, plant and 64 54
equipment

Net capital expenditure (490) (575)
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Financial ratios

Asat As at

9 March 10 March
Key financial ratios’ 2019 2018
Return on capital employed (%)* 8.5 84
Return on capital employed 8.5 77
{exc. pension surplus) (%)*
Adjusted net debt to EBITDAR?** 3.2times 3.3 times
Interest cover® 7.6 times 59 times
Fixed charge cover” 2.7 times 2.5 times
Gearing’ 13.5% 18.4%
Gearing (exc. pension surplus)® 14.8% 17.8%
Key financial ratios
(wth perpetual secunties treated as debt)”
Adjusted net debt to EBITDAR 3.5 times 36 times
Gearing 20.5% 26.9%
Gearing (exc. pension surplus) 22.7% 255%
Key financial ratios
fwilh perpetual securties coupons excluded from
met underying finance costs)
[nterest cover* 10.1 times 74 times
Fixed charge cover-! 27times  26times

1 These metrnics have been prepared on a pre-1FRS 16 has's IFRS 16 s offective for all accounting

per.ods beginmng on or after 1 January 2019 For Sainsbury's the first reparted accounting penod

under IFRS 16 will he the 2019/20 f:nancal year.

The 14 pomt period includes the apen'ng capital employed as at 10 March 2018 and the closing

capital employed lor each of the 13 individual four-week periods to 9 March 2019,

Net debt of £1,142 milhon (2017/18 $1.364 million) plus capitahsed lease obligations of £5.009

million (201418 £5.931 rmiflion), divided by Group underlying EBITDAR of £2,202 millon (2017418

£2,181 milhon). calculated for a 52-week period to 9 March 2018 Perpetual secunties treated as equity.

2017118 captalised lease obl’'ganhions of £5,931 rmillon have been updated following a review of

the lease cost profile. This does not impact total lease obligations of £10 tallian.

Underlying profit before interest and tax dvided by underlying net finance costs, where interest

on perpetual secunties 15 included :n underlying finance costs.

Group underlying FBITDAR divided by met renl and underlying met finance costs, where interest

on perpetual secunties 1s included in underlinng finance casts

Met debt divided by net assets. Perpetual securities treated as equity.

Net debt divided by rmet assets, excluding pension sur plusidefot. Perpetual securnties treated

as equity

0n a statutory basls, the perpetual securities are accounted for as equity on the Balance Sheet

Treating the perpelual secunities, net of transachon fees, as debt increases net debt to £1.636

m Wion (201718 §1,858 milhon), and reduces net assets to £7.962 rrlhon {2017/18: £6.917 million)

10 Underlying profit betore interest and tax divided by underlying net finance costs, where interest
on perpetual secunties ‘s excluded from underlying finance costs

11 Group underlying FBITDAR diided by riet rent and underlying net finance costs, where interest
on perpetual secunties is exrluded from underlying finance cests

e
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Property value

As at 9 March 2019, Sainsbury’s estimated market value of properties,
including its 50 per cent share of properties held within property joint
ventures, was £10.4 billion (10 March 2018: £10.5 billion), the reduction due
te a shift in the yield.

Since the year-end, Sainsbury’s has agreed the sale of 12 supermarkets from
the joint venture with British Land to Realty Income Corporation. This will
reduce the value of the property portfolio by £0.2 illien.

Defined benefit pensions

At 9 March 2019, the net defined benefit surplus for the Group was £743
rnillion (including the unfunded obligation and adjusting for associated
deferred tax). The £1,004 million movement fram deficit to surplus from

10 March 2018 was primarily driven by experience gams of £644 million

and actuarial gains of £547 million in relation to changes in demographic
assurnptions, partially offset by a deferred income tax liability of £216 million.
Both gains have been recognised within other comprehensive income.

The experience gains are as a result of updating the underlying membership
data behind the actuarial calculations to that used for the September 2018
trienmial valuation. The gain due to demographic assumptions reflects
updating the mortality assumptions to the most recent available data as

at the balance sheet date
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Under the Recavery Plans agreed as part of the 2015 triennial valuation
process Sainsbury’s is contracted to make contributions totalling £124 million
1n 2019/20 which includes the £19 million caupon from Sainsbury's Property
Scottish Partnership. The 2018 trienmal valuation is currently being agreed
with the Trustee.

Sainsbury’s Argos Group Group
as at as at as at as at
9 March 9 March B March 10 March
Retirement benefit 2019 2019 2019 2018
obligations €m £m £m £m
Present value of funded (7,654) (1,202) (8,856) (10,028)
abligations
Fair value of plan assets 8,759 1,224 9,983 9,884
Additional liability due to - (134) (134) {(78)
IFRIC 14
Pension surplus/{deficit) 1,105 {112) 993 (222)
Present value of unfunded (20) (14) (34) (35)
cbligations
Retirement benefit 1,085 (126) 959 (257)
obligations
Deferred income tax (241) 25 (216) 4)
{liability}/asset
Net retirernent benefit 844 (101} 743 (261)
obligations
IFRS 16 leases

The new IFRS 16 lease standard applies to the Group for the first time in
2019/20. The Group has chosen to adopt [FRS 16 on a fully retrospective basis
and the first reporting under [FRS 16 {with restated cornparatives) will be the
Group's interim results as at 21 September 2019.

The new standard represents a significant change in the accounting and
reporting for leases, impacting the income statement and balance sheet
aswell as statutory and other performance metrics used by the Group.
The work is nearing completion and the Group estimates that adopting
IFRS 16 will have the following impact on the consolidated balance sheet
at 10 March 2018.

— Recognition of a right of use asset in the region of £5.1 billion.
-— Recognition of a lease liability in the region of £5.9 billion.

--— Other balance sheet adjustments of around £0.1 billion and an
adjustment to opening reserves in the region of £0.9 billion (pre-tax)

These adjustments have no impact an cash and are not expected to
have any impact on the Group's ability to continue to pay dividends to
shareholders

The lease hability adjustment to the balance sheet is broadly consistent with
the adjustment made in the Group’s adjusted net debt to EBITDAR rmetrics.
Following the adoption of IFRS 16, these metrics are therefore expected to
remain unchanged'.

Subject to the completion of our waork, we expect restated 2018/19
underiying profit hefore tax to be in the region of £30 million lower than
under the current accounting standards.

We will provide a full update on the IFRS 16 restatement impacts ahead
of the 2019/20 interim results.

Further details of the impacts of IFRS 16 are inciuded in Note 1 on page 101

Officer

1 Unless otherwise staled. all ather forward gu-dance throughout this document 15 stated before

the impact of IFRS 16
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J Sainsbury plc
Board of Directors

Martin Scicluna *
Chairman

Date of appointment: | November 2018.
Martin joined the Board as Chairman Designate
and Non-Executive Director on 1 Novemnber 2018.
He was appointed as Chairman of the Board on
10 March 2019.

Committee membership: Chair of the
Nomination Committee.

Skills and experience: Martin brings a breadth
of experience and leadership in both executive
and non-executive roles, His previous rales
include positions as the Chairman of Great
Portland Estates plc, Senior Independent Director
and Chair of the Audit Committee of Worldpay
Inc., and Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee of Ltoyds Banking Group ple.
He was a partner at Deloitte LLP for 26 years,
serving as Chairman from 1995 to 2007, where

his clients included Dixons, WH Smith, Alliance
Unichern and Cadbury’s.

Other current roles: Chairman of RSA
Insurance Group plec.

Key to Committee members
& Audit Committee

¥ (Corporate Responsibility and
Sustainability Committee

%k Nomination Committee
+ Remuneration Committee
@& w ke Denotes Chair of Commitize

Mike Coupe
Group Chief Executive Officer

Date of appointment: 1 August 2007,

Mike has served as an Executive Director since
1 August 2007 and as Group Chief Executive
Officer since 9 July 2014.

Committee membership: Corporate
Responsibility and Sustainability Committee.

Skills and experience: Appointed Group Chief
Executive Officer an 9 luly 2014, Mike has been

a member of the Operating Board since October
2004 Mike has vast retail industry experience

in trading, strategy, marketing, digital and online
as well as multi-site store experience. He joined
Sainsbury’s from Big Food Group where he was

a board director of Big Food Group PLC and
Managing Director of Iceland Food Stores.

He previously worked for both Asda and Tesco
PLC, where he served in a variety of senior
management roles.

Other current roles: Non-Executive Director
of Greene King plc.

Retirement in 2018/19
David Tyler retired from the Board on
8 March 2019

Life President
Lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

Kevin O'Byrne
Chief Financial Officer
Date of appointment: 9 January 2017

Skills and experience: Kevin brings to the
Board a wealth of retail and finance experience.
Kevin was previously Chief Executive Officer of
Poundland Group Limited until December 2016
and held executive roles at Kingfisher plc from
2008 to 2015, including Divisional Director UK,
China and Turkey, Chief Executive Officer of B&Q
UK & Treland and Group Finance Director. He was
previously Group Finance Director of Dixons

Retdit ple and Furopean Finance Drector of
Quaker Oats. He was a Non-Executive Director of
Land Securities Group PLC from 2008 to Septernber
2017 where he was Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Senior Independent Director.
Other current reles: Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Centrica plc
from 13 May 2019

John Rogers

Chief Executive Officer of
Sainsbury’s Argos

Date of appointment: 19 July 2010.

John served as Chief Financial Officer of

I Sainsbury plc from 19 July 2010 until

Y September 2016 when he was appointed as
Chief Executive Officer of Sainshury’s Argos.

Skills and experience: John has extensive
experience in finance, strateqy, digital, online,
property and financial services. As Chief
Fmnancial Officer of 1 Sainsbury ple for six years,
John had responsibility for finance, Group
strateqy). Sainsbury's online, business
development, property, precurernent and
operational efficiency. He also held various
sermor management rotes in Lhe Company
between 2005 and 2010. John is a member of the
Sainsbury's Bank plc Board. Prior to Sainsbury's,
John was Group Finance Director for Hanover
Acceptances. a diversified corporation with wholly
owned subsidiaries in the food manufacturing,
real estate and agri-business sectors,

Other current roles: Non-Execulive Director
of Travis Perkins plc and Member of the Retail
Sector Council.
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Matt Brittin x e
Non-Executive Director
Date of appeintment: 27 January 2011

Committee membership: Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee

Skills and experience: Matt has extensive
experience of runming a high profile, fast moving,
inmovative, digital business. Since 2015, he has
been responsible for Google's business and
operations in Europe, the Middle East and Africa
and he’s beenin leadership roles at Google since
2007. Prior to that, Matt spent much of his career
inmedia and marketing, with particular interests
in strateqy, commercial development and sales
performance. This included commercial and
digital leadership rales in UK media.

Other current roles: Google's President —
Europe, Middle East and Africa; and Director

of Ihe Media Irust.

Brian Cassin e
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: 1 April 2016.

Committee membership: Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee

Skills and experience: Brian brings present
day experience of running a FTSE 40 group and of
big data and analytics — topics of key importance
to Sainsbury’s. Brian joined Experian plc as Chief
Financial Officer in April 2012, a post he held

until his appointment as Chief Execute Officer
1N July 2014. Prior to this, Brian spent his career

n investment banking at Greenhill & Co where

he was Managing Director and Fartner. Brian

has also held varous roles at Baring Brothers
International and at the London Stock Exchange.

Other current roles: Chief Executive Officer
of Experian plc

Jo Harlow wi e
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: 11 September 2017,

Committee membership: Chair of the

Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability
Committee and member of the Nomination
Committee and Rermuneration Committee.

Skills and experience: Jo brings a wealth of
experience in consumer-facing businesses and
in the telecoms and technology industry, both
In the UK and internationally. Jo spent 12 years in
a variety of senior managerment roles with Nokia
and Microsoft. Prior to this, she spent eight years
at P&G and 11 years at Reebok in semor sales and
marketing positions in both Europe and the US

Other current roles: Non-Executive Director
of InterContinental Hotels plc: Non-Executive
Director of Halma plg; and Member of the
Supervisory Board of Ceconomy AG

David Keens #
Non-Executive Director
Date of appointment: 29 April 2015.

Committee membership: Charr of the
Audit Committee and a mernber of the
Nomination Committee.

Skills and experience: David has extensive
retail experience and knowledge of consumer
facing businesses, together with his core skills
in finance. David was formerly Group Finance
Director of next plc from 1991 te 2015 and their
Group Treasurer from 1986 to 1991. Previous
management experience includes nine years in
the UK and overseas operations of multinational
food manufacturer Nabisco and, prior to that,
seven years in the accountancy profession.

Other current roles: Non-Executive Director,

Senior Independent Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee of Auto Trader Group plc.

Dame Susan Rice *+
Senior Independent Director
Date of appointment: 1 June 2013.

Committee membership: Chair of the
Rernuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee,

Skills and experience: Susan has extensive
experience as a Non-Executive Director, as well
as inretail banking. financal services, leadership
and sustainability. Her career in retail banking

is particularly relevant to our ownership of
Sainsbury's Bank. Previously, Susan was a
member of the First Minister's Councit of
Economic Advisors, Managing Director of Lloyds
Banking Group Scotland and was previously
Chief Executive and then Chairman of Lloyds TSB
Scotland plc. She has also held a range of other
non-executive directorships including at the
Bank of England and SSE ple.

Other current roles: Chair of Scottish Water
and Business Stream: Chair of the Scottish Fiscal
Commission; Non-Executive Director of the
North American Income Trust, €. Hoarc and (o:
and Senior Independent Director of the North
American Incame Trust.

Jean Tomlin & v
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: 1 January 2013.

Committee Membership: Audit Commitiee,
Cotporate Responsibility and Sustainability
Cammittee and Nomination Committee

Skills and experience: Jean has extensive
experience and breadth of skills in human
resources and corporate responsibility. Jean
was formerly Director of HR, Workforce and
Accreditation for The London Organising
Cormmittee of the Olympic and Paralympic
Games, where she set the strategic direction

to ensure the mohilisation of the combined
200,000-strong workforce including paid staff,
volunteers and contractors, which represented
the recruitment and mobilisation of the largest
peacetime workforce and set the industry
standard for volunteering with the highly
acclaimed Garmnes. She was previously Group HR
Director at Marks and Spencer Group Plc, HR
Director and founder member of Egg plc and
Sales & Operations Director of Prudential Direct.

Other current roles: Independent Board
mernber of Capri Holdings Limited, Non-Executive
Director of Hakluyt and Chief Executive Officer

of Chanzo Limited.

joday mbajens ‘

[A]
=
o
i)
]
=3
a
a
o
=
o
-]
=]
=
-

SIUBLUBIRIS [BIDUELLY




46 Governance

J Sainsbury plc Annual Repaort 2019

J Sainsbury plc
Operating Board

Mike Coupe »
Group Chief Executive Officer

Kevin ’Byrne
Chief Financial Officer

John Rogers
Chief Executive Officer of Sainsbury’s

See page 44. See page 44, Argos
See page 44
Tim Fallowfield Peter Griffiths, OBE Phil Jordan

Company Secretary and Corporate
Services Director

Date of appointment: September 2004.

Skills and experience: 1im joined Sainsbury’s
in 2001 as Company Secretary and joined the
Operating Board in September 2004. In addition
to his role as Company Secretary, Tim is
responsible for the Corporate Services Division
comprising Legai Services, Data Governance,
Safety, Sharehalder Services, Insurance and
Central Security. He chairs the Group Safety
Committee and the Data Governance Committee.
Tim joined Sainsbury’s from Exel plc, the global
logistics company, now part of DHL, where hie
was Company Secretary and General Counsel.

He began his career at the international law firrm
Cliffard Chance and is a qualified solicitor. Tim

is Charrman of the Disahility Confident Business
Leaders Group which works with Government in
shaping the disability emnployment agenda and
1N raising awareness of the benefts of employing
disabled people.

CEO of Sainsbury’s Bank
Date of appointment: May 2014,

Skills and experience: Peter was appointed
CEO of Sainsbury's Bank in Novermber 2012 and
joined the Operating Board in May 2014. Prior to
joining Sainsbury's he was Group Chief Executive
of Principality, the largest building society in
Wales, growing it fromn the 13th largest building
society in the UK to the 7th during his decade in
charge. He previously worked for Natwest, and
was Chief Operating Officer at Morgan Charmbers
Plc. He is former Chairnan of the CB] wales and
the Building Societies Association, and is a
reliow of UWIC and The Chartered institute of
Management. Peter was awarded an OBE in the
Queen's Birthday Honours 2010, in recognition of
his supnart for the Financial Services Tndustry.
Peter will be stepping down from the Operating
Board and ieaving the business in 2020.

Group Chief Information Officer
Date of appointment: January 2018.

Skills and experience: Phil joined the Board

in January 2018 and has brought a fresh, global
perspective on technology to the Operating Board
in addition to a wealth of experience in digital,
data and business transfarmation. Prior to joining
Sainsbury’s, Phil had a long and successful track
record in telecommunications. Most recently he
was Global Chief Information Officer at Telefonica
overseeing Digital Transformation and
Information Technology and prior to that was
Chief Information Officer for Vodafone UK/Ireland.
Phil has worked as a Non-Executive Advisor on
Technology in the investment & Retail Banking
sector and is currently a Non-Executive Director
of TalkTalk Telecom Group PLC and chairs its
Cyber-Security Committee,
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Paul Mills-Hicks
Food Commercial Director
Date of appointment: May 2014.

Skills and experience: Paul joined the
Operating Beard in May 2014 as Food Commercial
Director having spent over ten years at
Sainsbury'’s. He was closely involved in the
formation and execution of the ‘Making
Sainshbury’s Great Again’ strategy. Following this
he held a variety of roles in commercial, strategy
and finance, most recently as Business Unit
Birector for Gracery. Prior to Sainsbury’s, Paul
was kuropean Controlier at Marks and Spencer
Group Plc and a Director at UBS Warburg.

Clodagh Moriarty
Group Chief Digital Officer

Date of appointment: June 2018.

Skills and experience: Clodagh was appownted
Group Chief Digital Officer in June 2018 Clodagh
leads the delivery of a consistent and first-rate
digital experience for custcmers across
Sainsbury's, Argos and Sainsbury's Bank.

Clodagh joined Sainsbury's in 2010 from Bain & Co
management consultants, where she had gained
experience working on a hroad range of projects
across multiple sectors and countries. Following
two years as Head of Strategy at Sainsbury’s,

she moved into Foed Commercial as Category
Manager for Meal Solutions and then becarme
Head of Orlline Trading. spanning Food, General
Merchandise and Clothing, before being promoted
to Director of Online in 2016. In this role Clodagh
was instrumental in driving mnovation within
Groceries Online and launching new initiatives
including SmartShop and Chop Chop.

Angie Risley
Group HR Director
Date of appointment: January 2013

Skills and experience: Angie was appointed
Group HR Director and a member of the Operating
Board in January 2013 with responsibility for
human resources. Angie is also a Director of
Sainshury’s Bank plc. Angie was most recently
Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Serce ple, and prior
to this was Group HR Director of Lloyds Banking
Group and an Execute Director of Whitbread PLC
with responsibility for HR and Corporate Social
Responsibility, Angie is currently Non-Executive
Duector and Chair of the Remuneration Committee
at Smith & Nephew plc.

Simon Roberts

Retail & Operations Director

Date of appointment: July 2017,

Skills and experience: Simon joined
Sainsbury's and the Operating Board in July 2017
as Central Retail & Operations Directar responsible
for Stores, Central operation and Logistics. In his
previous role he was Executive Vice President of
Walgreens Boots Alliance, and President of Boats
with responsibility for commercial and retail
operations across the UK and Ireland. Prior to
Boots, Simon was at Marks and Spencet Group
Plc, where he held operational and customer
leadership roles across stores, divisions and
central operations. Simon is also the Non-
Execulive Chairman at the Institute of

Customer Service,
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Corporate
Governance

Dear Shareholder

As I have said in my Chairman’s letter at the
start of this report, I am delighted to have
joined Sainshbury’s as your new Chairman.

It is a great business with fantastic brands and
a long and distinguished heritage, with a focus
on customer service and very strong values.

¥ Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2012

Tjoined the Board as Chairman Designate on 1 Novemnber 2018 and would
like to thank David Tyler not only for his effective leadership of the Board
and s overall contribution o the busingss during his chairmanship, but
also for ensuring a smaooth transition until he stepped down at the end of
the financial ysar. I'm pleased ta have joined a streng and diverse Board with
a mix of men, women and ethnic backgrounds, that takes governance very
seriously. The Board has arn open and hanest culture, a strong relationship
with our experienced management team, and good engagement with
colleagues and other stakeholders.

Since I joined the Board I have had an extensive induction programme

and this will continue in the year ahead. Thave visited Sainsbury’s and
Argos stores and distribution centres, meeting colleagues at all levels of the
business, and have been struck by their passion, engagement and focus

on customer service, This will stand us in good stead at a time of significant
change in the retail sector. Details of my induction, to date, are set out

an page 53,

I have spoken in my Chairman’s letter of the Board's disappointment in
not being abie to take the proposed merger with Asda Group Limited to
a successful conclusion, 1he Board had been considering the henefits

of cormbining the two businesses over an extended pertod and had laken
decisive action to agree a merger that would have been in the interests
of all our stakeholders.

The Board temains confident that we have the vight strategy in place.
Sainsbury’s is a dynamic, multi-channel mulbi-product retailer with great
assets, and a strong digital offer, complemented by Sainsbury's Bank, Argos
and Argos Financial Services. With 178 000 engaged colleagues ensuring
that we provide the very best service (o our customers, we beheve that we
are well placed to address the challenges of a dynamic retail sector.

My priorities as Chairman will be to ensure that, with Mike Coupe and the
experienced management team, we deliver our strategy and provide strong
shareholder returns, a strengthened balance sheet and improved free cash
flow. We will also continue engagement with our different stakeholders
and our focus on increasing our diversity and inclusion at all levels of the
business. More details on these important aspects of the Board's oversight
are set out in this report.

Martin Scicluna
Chairman

Statement of Compliance

The Board considers that the Company has cormplied in fuli with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (2016 Code)

for the financial year ended 9 March 2019. The 2016 Code can be found
at www.frc.org.uk. The way the Company has applied the principles
of the 2016 Code is set out in the following Governance Report,

with the publication in July 2018 of the new UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018 (2018 Code), the Board has reviewed 1ts governance
imitiatives and programmes. The 2018 Code applies to accounting
periods beginning on or after 1January 2019, and is applicable to the
Company from the 2019/2¢ financial year. Whilst reporting on the
Company's compliance with the 2016 Code. the Cornpany has also
reported where possible in the spirit of the 2018 Code particularly

on stakeholder engagement and remuneration, and 15 well placed

to report fully against the requirernents of the 2018 Cade inour next
Annual Report.
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Leadership and effectiveness

How we are governed

The Board is the principal decision-making
body in the Company. To assist with carrying
out its responsibilities, the Board has
formally delegated certain governance
responsibilities to Board Committees.

Role of the Board

Operating Board

Operating Board Committees

49

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board
have heen deleqated to the Operating Board
which s chared by Mike Coupe The Operating
Board concentrates on the day-to-day
management of the Group and the execution
of the strateqy set ous by the Board Tach
Operating Board member has a range of
responsibilities which are detalled in their
biographies on pages 46 and 47 To suppertits
work, the Operating Board has delegated certam
powers to the Operating Board Comrmiitees.
each of which has approved lerms of Reference
setting out its areas of responsibiity.

Food Management Board

The Food Management Board 15 respensible
far manas, neg the business af Samsbury's Faad
and Grocety business, and develeping and
deliveningits strateqy

The Boardhis collectvely responsible for the
long-term success of the Group and we achieve
this through the creation and delvery of
sustainable shareholder value. In addition L
setting the Group's strategy and overseeing its
implementation by management, we provide
leadership (o the business including on culture,
values and ethics. monitoring the Group's overall
financial performance, and ensuring effective
coTporate governance and succession planning
The Board s also responsible for ensuring that
effective internal control and risk management
systems are in place

The Matters Reserved for the Board
can be found an our website at
www.about.sainsburys.co.uk.

Sainsbury’s Bank

Executive Committee

The Sainsbury’s Bank Executive Commuttee 1s
governed by the Sainsbury's Bank ple Board,
membership of which includes an independent
Chairman and Non-t xecutive Directors

The Sainsbury’s Bank Fxer Llwe Commutiee s
respansible for the day-to-day management of
Salnsbury’s Bank and executing the strategy set
out by Sainsbury's Bank pic Peter Grifliths, the
Bank’s Chuef Executive Officer, 1s a member of the
Operating Board and brings the Bank's pnorities
and perspective into the Group's overview.

Sainsbury’s Argos

Management Board

The Samsbury’s Argos Management Board has
primary responsibility for Samsbury's general
merchandise and dlothing businesses and the
day-to-day management of the Argos and
Habdat operations including the development
and implementation of strategy

Investment Board

The Investment Beard has delegated authority
to approve Group capital investrment within
agreed financial limits. Tms includes, but s not
limited to, store, supply chain, property, new
busmess actnity. and digital and technology
investments

Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews the integrity

of finanuialinfarmatio~ pnior to publication,
oversees the systems of internal control and risk
managernent and approves the internal and
external audit process It carnes out in-depth
reviews of specific 1isks, particularly infarmation
security and data governance

@ More details on page 60,

Group Data Governance
Committee

The Group Data Governance Commitiee has
oversight of the programmes that dehver
compliance with Data Protection, Data Security
and Payment Card Industry data secunty
standards across the Group Tha Committee
momtors and aligns the work across the
programmes {0 ensure consistency of approach
and understanding of nisk. It oversees effective
information security throughout the Group.

1iodey nbaens ‘

[
[=]
=~
-]
=]
3
2
=
[a]
o
el
D
=]
Q
=
-~

S]UBLBIRIS [BIUBUL

Remuneration Committee

The Rernuneration Cornmittee recommends
and reviews the Remuneration Pelicy, ensurine
it 15 aligned to the long-term success of the
Group It also approves the rermuneration and
benefits of Executive Directars and the
Operating Board, and broader remuneration
principles throughout the busimess.

@ Mare details on page 70

Group Safety Committee

The Group Safety Committee s responsible for
implementing food safety, health & safety and
fire safety management systems and oversees
Group standards for the management and
menitering of colleague and customer safety

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commuttee reviews the balance
of sklls, knowledge. experience, independence
and diversity of the Board, and succession plans
at koard and =enior management levels.

@ Mare details on page 58.

Group Diversity and

Inclusion Steering Group

The Group Diversity and Inclusion Steerning
Group 1s made up of four Operating Board
sponisors, each of wham champions a strand
of diversity, and ts chatred by our Group HR
Drrector, Angue Risley. The Group met six times
1 the jear to gavern progress and drive cur
inclusion strategy.

Corporate Responsibility and
Sustainability (CR&S) Committee
The CR&S Committee reviews the sustainahility
strategy and the Company’s progress on the
key corporate rezponsibiity imtiatives including
our values, and colleanue and customer
engagement.

(D) more details on page 68,

Group Operational

Resilience Committee

The Group Operaticnal Resilience Committee has
been estabhshed this yaar iz set the operational
resllience strategy, including business continuity
and disaster recovery arrangements, for the
Group and monttors implermentation
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Division of responsibilities

Our Board comprises the Chairman, three Executive Directors and six
independent Non-Executive Directors. Martin Scicluna jeined the Board as

a Non-Executive Director and Chawrman Designate on 1 Novernber 2018 and
was appointed as Chairrnan on 10 March 7019, when Bavid Tyler stood down
from the role after nine years as Chairman. Each of their responsibilities are
listed below.

Division of responsibilities

Responsible for the leadership and
effectiveness of the Board and for setting
the Board agenda. Ensures effective
communication so that the Board is aware
of the views of shareholders and other
stakeholders. Promotes a culture of
openness and debate in the boardroom
and constructive relations between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors,

Chairman
Martin Scicluna

Responsible for the day-to-day management
of the Group and for executing the strategy
agreed by the Board. Creates a framework

of strategy, values, culture and objectives

to ensure the successful delivery of results
for the Group and allocates management
responsibilities accordingly Responsible

for managing risk within the framework

set by the Board and creating a framewark
of internal controls.

Group Chief Executive
Officer
Mike Coupe

Executive Directors
Kevin O'Byrne and
John Rogers

Support the Group Chief Executive in
implementing the Group's strategy and in
the operational performance of the business
Their executive respansibilities are described
on page 44,
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How the Board operates

The Board and its Committees have a scheduled forward programme of
meetings to ensure that sufficient time is allocated to each key area and the
Board’s time is used effectively. There s sufficient flexibility for items to be
added to the agenda which enables us to focus on key matters relating to
the business at the right time.

In addition to eight scheduled meetings in 2018719, there were a number

of informal meetngs. often at short notice and very well attended by all
Board members, including updates on the proposed merger with Asda.
The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors also met without the Executive
Directors being present; and the Non-Execulive Directors, led by the Senior
Independent Director, met without the Executive Directors or the Chairman
being present.

Directors were made aware of the key discussions and decisions made at
each of the four principal Committees — Audit, Nomination, Remuneration,
and Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability. The Chair of each Committee
provided a detailed summary at the Board meeting following the relevant
Committee meeting

On the rare accasions that a Director is unavoidably unable to attend a
meeting, they receive a briefing fram the Chairman before the meeting so
that their comments and input can be taken into account at the meeting
and the Chairman provides an update to them after the meeting.

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at scheduled
Board meetings:

mMatt Brittin- 7(8) Susan Rice 8(8)
Mike Coupe 8(8) John Rogers 8(8)
Brian Cassin 8(8) Martin Scicluna’ 3(3)
Jo Harlow 8(8) Jean Tomlin 8(8)
David Keens 8(8) David Tyler* B(8)
Kevin O'Byrne B(8)

Act$ as a sounding board for the Chairman
and a trusted interrmediary for other
Dircctors. Led the search for the Chairman

as described on pages 58 and 59. Available
Lo discuss with shareholders any concerns
that cannot be resolved through the normal
channels of commumcation with the
Chairman or the Executive Directors.

Leads the other Directors in the performance
evaluation of the Chairman.

Senior Independent
Director
Dame Susan Rice

Responsible for bringing an external
perspective, sound judgerment and
objectivily to the Board's deliberations and

Independent
Non-Executive Directors
Matt Brittin

Brian Cassin deciston-making. Support and constructively
Jo Harlow challenge the Executive Directors using their
David Keens wide and varied experience. Monitor delivery
Jean Tommlin of the agreed strategy within the risk

management framework set by the Board.
Incdlependent of management and are free
from any business or other relationshups that
could cormprornise their independence.

Advises and assists the Board and the
Chairman, particularly in relation to
governance, Board evaluations, induction,
training and formulating the agenda

for Board meetings. Ensures that Board
procedures are effective and there is good
information flow to the Board and its
Committees.

Company Secretary
and Corporate Services
Director

Tim Fallowfield

Motes: The maximum nurber of meetngs held dunng the year that cach Direc tor rould atrend

15 shown n brackess

1 Mart Brithn wasunable tc attend a Board meeting due i o prior engagemen: |
7 Matin scwluna paned the Budrd urt L Movernbe 2018

3 Daid Tyler stepped down from the Board on 9 Maich 2015,
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Key areas of focus for the Board

The following pages surnmarise the Board's
principal activities over the course of the yea~.
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Strategy

— Agreed the strateguc plan and reviewed
mplementation, focusing on the core
supermarket strategy and the continued
integration of Argos. Nectar and
Sainsbury's Bank

--- Considered potential strategic initiatives
especially the proposed merger with Asda
Group Limited

— Considered the Group's strategy and action
plann relation to Brexit

— Reviewed and approved the corporate plan
and budget for the 2019/20 financial year

— Reviewed the material developments in the
customer offer as well as the strategy for our
digital business and data analytics

— Reviewed the implementation of change
initiatives in Sainsbury’s stores including a
single, fair and consistent colleague contract
and the ¢reation of an efficient and effective
management structure

Financial and operational

performance

— Reviewed and discussed the business progress
through the Group Chief Executive Officer’s
reports including market and trading updates

— Reviewed the performance of Sainsbury's,
Argos and Sainsbury’s Bank against
key targets

-- Reviewed reports on custorner insights
and on service standards

— Reviewed and implemented updaled KPIs
Reviewed and approved:

—- the annual budget and five-year
corporate plan
— the financing strategy
- the Company's Preliminary and Interim
results, trading statements and the
Annual Report
— the Group's Dividend, Treasury
and Tax pchcies
— Received an update on the Group’s defined
benefit pension schemes and related
gqovernance
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Governance and risk

— Reviewed the Group's risk framework and
internal controls, and approved the Group's
Princtpal risks and uncertainties
Implemented actions agreed from the 2017/18
Board effectiveness review. A further Board
effectiveness review was undertaken for the
2018/19 financial year, set cut on pages 54
and 55

— Received regular updates on corporate
governance developments and current
litigation matters

Reviewed and considered quarterly reports
on safety {Health & Safety and Food)

— Reviewed and discussed reports from
the main Board Committees — Audit,
Nomination, Rermuneration, and Corporate
Responsibility and Sustainability

— Considered whistleblowing processes
throughout the Group

Colleagues, values and culture

— Discussed the Board's oversight of the
Group’s culture

— Considered the Group’s values and received
updates on various initiatives

—- Reviewed feedback from colleagues,
particularly relating to the progress of
change initiatives in Sainsbury’s stoves

-— Reviewed feedback from customers,
including on service standards and
the gverall custorner offer

Cyber security and data governance

— Dnscussed the Group's approach to information
security and data governance

Reviewed systems, plans and processes o
protect the Group's key information assets

Investor relations and other key
stakeholder engagement
Received reports and updates at each meeting.
cn investor telations activities including on
analyst consensus, and feedback from major
shareholders and investor roadshows
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The Board's programme of meetings allows a regular review of these
activities. The following paragraphs add detail on some of the specific
priorities and meetings.

Strategy conference

In October, a two-day conference for the Board and Operating Board was
held, providing a key opportunity for an in-depth review of our strateqy
The focus of the conference was on the retail landscape, consurners’
changing shopping habits, cur competitors, the proposed merger with
Asda, the Group's digital vision and the five-year corporate plan. The
conference was carefully structured to give the Board time to debate

and challenge and to discuss the views of external analysts and investors.
External advisers attended for part of the conference,

In-depth reviews and meeting the wider management team
The Beard strongly believes that it is important to focus on key areas

of the Group's strategy and to get to know the wider senior management
teamn. Durmg the year there were a number of opportunities for these
key activities.

The Board locked closely at the impact on Sainsbury's store colleagues
when agreeing the introduction of a single, fair and consistent colleague
contract. In June the Board members discussed the colleague consultation
process and reviewed the latest “We're Listening’ survey results, which
reflect the feedback of every colieague on key engagement metrics. They
have also been updated regularly on customer insights and certain aspects
of supplier relationships.

Technology plays an increasingly important role in our customers’ lives
and the Board reqularly monitors our progress in developing our digital
of fer acrass the business During the year they undertaok an in-depth

review of our current strategy and explored how the digital ecosystem
could be developed in each part of the business.

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

‘The Board reqgularly holds meetings in different business locations in order
to meet management teams and colleagques, review perfarmance, discuss
progress and agree key priorities for the short and medium term:

Sainsbury’s Redhill Store, June 2018

This gave the Board members the opportunity to distuss strategy with the
Food Management Board. They toured the store, which reopened earlier

in the year following a major redevelopment, and covered areas such as
new business retalionships, concessions, the opening of Argos stores in
Sansbury’s supermarkets and the digital offer for customers and future
prierities. The Board was updated on the introduction of a single, fair and
consistent contract for all Sainsbury's store colleagues and the creation

of an efficient and effective management structure.

Sainsbury’s Bank Head Office, Edinburgh, $September 2018

The Board met the Bank’s wider management team and discussed strategy
in depth. There were presentations on a range of subjects including digital,
rmarketing, colleague engagerment and Group interaction.

Argos Regional Fulfilment Centre, Croydon, January 2019
Sainsbury's Argos Management Board updated the Board on the Argos
business including an overview of the Argos distribution model and its plans
for 2019720. This was followed by a lour of the newly opened Fulfilment
Centre in Croydon.

Building up knowtedge of the Group is an ongoing pracess for the Board
and will continue in 2019/20. A tour of Sainsbury’s new store at Selly Oak
is planned for June and the Board will visit Sainsiury's Bank Head Office
again in September.
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Director development

Induction

We have a cornprehensive and tailored induction pragramme in place for
Cirectors when they join the Board to enable them to gain an understanding
of all aspects of the Group, including our strategy, culture, vision, values,
sustainability, governance and the opportunities and challenges facing the
business. Where a Director joins a Cormmnittee, the programme includes an
imduction to that Committee.

Onjornng the Board, Martin Saicluna met indwidually with each Board and
Operating Board member, and also with senior management from key areas

Framework of Chairman’s induction process
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of the business, ta give hirm insight inte thewr speaiiic areas of respansibility.
The Company Secretary and Corparate Services Director briefed him on
Group policies, Board and Committee procedures. and core governarnce
practice Martin visited our major business locations at Sainsbury’s Argos in
Milton Keynes, Sainsbury's Food Online Fulflment Centre in Bromley-by-Bow
as well as stores, distribution centres and Sainsbury's Archive, He attended
the Group Strategy Conference, and the Audit and Remuneration Committee
meetings as an observer. He also met with principal shareholders and key
advisers. To support his induction, Martin recelved induction materials
including recent Board and Committee papers and minutes, strategy papers,
investor presentations, Matters Reserved for the Board, the Board
Committees Terms of Reference, and Group policies.

Understanding Understanding the Meet the Sainsbury’s visit Group
the business sector and environment internal tearm and advisers operations
— Business strategy and vision — Customer trends — Directors Store visits

— Consumer and regulatory
environment, including relevant
consumer and industry bodies

— Overview of each business area
and #s opportunities

— Operating plans, current KPIs
and targets

— Group structure

Brand perception and reputation

- Analyst and investor

— Key business relationships perspectives

and contracts — Key stakeholders

— Key people and succession plans

— Board and governance
procedures

—- Board effectiveness reviews
and actions

— Main Board committees

— Finance, treasury and tax
DVETvIews

— Internal audit, nsk and internal
controls

Group risk profite and approach

— Remuneration, reward
and pensions

Continuing development

Non-Executive Directars continue to learn about the business by meeting
with management, colleagues, suppliers and other stakeholtders including
i the ways described above. Other examples of continuing engagement
with different aspects of the business are described below.

Jo Harlow joined the Board in September 2017 and became the new Chair of
the Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability Committee from May 2018.
In that capacity, she has built her understanding by visiting Sainsbury’s
suppliers. She also attended the Sainsbury's Farming Conference and
pre-conference event to strengthen fier understanding of the topical issues
facing Sainsbury's supplier base, with a particular focus on sustainability
She et with the Chair and leaders of The Woodland Trust and discussed
the current state of and cpportunities for our long-term partnership with
them. with the Board's focus on culture and stakeholder engagerment,

-— Sainsbury's Argos in Milton
Keynes

- Committee Chairs

—- Company Secretary and
Corperate Services Director

Mermbers of the Operating Board

— Online Fulfilment Centre
in Bromley-by-Bow

— Senior management across the =~ 5ainsbury’s Archives, Docklands

Group and in each business unit

--- Mermbers of the external
audit team

— Remuneration consultants
— Joint brokers
— Legal and cther advisers

she participated in the London School of Economics event on Sainsbury’s
approach to culture and engagerment and met with Sainsbury’s colleagues at
both a ‘Talking Shop’ event in Bristol and a listening session with Great Place
to Work representatives. She continued to enhance her understanding of our
business by meeting with senior leaders in our Food and Grocery business,
Sainsbury's Argos, General Merchandise and Clothing, and Sainsbury's Bank.

As Audit Commuittee Chair, David Keens continued his oversight by meeting
with teams across Group Finance to discuss aspects of internal controls. He
reviewed business areas such as insurance, treasury funding and hedging
with our internal audit tearn. He also attended disaster recovery tests of
Sainsbury's Argos’ systems in Coventry and held meetings with the Groceries
Supplier Code Adjudicator.
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Professional development and training

To ensure the Board updates and refreshes their skills and knowledge,

we have a programme to support Directors” training and development
requirements in relation to governance, investor expectations and requlatory
impacts. This includes reqular presentations from management on relevant
governance matters, Both the Audit and Remuneration Committees received
updates on relevant accounting and remuneration developments, trends and
changing disclosure requirements from external advisers and management,
and the Board received an update on the 2018 UK Corporate Governange
Code. The Directors also had access to the advice of the Company Secretary
and independent professional advice is available at the Company’s expense,
if necessary, in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities

Director independence

The Chairman satisfied the independence criteria of the 2015 Code on his
appointment to the Board and all the Non-Executive Directors are considered
to be independent. The independence of the Non-Executive Directors is closely
monitored by the Board and formed part of the Board effectiveness review.

Time commitment and conflicts of interest

Prior to appointment, each prospective Non-Executive Directar confirms
that they will have sufficient time available to be able to discharge their
responsibilities effectively and that they have no conflicts of interest, and
this is discussed by the Board before any appeintment is made. In addition,
the Board reviews, in advance, requests by Directors wishing to undertake
new tresponsibilities or directorships and considers both the time
commitments involved and any potential conflicts. There is also an annwal
review of the conflicts of interest register to ensure it is up to date and that
there are no new conflicts to review. No changes were recorded during the
year which would impact the independence of any of the Directars.

The Board supporls Executive Directors having a non-executive directorship
as part of their continuing development provided they have sufficient time
to balance their commitments to the Group with any external rale. Subject
to Board approval, each Executive Director may have one non-executive
directar position. Whilst recognising the benefits of Non-Executive Directors
having varied and broad experiences, the Board keeps in mind investor
guidance and teviews the commitrnents of each Director annually
Throughout the year, alt Directors have good attendance records at scheduled
meetings, and demonstrated high levels of availability and responsiveness
for additional meetings and discussions where these have been required.
The Board remains confident that individual members continue to devote
sufficient time to undertake their responsibilities effectively
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Board evaluation

We review our effectiveness as a Board on an annual basis, including an
assessment ¢f the Board and its Committees. The tast external evaluation
was carried out by Manchester Square Partners in 2016/17 The 2018/13
internal review was led by the Cornpany Secretary and Corporate Services
Director, Tirm Fallow field.

The review was conducted from Decemnber 2018 to February 2019 and
continued to explore the themes that were raised for action in the 201718
review. Board members completed a questionnaire, based on last year's

in order to be able to mamntamn continuity, which also incorporated recent
developments in the business, strategy and governance practice. The Board
reviewed its key decision-making processes during the year, particularly
relating to the appointment of the new Chairman and the decision to
merge with Asda. The Board also assessed its culture and engagernent
with stakeholders in line with the 2018 Code. Individual discussions were
subsequently held with all Directors. The Company Secretary discussed the
conclusions with the serving Chairman, David Tyler, and presented thern to
the Board. The Board discussed the key points and agreed certain actions.

Findings of the 2018/19 review

The Board concluded that it performs effectively and is well placed to lead
the Company at & time of considerable change in the sector. There was
strong alignment amongst the Ditectors on the key strategic issues facing
the Group. The following were seen as particular strengths of the Board:

Focus, shared understanding and purpose
— Board diversity
— Culture of openness and debate
-— Chairman’s leadership of the Board
- Group Chief Executive Officer's leadership
--- Decision-rmaking in key business projects
— Executive response to challenge by the Non-Executive Directors
— Strategic debate and engagement
-— Risk management

The progress and actions can be found in the table on page 55.
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Board evaluation cycle
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Key areas of focus from 2017/18 review

Progress and actions implemented during 2018/1%

Agreed actions for 2019/20

Culture and stakeholder engagement

whilst the Board and Committees were fully engaged with
the Group's strong values and culiure, the Board felt that

1t would benefit from an m-depth session to pull all aspects
of culture together with parficular emphasis on colleague
feedbark and metrics

1In additicn. it would strengthen engagement with colleagues
by meeting with the Great Place ta Work Group twice a year
to share some of the Board's pricrities and to hear whai the
key 1ssues are for colleagues. Non-Cxecutve Directors would
also he invited to the 'Talking Shop’ sessions that Operating
Board Directors hold with colleague groups. Other stakeholder
engagement would continue to be reported to the Board on

a requiar basis.

The Board felt that good progress was heing made on
many aspects of engagement and il now has a deeper
understanding of the Group's values and culture.

The Board's actwities on culture and engagement during
the year are sel oul ont pages 56 and 57

Continue to bulld on the current activities and the Board
agenda to maintain oversight of the Group's culture
and to futther ergage wilh slakeholders

Determine the preferred method of engaging with
colleagues. to comply with Lhe 2018 Code. by learning
more from the range of activities planned for the year

Business performance and strategic priorities

In order to ensure the Board continues to provide
appropnate oversight of the performance of cach of trie
Group businesses, it would continue to focus on the KPIs

hy reviewing aallst reports and taking a braad perspective
on the future af the sector. This would enadle the Board

to ensure that the K75 reflect the key drvers of husiness
performance n the sector going forward.

The Board focusses on key business perfermance indwcators
and reviews the retaill market at each meeting Strategic
n-depth reviews enable the Board to review emerqing
trends i detail

Al the annual Strategy ¢ onference, the Board had in-depth
discussians on the industiry backgreund, consumers’
changing shapping habits and competitors, and considered
the views of external analysts and investors

In a fast maving sectar, the Board agreed to continue

o focus onthe KPIS of cach buziness urit and the Group
in the overall market, and ta hold detalled discussians
ahout the context and drivers of trading perfarmance
and value creation

Data security (new)

The Board felt that oversight of, and assurance over,
the Graup's plans and priarities “orinfermation secunty
and data governance had progressed dunng the year,
particularly as a result of the additional review sessions
by the Audit Committee This would continuetobea
pronikg for the Audit Committee tor the year ahead.
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Engaging with our stakeholders

The Board has always deeply engaged with

the Group's vision, values and goals as described
on pages § to 27 recogmsing that they underpin
everything we do as & business and help us
strengthen relationships with our key stakeholders.
We have 178,000 colleagues, over 28 miltion
customer transactions a week, 118,000 shareholders,
and we source aver 12,000 Sainsbury's branded
products from more than 70 countries, Stakeholder
considerations and culture are therefore an
important part of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. Various aspects of culture have
been considered by the Board and Cormmuttees
through the scheduled cycle of meetings for
many years, supplemented by other engagement
opportunities on an increasing basis.

The Board agreed in the 2017718 Board evaluation
exercise to conduct an annual review of the
Group's culture and Lo expand its engagement
with stakeholders, particularly with colleagues,
in a year of significant change in the supermarket
estate with the introduction of a single, fair and
consistent contract for all Sainsbury’s store
colleagues and the creation of an efficient and
effective management structure. At the Board
meeting held at Sainsbury’s Redhill store,

the Board discussed how the vision, values

and culture continue to differentiate Sainsbury’s,
and reviewed feedback from senior management
on how deeply the values were being lived
throughout the business. The Board also
discussed recent colleague feedhack, progress
on inclusion targets and the new metrics of
customer feedback. These reviews have
continued at subsequent Board and Committee
meelings, supplernented by formal and informal
meetings between the Board and colleagues and
other regular updates on stakeholder
engagement,

@ See mare about our values on pages 18 to 27

Shareholders

Engagement with our institutional investors
and private shareholders is an onqgoing process.
We connect with them through a variety of
channels including face-to-face meetings,
webcasts and online.

Institutional investors

Shareholder contact 15 the responsibility of Mike Coupe,
Kevin 0'Byrne and the Head of [nvestor Relations.

David Tyler met with instituzional sharenolders and
other large investars during the year, and Martin Scicluna
has met key shareholders as part of his induction.

As well a5 meeting with institutional skareholders and
other large inveslors, senior management also met with
sell-side research analysts, through regular post-results
roadshows, ad-hoc meetings, conference attendances
and stte visitsin the UK, US and Europe. A total of 192
shareholders and potential investors were met with in
182 mieetings over the course of the year. [nvestors and
analysts are also invited to participate in conference
calls and presentalions which are webcast and posted
on our website, making thern available to all investors

Investor tours

In 201814, institutionat invesLors and analysts were
imited to our new Sainsbury's store in Redhill and

Lo wistt aur fruit supplier in Kent, to help thern gain

a grezter understanding of our Food husiness and
sustatnability within agriculiural supply chains.
Thor views were fed back te t1e Board at subsequent
Board meetings

Investor perception study

The views of analysts and major mveslors are fed back
to the Board on a regular basts. Once a year lhey receive
an independent report frorm carporate advisory firm
Makinson Cowell on major investor views, share price
performance, the share register, and the Investor
Relations programme This allows the Board to monitor
performance and increase focus in certain areas.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting provides the Board with
the opportunity to commumicate with private and
nstitutional investors and we encourage their
participation al the meeting. Mike Coupe provides an
update on the business performance and shareholders
have Lhe oppottunity to meet and question the Board
This provides the Board with valuable feedback and
helps them to understand the views of shareholders

Colleagues

The Board is committed to making Sainsbury’s
a great place to work. Initiatives such as ‘Great
Place to Work’ groups, ‘Talking Shop’ colleague
listening sessions, our ‘Yammer’ soctal network
site and regular store-based colleague meetings
are alt used to understand how colleagues are
feeling. Identifying our colleagues’ engagement
levels is at the heart of how we continuously
improve, adapt and evolve our culture. The
feedback is shared with the Board and
Committees in various ways described below.

Great Place to Work Groups

Our Great Place to Work Groups are made up of
colleagues acruss the business elected by their peers to
represent their views at meetings held on a regular basis
to discuss diverse 1ssues. Each store has its own group.
This network reviewed and supported the introduction
of a single, fair and consistent contract foi alt
Sainsbury’s store colleagues and was animportant
source of communication and feedback, In September,
David Tyler and Jo | larlow met with our national Great
Place to Work Group Lo hear their feedback on the major
change programme taking place in Sainsbury’s stores.
and their views on the proposed merger with Asda,
Bavid Tyler and Jo Harlow found the mneeting very
infarmative and shared the key points with the Board

at its next meetng. Susan Rice and Martin Saicluna will
attend the next Great Place to Work meeting in May 2014

‘Talking Shop’ listening sessions

These question-and-answer style listening sessions give
store colleagues the apportunity to meet members of
the Operating Board and discuss the issues that affect
them. This year, Matl Brittin, Susan Rice and Jo Harlow
each altended a Talking Shap’ sesston with around 20
colleagues, representing each store in different reqions,
giving them the opportunity to hear, first-hand, how
colleagues were teeling and whal was on thewr minds

We're Listening survey

We're Listening is our annual colleague engagement
survey that nvites every colleague from across our
business Lo give hanest feedhack onwhat it's like to
waork for the Sainsbury’s Group. The results of the
confidential survey enable managers to produce local
action plans designed to make their part of the business
angven greater place towork The survey results were
presented to the Board during their review of culture in
June, giving thern insights wto colleague engagernent
[ollowing the introduction of a single, fair and consistent
contract for all Sainsbury’s store colleagues and the |
creation of an efficient and effective management

structure, Further information can be found on page 52,

Colleague pay and recognition

The Remuneration Corminiltee regularly reviews pay

throughout the business in fulfilling its oversight rale

Our colleague receqnizion schermes are an important

way of rewarding colleagues who live pur values.

The Buard ciscussed the re-launched recognition ;
nrogrammea at its June roview.

Inclusion

Inclusion is regularly discussed at Board and
Committee meetings. Plgase see pages 58 and 54
far mae infarmation,
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Customers

The Board is regularly updated on consumer
trends, which is of particular interest given
the pace of change in the retail sector and
the uncertainty caused by Brexit. The CR&S
Committee reviews customer insight analysis
which reflects views on the Sainsbury’s and
Argos brands and trust in the Group.

Customer feedback programme

In June, the Board was updated on Lettuce Know.

the new customer feedback programme across te
Sawnshury's Food and Grocery business The new
programme provides each store wath real-time
feedhack fro~ a'l stores an a range of service measures
Updates on the overall metnics are regularly reviewed
by he Board. Tt a'so reviews Argas custamer feedback.

Connected communities

At each meeting the CR&S Committee was updated on
the cornmunity strategy which was refreshed during
the yoar to ensure it makoes an even greater pact in
the communities we serve and contributes to our Value
‘Making a positive difference (o our community’

Mure nfaration can be fourd on page 21

Suppliers

The Board receives updates on trading strategy
and supplier relationship management and we
are committed to sourcing our products ethically
and sustainably, establishing long-term, apen
and fair relationships with ouy suppliers.

Collaboration with suppliers

We engage with suppliers to address challenges and
drve posttive change thraugh a range of collaborative
working groups including Sainshury's farmer and
grower Developrment Groups and Crop ACTon Groups
as well as through conferences and training sessions
for suppliers. Jo karlow anc Martn Scicluna attended
sainsbury’s annual Farming Conference 1o see these
initiatives In action For further information on how we
engage with our suppliers, see “Sourcing with integnity’
an pages 22 and 23

Treating our suppliers fairly

David Keens, in his capacity as Chair of the Audit
Cornmittee, meets the Grocery Code Adjudicator to
take her feedback on how Satnsbury's cormalies with 1ts
obligations to treat suppliers fairly under the Groceries
supply Code of Practice For further information, please
see page 64.

The Sainsbury’s Foundation

The Sainsbury’'s Foundation Advisary Board was set up
M 2017 to oversee The Sainsbury's Foundation wiich
aims to buld closer relationships with our sup=hiers as
well as offering therm hespoke supporl The Foundation
focuses our resources on activities that will drve
progress in the sacial. economic and environmenital
sustainability of farmers and workers and commurities
within our global supply chains. The Advisory Board's
first mandate was to oversee the Sainsbury’s Fairly
Traded tea pilot scheme. Reqular updates on progress
were provided to the CR&S Committee, More details can
he found inour *Sourcing for suslainable development’
report on our website.

Decision-making and Section 172,
of the Companties Act 2006

The success of the Group depends cn
our ability to engage effectively with our
stakeholders and this is consistent with
the ethos of Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 which sets out that a director
should have regard to stakeholder
interests when discharging their duty

to promote the success of the Company.

Two key priorities for the Board during
the year werte the proposed merger with
Asda, and the implementation of the
change programme in Sainsbury’s
stores, affecting management and
colleagues. The Board considered the
impact of the propesed merger on all
stakeholders and described how it
would deliver a great deal for customers,
celleagues, suppliers and shareholders
of both businesses in the public
documents relating to it As explained
on this page, the Board recewved reqular
updates on the implementation of the
change programme in Sainsbury's
stores including feedback from affected
colleagues.

Modern slavery

The Board is committed to identifying vulnerable
workers and we will not tolerate any form of slavery or
servitude i our business or supply chaing Our nsk-
based approach enables us to proactively tackle serious
exploitation of workers and provide resources where

they are most needed to protect workers Further details

can be found 1n our 2019 Modern Slavery Statement,
which was reviewed by the Corporate Responsibility
and Sustainability Committee and is avallable online

Supplierinsights

Over the next year, the CR&S Committee will be
provided with reqular updates on cur Vaiue, "Souscing
with inlegrity’, along with the Advantage Suppher
Survey results, The survey details what our supphers
think of us and benchmarks us against our competitors

2018 UK Corporate

Governance Code

The new 2018 Code recommends that
companies should establish a method
for gathering the view of the warkforce
and suggests cne of three aptions. The
Board currently shares this responsibility
arnongst the Non-Executive Directors so
that each is able to benefit directly from
hearing colleague feedback, for instance,
through attendance at Great Place to
Work and ‘Talking Shop” meetings.
However, it will continue to keep under
review whether te continue this
approach or if a designated Non-
Executive Director should tead on
colleague engagement.
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Nomination
Committee
Report

Dear Shareholder

This has been a busy year for the Committee,
with our particular focus on appointing a new
Chairman to succeed David Tyler, in addition
to our usual programme overseeing talent,
succession, diversity and inclusion.

Principal role and responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Nemination Committee include reviewing
the balance of skills, knowledge, experience, independence and diversity
of the Board and its Committees. and making recormrmendations

to the Board for any changes. It is responsible for formulating plans
for succession at Board and senior management levels, taking into
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company, and
the skills and expertise needed Lo ensure the long-term success of
the Group

The Committee’s Terms of Reference are available on the Company’s
website www.about.sainsburys.co.uk.

1 Sainsbury plc Annuat Report 2019

We announced in April 2018 that we had started the Chairman succession
process, which Ied with the Nomination Committee, in my role as Senior
Independent Director. We conducted a comprehensive searct, in line with
best practice. wineh led to the appointment of Martin Scicluna This is
described in detail later in this report.

1he Committee’s other priorities are to monitor our succession plans at Board,
Qperating Board and senior managerment level, review our progress on
becorning a more diverse and inclusive business and oversee the Group’s
approach to resourcing the needs of the business, developing our colleagues
and recruiting new talent. When the Board reviews the Group's strategy

n October, we take the opportunity to have a comprehensive update from
Angue Risley, our Group HR Director, and Mike Coupe on each of these
important matters,

In a year of significant structural change, we are pleased that our senior
leadership tearn has been stable and we are confident 1in the calibre of
our management team. Appointrments have been made throughout the
business to suppart the delivery of our strategy, and our internal pipeline
has further improved over the last year as a result of external recruitment
and internal promotion.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity, both on the Board and
throughout the business, as part of the Companyy’s objective of being

‘the most inclusive retailer where people love to work and shop', This s a key
part of the Board and Committees’ agendas, and at our October mecting

we reviewed our progress in making the business more inclusive across each
of our four inclusion streams of gender, ethnicity, LGBT and disability/carets,
We reviewed the long list of actions that have been implemented to date
and the appartunities for the year ahead, and are pleased to see that the
gender and ethnicity balance of our senior population has improved year

on year. The promotion of Clodagh Morarty as Group Digital Directer in
June 2018 improved gender diversity on our Operating Board We can also
see that there is a strong list of activities to create a diverse pipeline of talent
throughout the business, for both the shorter and longer term.

As part of the Board evaluation exercise, we reviewed the Committee’s
effectiveness. The Board considers that the Commiltee continues to be
effective n its role of supporting the Board, and that the search for a new
Chatrman led to a very satisfactory outcome.

We were delighted to appoint Martin Scicluna as our new Chairman. He
brings a wealth of experience and leadership to the Group at a pivotal time.
He joined the Board as Chairman Designate and Non-Exec utive Director in
Novernber and has worked closely with the outgoing Chairman, David Tyler,
the Board and the senior management team to ensure a smaath transition
He became Chairman on the first day of the 2019/20 financial year. I'm sure
that shareholders will join the Board in wishing him every success in his role
at sainsbury's.

Dame Susan Rice
Semor Independent Director

The Committee held one scheduled meeting in the year, together with
several other ad hoc meetings pertaining to the Chairman's search process
and appointment.

Attendance at scheduled Normnation Committee meetings:

Martin Scicluna' 0(0) David Keens 1
Matt Brittin 1) Susan Rice 11
Brian Cassin 11 Jean Tomlin (1
Jo Harlow 1) David Tyler 1(1)
The maximum number of rieeting- held during the year 12 shownin orackets

1 Martn Soicluna joined the Board on 1 Novermnber 2018
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Committee membership

The Committee consists of independent Non-Executive Directers and all of
the current Non-Executive Directars are members of the Committee The
Chairman of the Board is also the Chair of the Committee and the Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. Mike Coupe and Angie
Risley, Group HR Director, attend meetings by invitation.

Succession planning

As part of its succession planning, the Committee oversaw Lhe search and
appointment of Martin Scicluna as successor to David Tyler, who reached his
ninth anniversary on the Board in 2018. Martin Scicluna's recruitment was
facilitated by Egon Zehnder, an independent executive search cansuitant
which has no connection to the Company other than in assisting and
facilitating in the search for senior management. The Committee held a
number of additional unscheduled meetings as part of the appointment
process as set out below:

With a detailed understanding of what was required
for the role, Egon Zehnder identified an extensive
and diverse list of potential candidates who were
appraised by the Senior Independent Director
against the agreed brief, key competencies and
experience required for the role. This created a
long list which was reviewed by the Committee to
produce a shortlist The agreed brigf included key
attributes such as previous experience, cultural fit,
managing complex shareholder relationships, and
driving transformation.

Identify

The shertlisted candidates were interviewed by
the Serior Independent Director and Groun Chicf
Executive Officer and imings of the appointment
and handover of the role were discussed. The
preferred candidates met with all Non-Executive
Directors, after which the Board and Nomination
Committee members met to discuss feedback.

Interview

Prior to the final selection and appaingment, the
Seniar Independent Director obtained references
from key stakeholders on the preferred candidate.
The Comrmittes was unanimous in its final selecticn
and recormmmended to the Board that Martin Scicluna
be appointed as Chairman given his breadth of
axpertence and his fit to the key attributes in the
agreed brief. [t was also agreed that he be
appointed te the Normination Cornmittee.

Martin Scicluna’s other roles were considered prior
to his appointrent and the Board agreed that
there was no conflict which might impact his role
at Sainsbury’s. The Board alsa cansiderced tns ather
cormmitrnents from a time perspective, noting that
he was Chairman at RSA Insurance Group ple, and
that it had been announced that he would shartly
be stepping down as Chairman of Great Portland
Estates plc He stood down on 31 January 2018,

The Board considered that he would have sufficient
tirme to fulfil his responsibilities to both the Company
and RSA Insurance Group plc on an ongoing basis.

Select

Considerations

Martin Scicluna's appointment as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairman-Designate took effect

an 1 Novernber 2018, with him being appointed

as Chairman when David Tyler stepped down

on 9 March 2019.

Appoint

Diversity and inclusion

The Group's aspiration is to be the most inclusive retailer, and the Board s
highly supportive of the initiatives in place to promote diversity and inclusion
throughout the business, Clear leadership of our inclusion agenda is set by
Mike Coupe and the Operating Board, with senior management being set
annual objectives to drive progress through the business. The Group Diversity
and Inclusion Steering Group is chaired by the Group HR Director and is also
attended by three other Operating Board Directors who champlion each
inclusion stream {gender, ethnicity, LGBT and disability/carers) with other
serior leads from the different business units.

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 59

The Board receives reqular inclusion updates and both the CR&S Committee
and the Nomination Committee recewe detailed presentations on our
inclusion priarities and the progress we are making throughout the year.
More about these initiatives and the progress being made can be found

on pages 26 and 27.

The Board believes there is a good balance of diversity amangst our
Non-Executive Directors, with several having extensive experience of retail
and consumer-facing businesses and other highly relevant skills derived
from serving in a range of major executive and non-executive positions
throughout their careers. The Board feels that diversity 1s one of its strengths
and we will continue to appoint on ment whilst working hard to broaden the
dwversity of the talent pool.

Currently, female representation on the Board equates to 30 per cent. Fernale
representation on the Operating Boeard has increased with the appointment
of Clodagh Moriarty and is currently 20 per cent. The representation of
fernale divisional directars and senior management is 31 per cent.
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Audit Committee
Report

Dear Shareholder

The challenge for every Audit Committee is
to maintain vigitance over business as usual
whilst paying appropriate attention to the wider
specific and general risks that all businesses
face. This is my fourth letter to you as Audit
Committee Chair, and it sets out how the
Committee has addressed both routine and
emerging topics during the year.

Principal role and responsibilities

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities by reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the
financial information provided to shareholders, the Company’s
systems of interral control and risk nanagement, the internal and
external audit process, the auditors, and the process for compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

The Committee’s Terms of Reference are available on the Company's
website www.about .sainsburys.co.uk

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

The Committee operates a wide-ranging agenda which this year has
included cyber security, data gavernance, the potential impact of Brexit
and financial reporting standard changes.

Cyber security and data governance remain high risk areas and are
important for every business which uses sigmficant amounts of data for
operational efficiency and product delivery. The Committee received regular
reports and presentations on these topics during the year. These were
supplemented by sessions with senior IT security and data managers to
obtain greatert insight into Company processes and pracedures.

The direction and impact of Brexit rernains uncertain. The Company has
prepared for various scenarios, identifying where key risks lie and where
appropriate mitigations are in place to reduce the impact on supply chains,
customers and colleagues. The Cornmittee will continue pauing particular
attention to potential Brexit impacts as the situation develops.

The Carnmittee has continued to manitor the Company's financial
performance and stress tested its ability to withstand potential shocks,

such as from Brexit and other short-lermirisks. We have discussed
medium- and long-term finance structures at meetings with Finance and
Treasury managers {please refer ta page 37 for our Statement of viabiity).
The Committee considers all accounting changes and approved the
implermentation of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Custarner Contracts’, and reviewed the approach ta implementation

of the new [FRS 16 ‘Leases’

Specific activities apart, the Committee continued its ‘business as usual’
duties. which included the monitoring and review of internal and external
auditor programimes, principal risks and the integrity of the Group's financial
staternents. As Chair, I also meet independently with the internal and
external auditars, the Chief Financial Officer, and Tax, Treasury and Finance
rnanagers. I have an open and professional relationship with all of them and
retain a high degree of confidence in their capability and integrity.

Committee members have individually or collectively visited various Group
locations during the year including stores, distribution centres and the
offices of Sainsbury's, Sainsbury's Argos and Sainsbury's Bank. These site
visits give us invaluable understanding and insights into the Group's
operations and risk management.

The Committee’s effectiveness was considered as part of the Board
evaluation process (please refer to pages 54 and 55). I am pleased to teport
that the Board considers that the Committee continues to be effective inits
role supporting the Board

I wouid like to thank members of the Committee and all the colleagues
who have contributed to our work, for thew time and valuable contributions
during what has been another busy year.

David Keens
Chair, Audit Committee

Attendance at scheduled Audit Committee meetings:

4{4) Jean Tomlin

49

David Keens
Brian Cassin

The rgmum nurmber o° meetmgs held duting the year (5 shown in orackels
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Accountability

Committee membership

The members of the Committee are independent Non-Executive Directors
who have competence relevant to the retail sector. They atso bring with them
extensive general business and management experience.

The Board has determined that David Keens has recent and relevant
financial experience.

Committee activities

Regular attendees at Committee meetings include the Chairman of the
Board, Group Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Director of
Internal Audit, Director of Group Finance, Company Secretary and Corporate
Services Director, Deputy Company Secretary, representatives of Samshbury’s
Bank and the external auditor.

The Committee has undertaken the following key activities during the year in fulfilling its responsibilities.

hrea of focus

Activity

Financial Reporting
The integrity of the financial statements and any ather formal
announcement relating to financial performance.

The Commuttee reviewed the Annual Report, the Preliminary and
Interim results and was provided with supporting information to assist
it 1 this review.

Significant financial reporting issues and judgernents contained
in the financial statements.

Items excluded from underlymg results,

Implernentation of accounting standards IFRS 9 and 15.

Review the approach to implementation of the new accounting standard
IFRS 16

Pensions strategy and accounting.

See “Sigruficant financial and reporting matters” on page 65.

Treasury funding and liquidity and their impact on financial and operaticnal
capabilities.

Assumptions and qualifications in support of the viability statement
and going concern including stress testing against nsk matenalisation.

The Committee assessed the Group's longer-term prospects and whether
three years continues to be an appropriate timeframe over which to make
the viability statement It was concluded that the current three-year
assessment period remains appropriate. This was reviewed and adopted
by the Board.

The processes underpinning the assessment of the Group's longer-term
prospects were reviewed.

The Commitiee considered the work of the Brexit Steering Group, potential
Brexit impacts and key risks, the modelled assumptions and scenarios,
and the practical resolutions for implementation over the short and
medium term.

The Staternent of Viability and the Committee's approach to assessing
long-term viability can be found on page 37.

Assessment of whether the Annual Report is fair, batanced
and understandable.

The Board is required to confirm that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and understandable (see page 50). To enable
the Board to make this declaration, there 1s a year-end review process to
ensure the Committee, and the Board as a whole, has access Lo all relevant
information and, in particular, management's papers on significant issues
faced by the business. The Committee received a summary of key factors
considered in determining whether the Annual Report is fair, balanced and
understandable. The Committee, and all other Board members, also received
drafts of the Annual Report and Financial Statements in sufficient time to
review and challenge the disclosures if necessary In addition, our auditors,
EY reviewed the consistency between the reporting narrative of the Annual
Report and the Financial Staterments.

Risk Management and Internal Controls
Risk management updates including reviews of pnncipal risks
and uncertainties.

See pages 30 to 36 and pages 66 to 67,

The Cammittee also reviewed the captive insurance arrangernents and the
related retained risks overview.

Reports from the Audit and Risk Cornmittees of Samshury's Bank, which
included risks, and compliance and reporting processes.

Sainshury's Bank plc is a subsidiary of the Cornpany, with an independent
Board responsible for setting the Bank's strateguy, risk appetite and annual
business plan. The Samsbury’s Bank Executive Committee is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the business.

The Chairs of the Bank’s Audit and Risk Commuttees and the Bank’s Chief
Financial Officer attend meetings of the Cormmittee,

The Board of the Bank has an independent Chairman and a majonity of
independent Non-Executive Directors.

There is alignment between Sainsbury’s Internal Audit function and its
equivalent within Sainsbury’s Bank.

For further information see “Significant financial and reporting matters”
on page 65.
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Area of fotus

Activity

External Audit
scope of the external audit plan and fee proposal.

Provision of non-audit fees.

The Committee reviewed EY's overall work plan, and approved their
remuneration and terms of engagement

The majority of the non-audit work undertaken by EY during 2018/19
related to services associated with the proposed Asda transaction. The total
non-audit fees were £0.6 million. The audit fees for the year in respect of
the Group and subsidiaries were £3.2 millien. For a breakdown on the fees,
please refer to note 6 of the consolidated financial staterments.

Independence and objectivity of. our auditors. EY.

The independence and obiectivity af the external audit functionis a
fundamental safeguard to the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

During the year, the EY partner responsible for our last three annual audits
retired, and an alternative EY partner, who had not previously been involved
in the Company's audit, was appointed.

The Committee has averseen the Company’s policy which restricts the
engagement of EY in relation to non-audit services. The intention is to ensure
that the provision of such services does not impact on the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity. It identifies certain types of engagement
that the external auditor shall not undertake, including internal audit and
actuarial services relating to the preparation of accounting estimates for

the financial statements. It requires that individual engagements above

a certain fee level may only be undertaken with pre-approval from the
Committee or. if urgent, from the Chair of the Committee and ratified by the
subsequent meeting of the Committee. It recognises that there are some
types of work where a detailed understanding of the Company’s business

is advantageous. The policy 1s designed to ensure that the auditor is only
appointed to provide a non-audit service where it is considered to be the
mast suitable supplier of that service,

The Committee received a report on the non-audit services being provided.
The annual aggregate of non-audit fees is capped at 70 per cent of the annual
average of the audit fees for the Group for the preceding three-year pertod.

Followtng an effectiveness review, the Committee concluded that EY
1emained objective and independent in their role as externat auditors
and that they continue to challenge management effectively.

The Committee has confirmed compliance with the provisions of the
Statutory Audit Services Order 2014

Quatlity and effectiveness of, our auditors, EV.

The Committee reviewed £Y's effectiveness during the year. focusing on the
audit partner and audit team, their approach to the audit, communications
with the Cornmittee, how EY supported the work of the Commiittee, and thelr
independence and objectivity. The Committee review was supported hy
feedback from management which was compiled from questionnaires
completed by Directors and managers in the business whao were directly
involved with the audit. The questionnaire covered the audit team, audit
planning and audit communication and executicn.

The Committee concluded that EY provided audit services efficiently and
effectively and to a high guality.

Recammendation of the reappointment of EY as auditor.

The Cormmittee has made a recornmendation to the Board toreappoint EY as
the Company's auditor for the 2013/20 financial year. Accordingly, a resclution
proposing their re-appointment will be tabled at the July 2019 AGM.

Tender of external auditor.

EY were apponted in July 2015 as the Company’s external auditor following
a tender which completed in January 2015. We da not currently plan to
undertake another formal tender process until we are required to for the
year to March 2025
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Area of focus

Activity

Internal Audit
Director of Internal Audit.

The Director of Internal Audit reparts to the Committee Chair and has direct
access to all members of the Committee and the Chair. The purpose,
authority and responsibility of Internat Audit are defined in the Internat
Audit Charter, which the Committee reviews annually.

Internal controls framework.

See page 66,

Management's responsiveness to Internal Audit's findings
and recommendations.

The Commmuttee was provided with updates on Internal Audit’s findings and
agreed actions at each meeting.

Scope of the Internal Audit Plan

Effectiveness of the Internal Audit function,

The scope of the Internal Audit Plan and subsequent amendments to the
plan were reviewed and approved by the Committee.

The Committee reviewed the Internal Audit departrment’s resources,
budget, work programme, results and management’s implementation
of required actions.

The Director of Internal Audit provides an annual overview of Internal
Audit's performance to the Audit Commuttee, including performance against
key performance indicators {(KPIs) and stakeholder feedback Areas of
improvernent are highlighted, together with actions to address these.

These are used to assist in reviewing the effectiveness of Internal Audit.

In 2017/18, an independent review of the function was completed by the
newly-appointed Director of Internal Audit (in line with the requirements

of the Institute of Internal Auditors), with external challenge and support
provided by a suitably qualified external party. The Committee continues

to monitor and review progress of key actions implemented from the review.

The Committee concluded that Internal Audit continued to be effective.

Other
Committee’s effectiveness.

The review of the Committee’s effectiveness formed part of the Board review.
More details can be found on pages 54 and 55.

Significant issues raised through the whistleblowing process.

The Committee received updates at each meeting on significant whistleblowing
incidents. The Committee Chatir receives earlier notification of incidents that
may develop into a significant incident. No issues arose that required the
Committee to be updated ahead of a scheduled meeting. All issues were
escalated to the relevant manager for investigation.

The Cormmittee reviewed and reported to the Board the consistency of
whistleblowing arrangements across the Group and its application by the
Company's suppliers. Each of the Business Unit Directors are responsible for
rolling out process amendments where appropriate.

Updates on data governance and information security.

Updates on the Data Governance Programme were provided during the
Jear covering process improvernents, progress against the implementation
of a single GDPR framework acress the Group, increased use of Group data
clinics, and the focus on culture and discipline over the next year.

The Committee received updates from the Group Chief Information Security
Officer on plans which covered strategic risks, third party assurance
programmes, cyber security and mitigation initiatives. Separate sessions
on data governance and information security were held during the year.
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Area of focus

Activity

Other continued
Companyy's comphance with the Groceries Supply Code of Practice.

In 2010, the Groceries Supply Code of Practice (GSCOP) was implemented
following the recommendation of the Competition Commission. Where
applicable, each grocery retailer had to appoint a Code Compliance Officer
{CCO) whose duties inctude hearing disputes between suppliers and the
relevant retailer. Sainsbury's has appointed the Director of Internal Audit
as its CCO. GSCOP reguires that each applicable grocery retailer delivers an
annual complance report to the Groceries Code Adjudicatar {GCA), which
has been approved by the Chair of the Audit Comrmtiee. A summary of the
compliance repart must be included 1t the Annual Report and Financial
Staternents, which is set out belaw.

Summary Annual Compliance Report

Sainsbury's compliance with the Code is based on clear policies and
procedures, mandatory training and reqular monitoring of compliance.
Sainsbury’s has dedicated internal resources to provide all relevant colleagues
with day-to-day advice and quidance. The Trading Division's cormpliance
team, in consultation with Group Legat and the CCO, continues Lo assess the
adequacy of policies and procedures in place to support GSCOP awareness
and compliance Collabaoration between the Trading Bivision's campliance
teamn, Group Legal, Internal Audit and the CCO has been enhanced this year,
helping to ensure that potential Code-related matters are identified promptly
Cornpliance results, including performance against KPIs, are reported to

the Food Commercial Leadership Team quarterly. Additional assurance s
provided by Internal Audit.

A small number of potential breaches of GSCOP were received in the year.
As at 9 March 2019, all but one of these had been resolved either within aur
Trading Division using standard escalation procedures or, in five of these
cases, through discussions between the CCO and the supplier. Actions are
in place to resolve the one case that is outstanding. None of these were
pursued as formai Disputes with the CCQ and none required referral to the
GCA for Arbitration. Group Legal, the compliance tearn and the CCO review
the root causes of the potential breaches to identify any areas for
improvernent and to agree actions with the business,

The CCO and the Committee Chair meet with the GCA on a regular basis.
Sainsbury's continues to work collaboratively and positively with the GCA

to proactively identify and address any areas for improverment in terms of
GSCOP comphance. Over the year, one of these meetings was attended by
the food Commercial Director and ather senior stakehalders from suppiy
chain and trading to facilitate collaboration. Areas of focus this year included
working to align our processes with the GCA's forecasting best practice
statement, refreshing our customer complaints process and reporting
performance against a broader set of KPIs in relation to payments.
Sainsbury’s is currently reviewing the cutcomes from the GCA's investigation
into the Co-op to ascertain if any changes are required to achieve alignment.

Ongoing material litigation.

The Committee was updated at each meeting on all material litigation, and
any potential impacts on financial reporting disclosures.

Business continuity managernent.

Anumber of desk top exercises were run during the year and lessons learnt
were used to enhance the process. Crisis management sessions relating to

data loss were held with the Operating Board
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The Committee considered the following significant financial and reporting issues during the year.

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets

Areview forimpairment triggers is performed at each reporting date
by questioning if changes in the circumstances suggest the recoverable
value of certain assets may be less than their carrying value (see note 2
of the consolidated financial statements). The Committee reviewed
summary reports produced by management detailing the outcomes
of the impairment assessment. No Group impairment triggers were
identified in the year, however seven individual stores and one land
bank site were impaired, totalling £3 million.

Items excluded from underlying results

Iterns excluded from underlying results are reviewed by the Committee,
and the Committee is satisfied that the Group’s presentation of these
items is clear and that further disclosure is included where appropriate.

The Group continues ta disclose additional inforrmation on all Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs} used by the Group (see pages 185 to 187
of the financial statements).

Accounting standards implemented during the year
Management has implemented the following new accounting standards
for the year commencing 11 March 2018:

— IFRS 9 Tinancial Instruments’
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Custorner Contracts’

The Committee has reviewed timpact assessments provided by
management and the supporting disclosures, Additional disclosures
are included in note 1 of the consolidated financiat statements.

Accounting standards preparation - IFRS 16
tManagement are currently preparing for the implementation of new
standard, IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, for the year commencing 10 March 2013

The Audit Committee received regular updates from management
to ensure all necessary steps, to cormply with the requirernents of
the new standard, were being taken.

The Committee has cansidered management s project approach and
progress, including impact assessments. The Group intends to apply
the fully retrospective approach on transition and will restate pnior
year comparatives. Additional disclosures are included in note 1

of the consclidated financial statements.

Pensions accounting

The Group's balance sheet shows a pension surplus of £959 millon,
which comprises £8,983 million of assets, and £(8,024) miltion of
liabilities This compares to a net deficit in the prior year of £(257) million
(see note 30 of the consclidated finanaial statements).

The Committee reviewed & summary of the actuarial assumptions used
in arriving at a valuation for the defined benefit pension scheme and was
satisfied that they are reasonable.

Supplier arrangements

Supplier income is constdered by the Committee. The majority is
calculated through a formulaic process, and the Commuittee is satisfied
with the controls in place to manage areas cf judgement and estimation.

The Committee ensures the Group provides income statement and
balance sheet disclosures in its financial staternents {see note 5 of the
consolidated financial statements).

Sainsbury’s Bank reporting

The Committee receives updates on the key agenda itemns discussed

at the Bank’s Audit Committee. These include accounting judgements
and estimates, important operating and requlatory matterts such

as liquidity, cash flows, capital adequacy and risk management
processes. The Chairs of the Bank's Audit Committee and Risk Cormmittee
and the Bank’s Chief Financial Officer attend meetings of the Committee.

Dunng the year the accounting judgements and estimates reviewed by
the Committee have included impairment assessments of the loans and
advances due to Sainsbury’s Bank customers under 1FRS 9 and progress
on the Bank's transition.

Other matters

The Committee has considered the risks associated with adjustments
made to revenue and the IT environment within the External Audit
Report. The Committee has concluded that the Group has appropriate
procedures and controls in place not to include these as significant
areas of jJudgement.
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Internal controls framework

The internal controls framework encompasses all controls, including those
relating to: financial reporting processes, preparation of consolidated Group
accounts, operational and compliance contrels, risk management processes,
and controls over Sainsbury’s interests in joint ventures.

The Committee assesses the effectiveness of our internal controls on an
ongoing basis, enabling a cumulative assessment to be made. The processes
used during the year to support this assessment are as follows:

- discussion and approval by the Board of the Company's strategy, plans
and objectives, and the risks to achieving them;

— review and approval by the Board of budgets and forecasts, for both
revenue and capital expenditure;

--- reviews by management of the risks to achieving objectives and
mitigating controls and actions;

— reviews by management and the Committee of the scope and results of
the work of Internal Audit across the Cormpany and of the implementation
of their recommendations;

reviews by the Cormmittee of the scope and results of the work of the
external auditor and of any significant issues arising;

reviews by the Committee of accounting policies and levels of delegated
authoerity; and

reviews by the Board and the Committee of material fraudulent activity
and any significant whistleblowing by colleagues, suppliers or other
parties and actwons being taken to remedy any control weaknesses.

Risk management and internal controls

The Board has overall respansibility for risk management and intermal
controls, and for reviewing their effectiveness. Certain responsibilities
have been delegated to the Audit Committee as cutlined below. The risk
management process is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Company’s business objectives and can only
provice reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstaterment or loss.

The risk management process and internal controls have been in place for
the whole year, up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements and accord with the UK Financial Reporting Council's Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Controt and Related Financial and Business
Reporting and the 2016 Code.

The Board received updates on risk management and internal controls
from the Chair of the Audit Committee (see page 61 for further details)
All Committee papers and minutes were made available to the whole Board

The Board also received reports on matters relating to safety, other
relevant risks, controls and governance. Any significant matters which
could have affected the Company's reputation were reported to the
Board as they occurred.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controls
and has ensured that any required remedial action, on any identified
weaknesses has been, or is being, taken. The following diagram provides

an overview of the key risk management activities undertaken by the
Management Boards, Operating Board and Audit Committee that allow

the Board to fulfil their obligations under the 2016 Code.
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The annual risk managernent pracess concludes with the Board's robust
assessment of the Company’s Principal risks and uncertainties disclosure,
including those that would threaten its business model, future performance.
solvenicy or liquidity, and the completion of an annual internal controls
cerlification. More detail on all of these key risk management activities is
provided on page 67

Management Boards
Quarterly risk discussions

o-perating Board Annual internal contrals
B certification by divisional
1-annual nsk updates
management
Audit Committee plc Board

Management Board and
Caorporate nsk updates

Review of risk process,
Corporate risks and approval of
Principal misks and uncertainties

Corporate risk management process

Accepting that risk is an inherent part of doing business, the risk management
process is designed to identify key risks and to provide assurance that they
are fully understood and managed in line with management's risk appetite
The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
process at least annually.

The Operating Board maintains an overall corporate risk map, which is
reviewed twice a year by the Audit Committee and is formally discussed
with the Board. The risk map captures the most significant risks faced by
the business and identifies the polenual impac L and hkelinoad at both

a gross level (before cansideration of mitigating controls) and net level
(after consideration of mitigating controls). The Operating Board discusses
and agrees the level of risk that the business is prepared to accept for each
key corporate risk. The target risk position is captured to reflect management's
risk appetite where this differs to the current net position. The Operating
Board also reviews the risk map twice a year. This enables the Onerating
Board to agree and monitor appropriate actions as required.

The risk management process is embedded at the Operating Board level
and is supported by bottom-up risk processes and discussions within
operating companies, Group functions and governance forums. Operating
Board members certify annually that they are responsible for managing
their business abjectives and internal controls to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that the risks in their areas of responsibility are
appropriately identified, evaluated and managed

Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee with a risk management
update twice a year which includes the key risk activities undertaken at
Management Board, Group Functions, Governance Forurmns, Divisional and
Corporate levels.
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The risk management process is illustrated in the following diagram.
The specific risk management activities undertaken in the financial year
to S March 2019 were as follows:

-— Internal Audit facilitated risk workshops with the Management Boards,
Group Functions, Governance Fotums and each divisional teadership
team to identify the key risks which may prevent the achievermnent of
Board objectives. Each has produced and maintained a divisional risk
map. The ikelihood and impact of each key risk was evaluated at a
gross level (before consideration of mitigating controls) and net level
{after consideration of mitigating controls). Management's risk appetite
was reviewed and further actions to mitigate the risk were identified
if required

J sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

— Management Boards, Group Functions, Governance Forums and
Divisional management teams regularly review key risks and the
effectiveness and robustness of the rmitigating controls as part of their
normal business activities Independent assurance over the controls 1s
also provided through the delivery of the Internal Audit risk-based plan

-— the Operating Board reviewed and challenged the output of the
bottom-up risk pracesses including new risks, risk movements and
key nisk themes, The corporate risk map was updated as appropriate,

— Internal Audit provided independent assurance to management and
the Cormmittee as to the existence and effectiveness of the risk
management pracess.

— the Board reviewed the risk management process and corporate
risks at the year end and approved the Company’s Principal risks
and uncertainties disclosure (@s set out on pages 3010 36).
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Management Group Operating Audit Committee plc Board Internal
Boards functions Board Audit
September Divisfonal risk Group functions
workshops risk workshops
thottom-up sk assess key nisks Quarterly risk
wdent.fication) to their business Teview
nhjrctives
November Management
Board risk
workshops
assess key risks
to their business
ohjectives
January Operating Board
risk workshops
assessment of key
carporale risks
and nsk appetite
discussions update
Prncipal risks and
urnicertainties
Februarg Audit Commiittee Internal Audit
review of risk process r.sk based
and appraval of half-year plan
Principal risks and
uncertainties
Apl'll Management Quarterly risk plc Board
annual certification Teview review of Tisk pracess,
that risks mther corparate rnsks
arcas af respansibil ty and approval of
arcdenhified, Principal risks and
evaluated and Lncertamies
managed
May
] ul'-'l Herizon scanning Quarterly risk
and game-changer review
risk workshops
focus on external and
unknown risks
September Audit Committee Internal Audit
risk management nsk based
update half-year plan
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Corporate
Responsibility
and
Sustainability
Committee
Report

Dear Shareholder

Our vision is to be the most trusted retailer,
where people love to work and shop.
As one of the UK’s largest retailers, with
a global supply chain, we can make an
important contribution to sustainable
development in the UK and internationally.

3 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

This year ] was delighted to becorne Chair of the Corporate Responsibility
and Suslainability Committee, which gversees our sustainability strategy,
taking into account our Group vision and strategy. Our approach addresses
both traditionally understood sustainability issues, such as sustainable
supply chans, global climate change and enviranmental impacls, and
broader tapics critical to the sustainalalily of our business, benefiting our
customers, colleagues and communities.

Our Sustainability Plan is structured around our values  empawering people
to live healther lives, sourcing with integrity, tespecting our environment,
making a positive difference te our community and providing our colleagues
with a great place to work. The Committee fulfils its responsibilities by
reviewing and reporting on the progress against cur Sustainability Plan.

I am proud of the progress we have made this year on our Sustainability Plan,
This includes a 35 per cemt reduction in ahsolute carbon emissions against
our 2005 baseline, achieving our 2020 goal early, and a record 87 per cent of
stores having a community food partner, helping tackle food poverty in our
communities and reducing food waste.

Iwould like to thank Jean Tomlin for her mspirational leadershp and work
chairing the Committee for the last six years. Looking forward, we are
currently developing our past-2020 plan, in discussion with our colleagues,
partners and experts. We will be launching our new Sustainability Plan inthe
coming year, driving further positive change and helping address global and
local challenges.

Jo Harlow
Chair, Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability Committee

Attendance at scheduled Cormnmittee meetings. Meetings were also attended
by David Tyler.

Jo Harlow 22}
Mike Coupe ?(2)

Jean Tomlin 2(2)

The maximum nuroer o° meezmgs held during the year 1s shown m bracets

Principal role and responsibilities

The Committee’s principal role is Lo review the Group's sustainability
strateqy for aignment with the Group's culture, vision and strateqy
and assist the work of the Operating Board. With the Board, the
Committee also plays a part in monitoring Group engagement

with stakeholders, including customers, suppliers, communties
and colleagues.
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Principal activities in the year

This year we reviewed and refreshed the governance of our Sustainability
Plan to align our approach across the Group and enable us to he moere agile
In a changing world. Updates included relaunching our value Management
Groups and giving colleagues a greater role. A new Sansbury’s Foundation
Advisory Board was also established to oversee social, economic and
environmental actvities in our Fairly Traded producer cormmunities.

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 69

Before each Committee meeting, members received insights on stakeholder
views, including customers and colleagues, along with progress updates

on each of our values and the overall Sustainability Plan. During meetings,
we discussed our sustainability strategy and stakeholder engagement,
reviewing our approach and receiving updates on key initiatives Topics
included our human rights approach, sustainability insight sessions for our
colleagues across the Group, Sainsbury's Fairly Traded tea pilot, Active Kids
scheme and comrmunity programme.,

For more on sustainability progress, see Our values on pages 18 to 27,

J Sainsbury plc Board

Quersight of the sustaimatiity strategy
Chair: Martin Sacluna from March 2019

Corporate Responsibility and
Sustainability Committee
Reviews the sustainability strategy's impact

Chair: Jo Harlow from May 2018

Operating Board

off major inves:ments

Defines Group-wide strategy, adapting to new regulatory
requirernents and trends Reviews cross-value progress and signs

Chair: Mike Coupe, Group Chief Executive Officer

Value Management Groups

Lead operatinnal execution of sustamamhty activities by value,
ensuring delivery of perfarmance

Health
Management
Group

Chair: Judith Batchelar,

Director of Sainsbury’s
Brand

Community
Management
Group

Chair: Simon Roberts,

ketall and Operations
Dlrector, Sanshury’s

Environment
Management
Group

Chair: John Rogers,
Chief Executive Officer
Sainshuty's Argos

Sourcing with
integrity
Management
Group

Chair: James Brown.
Director of Non-food
Commeraial, Sainshury's
Argos

Great place to

work Management

Group

Chair: Angie Risley,
Croup ! IR Dirgctor
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Annual
Statement
from the
Remuneration
Committee Chair

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to presernt the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year
! ended 9 March 2019. The Remuneration
Committee remains commnitted to pay for
performance and reviews executive pay in the
context of Company results as well as having
redard to pay throughout the business.

J Sainsbury ple Annual Report 2019

Over the last year the Company delivered an underlying profit before tax
of £635 million, which 1epresents growth of 7.8 per cent. By focusing on our
strategy and increasing efficiencies, we exceeded our cost savings target
and delivered synergies arising from the acquisition of Argos ahead of
schedule We also lowered net debt, wnproved aur cash position and
increased our dvidend by 7.8 per cenl.

In the context of a highly competitive market, the Remuneration Committee
is pleased with the Company's results and believes the business is well
placed to maximise opportunities for growth and ta create value for all

our stakeholders.

As part of the Remuneration Committee’s rernit of having oversight of pay
arrangements across the Group, we were kept updated on the significant
changes to remuneration for Sainsbury’s store colleagues As part of our
‘Winning Teams' initiative, the business made an investment of over

£100 million in pay for Sainsbury’s store colleagues which took effect fram
September 2018. As well as introducing a single fair and consistent contract,
giving us greater flexibility to ensure store colleagues are always in the right
place at the night time for our customers, we made an industry-leading
investment in pay, taking the base rate Lo £8.20 per hour, bringing the total
increase to 30 per cent over the last four years.

In recognition of the great service Argos colleagues give ta customers,

we have also invested in the pay rales of our Argos store colleagues The
majority of colleagues received an increase from £8.00 to £8.50 in April 2019,
bringing the increase to 18 per cent since we acquired Argos in September 2016,

In addition, during the year the Committee reviewed the Group's Gender Pay
Report on behalf of the Board. we pay colleagues according to their role, not
their gender, and the Board (s committed to improving the representation of
women at senior levels. In 2018, our mean gender pay gap reduced by 2.5 per
cent to 12.1 per cent and our median gender pay gap reduced by 0.6 per cent
to 3.8 per cant.

It 15 important that the pay for all our colleagues across the Group rernaing
consistent with the principles of simplicity and fairness. For a number of
years, Sainsbury's has emphasised how our values make us different and
we seek to adopt a responsible approach to pay, that reflects our values,
both across the Group and al more senior levels.

From an Executive Director perspective, no major changes to pay have been
proposed for the commng year.

Our remuneration policy, which governs executive pay at Sainsbury’s, was
approved by 96 per cent of our shareholders at the 2017 AGM and the
Committee considers that it continues to work well. Under the normal
three-year renewal cycle, the policy will next be presented to shareholders
for approval at the 2020 AGM. In the coming year we will be reviewing our
approach to ensure that the policy continues to support the needs of the
business as well as evolving market and best practice. This review will take
place over the latter half of 2019 and we will seek to engage with our major
shareholders regarding the conclusions of this reviev.
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Remuneration in 2018/19

We remain cornmitted to ensuring that rewards received by our executives
reflect the underlying performance of the business. Total rermuneration for
the Chief Executive and Executive Directors has increased reflecting the
progress made during the year.

- Annual bonus — Our Executive Directors were assessed against Group
profit and indwidual annual operational objectives. The profit outcome
was in the middle of the range sel at the stat of the year. The Directors
atso performed well against their abjectives linked to individual strategic
and customer and colieague metrics. Inlight of the overall results, the
Committee determined an annual bonus of circa 56 per cent
of maximum should be paid to the Executive Directars in respect of
the year.

— Deferred Share Award - The Committee determined that awards
under the DSA should be granted al 55 per cent of the maximum. This
recagnises the performance of the business against our internal targets,
market expectations and our competitors in a highly competitive retail
market and the achievements made on our strateqic priorities. This
award is deferred into shares. In response to shareholder feedback, we
have enhanced the disclosure this year so that shareholders can better
understand how outcomes have been determined. Details of financial
and non-financial targets and achievements are set out on pages
78 and 79.

— 2016 Future Builder — Reflecting our achieverment against the five
performance metrics, a performance multiplier of 2.2x (out of a
maximum of 4.0} was applied to the core award for all participants
resulting in vesting of 55 per cent of the maximum. For this award,
one-fifth of the award was linked to the delivery of synergies relating
to the acquisition of Argos, and we were pleased to deliver these ahead
of schedule.

In line with the new Corporate Governance Code (the 2018 Codel, the
Committee reviewed the cutcomes of the individual incentive plans as well
as the overall levels of rermuneration to ensure that they remained consistent
with the underlying performance of the business. The Committee is satisfied
that the total remuneration received by Executive Directors intespect of
2018/19 is a fair reflection of performance over the period.

Remuneration in 2019/20

As noted abowve, no major changes to remuneration are being proposed for
the coming year. Key decisions in relation to remuneration for 2019/20 are
set out below.

- - Salary — We have awarded Mike Coupe, Kevin O'Byrne and John Rogers
a salary increase of two per cent effective March 2019, which aligns with
that awarded to other management colleagues. As noted above, other
colleague populations recewed larger increases.

— 2019420 annual bonus — we will continue to aperate the annual bonus for
2018/18 to reflect the approach we take for our management colleagues.
70 per cent of the maximum bonus opportunity will be based on Group
profit and 30 per cent on business specific annual operational objectives.

— 2019/20 Deferred Share Award — Executive Directors will participate in the
DSA for 2019/20 on the sarme basis as 2018/19. They will be rewarded for
the delivery of performance against a diverse range of key financial and
strategic scorecard measures.

— 2018 Future Builder  Our approach to the 2019 Future Builder awards
will be broadly unchanged from 2018, Awards will be based on four
equally weighted performance measures: return on capital employed,
earnings per share, free cash flow and cost savings. we reviewed the
targets to ensure they remain appropnately stretching and increased
the free cash flow and cost savings targets to reflect our corporate plan.
Fellowing the three-year performance period, awards are subject to a
further two-year holding period. Further detaits of the awards are set out
onpages 80 and 81.
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During the year the Committee has also considered how we will comply
with the new 2018 Code that will apply to Sainsbury’s for the 2018/20
financial year. As outlined above, the Remuneration Committee already
spends significant time providing oversight of pay arrangements in the
wider business and we have now formalised this practice in the Committee’s
Terms of Reference. We have also taken steps to strengthen some of our
internal processes to ensure we can exercise suitable discretion in our
incentive plans in line with the new 2018 Code. While we are well placed to
comply with the majonty of the 2018 Code, clearly there are certain aspects,
such as our approach to pensions for any new Board appointments and our
policy for post-emnployment shareholding, which will require further
consideration. We will seek to address these matters as part of the new
Remuneration Policy that will be presented at the 2020 AGM.

We hope that the disclosure provided in this report provides clear insight

into the Committee's decisions and we look forward to receving your
support at the AGM.

Dame Susan Rice
Chair, Remuneration Committee

Attendance of Directors at scheduled Remuneration Committee meetings.

Susan Rice 4(4) Jo Harlow 4(4)

Matt Brittin 4(4)

The maximum nuinber of meetingsheld during the year that each nrector conld attend s <howr in brackel s

Principal role and responsibilities

The specific responsibilities of the Committee include:

— Determining and agreeing with the Board the remuneration
polhicy for the Chairman, Executive Directors and the Operating
Board Directors;

Setting individual remuneration arrangements for the Chairman,
Executive Directors and Operating Board Directors;

— Reviewing and noting the remuneration trends and policies actoss
the Company and taking these into account when determining
executive pay:

Approving the service agreements of each Executive Director,
including termination arrangements; and

- Considering the achievernent of the performance conditions
under annual and long-term incentive arrangerments.

The Committee’s Terms of Reference are available on the Company's
website www.about.sainsburys.co.uk.
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Summary of 2018/19 remuneration decisions

Pay element

2018/19 decisions

Salary

— Mike Coupe — £862,297, Kevin O'Byrne - £637500 and John Rogers  £709,30%
-— Salary increase of two per cent for Executwve Directors in March 2018, in line with ather management and central colleagues.

Annual bonus

Awards of c. 56 per
cent of maximum

The 2018/19 bonles outturns were circa 56 per cent of the maximum for the Executive Directors.

Key performance highlights:
- Profit performance in line with expectations resulting in an outturn in the middle of the performance range.

— Good performance against key individual annual operational objectives.
—- Fult details of the benus measures and achievernents can be found on pages 76 and 77.

Deferred Share Award

Award of 55 per cent
of maximum

— Performance asiessed taking into account financial performance, returns to shareholders, relative performance against peers
and strategic priorities.

— The majority of financial targets were met or exceeded.

— Growth of 7.8 per cent in full-year dividend
In year relative performance below expectations, following robust performance in prier years and within a highly
competitive market.

— Progress against strateqic priorities, particularly in strengthening the balance sheet.

— Details of targets and achievernents can be found on pages 78 and 7.

LTIP/Tuture Builder

Vesting at 55 per
cent of maximum

— Future Bullder, based on performance to March 2019, will vest at 55 per cent of the maximum
Full vesting was achieved under the cost savings and synergies elements, with partial vesting achieved under the cash flow element.

Total remuneration

Mike Coupe KevinQ'Byrne John Ragers
£000 £000 £000
o 2018719 2017118 VV;OLBI!.Q 2017718 2018/19 201718
Fixed pay Salary 262 943 638 625 709 695
Benefits 17 17 17 17 85 30
Pension _ . 289 283 159 156 177 174
Performance-related pay Annual bonus 593 427 316 238 357 EJ
Deferred Share Award 582 758 316 411 351 457
- LTIP/Future Builder 1,438 1,202 787 - 848 641
Total pay 3,881 3630 2,233 1447 2,527 Tom
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summary of remuneration for 2019/20

Pay element

Summary of policy

Appreach for 2019/20

Salary

Increase in line
with colleaques

Salaries are set taking into consideration a range
of internat and external factors. Increases are
normally in line with those for the wider workforce.

The Executive Directors received a salary increase of two per cent effective
from March 2019 in line with other management and central colleagues.
The 2019/20 annual salaries are.

— Mike Coupe £981,543
— Kevin O'Byrne — £650,250
— John Rogers — £723,496

Benefits

Range of benefits provided in line with market
practice and reflecting individual circumstances.

No changes to current arrangements.

Retirement benefits

Participation in either the Company defined
contribution plan and/or a cash salary
supplernent. The maxirmum value is 30 per cent
of salary for existing Executive Directors.

For new appointments the maximum value is
25 per cent.

No changes ta salary supplement in lieu of pension for Mike Coupe
30 per cent of satary) and other Executive Directors (25 per cent of salary).

Dunng the course of 2019/20 the Committee will review the Directaors’
Remuneration Policy. including the policy for retirement benefits, in light
of the updated 2018 Code.

Annual bonus

No change to
quantum or
performance
measures

Based an key finandial and individual annuat
operaticnal objectives measured over one year,
with bonus payable in cash after the year-end

Maximum opportunity of up to 125 per cent of
salary per annum.

Performance 1s based on Group profit (70 per cent) and annual operaticnal
objectives (30 per cent)

The maxirmum bonus for 2019/20 is:
— Mike Coupe — 110 per cent of salary
- - Other Executive Directors — 90 per cent of salary

Deferred Share Award

No change to
quantum and general
structure

Recognises and rewards for delivery of short-term
strategic and financial objectives which contribute
towards long-term sustainable growth.
Perforrmance measured over one year, after which
award made as share awards, deferred for two
financial years

Maximum opportunity of up to 125 per cent of
salary per annum.

Performance over the financial year is based on financial performance, returns
to shareholders, relative performance against peers and strategic priorities.

Financial perforrmance and returns to shareholders account for half of the DSA.
The maximum award for 2019/20 is-
— Mike Coupe — 110 per cent of salary

Other Executive Directors — 90 per cent of salary

LTIF/Future Builder

No change to
quantum or
performance
measures

Reviewed target
ranges

Recognises and rewards for delivery of Company
performance and shareholder value over the
longer term.

Awards dependent on performance measured
over a perind of at least three financial years.

For awards granted from 2017 anwards, a two-year
holding period applies following the end of the
three-year performance period.

Maximum award of up to 250 per cent of salary
per annum.

Awards are structured as core awards, with a performance multiplier of up
to four times, The 2019 awards are:

-— Mike Coupe - core award of 62.5 per cent of salary (max 250 per cent)

— Other Executive Directors — care award of 50 per cent of salary
{max 200 per cent)

The targets for 2019 awards are below:

Threshold target  Maximum targat

Measure weighting (1 0xcoreaward) (4 0x core award)
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 25% 8.0% 11.0%
Underlying hasic earnings per

share (EPS) i 25% 230p 300p
Cumulative free cash flow (cash flow)  25% £900m £1,400m
Cumulative strategic cost savings

(cost savings) 25% £600m £750m
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Sharehclding guidelines

The Executve Directors are required to build a significant shareholding in the Company. For the CEQ this is 2.5 x salary, while for

other Executive Directors this is 2.0 x salary.

The shareholding guidelines are aligned with the maximum grant levels for Future Builder awards.
During the course of 2019/20 the Committee will review the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, including post-employment

shareholding guidelines, inlight of the updated 2018 Code and developing market practice.

Recovery provisions

The Executive Directors’ incentive arrangements are subject to malus and clawback.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Remuneration principles

We want to have a fair, equitable and competitive total reward package which encourages colleagues to do the right thing for our customers. As a Group
with multiple business units. the principles of fairness, equality and simplicity are important to us. and we aim for consistericy in pay and benefits where
appropriate. This overall reward strategy is the foundation for the remuneration policy for senior executives.

The over-arching objectives of the remuneration policy are to ensure rewards are fair, performance-based and encourage long-term shareholder value
creation. The rermuneration policy for our senior executives is based on the following principles.

Encourages the
Linked to our Aligned to right behaviours Secures high Enables share
business strategy our values to deliver calibre leaders ownership

long-term growth

The Commitiee takes a rounded approach to pay and considers a variety of factors when determining, and subsequently implementing, the policy far senior
rnanagerment. The Committee believes it is important to exercise sound judgement at all stages during the process to ensure that executive pay levels
appropriately reflect performance and are aligned with the interests of shareholders.

When reviewing remuneration arrangements, the Committee considers our business goals, pay practices across the Company and the retail sector more
generally, the impact on colleagues, the cost to the Cornpany, stakeholder views {iIncluding shareholders, gavernance bodies and colleagues) and best practice.

Single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited information)
The table below shows a single remuneration figure for all qualifying services for the 52 weeks 1o 9 March 2019, together with comparative figures for the
52 weeks to 10 March 2018.

Mike Coupe Kevin O'Byrne’ John Ragers
€000 £000 £000
: _ N Nutes ) 20156719 2017118 i 20181185 200718 ZN1RQ PHTIR
Base salary 962 943 638 625 709 695
Benefits - ' 1 17 17 17 17 85 90
Pension R 289 283 159 156 177 174
Total fixed pay ' h 1,268 1243 814 798 971 959
Annual bonus ] 2 593 427 316 238_ 357 264
Deferred Share Award 3 582 758 316 an 351 157
L TIP/Future Builder ' 4 1,438 1202 787 - 848 641
Total ) 3,881 3630 2,233 1447 2,527 231

1 Benefits include a rombnnation of cash and non-cash bene’uts, valued at the Laxable value. For all Executive Ditectors, thisincliueles a cash car allowande (£15.250) and private medical cover. For John Regers this also
includes an annual travel allowance uf £6,500 and accommaodation costs of £61.286 per annurm in relation te a change of locaticn ta Milton Keynes following s appointrment as CEO of Sansbury's Argos Mike (oupe’s
figure for 2014718 and 2018/ 19 mclude a value for Sharesave options sased an a 20 per cent discount on the savings in the ygar

2 Anmual benus relates to performance dunng the finanoial year, Faid in May Tellowing the relevan: year-end

The Deferred Share Award relales to performance during the nancual year, shares are granied in May following the relevant year-end and ves: after a twe-year deferral penod

4 1ha) ong-Term Incentive Plan value relates to the Future Buldder award vesung in May fellowing the end of the relevant financial year, which 1s the third year of the performance penod For 2015 and 2016 awards,

53 per cent of the shares are reledsed i May atter the end of the relevant performance penad ang -he nalarce one year later The figures ncluds ocerued Cwidends cver the nettermance perad The 201718 values
are haseq an the actual share price an the first dare of vesting, €3 020, wdrds were granted on 14 May 2015 at o share orice of £2 767 The values shawn abowe include the follawang amouniz attrihutable 1o share
e apareciation £107k for Mike Coupe and £33k for Jobn Rager: The 2018119 values are based on the average shate price cver the “euetk quarter for 2018119 of £2 6682 Awards for Mike Coupe and 1ohn Roqgers were
granted on 12 May 2016 &t a share price o’ £2 650 The award for Kevin O'Byrne was made on 26 lanuary 2017 at o <hare price o' £2 606 The values shown abowe include the following amouns attributable to share
price sppreciation €10k ‘or Mike Coupe, €19k for kevin 0'Byrne and €6k for Juhn Rogers.

5 kewin 0Byrne joined in lanuary 2017 As par: of his joinng arrangaments. he received a Future Biidder award, which vests in part i May 2019 This s the first Future Bulder vesaing since he joned

6 The bxecutive Directors are entitled to retain the fees earned from non-executive appointrments out side the Company. Mike Coupe was appointed a Non-Executive Girector of Greene ¥ing ple on 26 July 2011 and
recewed §50.000 far his services dunng 201819 [2017/18 £50.000) John Rogers was appointed a Non-Fxecutive Uirec tor of Traviz Perkins ple on 1 November 2014 and recerved £57,343 for his services dunng 2018019
(207418 £47.650) Kevin O'Byrne will be appainted a Non-Executive Directar of Centrica ple effective from 13 May 2019, he received no fee during 2018114,

[
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Base salary

salary Salary
effective frorm  effective from
11March 2018 10March 2019

Mike Coupe ~ ] . £962.297  £981,543
Kevin O'Byrne £637500 £650,250
John Rogers £709,309 ¥7234956

When considering salaries the Committee takes account of a number of factars, with particular focus on the general level of salary increases awarded
throughout the Company. Where relevant, the Committee also considers external market data on salary and total remuneration but the Cormmittee applies
judgement when considering such data. The salary review for management and central colleagues in March 2019 was generally two per cent. As outiined in
the Remuneration Committee Chair's letter, we have invested heavily in both our Sainsbury’s stare and Argos store colleagues, resulting in higher increases in
the standard base rates for colleagues compared to increases for management colleagues

For 2019/20 Mike Coupe, Kevin O'Byrne and John Rogers will receive a salary increase of two per cent effective March 2019, in line with other management
colleagues.

Pension

In lieu of pension plan participation, Mike Coupe receives a cash pension supplerment of 30 per cent of salary and Kevin 0'Byrne and John Rogers receive
25 per cent of salary. No Director has any entitlernent to a Sainsbury’s defined benefit pension. All pensian arrangernents were implemented prior to the
publication of the 2018 Code

As cammunicated in last year's Remuneration Report, under the forward-leoking policy, retirement benefits for any future appointment s are capped at
25 peor cent of salary, rather than the previous limit of 30 per cent. we will revicw this again, inhght of the updated 2018 Code, as part of the 2020 Directors’
Remuneration Policy review.

Benefits

For 2018/18 and 2019/20, benefits for Executive Directors include the provision of cormpany car benefits, private medical cover, long-term disability insurance,
life assurance and colleague discount. Benefits for John Rogers also include an annual travel allowance and accommodation costs, in relation to a change of
location ta Milton Keynes, following appointment as CED of Sainsbury's Argos.

Performance-related pay
The Committee believes it is important that a significant portion of the Executive Directors’ package is performance-related and that the performance
conditicns applying to incentive arrangements support the delivery of the Company’s strategy and the long-term sustainable success of the Company.

The specific metrics incorporated into the annual bonus, Deferred Share Award and Future Builder are buitt around the overall strategy and our key priorities.
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Annual bonus Deferred Share Award Future Builder
Short-term Medium-term Long-term
. . BRI ]
Differentiate food and grocery =
through quality, value and service £
S
<
[=N
Grow General Merchandise 5
and Clothing g

Offer our customers easy access
to financial services

Profit
Free cash flow

Financia’ performance
Returns to sharehalders
Strategic priorities
ROCE
EPS

Generate efficiencies to invest
in our digital future

Arnua! operationa: objectives

Cost savings

Strengthen the balance sheet

UVl W N =




76 Governance

The Board is of the opimon that the perfermance targets for the 2019/20
annual bonus and Deferred Share Award are commercially sensitive as the
Company operatés in a highly competitive, consumer-facing sector. The
disclosure of targets would provide competitors with insights into the
Company’s strategic aims, budgeting and growth projections. However, in
line with previous years, the Company is retrospectively disclosing the
financial performance targels set for the 2018/19 annual bonus in arder to
provide greater transparency. Detailed disclosure is also provided in relation
to the Deferred share Award so that shareholders can understand the basis
for payments. Targets for Future Butlder awards have been disclosed on a
prospective basis.

Ammual bonus

2019/20 policy

we will follow the same, simplified approach as used for the 2018/19 annual
bonus. The Board and senior manayement bonus will be based 70 per cent
on Group profit and 30 per cent on annual operational objectives. We helieve
that Group profit is the most impeortant measure for senior managers as it is
the ultimate outcome of engaging our colleagues, providing great custormer
service, driving sales and managing costs.

The Group profit targets are set against the Company's expected
performance and are subject to a rigorous process of challenge before
the proposals are considered by the Board. The targets are set such that
cansiderably stretching perforrmance in excess of internal and external
forecasts is required for maximum payout.

Annual operational objeclives ensure that managernent continue to focus
on aperational priorities which contribute to the achievement of Group
profitability over the short and long term. For Executive Directors, these
objectives will be grouped around two equally weighted elements of
individual strategic and customer and colleague. The individual strategic
objectives will be based around our strategic priorities and will be specific to
cach Director (for example, John Roger's objectives will include Sainsbury's
Argos performance). The customer and colleague element will include
customer service, and ¢olleague metrics based on engagement scores and
inclusion.

The maximum annual bonus award opportunity for the Chief Executive is

110 per cent of base salary and for the other Executive Directars is 30 per cent
of base salary. Hislorically the annual bonus has operated with a
performance gateway whereby a minimum level of profit must be met
before any payments under the annual bonus are made to Executive
Directors. Taking into account the updated 2018 Cade, from 2019/20 the
performance gateway has been strengthened so that the Committee may
adjust outcormes if it considers that they do not reflect the underlying
financial or non-financial performance of the Executives or the Group. The
armual bonus is paid in cash after the year-end.

2018/19 annual bonus cutturn (audited information)

The performance measures for 2018/19 were Group profit and annual
operational abjectives. As the gateway level of profit was achieved, Executive
Directors are eligible to be cansidered for a payment under the annual bonus
for 2018/19,
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Financial performance
The table below sets out the threshold and stretch profit and sales targets
and the actual outturn for 2018/19.

Threshold Stretch Actual
Profit! £585m £685m £635m

1 Underlying pro’ belore tax

The profit targets were robustly set at the start of the year reflecting both
our internal and external forecasts at that time.

Our senior team, managers and colleagues throughout our business all
shared a consistent focus to drive sales, control costs and deliver great
products and services to our custormners. This enabled us to deliver profitin
lire with expectations resulting in an cutturn in the rddie of the
performance range.

Annual operational performance

The rermainder of the bonus was focused an annual operational objectives
split into two equally wetghted elements, {1} individual strateqgic and (i)
customer and colleague.

The tables opposite set out the objectives and the Executive Directors’
performance in relation to these objectives as assessed by the Remuneration
Committee. The Executive Directors have specific individual strategic
abjectives but common customer and colleague objectives, although there
is a greater emphasis on Sainsbury's Argos for John Rogers.

2018/19 annual bonus payments
Overall, the Commitiee is comfortable with the bonus outcomes, particularly
when the broader context of the retail market performance is considered.

The table below shows the bonus payable as included in the single total
figure table as well as a breakdown by element.

Maximum
opportunity Outeorrie
Percentof Per cent of Value
salary salary £000

Mike Coupe
Profit 77% 39% £371
Annual operational objectives T 23% 222
Total 110% 62%  £593
Kevin O’Byrne
Frofit ) 63% 32% EZOl'
Annual operatiomai objectives 27% 18% £115
Total 7 90% 50% £318
John Rogers
Profit - 53% 32% £224
Annual operational objectives o 27% 19% £133
Total T eom 50% £357
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Annual operational performance
Individual strategic objectives
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Mike Coupe
Objactives Achievernents
Driving strategy Argos integration plan delivered, major transformation in Sainsbury’s stores; increased

Complete the delivery of the Argos acquisition plan, ongoing
development of the business stralegy

digital capability; developing Nectar data advantage; iIncreased store trading intensity;
continuing development of business strategy

Delwvery for our shareholders

— Build the fimancial strength of the organisation — increase
ROCE, grow FPS 1o 22 2p and reduce net debt by £100m
before fair value movements

ROCE increased from 8.43% ta 8.46%, increased EPS by 7.8% to 22.0p (ust short of
target), £162m reduction in net debt before fair value mavements (£222m after fair
value mavements)

Managing our cost base
Deliver £200m in year of cost savings

Delivered £220m of cost savings

Kevin 0'Byrne

Objectives

Achievements

Cost transformation
— Deliver cost savings of £200m and undertake wider
structural review

Delivered £220m of cost savings and commenced structural changes to reduce Group
capital and operating expenditure

Cash flow
Deliver retail free cash flow in line with expectations and
reduce net debt by £100m before fair value movements

Delivered strong retail free cash flow of £461m and £162m reduction in net debt before
fair value movements (£222m after fair value movements), ahead of guidance

Capital discipfine
— Deliver impraved teturns and manage budget allocation
and expenditure

Capital expenditure of £512m, below previous year and guidance, with improved
returns delivered

John Rogers

Chbjectives

Achievernents

Continue execution of Sainsbury’s Argos strategy
— Improve multi-channel customer experience to drive
growth and support the Group strategy

Build financial strength of Sainsbury’s Argos

— Deliver sales and other key financial metrics across
Samnsbury's General Merchandise and Clothing and Argos

£160m synergies delwered mne months ahead of schedule, continued transfarmaticn
of store estate and development and launch of new commercial strateqy

Grew Argos sales; General Merchandise sales flat; improvement in other key
financial metrics

Accelerate digital transfermation plan

— Focus on improving our digital shopping expenence; grow
Fast Track delivery and Fast Track Click & Collect; grow
digital and mobile participation

Increased digital revenues and digital and mobile participation; grewth in Fast Track
delivery {up 13%) and Fast Track Click & Collect (up 10%)

Customer and colleague objectives
These apply to each Executive Ditector.

Objectives

Achievaments

Customer
— Focus on customer experience and develop a new grocery
satisfaction metric

Launched Lettuce Know programme in Sainsbury’s durmg year, improving feedback trend

Mike and Johm's performance was also reviewed in the context of Sainsbury's Argos -
Argos increased customer satisfaction scores across physical and digital channels

1loday nbayens |
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Colleague
- Focus on employee engagement  maintain scares from
priar year

Increase in colleague engagement scores across the Group. fallowing major
transformation in Samsbury's stores

John's performance was also reviewed in the context of Sainsbury's Argos
in colleague engagement scores in Argos

increase

Inclusion

— Improgve representation of women and BAME ¢olleagues
in leadership roles — aspirational target of 40% female
and 10% BAME senior managers and departmental
directors by 2021

At senior tevels, female representation increased to 31.4% and BAME increased to 7.5%

John's performance was atso reviewed in the context of Sainsbury’s Argos — 40% of Argos

store managers are female and 7% arc BAME
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Deferred Share Award

2019/20 policy

The Deferred Share Award (DSA) is used to drive performance against a
diverse range of key financial and strategic scorecard measures and rewards
Executive Directors for achieving the short-term objectives that will directly
lead to building the sustainable, long-term growth of the Company. These
awards are made in shares to ensure further ahignment with shareholders.

The DSA covers broadly the top 50 senier leaders in the Company, including
Executive Directors. Performance is assessed in the round based on the
Commuttee's judgement of performance achieved against a number of
measures within four broad categories. The cateqories and measures

for 2019/20 are broadly similar to those disclosed for 2018/19

As outlined in our remuneration policy. at least 50 per cent of the award
will be based on the delivery of financial performance and returns te
shareholders. In addition, in line with the annual bonus, from 2019/20 the
performance gateway has been strengthened so that the Commuttee may
adjust outcomes if it considers that they do not reflact the underlying
financial or non-financial performance of the Executives or the Group

Performance is assessed over une financial year, but any shares awarded are
deferred for a further two financial years. The shares are subject to forfeiture
if the participant resigns or is dismissed for cause prior to their release date.
Dividends accrue on any shares that subsequently vest.

The maximum DSA award opportunity for the Chief Executive is 110 per cent

of base salary and for the other Executive Directors is 90 per cent of base salary.
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2018/19 Deferred Share Award (audited information)

Following the year-end, the Committee conducted a rigorous assessment
of performance. Consistent with the underlying principles of the DSA, the
Committee assessed achieverments in the round and also considered the
manner in which these performance goals had been delivered and how this
contributes to the Cormpany's future sustainable growth and success

The Committee reviews performance against expectations using the
following assessment grid:

Rating Perfermance

Delivers strong performance beyond
expectations, raising the bar on
expected results

Gutperfarmance

Clear evidence of raising strategic
ambition/nrogression

Good Bemonstrates a good performarnice against

all objectives and performance areas
15 consistent with progression against the
Company's strategic targets

On track Delivers a solid rounded perfermance
against most objectives and all critical

performance areas

Delwvers against some objectives and
most critical performance areas

Partially met

Underperformance Performance is low with mportant

objectives and targets not achieved

During the year the Company met or exceeded the majority of its financial
targets. The full-year dividend payment grew by 7.8 per cent and, while
in-year relative performance was below expectations, this follows robust
performance in prior years and is due to the highly competitive market
and recovery in peer results. The Company also made progress against its
strategic priorities, particularly driving efficiencies, which provides a solid
foundation to maximise opportunities for growth and to ¢reate value for
all stakeholders

The Committee, therefore, agreed that for 2018/19 awards would be made
at 55 per cent of the maximum level, compared with 73 per cent last year.
It also determined that the performance gateway for the planwas
achieved. Although some of the specific measures and targets are
comrmercially sensitive, the table an the following page presents a selection
of performance highlights which the Committee took intc account within
each of the four categories.

The table below sets out details of the awards and these are the figures set

out in the DSA row of the single tatal figure table. The share award is made

after the end of the 2018/19 financial year and the shares vest in March 2021
subject to continued employment.

Maximum
opportunity Outcome
- Per cent of Pe;centof Value
salary salary £000
Mike Coupe 110% 61% £582
Kevin O'Byrne 90% 50% £316
John Rogers S0% 50% £351
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Category (weighting) Metric Expectation/target Result Achievement
Financial Urderlying Group sales In line with expectations vartizl y et — growth of 21 per cemt
30% -
( ) UPBT Inhne with expectations antrack  UPRB! of £635m 0
Dther Hit budget for other financial metrics Achieved or excesded cost saving, 19 Io
synergies and operating margin [out of 30%)
targets; outperformed net debt target,
with a recuction of £162m
Return to Good performance — growth gnd
B ; san of
shareholders TSR Growth and above median of peers above median 120’
(20%) - ; - 0
Dwidend Mamtain Flmdemd cover policy of 2x; A~ Lrack —dividend cover of 2x, {out of 20%)
competitive dividend payment full-year dividend tncreased by 7 8%
Relative Flat against 16D S2ansbury's)and BRC  Sainsbury's sales below index; Argos
Salesvs peers
performance {Argos) sales ahove Index
{20%)

Decline due fo recovery in performance

1oday nbayeng

Prafit vs peers

% of profut peal flat vs. 17718 of peers

5%

Quality, price and
Semvice ¥s peers

Quality. price and service measures
partially met

Qeallyfmrice perception abave pecrs,
wWin Grocer 33

lout of 20%)

Grocer 33 — decline on previous years

Strategic pricrities food and grocery

(30%) GM and Clothing

Financial Services

Generate efficiencies

Strengthen balance sheet

Remuneratton Commitiee assessment  On track

i\ the round - ~ey achievernents

summarised below On track 190[
Ontrack 0
Outperformance iout of 30%)
On track

Overall outcome
(% of max)

55%

Strategic priorities

1. Differentiate food and grocery through quality,

value and service
— Grocery sales increased by 0.6 per cent

— Qutperformed market in Convenience, grew sales by 3.7 per cent

Groceries Online sales grew by 6.9 per cent

Growth in prermum, value-added ranges help us to invest in making
our commodity ranges better value, but there is more work to de to

qrow sales
— Increased trading intensity of our stores

— Major transformation in our stores to meet challenges of today's

retait environment

2. Grow General Merchandise and Clothing

— General Merchandise sales were flat in a declimng market

— Argos sales grew and outperformed a highly competitive and very

promotional market by 2.2 per cent

— Now have 281 Argos stores in Sainsbury's supermarkets, achieving our

target of 280

— Industry-leading customer satisfaction levels in Argos with Net Promoter

Score continuing to increase and ranked eighth in an independent
UK-wide customer service survey

—- Tu sales cutperformed the market, even though sales declined, sixth

largest <lothing brand by volume

3. Offer our customers easy access
to financial services

— Financial Services underlying operating profit
decreased to £31m as previously guided

— Argos Finance Setvices grew, with 19 per cent
of Argos sales on Argos Cards and balances up
11 per cent

-~ Growth in mortgages, general insurance and
Travel Money, lower ATM transactions

— Increased customer numbers - flve per cent at
Sainsbury’s Bank and six per cent in Argos
Financial Services

4. Generate efficiencies to invest
in digital our future
- Bringing Sainsbury's and Argas together
delivered £160m of synergies, delivered mne
months ahead of schedule
- Delivered £220rm of cost savings in 2018719,
ahead of £200m target
— Using buying scale, product base and property
portfolio to reduce costs
-- Fnhanced digital scale and capabilty — £4.7bn
of our sales are generated online
Nectar deepens aur understanding of how
customers are shopping across the Group
— 185 million registered users

5. Strengthen the balance sheet

- - Reduced net debt by £162m before fair value
movements (£222m after fair vatue
movements), exceeding the target of £100m

— Capital expenditure of £512m, remains low
compared to previous years

— Delivered strong retaul free cash Flow of £461m

Al
=
<
o
=
=]
a
3
[a]
@
F
o
-
[=]
=
~+

SIUBLLBIRIS [RIIURUL




80 Governance

Long-term incentives

2019/20 policy

The Lang-Term Incentive Plan operated at Sainsbury's is known as Future
Builder. Around 275 senior managers across the business participate in ths
arrangement. Awards are granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan
approved by shareholders in 2016.

Future Builder awards have been granted under the same structure for a
number of years. A core award of shares ts granted, calculated as a percentage
of salary and scaled according to level of senionity. Vesting of the core award
is dependent an perfarmance against specific tacgets tested at theend of a
three-year performance pertod. The core awards can grow up to four times
at stretch levels of performance.

For Executive Directors, historically, awards have been structured so that half
of any awards vest following the end of the performance period, with the
rernaining half vesting after a further year. For awards granted to Executive
Directors from 2017 onwards, awards will normally be subject to a two-year
holding period following the end of the three-year performance period.

This will result in awards to Executive Directors being released after a
five-year period.

The Remuneration Committee must be sattsfied thal the Company’s
underlying performance over the periad justifies the level of vesting; vesting
will be reduced if not. When making this judgement the Committee has
scope to consider such factors as it deems relevant. The Committee believes
that this discretion is an important feature of the plan and mitigates the risk
of unwarranted vesting outcomes. This performance gateway assessment
applies to all outstanding Future Builder awards.

2019 Future Builder performance measures (definitions for
other awards can be found in the relevant Annual Report)
ROCE

— ROCE reflects the returns generated for shareholders and measures
the efficiency of capital use.

— Itis based on the underlying prefit before interest and tax for the
whole business, with Sainsbury's Bank fully consolidated, including
the underlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures. The capital
employed figure excludes the impact of movements in the IAS 19
pension deficit.

EPS
-— EPS directly reflects returns generated for shareholders.
- Underlying basic EPS is based on underlying profit after tax divided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue during
the year.
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2019 Future Builder awards (2022 vesting)

Award levels will remain unchanged for the corming year. In 2019 Mike Coupe
will receive a core award of 62.5 per cent of salary (maximurm 250 per cent of
salary) and the other Executive Directors will receive core awards of 50 per
cenit of salary (maximum 200 per cent of salary).

The 2019 awards will be subject to four metrics: ROCE, EPS, free cash flow
and cost savings.

The ROCE, EPS, free cash flow and cost savings targets have been reviewed,
and the Committee increased the free cash flow and cost savings targets to
reflect the corporate plan. The Committee is confident that the target ranges
are stretching and reflect the current and future prospects of the business as
well as the retail sector as a whole over the next three years.

The agreed meastires, targets and weightings for 2019 awards are as follows:

Threshold Maximurn

target target

{1.0x core {4.0x core

Measure Weighting award) award)
ROCE 25% 8.0% 11.0%
Underlying basic EPS 25% 23.0p 30.0p
Curnulative free cash flow 25% £900m £1400m
Cumulative strategic cost savings 25% £600m £750m

Free cash flow
Free cash flow measures the total flow of cash inand out
of the business as well as providing an assessment of
underlying profitabitity.

-—- Free cash flow for these purposes is retail operating cash flow
after changes in working capital, normal pension contributions,
interest and corporate tax paid, normal net capex {for example,
this would exclude strategic purchases and sale and leaseback
of assets) and capital injections into the Bark. It 1s cumulative
over the performance period.

Cost savings

— Cost savings is one of our Key strategic targets and the level of
savings targeted will require structural changes. Thists a key
long-term measure which is fundamental to delivering returns
to shareholders.

— Cumulative strategic cost savings represents cost reductions over
the performance period as a result of identified initiatives
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2016 Future Builder (2016/17 to 2018/19 performance period) (audited information)

The 2016 Future Builder award was subject to ROCE, EPS, cash flow, cost savings and Horme Retail Group (HRG) syniergy targets. The 2016 Future Builder award
was the first award following the acquisition of HRG and, to reflect the importance of delivering synergies to the deal, the Commuittee introduced HRG synergy
targets as a fifth measure. In addition, a performance gateway had to be achieved before any element could vest

The Committee reviewed the formulaic cutcorne of the awards and determined that it was appropriate to make an adjustment to the calculation of
underlying cash flow so that the costs associated with the structural changes made in stores were included as they were incurred as a result of management
actions. This reduced the cash flow oulcome for the purposes of the award and therefore resulted i the multipher reducing from 2.3x 10 2.2x. This multiplier is
appled to the core award, 1.¢. 55 per cent of the maximum available award vested. The table below sets out the extent to which each performance measure
was achieved (and shows the adjusted cash flow figure).

Multiplier

Threshald Maximum achieved

target target [outofa

{1.0x core {4.0x care maximum

weighting award) award) Achieved 4 0x}

ROCE! 20% 9 0% 120% 8.45% 00x
Underlying basic EPS 20% 23.0p 30.0p 22.0p 0.0x.
Cumulative underlying cash flow from retail operations after capex? 20% £3,500m £5,150m £4.718m 06x
Cumulative strategic cost savings 20% £350m £450m £535m 0.8x
HRG acquisition synergies 20% £100m £150m £200m 0.8x

Performance gateway The Remuneration Committee must be satisfied Achieved
that the Company’s underlying performance over
the period justifies the level of vesting.

22xoutofa
maximum of 4.0x

Total

1 Figure relates to Group ROCE including Argos excludimg pension fund defiwt.
2 Curulatve underlying cash flow fromrezai cperations based an the reported cash flow generated frorm core retal operatians over the perfermance period after adding back nez rent and cash pension costs and
adjusted for the cashimpact of non-underlying tems Only core retal cperations are induded in recogritien of the differences in cash generation between the retail business and Samsbuiy's Bark

Unvested Future Buitder awards
The targets for Future Builder awards granted in 2017 and 2018 are set out in the table below

Threshold Maximum

target target

2017 Future Builder (1 Ox core (4.0x core
(2017/18 t0 2016/20 perfermance period) weighting award) award)
ROCE 20% 80% 11 0%
Underlying basic EPS 20% 23.0p 300p
Cumulative underlying cash flow from retail operations after capex B 20% £3,500m £5,150m
Cumulative strategic cost savings i B 20% £450m £550m
HRG acquisition synergies 20% £160m £200m
Threshold Maximum

target target

2018 Future Builder {1.0x core {4.0x core
(2018719 to 2020/21 performance period) Weighting award} award)
ROCE 25% 8.0% 11.0%
Underlying basic EPS ) 25% Z23.0p 300p
Cumnulative free cash flow 25% £800m £1,300m
Cumulative strategic cost savings 25% £450m £550m

Share awards made during the financial year (audited information)
The following share awards were made to Executive Directors during the year. The Future Builder award levels are determined by the normal grant policy for
the rele and, in the case of the DSA, performance over the previous year.

Basis of award Percentage vesting at thresheld Performance period

Scheme (maxirmurmn) Face value perfarmance Numbaer of shares end date

Mike Coupe Future Builder! 250% of salary £2,405,742 25% of each element 800,260 6 March 2021
DSA? 80.3% of salary £757571 N/A 252,003 N/A

Kevin O'Byrne Future Builder! 200% of salary £1,274,990 25% of each element 424120 6 March 2021
DSA? 65.7% of salary £410,623 N/A 136592 N/A

John Rogers Future Builder! 200% of salary £1,418,614 25% of each elernent 471,896 6 March 2021
DSAZ 65.7% of salary £456,876 N/A 151,978 N/A

1 The perfermance conditions applying o 2018 Future Bulder awards are set oul in the previous section The basis of award shows the maximum value netng four times the core award The award was made an 11 May
2017 and the number of shares has been calcutated usmg the five-day average share price prior 1o gram (3 to 10 May 2018) of £3 0062 Suhject to performance. the award will vest in May 2021 and will be released a'ter
atwo-year holding pencd The award s structured s anil-cost option with an exercise perod of up to six years frorm grant

7 The DSA was made on 11 May 2018 based on perrorrmance aver the 2017/18 financial year The award was made at 73 per cent of the maxirnum level {rmeaximurn o® 10 per cent of salay for Mike Coupe and 90 per cent
o salary for the other Executive Direciors) The nurmher of shares has neen calculated using the five-day average share price prior to grant {3 1o 10 May 20018 of €3 0062 No further performance conduions apply
Awards become exercisable (n March 2020, The award s structured as a nd-cost eption with an exercise period o7 up to tenyears fram grant,
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Executive Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited information)
The table below sets out details of the Executive Directors’ shareholdings and a surnmary of their outstanding share awards at the end of the 2018/19 financial
year Further details of the movernents of the Executive Directors’ share awards during the year are set out on page 85.

Ordinary shares!

scheme interests?

Future Builder awards  Future Builder awards

Deferred Share with performance with performance
. 10 March 2018 9March 2019 30 April 2019° Awards! period completed® period outstanding® SAYE 7
Mike Coupe 1,280,690 1602727 1602727 519975 176,137 2,560,288 4,518
Kevin O'Byrne 180,000 180,000 180,000 136592  na 1371804 nfa
Jotn Rogers 750,843 938,059 938,159 213588 93940 1500752 A

1 Ordinary shares are beneficial huldings which include the Directers” personal holdings and thowe of their spouses and mincr children §hey alse include the bencfical nterest= 10 shares which ave held in trus: under

the Sainsoury's Share Purchase Plan,

De’erred Share Awards and Future Builder awards are structured as ril-cast opions
Relates ta 2018/17 and 2017718 Deferred Share Awards
Relates to 2015 Future Builder awards

ENEWN)

wn

John Rogers” wotalincludes shares purchased under the Sainsbury's Share Purchase Plan between 3 March 2015 and 30 Apr 2013

6 Helates Lo 2016. 2017 and 2013 Future Builder awards (Maximum) where the periormance perind has not ended As nated abeve, lofowing the year-end. the 2010 award wall vest at 55 per cen: af maximum
Ncte. The Executive Directors are putential beneficianes of the Company’s employge bemefit irust. which 1s used to satisfy awards under the Company's emnployee share ptans, and theg are thereore treated as mterested

m the & 1 rmilhon shares (2018 0% milhan) held by the rustees

Shareholding guidelines

(audited information)

The Executve Directors are required to build up a specified level of
shareholding in the Company. This is to create greater alignment of the
Directors’ interests with those of shareholders, in line with the objectives
of the remuneration policu. The guidelines were updated in the 2017
Directors’ Remuneration Policy and require the Chief Execulive to have
a halding of 2.5 times salary and other Fxecutive Directors ta hold
shares with a value of 2.0 times salary. Direclors are required to build
this sharehaolding within five years of appointment to the relevant role.
In addition to shares held. share awards under the DSA and Future
Builder awards where the perfarmance period has ended count
towards the guideline {on a net of tax basis).

Both Mike Coupe and John Rogers have shareholdings that meet and
exceed the shareholding guideline. Kevin O'Byrne was appointed to the
Board in January 2017 and will be expected to build his sharehalding
during the course of his tenure.

Under the existing remuneration policy Executive Director ‘good leavers
will normally retain an interest in the Company's shares and be aligned
with shareholders’ interests post-cessation. The Company’s Directors’
Remuneration Policy @xpires in 2020 and in advance of this the
Committee will consider the adoption of formal post-cessation
shareholding guidelines in ine with the updated 2018 Code.

All-employee share plans

The Company encourages share ownership and operates two all-employee
share plans for colleagugs. namely the Savings-Related Share Option Plan
{Sharesave) and the All-Employee Share Ownership Flan, of which the
Sainsbury’s Share Purchase Plan (55PP} is a part. Participation in Sharesave is
conditional on three maonths” service. Executive Directors may partictpate in
these plans in the same way as all other colleagues. Mike Coupe participates
in Sharesave and John Rogers currently participates in SSPP. As thase are
all-emplayee plans there are no performance conditions.

The 2013 Sharesave plan (five-year), with a £3.32 option price, and the 2015
Sharesave plan (three-year), with a £1.95 option price, came to an end on

1 March 2018 for aver 10000 colleagues. Colleagues could either take thew
savings or use the money to buy Sainsbury's shares at the cption price. Using
the market price on the date of the first exercise, the value of all the shares
subject to the maturity was over £14.5 million. The Cornpany currently has
over 29,500 colleagues participating in Sharesave with around 57,643
individual savings contracts.

Shareholding calc ulated using (1) salaries as at 9 March 2019, (i) share jotel based ontotal of
+ sharehclding plus nel o *ax value {tax assumed to oc 47 per cen) of share awards nat subject to

performance as at March 2019 and (171 the closing mid- market share price on 8 March 2019 012 238,

Dilution

The Company ensures that the level of shares granted under the Cormpany's
share plans and the means of satisfying such awards remain within best
practice gquidelines so that dilution from employee share awards does not
exceed ten per cent of the Company's issued share capital for all-employee
share plans and five per cent in respect of executive share plans in any
ten-year rolling period. The Company monitors dilution levels on a regular
basis and the Committee reviews these at least once a year. Up to 9 March
2018, an estimated 7.8 per cent of the Company’s issued share capital

has been allocated for the purposes of its all-employee share plans over

a ten-year period, including an estimated 2.6 per cent over ten years n
respect of 1ts executive plans. Thisis on the basis that all cutstanding awards
vestwn full.
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Performance and CEO
remuneration

The graph shows the TSR performance
of an investment of £100 in J Sainshbury
plc shares over the last ten years
compared with an equivalent
investment in the FTSE 100 index. The
FTSE 100 Index has been selected to
provide an established and bread-based
tndex. The graph also includes data

for the FTSE All-Share Food & Drug
Retailers Index. The Company 1s a
canstituent of both indices. The table
detatls the total remuneration for the
Chief Executive over this period.
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CEQ 2009/10 2010/11 2011412 2012/13 7 2013114 2014/15° 2015/16 201617 2017118 201819
Single figure remuneration £000 M Coupe: - - - - - 1507 2802 2354 3.630 3881

JKing: 4441 4.380 3471 4,366 3,906 405 - - : -
Bonus/DSA award as a M Coupe: - - - 26% 78% 35% 57% 56%
percentage of maximum JKing: 92% 55% 61% 84% 73% 0% - - - -
LTIP vesting percentage of M Coupe, - - : 0% 0% 22.5% 42.5% 55%
maxirmum ) King: 80% 48% 43% 44% 40% 0% -

1 Justinkings figures relate Lo the tme he was Chie’ Fxecutwe during 2014715 Consistentwith the single igura tadle the figures for Mike Coupe relate to the whole of 2014715, he was Chie’ Executive from 9 July 2014

Percentage change in Chief Executive’s remuneration
The table below shows how the percentage change in the Chief Executive's
salary, benefits and bonus between 2017/18 and 2018/19 compares with the
percentage change in the average of each of thase components of pay for all
our colleagues.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below illustrates the year-on-year change in total colleague pay
{being the aggregate staff costs as set out in note 29 to the financial
statements) and distributions to shareholders (being declared dividends).

Colleague pay Distribution to shareholders

Salary Benefits Benus

% change % change % change

Chief Executive! 2.0% 0.0% 389%
All colleagues? 49% 41% -33%

1 Ihe bonus per cent change relates to the cash annual bonus

2 Figures relate to average based on number of full-time equivalent colleagues 1n Sepiember 2018 the
hase rate for Sainshury’s stcre colleagues increased and the benus ceased, a partial year bonus was
[aid to this populazion There‘ore, the change in bcnus ‘or all colleagues s not on a like-for-like basis.

2017/18 201819 201718 2018/19
£m £m % change £m £m % change
3,134 3,170 11% 212 224 5.7%

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited information)
The table below shows a single remuneration figure for all qualfying services for the 52 weeks to 8 March 2019 for each Non-Executive Director, together with

comparative figures for the 52 weeks to 10 March 2018.

008 2017/18

Fees! Benefits’ Total Fees! Benefits? Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

David Tyler 510 1 S s 505 1 506
Mertin Scicluna’ 84 o s - - -
Matt Brittin 68 0 68 66 - 66
Brian Casgin 58 0 68 66 66
David Keens 87 5 92 85 i 85
Susarn Rice 107 15 122 98 10 108
Jean Tomnlin 69 ? 71 79 - 79
Jo Harlow? 79 2 81 34 2 36

1 Paidinrelazicn tc the year.

2 Dawnd Tyler recewved a nor-cash seneit o° private medical cover The benefits foi the other Non-Execumive Directors relate 1o the rairoursement of travelling expenses to Board meetings held at the Company's

registered cffice
3 Martin Sticluna was appointed to the Board on LNovernoer 2018
4 JoHarlow was appainted o the Beard an 11 $epternoer 2017

David Tyler received an annual cash fee of £510,000, private medical cover
and a colleague discount card.

Martin Scicluna was appointed to the Board as Chairman-Designate on

1 Novernber 2018. His fee as Chairman-Designate was £237500. Following
David Tyler's departure on 9 March 2019, Martin's fee as Chawrman was set at
£475,000. Martin receives no benefits other than a colleague discount card.

Non-Executive Directors receive a base annual cash fee; additional fees

are paid to the Senior Independent Director and to the Chairs of the Audit,
Remuneration and Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability Committees.
Non-Executive Directors receive no benefits other than a colleague

discount card.
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During the year. the Non-Executive Director fees were reviewed but no
changes were made Fees are therefore unchanged from last year as follows:

Fees affective
frem
24 September
2017

Base fee £67500
Senior Independent Director fee (additional) £19.500
E-hair of Remuneration Committee fee (additional) £19.500
Cihraur of Audit Committee fee (additional} . £13,500
ﬁir of Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability Com'mittee £13,500
fee (additional)
The benefirial interest of the Nan-Fxecutive Directors, in post at the
year-end, in the shares of the Company are shown below.
Ordinary shares!

- 10 March 2018 9 March 201‘9 30 April 2019
David Tyler 78,569 78,599
Martin Scicluna® : = 15,000 15,000
Matt Brittin 14,090 14,090 14,090
Brian Cassin 25,000 25,000 25,000
bavid Keens 100,000“ 100,000 100,000
_Susan Rice 4,000 4,000 4,000
Jean Tornlin - 4,415 4,415 4415
Jo Harlowr)w o 8,000 8.000

1 Qrdinary shares are beneficial haldimgs which include the Dueciors’ personal holdings and thase of ther

spouses ard miner chitdren
2 Marin sccluna was appointed to the Board on L Novermber 2018

Directors’ appointment dates

1 Auqust 2007
{appointment as Chief Executive 9 July 2014)

9 January 2017

Mike Coupe

Kevin O'Byrne

John Rogers 19 July 2010

Bavid Tyler 10ctober 2009 (Chairman from 1 Movernber 2009
Lo 9 March 2019)

Martin Scicluna 1 Novemnber 2018 {Chairman from 10 March 2019)

Matt Brittin 27 January 2011

Brian Cassin 1 April 2016

David Keens 29 April 2015 o

ius_an Rice 1June 2013 -

Jean.Tomlin 1January 2013

;Hérlow 11 September 2017
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Governance — The Remuneration Committee

Committee membership

The Remuneration Committec during the year comprised Susan Rice (Chair),
Matt Brittin and Jo Harlow. All mermbers of the Committee are independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Tirn Fallowfield, Company Secretary, acts as secretary to the Cormmuttee.
David Tyler, Martin Scicluna, Mike Coupe, Angie Risley (Group HR Director),
Debarah Dorman (Director of Corporate HR), Sarah Desai (Group Head of
Reward) and Duncan Cooper (Director of Group Finance} are invited to attend
Committee meetings The Committee considers their views when reviewing
the remuneration of the Executive Directors and Operating Board Directors,
Indwiduals whao attend Remuneration Committee meetings are not present
when their own remuneration is being determined.

The Committee typically meets four times each year, or more as required.
The Committee has a calendar of standard items within its remit and in
addition it held in-depth discussions on specific topics during the year. The
key issues the Committee discussed during the year were remuneration
arrangerments in relation to changes on the Operating Board, enhancing the
disclosure for the Deferred Share Award cutturn to provide shareholders with
mare information on the performance assessment, and the proposed
changes to the 2018 Code.

The Cornmittee complies with relevant regulations and considers the UK
Corporate Governance Code and best practice when determining pay and
policy. The Committee is well placed to comply with the new Code given its
historic practice of considering remnuneration across the wider Group, to
ensure that pay and incentives across the Company support the long-term
success of the business.

Advisers to the Remuneration Committee

The Committee is authorised by the Board to appaint external advisers if it
considers this beneficial. Over the course of the year, the Committee was
supported by its appointed advisers, Deloitte LLP {Deloitte). Deloitte were
reappointed by the Commuttes as advisers in 2013 following a competitive
tender. During the year they provided advice to the Committes on a range of
topics including remuneration trends, corparate governance, incentive plan
design, incentive plan rules and the remuneration policy. Thetr consultants
attended all of the Committee meetings. Inrelation to their advice, Deloitte
received fees of circa £80,000 (fees are based on hours spent). During the
year, Deloitte provided the Company with unrelated advice and consultancy
on transaction support and due diligence, information technologuy,
organisational structure, data analytics and taxation

Delottte are members of the Remureration Consulting Group and, as such,
operate under the Code of Conduct in relation to executive rernuneration
consuiting 1 the UK. During the year, the Committee reviewed the advice
provided by Deloitte and has confirmed that it has been objective and
independent. The Comrittee has also determined that the Deloitte partner
who provides remuneration advice to the Committee does not have any
connections with the Company that may impact their independence. The
Committee has reviewed the potential for conflicts of interest and judged
that there were appropriate safeguards against such conflicts.

Statement of voting at general meeting

Ihe table below sets aut the votes o the Annual Report on Remuneration
at the 2018 AGM and on the Directors' Remuneration Policy at the 2017 AGM.
The Cormmittee is keen to hear the views of all shareholders and continually
reviews the remuneration policy and its implementation.

Vates

. Votes for Votes against abstained
Remuneration Report (2018 vote) 9531% 4 69%

1586 million  78million  S7 million

Remuneration Policy (2017 vote) 95.60% 4.40% -

1519 million  70million 57 mullien
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Details of the Executive Directors’ share awards and movements during the year (audited information) [ n
The table below shows the conditional awards granted and exercised under each of the Company’s share plans Y
3
Number =
of aptions (:DU
granted/ 'g
Share dividend Number Number =
price at shares afoptions of options Naotional Number of
date of Option Number of allocated exercised lapsed Share price gainon  options held
Date of award price  options held at duringthe  duringthe duringthe onexercise Date of exercise at 9 March
Narre Award award {pence) (pence) 10March 2018 year year year {pence) exercise (£ocoy! 2019
15/05/2014 333 il 67471 17,972 9,993 - 301 04/05/2018 241 -
14105/2015 269 il 828,880 27,894 199,03 476,606 301 04/05/2018 539 176,137
long-Term e o e
I 7 - - - - - - 7
Incentive Plan’ 12/05/2016 253 - _Nw 876,936 876,936
11/05/2017 265 il 883,087 - - - - - - 883,052
11/05/2018 307 Nl - 800,260 - - - - - 800,260
Mike Coupe a
12/05/2016 253 Nl 30411 24,555 329,676 - 301 04/05/2018 993 - &
- S, e — =
Deferred share ) e o1y 265 sl 267973 - - - - - - 267973 e
Awarrd =
11/05/2018 307 Wil - 252,003 - - - - - 252003 g’
- [a]
Sharesave’ 11/12/2013 388 332 4,518 - - - - - - 4,518 ;
Total 3,232,991 1,113,234 608,700 476,606 - - 1,833 3,260,919 8
[=]
26/01/2017 298 Nl 479,660 - - - - - - 479,660 =3
tong-lerm st zes Nl 468,074 - - - - - - 468,024
Incentve Plan' ...2
. 1170512018 kit il - 424120 - - - - - 4241720
Kevin O'Byrne -
Deferred Share
Award 11/05/2018 307 Mil - 136 h4? - - - - - 136,592
Total 947,684 560,712 - - - - - 1,508,336
15/05/2014 333 Ml 40,476 7500 47926 - 301 04/0572018 144 -
14/0%/2015 269 Nl 447,068 12,208 106,146 254,190 301 0440512018 319 91,940 s
L ong-lerm - —— : - a
,  12/05/2016 253 Nl L1712 - - - - - - 517117 5
Incentive Plan - A
117052017 26h Nl 520,744 - - - - - - 520,744 Q,
- w
John Rogers 11/05/2018 307 Nl - 471,896 - - - - - 471,896 a
Lo =
1240512016 253 Nl 183410 15,410 198,820 - 10 04/05/2018 599 - 3
— i)
Deferred share ., neonr 268 Nl 161610 - - - - - - 161610 E
Awaid I
11/05/2018 307 Nl - 121,978 - - - - - 151878
Total 1,865,370 658,992 352,892 254,190 - - 1,062 1,917,280
1 Details of the performance condittons applying to Fuswre Bulder awaids are set cut en pages 80 and 81 The LTIP share figures relate to the maximum iha® could he achieved
2 Seepages 78 and 79 for detads of the Deferred Share Award. Including performance condiiions
3 Sharesawe s an all-employee share opton plan and has no perfarmance conditions as per HMRC Regulatiens
4 Thigis the neticnal gar on the date of exercise had all shares been sold

Consideration of shareholder views

The Annual Report on Rermnuneration will be put to an advisory vote at the AGM on 4 July 2019. The Directors confirm that this report has been prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and reflects the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Caompanies and Groups (Accounts & Reports)
{(Amendment) Regulations 2013,

Approved by the Board aon 30 April 2019.

Y

Dame Susan Rice
Chair, Remuneration Committee
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Additional statutory information

Dividends
Details of the payment of the final dividend can be found on page 41

Share capital and control

Except as described below in relation to the Company's employee share
schemes, there are no restrictions on the voting rights attaching to the
Company’s ordinary shares or the transfer of securities in the Cormpany; no
persan balds securities in the Company carrging special rights with regard to
control of the Company: and the Company is not aware of any agreernents
between holders of securities that may result in restrictions in the transfer
of securities or voting rights. Further details of the rights, restrictions and
obligations attaching to the share capital of the Company, including voting
rights, are contained in the Company's Artictes of Association. The Articles
of Association may onty be changed with the agreement of shareholders

Shares acquired through the Company's employee share plans rank pari
passu with shares in issue and have no special rights. Where, under the
Company's All Employee Share Ownership Plan. participants are beneficial
owners of the shares but the Trustee is the registered owner, the voting
rights are normally exercised by the registered owrer at the direction of
the participants. The ) Sainsbury Employee Benefit Trusts waive thetr nght
to vote and to dividends on the shares they hold which are unallocated.
Total dividends waived by the Trustee during the financial year amounted
to £272,718. Some of the Company's employee share plans include
restrictions on transfer of shares while the shares are held within the plan.

At the AGM held in July 2018, the Company was authorised by shareholders
to purchase its own shares, wittin certain limits and as permitted by the
Articles of Association. The Company made no purchases of its own shares
dunng the year and no shares were acquired by forfeiture or surrender or
made subject to a lien or charge.

All of the Carmpany’s employee share plans contain provisions relating to
a change of control. On a change of conltrol, options and awards granted
ta emplayees under the Cornpany's share plans may vest and become
exercisable, subject to the satisfaction of any applicable performance
conditions at that time.

A number of the Company's credit facilities and banking arrangements
contain change of control clauses under which lenders may cancel their
commitments and declare all outstanding amounts immediately due and
payable. There are no other significant agreements that would take effect,
alter or terminate upon a change of control following a takeover bid.

Ordinary shares

Details of the changes to the ordinary issued share capital during the year
are shown on page 127. As at 29 April 2019, 2,207,275.345 ordinary shares of
284 pence have been issued, are fully paid up and are listed on the London
Steck Exchange.

Major interests in shares

As at 9 March 2018, the Cornpany had been notified by the following
investars of their interests in three per cent or more of the Company’s shares
These interests were notified to the Company pursiant to DTR5 of the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules:

Number of % of vating

ordinary shares rights

Qatar Holdings LLC 481,746,132 21.99
BlackRock, Inc. 109,699,242 5.01

No other changes to the above have been disclosed to the Company between
9 March 2019 and 30 April 2019.

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors and their connected persons inthe
shares of the Company are shown in the Annual Report on Remuneration
on pages 82 and 84.

Dunng the year, no Director had any material interest in any contract of
significance to the Group's business.

Directors’ indemnities

The Directors are entitled to be indemnified by the Company to the extent
permitted by law and the Company's Articles of Association in respect of
all lesses arising out of or in connection with the execution of their powers,
duties and respansibilities. The Cormpany has executed deeds of indemnity
for the benefit of each Director in respect of hiabilities which may attach

to themn in their capacity as Directors of the Comparny. The Company
purchased and matntained Directors’ and Officers' liability insurance
throughout 2018719, which has been renewed for 2018/20. Neither the
indemnities nor the insurance provide cover in the event that the Director
is proved to have acted fraudutently.

Research and development
In the ordinary course of business, the Company regularly develops new
products and services.

Employment

Ewmployment policies

The Company values the different perspectives and experiences of all our
colleagues. we are proud of our diverse warkfarce because every colleague’s
unique viewpoint helps us ta innovate and to understand and embrace
different custormers’ needs. We are committed to providing equal
opportunities for all colleagues and applicants from recruitment and
selection, through to training, development and promaotion.

A Greal Place Lo work strategy is In place, underpinned by well-developed
policies for the fair and equal treatment of all colleagues. Training is provided
which ensures that policies are understood throughout the orgarisation, We
have a workplace adjustments process in place for our colleagues who are
living with a disability or long-term health condition which operates through
the Government's Access to Work scherme Workplace adjustments can be
made at any pont during a colleague’s employment with us. See pages 26 to
27 for further information on our diversity strateqy.

Colleague engagement

We communicate regularly with our colleagues to provide informaticn about
pay, benefits and career opportunities which matter to them. This helps to
build trust in our corporate strateqgy, vision, values and enables our colleagues
to do a good job. We are committed to delivering news and information to
our colleagues in a clear and timely way, and communicating change
sensitively. For more information sce page 56.
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Greenhouse gas emissions

In line with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (GHG} Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard {revised edition), we will be reflecting the performance
aof Sainsbury’s, Argos and Habitat emissions separately; as well as a combined
1 Sainsbury plc Group performance

Sainsbury's has measured our GHG footprint since 2005/06 (haseling) and we
have set a challenging target to reduce gur absolute emissions by 30 per cent
by 2020, compared to our baseline (and 65 per cent relatwe to sales floor area).

Argos and Habitat also set a target to reduce emissions by 40 per cent
relative to sales fioor area by 2020.

tLocation-based emissions
Versus our 2005/06 baseline, our location-based emissions in 2018/19 have
reduced as follows

— Group emissions reduced by 35 per cent absolute and 55 per cent relative

— Sainsbury's emissions reduced by 35 per cent absolute and 57 per cent
relative

— Argos and Habitat emissions reduced by 34 per cent absolute and
35 per cent relative

Group (1 Sainsbury plc)

GHG emissions (tCO-e}

Emission source 2005/06 2017/18 2018/19
Total (tCO.e) 1,554,492 1,177,863 1,014,707
Intensity measurement 8977 46.22 40.04
{tCO;e/ 000 5q ft)
Sainsbury's

GHG emissions (tC0.2)
Emission source 2005/06 2017/18 201819
Cembustion of fuet and 536,694 517,024 480,190
operation of facilities
(Scope 1)
Electricity, heat, stearn and 833,787 526,897 112418
cooling purchased for cwn
use (Scope 2}
Total 1,370,481 1,043,922 892,608
Intensity measurement 5037 44.97 38.57
(tCO.e/'000 sg )
Argos and Habitat

GHG emissions (1C0e }
Emission source 2005/06 2017118 2018/19
Combustion of fuel and 101563 78,732 82,833
operation of facilities
(Seope 1) N o B
Electricity, heat, stearn and 82,448 55,210 39,266
cooling purchased for own
use (Scope 2)
Total 184,011 133,942 122,099
Intensity measurement §6.655 59.04 5557

{tCCe/"000 5q ft)
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Market-based emissions

The market-based emissions method reflects the emissions from the
electricity that a company is using, which may be different from emissions
for the electricity that is generated as a UK average. For example, different
electricity supphers emit more or less greenhouse gases depending on the
energy source or technology. and cormpanies who have invested in their own
renewable or tow carbon energy generation by this method can show the
actual emissions level for the energy used.

Versus our 2005/06 baseline, our market-based emissions in 2018/19 have

reduced as follows:

— Sainsbury's Group emnissions reduced by 39 per cent absolute and
58 per cent relative

-— Sainsbury’s emissions reduced by 38 per cent absolute and 60 per cent
relative

— Argos and Habitat emissions decreased by 34 per cent absolute and
36 per cent relative
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Group (J Sainsbury plc)

GHG emissions {tC0;2 )
F._rnissiun source - 2005/06 201718 2018719
Total {tCO.e) 1,554,492 1,055,062 950,116
Intensity measurernent 89.77 4140 3749
{tC0,e/000 sq ft)
Sainsbury's

GHG emissions (tC0ze)
Emission source 2005/C6 201718 201818
Cornbustion of fuel and 536,694 505,210 473,395
operation of {acilities
(Scope 1)
Electricity, heat, stearm and 833,787 418,084 355,972
cooling purchased for own
use (Scope 2)
Total 1,370,481 923,294 829,368
Intensity measurement 50.37 3977 35.84
(tCO.e/'000 sq ft)
Argos and Habitat

GHG emissions (t00:2)
Emission source 2005406 20718 201{!5‘19
Combustion of fuel and 101,563 78,732 82,833
eperation of facilities
[Scope 1)
Electricity, heat, steamm and 82,448 53,036 37915
cooling purchased for own
use (Scope 2)
Total 184,011 131,768 120,748
Intensity measurement 85.55 58.08 5495

{1C0;e/'000 s5q ft)
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Additional statutory information continued

Dual emissions reporting
Overall emissions have been presented to reflect both location and
market-based methodologies, affecting both Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions

Scope 1: six per cent of UK natural gas usage 1s covered by Green Gas
Certification (100 per cent Renewabie Gas Guarantee of Origin Contract),
therefore six per cent of natural gas emissions have been reported at zero
emissions. All other Scope 1 market-based emissions have been calculated
using the UK Government’'s GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting
2018.

Scope 2: 16 per cent of electricity usage is covered by a Power Purchase
Agreement, which meets all of the required quality criteria; therefare 18 per
cent of electricity emissions have been reported at zero emissions. [he
rernaining UK electricily has been reported at supplier-specific emissions
rate, and non-UK electricity has been reported al local grid average, unless
supplied by a certified green tariff.

Electricity use

As a result of our ongoing investment in energy reduction intiatives:
Sainsbury's Group absolute UK electricity consurnption decreased
year-on-year by four per cent and 17 per cent versus 2005/06 whilst
adding 46 per cent more sales area

— Sainsbury’s absolute UK electricity consumption decreased year-on-year
bu three per cent and 16 per cent versus 2005/06 whilst adding 53 per
cent more sales area
Argos and Habitat absolute UK electiicity consumption decreased
year-on-year by 17 per cent and 25 per cent versus 2005/06 whilst adding
2 per cent more sales area

Methodology

We have reported on all of the emission sources required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Reports) Regulations
2013. We have calculated and reported our emissions in line with the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) and
emission factors fram the UK Government's GHG Conversion Factors for
Cornpany Reporting 2018, and [EA 2015 for those offices overseas. The
reporting period is the financial year 2018/19, the same as that covered by
the Anmual Report and Financial Staterments. The boundaries of the GHG
inventory are defined using the operational control approach. In general, the
emissions reported are the same as those which would be reported based on
a financial control boundary. Emissions for previous years are retrospectively
adjusted as and when more accurate data is provided.
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Political donations
The Company made no political donations in 2018/19 (2017/18. £nil).

Essential contracts

Sainsbury's has contractual and other arrangerments with numerous third
parties in support of its business activities. None of the arrangements are
individually considered to be essential to the business of Sainsbury's

Post balance sheet events
Events after the balance sheet are disclosed in note 38 on page 166 of the
financial staterments

Financial risk management and financial instruments
The financtal risk management, financial instrurments, and policies of the

Group are disclosed (n notes 24 and 25 on pages 130 to 149, of the financial
statements.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director has confirmed that, so far as he/she is aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the auditer is unaware. Each Directar has
taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit informalion and to establish that
the auditor 1s aware of that information

Directors’ Report

The Directors’ Report comprises pages 110 88 of this Annual Report and
Financial Statements. The following information required by Rule 9.8 4R of
the UK Listing Rules is also incorparated into the Directors’ Repart-

Infermation requitement Location within Annual Report

Seenote 11 of the
consolidated financial
statement

Interest capitatised

Publication of unaudited financial information See note 24

See Remuneration
Report and note 31

Details of any long-term incentive schemes

Shareholder waiver of dividends Seenote 23

Shareholder walver of future dividends See note 23

Other information requirernents set out in LR 9.84R are nal applicable to
the Company. !

By order of the Board

Tim Fallowfield
Cormpany Secretary and Corporate Services Director
30 April 2018
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Financial
Statements in accardance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financtal staternents for
each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company as at the end of the financial year, and of the profit
ot loss of the Group for the financial year. Under that law. the Directors have
prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU)
and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial staterments in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including FRS 101 ‘Reduiced Disclosure Framework’ (UK Accounting Standards
and applicable law). Under compary law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements,
the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

-- state whether IFRSs as adapted by the European Union and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Company financial
staternents respectively; and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
1t1s inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records

that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and the Cormpany’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
posthion of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure Lthal Lhe
financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial staternents,
Article 4 of the IAS Regutation. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reascnable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreqgularities.

Having taken all the matters considered by the Board and brought ta the
attention of the Board during the year into account, we are satisfied that the
annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable.

The Board believes that the disclosures set out in this Annual Report
provide the infarmation necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
perfarmance, business model and strategy.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Girectors, whaose names and functions are listed on pages 44 to

45, confirms that, to the best of their knowledge:

— - the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liablities, financial position and profit of the Group: and

— the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report contained in the Annual Report
and Financial Staterments include a fair review of the development and

inf Fallowfield
Company Secretary and Corporate Services Director
30 April 2019
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of ] Sainsbury plc

Opinion

Inour opinion:

— 1Samsbury ple's consolidated financial staterments and parent company
financial staternents (the “financial staternents”) gve a true and fair
view of the state of the Group's and of the parent cormpany’s affairs
as at 9 March 2019 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended:

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union:

- the parent comnpany financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with United Kingdomn Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the

reguirements of the Companies Act 2006, and. as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of J Sainsbury plc for the 52 weeks
ended 9 March 2019 which cornprise.

Group Parent company

Consolidated iIncome staternent Balance sheet

Consolidated statement

of comprehensive income Statement of changes in equity

the Directors’ confirmation set out on page 66 in the Annual Report that
they have carried out & robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the entity, including those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity,

the Directors’ statement set out on page 37 in the financial statements
about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any
material uncertainties to the entity's ability to continue to do so over a
period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial
statements,

whether the Directors’ statement in relation to geing concern required
under the Listing Rutes in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8 6R(3) is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

the Directors’ explanation set out on page 37 in the Annual Report as to
how they have assessed the prespects of the entity, over what peried
they have done so and why thewu consider that period to be appropriate,
and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation
that the entity will be abte to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications

or assumptions.

Related notes 1to 13 to the financial
staternents including a surmmary

Consolidated balance sheet of significant accounting policies

Consolidated ca_\sh flow statement

Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

Related notes 1to 39 to the financial 7
staterments including a summary
of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdem Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framewark” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit n accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities far the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent
of the Group and parent company in accerdance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with these requirements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and
viability statement

We have nothing to repart in respect of the following information in the
Annual Repart, in relation to which the [SAs (UK) require us to report to you
whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

— the disclosures in the Annual Report set out on page 30 that describe the
principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit matters
— Supplier arrangements

— Aspects of revenue recogmtion

— Transition impact on adoption of IFRS 16
— Financial Services customer receivables impairment
— 1T environment

Audit scope

— We performed a full scope audit of the complete
financial information of the following components:
3 Sainsbury plc, Sainsbury's Supermarkets Ltd, Argos Limited
and Sainsbury's Bank plc. We performed audit procedures on
specific balances of Argos Financial Services, Nectar, the property
companies, the information systerms company, material joint
ventures and the insurance company due to the size and risk
of certain individual balances within these components.

- The components where we performed full or specific scope
audit procedures accounted for 98 per cent of Profit before tax
before one-off itterns, 99 per cent of Revenue and 100 per cent
of Total assets.

Materiality

— Qverall Group materiality is £30.5 million which represents
5 per cent of profit before tax and befare non-recurring Argos
integration costs, Sainsbury’s Bank transition costs, one-off
pension costs and other one-off related costs (mainly Asda
related costs and restructuring costs). A reconciliation has been
provided below.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of 1 Sainsbury plc continued

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the mast significant assessed risks of material
misstaternent (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These
matters included thase which had the greatest effect on: the overail audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit: and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whaole, and in our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate apinion on these matters.

Changes from the prior year

In the prior year, we included the Nectar acquisition as a key audit matter.
In the current year, this risk is no longer assessed as a key audit matter an
the basis that there were ne significant adjustments in the finalisation of the
purchase price allocation of the NMectar entities.

Due to the complexities involved in assessing the impact of transition ta the
new leasing standard (IFRS 16), we have included this as a key audit matter
in the current year.

Risk

Supplier arrangements

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 60); Accounting policies

{page 105). and note 5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements {page 112}

The Group receives material discounts from suppliers, referred to as supplier
arrangernents. The accounting for some of these supplier arrangements is
complex since management applies judgerment, processing is either manual
or more comiplex and the quantum of agreements is high. we focused our
audit procedures on these complex supplier arrangements.

Complex supplier arrangements recognised in the income staterent
for the financial year are £457 million (201718 £450 million)

Our response to the risk

— We walked through the controls in place within the supplier
arrangermnents process. We were able to Lake a controls—eliance
approach over certain aspects of the process, testing the key controls,
although there are areas where we cannot, as the process for recording
deals is manual

— we selected a sample of suppliers to whom we sent confirmations
across all “deal” types ta confirm key deal input terms. Where we did
not receive a response from the supplier, we performed alternative
procedures, including obtaining evidence of initiation and if settled,
settlernent of the arrangement.

- Welested the existence and valuzation of balance sheet amounts
recognised in accounts recgivable and as a contra-asset in accounts
payable by reviewing post-period end settlernent. We also perfonmed
a ‘look-back’ analysis of prior period balance sheet amounts to check
that these amounts were appropriately recovered.

-- We tested the settlement of a sample of supplier arrangements
recognised in the income staterment, which included settlement
in cash or by off-set to accounts payable.

— Using data extracted from the accounting system, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustiments ta supplier
arrangements to corroborating evidence.

- We tested deals recorded post pertod end and obtained the supplier
agreement to validate that the deal was correctly recorded post
period end.

— We read management’s disclosure in respect of supplier arrangement
amounts recorded in the income statement and balance sheet to
confirm completeness and accuracy of amounts disclosed.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Supplier arrangernent amounts are appropriately recognised in the income
staternent and balance sheet and the disclosure in the financial staternents
is appropriate.
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Risk

Aspects of revenue recognition

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 60); Accounting policies

{page 108): and Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Staternents (page 108)

Our assessment is that the vast majority of the Group’s revenue transactions
are non-complex, with no judgement applied over the amount recorded.

We focused our work on the manual adjustrents that are made to revenue
where the amount of the revenue recorded can be different than the amount
of cash received.

Qur prucedures were designed to address the risk of maniputation
of accounting records and the ability to averride controls.

Our response to the risk
- We obtained a detailed understanding of these manual adjustments.
Due to the manual nature of these adjustrents, we performed
substantive audit procedures

— We used our computer-aided data analytics tools to identify
those vevenue journals for which the corresponding entry was not
cash. These entries include Mectar poimnts, coupons, vouchers and
COMMISSIoN afrangaments,

- We gbtafned corroborating evidence for such corresponding entries.
For the Nectar points adjustment we obtained evidence that revenue
is deferred appropriately based on the nurnber of points issued and
redeemed and the breakage assumption. Tor third party coupons and
vouchers we obtained evidence of collection and settlement.

— Using data extracted from the accounting system, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries impacting revenue, as well as other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statemenits
We cansidered unusual journals such as those pasted autside
of expected hours, ot by unexpected individuals and for large or
unusual amounts,

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
Adjustments to revenue have been appronriately recognised

Risk

Financial Services customer receivables impairment

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 60); Accounting policies

(page 102); and Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Staterments (page 102)

Financial Services customer receivables relate to Sainsbury’s Bank
credit cards, loans and maortgages, and Argos store cards, Total amounts
recognised at year-end are £7,234 million {2017/2018: £5,844 miltion).
The provision for impairment is £281 rmillion (2017/2018: £153 millior).

The risk of collectability of Financial Services customer recewvables,
through either credit cards, loans, mortgages or Argos store cards, 1$
significant. There is judgement in the assumptions appled to calculate
the loan provisions against cutstanding balances. Additionaily, for the
current year, managernent’s provisioning methoedology changed from an
“incurred loss™ madel to an “expected loss” model following the adoption
of IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments).

Our respanse to the risk

— The loan impairment methodology was reviewed, to confirm it was
consistent with TFRS 9.

— Wae verified the completeness and accuracy of the data utilised from
underlying systerns that were used in the impairment models.

— We challenged the key assumptions used by managernent with
reference to industry/peer benchmarks and our financial services
risk management specialists

— We tested that the key assumptions had been accurately reflected in the

impairment models.

-— We independently calculated a reasonable range of outcomes to assess
the provisian far high nisk segments.

— We challenged the macre-economic scenarios, including Brexit scenarios,
with the support of ocur econornic rnodelling experts.
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Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
The provision for impairment of Financial Services receivables due from
customers is appropriately recognised.

Risk
Transition impact on adoption of IFRS 16

Refer to the Audit Committee Report {page 60); Accounting policies
{page 104); and Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements {page 104)

The calculation of the impact of TFRS 16 is complex. The accounting

is complex and requires a number of significant judgements. Further,
the Group has a high volume of leases, some of which have been in place
for a number of years.

Although the standard is being implermented 1n 2018/2020, disclosures
on the impact are included in these financial staternents.

Qur response to the risk

— We assessed the completeness of the population of leases and
validated that all leases had been appropriately uploaded onto
the lease accounting 1T application.

— We assessed the appropriateness of the incremental borrowing rates,
with the support of our Corporate Treasury specialists.

— We challenged the key judgements and assumptions used by
management, including those made in relation to the property portfolic.

-- Ona sample basis, we performed testing of lease data input into the
lease accounting IT application.

- - For a sample of leases, we independently modelled the impact
of IFRS 16 using our own internally designed tool and cormpared
the resuits to the Group's accounting 1T application.

— We audited management’s impairment assessment in relation
to the right of use asset.

— We audited the disclosures provided in the financial statements
or the impact of IFRS 16.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
The right of use asset and lease liability as at 10 March 2018 have been
appropriately calculated, with the disclosures correctly reflecting the
balance sheet impact of adopting IFRS 16 as at 10 March 2018.

Risk

The IT environment

The IT systerns across the Group are complex and there are varying levels

of integration between them. The systemns are vital to the ongeing operations
of the business and to the integrity of the financial reporting process.

Our response to the risk

— We held discussions with management to understand the 1T environment
and walked through the key financial processes to understand where IT
systems were integral to the Group's controls over financial reporting.
From this we identified which IT systems to include in the scope for our
detailed IT testing.

-— We assessed the IT general controls environment for the key systems
impacting the accurate recording of transactions and the presentation
of the financial staterments.

— We designed our IT audit procedures to assess the IT environment,
including an assessment of controls over changes made to the system
and controls over appropriate access to the systems.

-— Where we found that adequate IT general contrals were not in place, we
performed additional substantive testing to mitigate the risk of material
misstatement

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
We have not identified any misstatements in the financial staterments due
to the limitations of the IT environment.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation
of performance materiality determine our audit scope for each entity

within the Group. Teken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the
organisation of the Group and effectiveriess of Group-wade controls, changes
in the business environment and other factors such as recent internal audit
results when assessing the level of work to be perforrmed at each entity.

In assessing the risk of material rmisstatement to the Group financial
statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage of
significant accounts in the financial staternents, of the 76 reporting
compaonents of the Group, we selected 33 reporting compaonents, which
represent the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 33 components selected, we performed an audit of the complete
financial information of eight compenents (*full scope components™) which
were selected based on their size or nsk characteristics. For the remaining 25
components {*specific scope components”), we performed audit procedures
on specific accounts within that compeonent that we considered had the
potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial
statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.

Of the remaining balances, none are individually greater than five per cent
of the Group's profit before tax excluding one-off items. For these accounts,
we performed other procedures, including analytical review, testing of
consolidation journals and intercompany eliminations to respond to any
potential risks of material misstatement to the Group financial statements.

The table below illustrates the coverage ohtained from the work performed
by our audit tearns.

% £
Group Group
Profit Profit
before before % Group % Total
tax tax Revenue assets
Number 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Full scope 8§ 42%  46% 99%  99%  75% @ M%
Specific scope 25 56%  46% 0% 0% 25% 22%
Full and specific 33 98% 92% 99%  99% 100%  96%
SCope coverage
Remaining
components 43 2% 8% 1% 1% 0% 4%
Total reporting
components 76  100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined

the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the components
by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by component auditors
from other EY network firms operating under our instruction. Of the full
scape components, audit procedures were performed on the head office
company, J Sainsbury ple, Sainsbury’s Supermarkets Ltd and Argos Limited
and consolidaticn of the Group by the primary team. The work at the specific
scope locations was perfarmed by EY components in Edinburgh, the Isle

of Man and the prirmary team.

For Sainsbury’s Bank plc and Arges Financial Services. the Senior Statutery
Auditor visited these locations and held discussions with management. The
team discussed the audit approach with the component team and significant
1ssues arnsing from their work, reviewing key audit working papers onrisk
areas. The closing discussion was attended by the primary team. This,
together with the additional procedures performed at Group level, gave us
appropriate evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements.

For the insurance company, the team discussed the audit approach with the
component team and interacted regularly with the component team where
appropriate during various stages of the audit in order to understand the key
audit findings.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of 1 Sainsbury ple continued

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit,
in evaluating the effect of identified rmisstatements on the audit and in
forring our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in
the aggregate, could reasonably be expecled to influence the economic
decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materialily provides
a basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group ta be £30.5 million, which is

Tive per cent of profit before tax excluding the items described below.

We believe that this materiahty basis provides us with the best assessment
of the requirermnents of the users of the financial staternents. This is
consistent with the approach taken in the prior period.

Starting basis Profit before tax £239m

Adjustments One-off pension costs £100m
Argos related non-underlying costs £40m
Sainsbury’s Bank transition costs £70m
Perpetual securities coupon £(23m)
Other (mainly Asda related and £185m
restructuring costs)
Total £372m
Profit before tax and adjustments £611m

Materiality Materiality of £305m (5% of profit before tax and after

making the adjustments noted above)

we determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £150 million
(2017/18. £155 million), which is two per cent (2017/18: two per cent) of net
assets. The materiality of the parent company is greater than the Group
because the parent company is a holding company with significant net
assets, For any parent company balances that are consolidated into the
Group financial staterments, an allocation of Greup performance materiality
was used.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level.

1t is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements
exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the
Group’s overall control environment, cur judgement was that perforrnance
materiality was approximately 75 per cent (2017/18: 75 per cent) of our
planning materiality, namely £23 million (2017/18: £23 million). We have
set performance materiality at this percentage due to our assessment
that the risk of material misstaternent is not high.

Audit work at cornponent locations for the purpose of abtaimng audit
coverage aver significant financial staternent accounts is undertaken
based on a percentage of total perforrmance materiality. The performance
materiality set for each cornponent is based on the relative scale and risk
of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the

risk of misstatement at that component. In the current year, the range

of performance materality allocated to components was £5 million to
£18 million (2017/18 : £4 million to £17 million)

Reporting threshold
An amourit below which identified misstatements are considered as being
clearly trivial,

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all
uncorrected audit differences inexcess of £1.5 million (Z017/18: £1.5 million),
which is set at five per cent of planning matetiality, as well as differences
below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

We evaluate any urcorrected misstaternents against both the quantitative
measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative considerations in forrming our opinion.

J Sainsbury ple Annual Report 2019

Other information

The other information comprises the information included i the Annual
Report as set out on pages 1to 88 other than the financial staternents and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Directars are responsible for the other
information,

Our opinian on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent atherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility
15 to read Lhe other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial staternents or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstaternents, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based an the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the ather information, we are
required to teport that fact.

We have nothing te report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our tesponsibility

to specifically address the following items in the other information and I
to report as uncorrected material rmsstatements of the other information

where we conclude that those iterns meet the following conditions:

- Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 90 the
statement given by the Directors that they cansider the Annual
Report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

— Audit Committee reporting set out on page 60 — the section
describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committes; or

— Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Guvernante Code sl uul un pdye 48 e pdiLs of Ui Uiteclotrs
statement required under the Listing Rules relating te the Company's
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing
provisions specihed far review by the auditor in accordance with Listing
Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

Inour opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. !

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
— the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the financial staterments are prepared
is consistent with the financial staternents; and
- the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements
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Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the
parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstaternents in the Strateqic Report or
the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company,
or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

— the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

— certain disclosures of Directars' remuneration specified by law are not
made:; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities staterent set out
on page 80, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financal
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,

and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basts of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or {c cease operations,
ar have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaterment,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will always
detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstaternents can anse fram
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are: to identify and assess the
nisks of rnaterial misstaterment of the financial staternents due to fraud; 1o
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implerneriting
appropnate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected
fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for

the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with
governance of the entity and management,

Our approach was as fotlows,
we obtained an understanding of the legal and requlatory frameworks that
are applicable to the Group and determined that the most significant are.

— those that relate to the form and content of the financial statements,
such as the Group accounting policy, International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), the UK Companies Act 2006 and the UK Corporate
Governance Code;

- those that relate to the payment of employees; and

industry related such as compliance with the requirements of the
Grocery Supply Code of Practice.

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2018 9t

we understood how ] Sainsbury plc is complying with those frameworks
by observing the oversight of those charged with governance, the culture
of honesty and ethical behaviour and a strong emphasis placed on fraud
prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud to take place, and
fraud deterrence, which could persuade individuals not to commit fraud
because of the likelihood of detection and punishment.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to
material misstatement, including how fraud right occur by making

an assessment of the key fraud risks to the Group and the manner in
which such risks may manifest themselves in practice, based on our
previous knowledge of the Group as well as an assessment of the current
business environment

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to
identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Where the risk
was considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures to address
each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual
journals and were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements were free of fraud or error. We evaluated the design
and operational effectiveness of controls put in place to address the risks
identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud We also
considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made

by management to manage earnings.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities Thus description
forms part of our auditor’s repart.

Other matters we are required to address

-— Following the recornmendation of the Audit Committee we were
appointed by the Company at its Annual General Meeting on 8 July 2015.
we have been the statutory auditor since that date.

- The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were
not provided to the Group or the parent cornpany and we rermain
independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting
the audit.

— The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the
Audit Commuttee,

Use of our report

This repert is made selely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparunes Act 2006. Cur

audil werk has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility te anyone other than the Company
and the Company's members as a bady, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

John Flaherty

(Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

30 April 2019

Notes:

1 The maintenance and integnty of the 3 Sa nshury plc website s the respons bty of the
Directors. the werk carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibr bty lor any changes that may have occurred
to the tinancial statements since they were mtally presented on the website.

Legislation in the United K:ngdom governing the preparat.on and dissemination of financal
staterments may differ from legislation n other urisdictions

L
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Consolidated income statement
for the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019

2019 2018
Note £m £m
Revenue 4 20,007 28,456
Cost of sales {27,000) (26,574)
Gross profit 2,007 1882
Administrative expenses 3 (1,733) (1415)
Cther income ) 6 38 51
Eerating profit 312 518
Flnance income 7 22 19
Finance costs 7 (99) (140
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures and associates 7 13 4 12
mﬁt before tax 239 405“
Analysed as: -
Underlying profit before tax 3 635 589
Non-underlying items 3 (396) (180)
i 239 409
Income tax expense 8 (20) (100)
Eﬁt for the financigl-gear - B 219 36?
Note Pence Pence
anings per share N p
%c’ earnings - 9.1 13.3
Diluted earnings 8.9 127
underlying basic earnings 220 204
underlying diluted earnings ‘ 20.3 191

The notes on pages 101 to 172 form an integral parl of these financial statements.
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[ ] L] .
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019
2019 2018
Note £m £m
Profit for the financial year 219 309
Iitems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Remeasurement on defined benefit pension schemes 30 1,269 592
Current tax relating to items not reclassified g8 - 19
Deferred tax relating to items not reclassified ) 8 (216) 118)
1,053 493
Itemns that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Currency translation differences 1 4
Moverments on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incorme 55 14
Iterns reclassified from financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income reserve 10 2
Cash flow hedges effective portion of fair value mavements 71 {139)
Items reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve 45) 50
Current tax on itemms that may be reclassified 8 2
Deferred tax relating to items that may be reclassified 8 (15) 13
59 {54)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) ~ oin2 429
Total comprehensive income for the year 1331 736

The notes on pages 101 to 172 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 9 March 2019 and 10 March 2018

2019 2018
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 9,708 9,898
Intangible assets 12 1,044 1,072
[nvestments in joint ventures and associates 13 205 232
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incorme 14 645 540
Qther receivables 153 33 44
Amounts due from Financial Services customers 16b 3,349 2332
Derivative financial instruments 25 9 17
Net retirernent beneft surplus o 7 30 959 -
o . 15,952 14,135
Current assets
Inventories 15 1,929 1,810
Trade and other receivables 16a 661 744
Amounts due from Financial Services customers i6h 3,638 3,360
Financial assets at fair value through cther comprehensive income 14 211 203
Derivative financial instrurnents 25 21 10
Cash and cash equwalents B ) 26 1,121 1730
7,581 7857
Assets held forsale 7 . 17 8 9
o ) _ 7,589 7,866
Total assets 23,541 22,001
Current liabilities -
Trade and other payables 13a 4,2449) (4.322)
Amaounts due to Financial Services custerners and other deposits 18b (5,797 (4.847)
Borrowings 28 (832) 638)
Derivative financial instruments 25 (17) (53)
Taxes payable (2049) (e47)
Provisiens N 19 - (23) (201)
. . _ (11,417) (10,302)
Net current liabilities _ 7 (3,828) [2,436)
Non-current liabilities )
Other payables 18a (340) (313)
Amounts due to Financial Services customers and other deposits 18b (1,804) (1,683
Borrowings 28 {950) (1,602}
Derivative financial instruments 25 a7 (26)
Deferred income tax liability 8 (397) (241
Provisions 19 (160) (166)
Net retirernent benefit obligations ) 30 - (257)
o ) (3,668) {4,288)
Net assets 8,456 7411
Equity
Called up share capital 20 630 627
Share premium account 20 1,147 1130
Merger reserve 20 568 568
Capital redemption reserve 21 680 680
Other reserves 21 172 121
Retained earnings 7 ) 23 4,763 3,789
Total equity before perpetual securities 7,960 6.915
Perpetual capital securities 22 248 248
Perpetual convertible bonds B 22 248 248
Total equity 8,456 7411

The notes on pages 101 to 172 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 96 to 172 were approved by the Board of Dir

torsan 30 April 2018, and are signed on its behalf by:

Mike Coupe Kevin O'Byrme
Chief Executive Chief ial Officer
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*
Consolidated cash flow statement o
for the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019 S,
g
Q
2019 2018
Note Em £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 239 409
Net finance costs 7 77 121
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures and associates 13 {4) (12)
Operating profit 312 518 L
Adjustrments for [~

Depreciation expense 1 649 659 2

Amortisation expense 12 143 72 J

Non-cash adjustments arising from acquisitions (excluding depreciation and amortisation) 3 () 1 %

Financial Services impairment losses on loans and advances 16¢ 98 62 é?

Loss/(profit) on sale of properties 3 17 (11) =

Loss on disposal of intangibles - 2

Profit on disposal of joint ventures - 4

Impairment charge of property, plant and equipment 1 3 -

Share-based payments expense 31 39 33

Nan-cash defined benefit scheme expenses 30 108 (21)

Cash contributions to defined benefit scheme 30 (63) {130)
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 1,304 1,187
Changes in working capital '5."'
Increase in inventories (118) (36) g
Increase in current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 97) [192) (a:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 74 44 w
Increase in amounts due from Financial Services customers and other deposits (1,480) (1,161) %
Increase in trade and other payables 94 142 %
Increase in amounts due to Financal Services customers and other deposits 1,077 1602 %
(Decrease)/increase in provisions and other liabilities (105) 28
Cash generated from operations 749 1526
Interest paid (63) 89}
Corporation tax paid (68) 72)

Net cash generated from operating activities 618 1365
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (478) (561)
Purchase of intangible assets (116) f140)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 64 54
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 39

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 32 - 135
Investment in joint ventures 13 5) 9
Interest received 4 14
Dwidends and distributions received 13 18 37
Net cash used in investing activities 479) (470}
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 20,23 22 12
Repayment of borrowings (593) {148}
Proceeds from borrowings 135 174
Purchase of own shares 23 (30) (14)
Repayment of capital element of obligations under finance lease borrowings {32) (26)
Interest elements of obligations under finance lease payments {7) 7)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 10 (224) (212)
Dividends paid on perpetual securities ) 22 (23) 23)
Net cash used in financing activities ) (752) (244)
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (608) 651
Opening cash and cash equivalents 1,728 1,077
Closing cash and cash equivalents 26 1,120 1728

The notes on pages 101 to 172 form an integral part of these financial statements.



100 Financial Statements

7 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019

Capital Total equity
Calledup Share redemption before Perpetuat Perpetual
share premium Merger and other Retained perpetual capital convertible
capital account reserve 1eserves earnings securities securities bonds  Total equity
Note £m fm £m £m £m fm m m £m
At 11 March 2018 627 1,130 568 801 3,789 6,915 248 248 7,411
Day 1accounting adjustments (net of tax) 23 - - - - (74) (74) - - (74)
Profit for the year 223 - - - - 20 201 12 6 219
Other comprehensive income 21,23 59 1.053 L1z 1,112
Total comprehensive income for the - - 59 1,180 1,239 12 6 1,257
year ended 9 March 2019
Transactions with owners:
Dividends 1023 [224) (224) (224)
Distribution to holders of perpetual 27 (12) ] 18
securities (net of tax)
amortisation of corwertible bond 21.23 (8 8
equity component
Share-hased payment (net of tax) 31 38 38 38
Purchase of own shares 23 (30 {30) {30)
Allotted in respect of share option 20.23 3 17 z 22 22
schemes
At 9 March 2019 630 1,147 568 852 4,763 7,960 248 248 8,456
At 12 March 2017 625 1,120 568 873 3,190 5376 248 248 6872
Profit for the year 22,23 - - - - 291 291 12 6 309
Other comprehensive (expense)/incame 2123 - - - GEY] 493 429 - - 429
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for - - - 64) 784 720 12 6 738
the year ended 10 March 2018
Transactions with owners:
Dividends 10,23 - - 1212} (212 - - (212}
Distribution to holders of perpetual 22 - - 12 (6) (18)
securities (net of tax)
Arnortisation of convertible bond 21,23 8 8
equity component
Share-based pagment (net of tax) 31 - - - - 33 33 - 33
Purchase of own shares 23 - - (14) (14} (14)
Allotted in respect of share option 20,23 2 10 - - 12 12
schemes
At 10 March 2018 627 1,130 568 80l 3,788 5,015 248 248 7411

1 Thisis compr.sed of IFRS 9 'Financ.al Instrurnents’ and 11 RS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Custorners' day L adjustiments See note 1

The notes on pages 101 to 172 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1Basis of preparation

1 5ainsbury plc is @ public limited company {the ‘Company’) incorporated
in the United Kingdom, whose shares are publicly traded on the London
Stock Exchange. The Cornpany is doriciled in the United Kingdom and
its registered address is 33 Holborn, London ECIN 2HT, United Kingdom.

The financial year represents the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019 (prior fimancial
year. 52 weeks to 10 March 2018). The consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019 comprise the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) and the Group's share

of the post-tax results of its joint ventures and associates.

Sainsbury’s Bank plc and its subsidiaries have been consolidated for the
12 months to 28 February 2019 being the Bank's year-end date {priot
financial year 28 February 2018). Adjustments have been made for the
effects of significant transactions or events that occurred between this
date and the Group's balance sheet date.

Nectar Loyalty Holding Limited and its subsidiaries have been
consolidated from 1 March 2018 to 9 March 2019 (prior financial year. four
weeks to 28 February 2018). Nectar's year-end date is now aligned with
the Group

The Group's principal activities are Food, General Merchandise and Clothing
retailing and Financial Setvices.

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Umon and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
apphcable to companies reporting under IFRSs

The financial staternents are presented in sterling, rounded to the nearest
million Emy) unless otherwise stated. They have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the histerical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments, defined benefit pension scheme assets, nvestment
properties and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income that have been measured at fair value.

Significant accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes
to which the policies relate, and those relating to the financial staterments
as awhale can be read further below. Significant accounting policies
have been applied consistently to ail periods presented in the financial
statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group consist of the financial
staternents of the ultimate parent company 1 Sainsbury plc, all entities
controlled by the Company and the Group's share of its interests in jomt
ventures and associates.

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control This is when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involverment with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The results

of subsidiaries are included in the income statement from the date of
acquisition or, in the case of disposals, up to the effective date of disposal
Intercormpany transactions and balances between Group cormpanies are
eliminated upon consolidation.

Sainsbury’s Property Scottish Pattnership, Sainsbury's Property Scottish
Limited Partnership and Insight 2 Communication LLP, are partnerships
which are fully consclidated into these Group accounts. The Group has taken
advantage of the exemption conferred by Regulation 7 of the Partnerships
{"Accounts’) Regulations 2008 and has therefore not appended the accounts
of these qualifying partnerships to these accounts.

b} Joint ventures and associates

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11,
investrments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and cbligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangernents
and determined thern to be joint ventures. The Group's share of the post-
tax results of its joint ventures and asscciates is included in the income
statement using the equity method of accounting. Where the Group
transacts with a joint venture or associate, profits and losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint venture or associate.

Investrnents in joint ventures and associates are carried in the Group balance
sheet at historical cost plus post-acguisition changes in the Group's share
of net assets of the entity. less any provision for impairment.

Associates are erntities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control,

Investment properties held by the Group are those contained within its joint
ventures with Land Securities Group PLC and The British Land Company
PLC. These are properties held for capital appreciation and/or to earn rental
income. They are initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition at cost, they are carried at their fair values
based on rmarket value determined by professional valuerts at each reporting
date The difference between the fair value of an investrment property at
the reporting date and its carrying amount prior to re-measurement is
included within the income statement (within the profit {rom joint ventures
line item) but is excluded from underlying profit in order to provide a clear
and consistent presentation of the underlying performance of the Group's
ongoeing business for shareholders.

Foreign currencies
The consolidated financial staterments are presented in sterling, which
is the ultimate parent company's functional currency.

a) Foreign operations

On consalidation, assets and liabilities of foreign operaticns are translated
into sterling at year-end exchange rates. The results of foreign operations
are translated into sterling at average rates of exchange for the year.

b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated
at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising
on translation are recognised in the income statement.

Amendments to published standards
Effective for the Group and Company in these financial statements:

The Group considered the following amendments to published standards
that are effective for the Group for the financial year beginning 11 March 2018
and concluded that, with the exception of IFRS @ ‘Financial Instruments’

and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, they are either

not relevant to the Group or they do not have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements other than disclosures. These standards

and interpretations have been endorsed by the European Union.

— Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ on the classification
and measurement of share-based payrment transactions

— Armendments to 1AS 40 ‘Tnvestrment Property’ on the transfers
of investment property

IFRIC Interpretation 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Annual Improvements Cycle 2014-2016 (issued in December 2016)

— IFRS 4 ‘Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts’

- - IFRS 2 Financial Instruments’
— IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements continued

1Basis of preparation continued
Further information on the impact of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 is included below.

Standards and revisions effective for future periods:
The following standards and revisions will be effective for future periods.

- IFRS 16 'Leases’
— IFRIC Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

— Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments” on prepayment features
with negative compensation

-— Amendments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements” and 145 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’
on the definition of material

— Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ on plan amendments,
curtailments or settlements

- Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures'
on long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

— Annual Improvements Cycle 2015-2017 (issued in December 2017)

The Group has considered the impact of the remaining above standards
and revisions and have concluded that, with the exception of IFRS 16, they
will not have a significant impact on the Group's financial staternents.
Further information on IFRS 16 is included below.

Transitional disclosures on adoption of new accounting standards
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

TFRS 9 1eplaces 1AS 39 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

‘The main changes the new standard intraduces are:

new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities;

a new model for recagnising tmpairments of financial assets; and

- - changes to hedge accounting by aligning hedge accounting mare closely
to an entity's risk management objectives.

The changes have been applied by adjusting the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at 11 March 2018, the date of initial application, with no restaterment
of comparative information In accordance with IFRS @ transition guidance,
comnparative financial information in the primary financial staternents
remains complant with the classification and measurement requirernents
of IAS 39.

a) Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 introduced a principles-based approach to the classification of
financial assets. Financial assets are measured at fair vatue through profit
orloss (FVPL), fair value through other comprehensive income {(FYOCI)

or amortised cost. Classification 1s determined by the nature of the cash
flows of the assets and the business model in which they are held. These
categories replace the existing IAS 38 classifications For financial liabilities,
mast of the pre-existing requirements for classification and measurement
previously included in IAS 39 were carried forward unchanged into IFRS ©.

An assessment of the Group’s business models was made as at the date of
initial application on 11 March 2018 and apphed prospectively. The changes in
classification resulted in na change in measuremnent as at 11 March 2018 and
are not expected to result in a material impact going forward. A surmmary of
the respective dassifications under 1AS 39 and IFRS 9 is presented below

11 March 2018
Balance sheet line Periodicity 1A5 139 IFRSS £m
Financial assets -
Financial assets at fair value "~ Non-current Available for sale Fair value through ather 540
through other comprehensive income comprehensive incorme
Financial assets at fair value Current Available for sale Fair value through cther 203
through other comprehensive income comprehensive income
Other recewvables Non-current Loans & receivablévg Amortised cost 44
Trade and other receivables Current Loans & receivables Amortised cost 553
Trade and other receivables . Current Loans & receivables Fair value through profit and losst 191
Cash and cash equwalents ) Current Loans & recewab]és Amortised cost 1,580
Cash and cash equivalents Current Loans & receivables Fair value through profit and loss' 150
Amounts due from Financial Services customers Non-currenlm - Loans & receivables Amartised cost? 2,332
Amounts due from Financial Services customers  Current ) Loans & receivables Amortised cost’ 3,360
Derivative financial instruments Non-curent Fair value through profit and loss  Fair value through profit and loss 17
Derivative financial instruments Current Fairvalue through profit and loss  Fair value through profit and loss 10

1 Travel money and cash in ATVs (includ:ng cash on order for ATWs) are considered separately from cash beld inbanks With regard to travel meney, the business madel 1s ‘held to sell foreign currency
to cuslomers’ and the contractual cash flows are ‘marg'n on foreign exchange rates” With reqard to cash in ATMs, the busmess model °s 'held ta sell ATM serv.ces” and the contractual cash flows are

‘ATM fees' Therefare, both assets are measured at F VPL

2 Ihe balances presented are consistent wi'th those presented as at 10 March 2018, There is a day Ladjustment to ainounts duc from Finaneial Seraces customers relating to the recogrnition of expected

credit loss {FCL) provisions under IFRS & Further details presented below

11 March 2018

Balance sheet line Periodicity 14539 IFRS9 £m
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables Current Loans & receivables Amortised cost (4,322)
Other payables Non-current Loans & receivables Arnortised cost (313}
Amounts due to Financial Serviceé‘castomers Non-current Loans & receivables Amortised cost (1,683)
Amounts due to Financial Services customers Current Loans & receivables Amortised cost (4,841)
Borrowings T ’ Non-current Loans & receivables Amortised cost (1,602)
Borrowings Current Loans & receivables Amortised cost (638)
Derivative financial ins_t_rarhents Non-current Fair value through profit and loss 7 Fair value through profit and oss (26)
Derivative financial instruments Current Fair value through profit and loss  Fair value through profit and loss (53)
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1Basis of preparation continued

Similar to the requiremnents of 1AS 39, TFRS @ requires contingent
censideration liabilities to be treated as financial instrurments measured
at fair value.

b) Impairment

The adoption of IFRS § has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting
for loan loss impairments by replacing 1AS 39's incurred loss approach with
a three stage forward-looking expected credit loss (FCL) approach. As soon
as a financial instrument is originated or purchased, 12-month expected
credit losses are recogmsed in profit and oss and an impairment allowance
is established (Stage 1) If the credit risk increases significantly fand the
resulting credit quality is not considered to be low credit risk) full ifetime
expected credit losses are provided for (Stage 2). Under both Stage 1 and
Stage 2, interest income is recognised on the gross carrying value of the
financial asset. Financial assets move into Stage 3 when they are considered
to be credit impaired, i.e. when one or meore events has occurred that has
adetrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.
Stage 3 assets continue to recognise lifetime expected impatrment tosses
and interest income s recognised on the net carrying amount (1.e. gross
amount less impairment allowance).

The impact of the above ts to increase the impairment pravisions held within
the Financial Services business as at 11 March 2038 by £101 million, with a
corresponding reduction to retained earnings of £84 million, net of deferred
tax of £17 rrullion, The net impact to retained earnings has been segregated
within the Group statement of changes in equity.

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening movement of
£101 million to the relevant line items on the balance sheet:

Re-
measurement IFRS 9
1A539 closing  on transition opening
batance toIFRS 9 balance
10 March 2018  11March 2016 11 March 2018
£m £m £m
Gross advances 5,824 (15) 5,809
Impairment provision (132) (72) (204)
Amounts due from Financial
Services customers 5,692 {87) 5,605
Provisions for loan commitments - (11) (14)
(within Provisions)
Total day 1 impact of IFRS 9 (101)

During the year, the Group has been refining its ECL models to better reflect
information that was available at the transition date of 11 March 2018.
The refinements made include:

- Amending economic scenarios included in the ECL models
-— Updated cash recovery assumptions

- Calibrations of the rmodel to reflect up to date data which was available
at 11 March 2018

The above updates have been incorporated as at the transition dateand as a
result, the opening balance sheet adjustment of £101 million (£84 million net
of tax) differs from that reported at the half year of £80 million (£66 million
net of tax).

¢) Hedge accounting

The Group has continued to apply the hedge accounting requirements

of 12539 for its macro hedging relationships (applicable to the Financiatl
Services businessy and has adopted 1FRS § in respect of its micro hedge
accounting. Macro hedging concerns using instruments to address an entire
balance sheet, whersas micro hedging focuses on a particular asset/liability
risk. Although the micro hedge accounting requirements under IFRS 9 are
generally less restrnictive, this has not resulted in a material impact on the
Group.
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IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue ansing from
contracts with customers and is required for annual periods beginning an
or after 1January 2018. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transfernng goods or services to a customer, and supersedes
all current revenue recognition requirements of [FRS.

As reported in the Annual Report for the year ended 10 March 2018, the Group
performed a detailed impact assessment, identifying all current sources of
revenue and analysing the accounting requirements for each under IFRS 15.
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the full retrospective transition aption.
Full retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 requires comparatives to be restated in
order to present values on a consistent basis. However, having quantified the
impact of [FRS 15, management has assessed this impact as immaterial and
has chosen not to restate the primary statements. The disclosure below sets
out the impact of IFRS 15 on prior periods

Impact on the comparative statement of financial position on the adopticn
of IFRS 15:

52 weeks to
10 March 2018
Adjustment £m
Assets
Right of return assets @) 3
Liabilities
Provisions @ 3)
Deferred revenue {b) i0
Equity
Retained earnings (b) (10)

Impact on the cormparative statement of profit and loss on adoption of
IFRS 15

52 weeks to

10 March 2018

Adjustrment fm

Revenue € 7
Cost of sales [} N

There 1s no impact on gross margin. IFRS 15 does not impact other
comprehensive income, nor is there amaterial impact on the statement
of cash flow. There 1s anilimpact to both basic and diluted EPS.

a) Right of return asset and proviston

Under IFRS 15, the consideration received from a customer is variable
because the contract allows the customer to return the products. The Group
uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned
because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The impact upon adoption of IFRS 15 for the
52 weeks to 10 March 2018 is a £3 mitlion increase in both the right of return
asset and provision This is considered to be irnmaterial to the Group results
and has not been restated within the comparatives on the staterment of
financial position,

b} Nectar

On 1February 2018, the Group acquired the shares of Aimia Inc's UK
business. enabling the full and independent operation of the Nectar Loyalty
programme in the UK. From the pownt of acquuisition, any points issued and
redeermned in Sainsbury's and Argos were accounted for in line with IFRIC 13
‘Custormer Loyalty Programmes’, meaning a porticn of the transaction price
was allocated to the loyalty programme using the fair value of points issued.
There is an immaterial change to the loyalty programme accounting upon
the adoption of IFRS 15
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued

1 Basis of preparation continued

Under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, programme support fees (PSF) for Nectar were
deferred and recognised in lme with the issuances and redemption profile of
Nectar points. However on application of IFRS 15, revenue is disaggregated
against individual performance obligations. These fees are now recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreemant with the relevant
party. Applying IFRS 15 retrospectively, the brought forward deferred
reverwe balance includes £10 million of PSF relating to prior periods. This
balance has accumulated over many years, with the year-on-year impact
considered immaterial to the Group. This restatement has been represented
as a day 1 adjustment within the statement of changes in equity.

¢} Agent vs principal

From time to time the Group enters into contracts with suppliers for which
an assessment must be made to determine whether the Group is acting

as principal or agent when selling the related goods to customers. In
performing its analysis, the Group identified arrangements where there

is a change in the agent/principal classification. The impact to revenue
and cost of sales for the 52 weeks to 10 March 2018 is a £7 milon reduction.
This is immaterial to the Group results and has not been restated within
the comparatives within the profit and loss statement,

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ was issued in January 2016 and introduces a comprehensive
mmadel for the identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees and will supersede the current
lease guidance including 1AS 17 'Leases’ and the related interpretations.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginring on or after 1January
2019 and will be adepted by Sainsbury’s for the financial year commencing
10 March 2019.

IFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. The current distinction of
operating leases {off balance sheet) and finance leases (on balance sheet) is
rermoved for lessee accounting and is replaced by a model where a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees (i.e. all on balarice sheet) except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets.

The slandard represents a significant change in the accounting and
reporting of teases, impacting the income staterment and batance sheet as
well as statutory and Alternative Performance Measures used by the Group.

The Group has chosen to adopt the fully retraspective approach to transition.
The comparatives in the consclidated financial statements for the 52 weeks
ending 7 March 2020 will be restated as if IFRS 16 had always applied.

The first reporting under IFRS 16 (with restated comparatives) will be

for the Group's interim results as at 21 September 2019,

The Group has performed an extensive review of all the Group's leasing
arrangements in light of the new accounting standard. The work is nearing
completion and the Group estimates that, had IFRS 16 been applied in the
52 weeks ended 10 March 2018, the impact on the consolidated balance
sheet as at 10 March 2018 would have been:

- Recognition of a right-of-use asset in the region of £5 1 billion disclosed
within nan-current assets

The recognition of a corresponding lease liability in the region
of £5.9 billion

- Derecognition of other balance sheet items, including cnerous leases,
rent free accruals and fair value adjustrments relating to acquired leases
of around £0.1 billion

— The above results in an adjustment to opening retained earnings in the
region of £0.9 billion (before adjusting for associated taximpacts)

The above adjustment to retained earnings causes no hindrance
on the Group's ability to pay dividends to shareholders.

The right-of-use asset is imitially measured at cost (being the initial lease
liability plus any associated direct costs) and subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
re-measurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease maodifications, amongst others.
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As aresult, the profile of costs recognised in the consolidated income
statement will rnaterially change in comparnison to 1AS 17 as follows:

Depreciation will increase due to the recognition of right-of-use assets

— xisting rental costs will reduce — the only rental costs that remain
will elate to low value assets or short-term leases

— Finance costs will increase due to the unwinding of the discount
on the discounted lease liability

whilst the total cash outflow for leases will not change, the classification
of cash flows will be affected as operating lease payments under 1AS 17 are
presented as operating cash flows, whereas under the IFRS 16 model, the
lease payments will be split into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows.

In preparing for the transition to IFRS 16. the Group has been developing
new controls, palicies and governance procedures in several areas that
contrnbute to the calculation of the overall lease liability and right-of-use
asset. These indude the identification of any embedded leases, accounting
for lease modifications, as well as electing to not apply IFRS 16 to short-
termn leases (less than a year) and low value assets inline with the practical
expedients offered under IFRS 16.

Key judgernents have also been addressed, including the assessment of
how reasonably certain it is considered to be that a lease option (extension,
termination or purchase) will be exercised, and the determination of an
appropriate discount rate used to present value the lease liability and to
imitially measure the right-of-use asset. With regards to these, the Group
has determined that the lease term will correspond to the duration of the
contracts except in cases where the Group is reasonahly certain that it will
exercise contractual extension or break options. The historical discount
rates applied have been based on the incremental borrowing rate where
the implicit rate in the lease is not readily determinable.

All relevant accounting policies will be updated to reflect the changes under
IFRS 16 in the consolidated financial staternents for the 52 weeks ending
7 March 2020.

2 Significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with TFRSs requires
the use of judgerments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amotlints of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Those which are sigrificant to the Group are discussed separately below

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

a) Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale

At each balance sheet date management assesses whether any assets,
whose carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than continued use, meet the definition of held for sale. where there is an
active plan in place to locate a buyer, management considers such assets
to meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale il they are available

for immediate sale and the sale is highly probable.

For more infarmation on the assets and liabilities held for sale, refer
to note 17.

b) Operating lease commitments

The Group is party to commercial property leases on a number of its stores.
At inception of each lease. the terms and conditions of the arrangements
are evaluated to assess whether the lease terms constitute a major part

of the economic life of the assets and whether the present value of the
minimum lease payments amaount to substantially all of the fair value of
the commercial property. Where there is no evidence of this, management
concludes that all the significant risks and rewards of ownership do not

transfer to the Group and these leases are accounted for as operating leases,

Further information about committed operating lease payments is included
innote 33,
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2 Significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions continued

¢} Consclidation of structured entities

A structured entity 1s one m which the Group does not hold the majority
interest but for which management has concluded that voting rights are
not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity. In making
such an assessment, management considers the terms of the arrangement
to assess who has responsibility for the management of the entity and its
assets. Where the Group has this responsibility, it is deemed that the Group
cantrols the entity and it is fully consolidated nto the Group accounts.

The structured entities applicable to the Group are Sainsbury’s Property
Scattish Partnership and Sainsbury’s Properly Scottish Limited Partnership.

d) Aggregation of operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments based onthe
informaticn provided to the Operating Board (the Chief Operating Decision
Maker for the Group) to make operational decisions on the management
of the Group. Four operating segments were identified as follows:

Food
— Retail — General Merchandise and Clothing

Retail

— Financial Services
- Property Investment

Management has considered the econormic characteristics, similarity of
products, production processes, custorners, sales methods and requlataory
environment of its two Retail segments. In doing so it has been concluded
that they should be aggregated into one ‘Retail’ segment in the financial
statements. Thus aggregated information provides users with the financial
information needed to evaluate the business and the environment in
which it operates.,

Estimates and assumptions

The areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the

financial statements are as described below. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the Tesults

of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group is required to assess whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment loss, based on the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
ik (CGUY or group of CGUs to which it is allocated. The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs have been determined based on value in use calculations and
these calculations require the use of estirnates in relation to future cash
flows and suitable discount rates, as disclosed in note 12. Actual outcomes
could vary from these estimates.

Non-financial assets are subject to impairment reviews based on whether
current ar future events and crrcumstances suggest that their recoverable
amount may be less than their carrying vatue. Recoverable amount is based
on the higher of the value in use and fair value less costs to dispose. Value
nuse s calculated from expected future cash flows using suitable discount
rates and includes management assumptions and estimates of future
performance.

b) Impairment of loans and advances

Impairment loss madels involve the estimation of future cash flows of
financial assets, based on observable data at the balance sheet date and
historical less experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics.
This will typically take into account the level of arrears, security, past loss
experience and default levels. These calculations are undertaken on a
portfolio basis using various statistical medelling techniques. Impairment
maodels are continually reviewed to ensure data and assumptions are
appropriate with the most material assurmption being around expected
loss rates.
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o) Post-employrnent benefits

The Group operates one defined benefit scheme for ernployees, segregated
nto two sections — the Sainsbury's section and the Argos section. The
prescnt value of the scheme's liabilities recognised at the balance sheet
date and the net financing charge recognised in the income staterment are
dependent on the discount rate applied which 1s derived from the expected
yields on high quality corperate bonds over the duration of the Group's
pension scheme. High quality corporate bonds are those which at least one
of the main ratings agencies considers to be at least AA (or equivalent)

Other key assumptions within this calculation are based on market
condttions or estimates of future events, including mortality rates, as set
out in niote 30. The carrying value of the retirernent benefit obligations will
be impacted by changes to any of the assumptions used, however is most
sensitive to changes in the discount rate. Sensitivities to moverments in the
discount rate are included in note 30.

d) Provisions

Provisions have been made for onerous leases, onerous contracts,
dilapidations, restructuring, insurance and long service awards These
provisions are estimates and the actual costs and tirning of future cash
flows are dependent on future events and market conditions. Any difference
between expectations and the actual future liability witl be accounted

for in the period when such determination is made. The carrying amount

of provisions will be impacted by changes in the discount rate. Details

of provisions are set out in note 19

e) Determining fair values

The fair values of financial assets and liabitities are based on prices available
from the market on which the instruments are traded. Where market values
are not available, the fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been
calculated by discaunting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest
rates. The fair values of short-term deposits, trade recewvables, overdrafts
and payables are assumed to approximate to their book values.

f) Revenue recognition — Fair value of Nectar points

The Group estimates the fair value of points awarded under the Nectar
programme by reference to the value per peint te a customer, multiplied

by expected breakage assumptions. Breakage represents managerment's
estimate of points issued that will never be redeemed. As points issued
under the programme do not expire, such estimates are subject to
uncertainty. Breakage is estimated by management based on the terms
and conditions of membership and historical accumulation and redemption
patterns, and adjusted for changes to any terms and conditions that may
affect members’ redemption patterns.

If the breakage estimate used in determining the deferred revenue for the
Group had been 0.5 per cent lower, the deferred points liability would have
been £19 million higher. If the breakage estimate had been 0 5 per cent
higher, the deferred points liability would have been £19 million lower.

g) Supplier arrangements

Supplier incentives, rebates and discounts, collectively known as ‘supplier
arrangements’, represent a material deduction to cost of sales and directly
affect the Group's reported margin. The arrangements can be complex, with
amounts spanning multiple products over different time periods, and there
can be multiple triggers and discounts. The accrued value at the reporting
date1s included in trade receivables or trade payables, depending on the
right of offset. A description of the different types of supplier arrangements,
and their values for the year, are provided innote 5.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Non-GAAP performance measures

In order ta provide sharehelders with additional insight into the underlying perfarmance of the business, iterns recognised in reported profit or loss before
tax which, by virtue of their size and or nature, do not reflect the Group’s underlying performance are excluded from the Group's underlying results. These
adjusted items are as follows:

2019 2018
£m £m

Underlying profit before tax B 635 589
Property related
(Loss)/profit on disposal of properties 7 5
Investrment property fair value movements (2 7
Impatrment and onerous contract charge 3 -
Argos
Argos integration costs (40) (75}
Homebase separation - {10
Sainsbury’s Bank transition (70) (38)
Nectar
Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of Nectar - 2
Revaluation of previously held equity interest in Insight 2 Communication LLP - 4
Asda transaction costs (46) -
Restructuring costs (81) (85)
Other
Perpetual securities coupons 23 23
Non-underlying finance movernents 11 &)
Acquisition adjustments (53) 2}
Defined benefit pension expenses (118) {5)
Total adjustments . (396) (180)
Profit before tax 239 409
Property related

— Loss ondisposal of properties for the financial ysar comprised £(17) million for the Group (2018 profit of £12 million) included within cther income
and £nil million for the property joint ventures (2018: £(6) million) included within share of post-tax profit from jeint ventures and associates.

Impairment charges comprised £(3) million (2018: £nil million) within property, plant and equipment.

Argos
—- Argos integraticn costs for the year were £(40) million which principally comprise property-related costs. The Argos integration programme is now
complete,

-— The Homebase separation and restructuring casts in the prior year of £{10) rrllion were part of the revised anticipaled total exceptional costs
of £(45) million. There were no costs incurred during the current financial year.

Sainsbury’s Bank transition
Sainsbury’s Bank transition costs of £(70) mullion (2018. £(38) rrillion) were incurred in transitioning to a new, more flexible banking platform as part of the
previously announced New Bank Prograrmme, New Bank Programme transition costs principally comprise contractor and service provider costs relating
to the migration of data and other services to the Bank's new infrastructure and operating model.

Nectar
- Acquisition-related costs (included in administrative expenses and recogmsed outside of underlying profit) amounted to £(2) million in the prior year
{see note 32). In addition, an acquisition fair value gain of £4 million on the previousty held equity interest in Insight 2 Communication LLP was tecorded
in other income in the prior year (and excluded from underlying profit before tax).

Asda transaction costs
Sainsbury’s transaction costs relating to the proposed merger with Asda of £(46) million principally comprised fees incurred m relation to deal preparation,
mtegration planning and transaction financing.

Restructuring costs
— Restructuring costs of £(81) miltion in the year have been recognised following announced transformational changes to the Group's in-store operating
model, responding to changing custormer shopping habits and reducing costs throughout the store estate. These costs mainly consist of people costs
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3 Non-GAAP performance measures continued [ &
Other %
The coupons on the perpetual subordinated capitat securities and the perpetual subordinated convertible bonds are accounted for as equity in ine with 2
[AS 32 ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, however, are accrued on a straight-line basis and included as an expense within underlying profit before tax. E]
- Non-underlying finance movements for the financial year comprised £13 million for the Group (2018: £1 million) and £(2) million for the joint ventures S
{2018: £(3) million). -
- Acquisition adjustrments of £(53) million (2618, £(2) million) reflect the unwind of non-cash fair value adjustments arising from the Sainsbury's Bank,
Home Retail Group and Nectar acquisitions and are split as follows
2013 2018
Financial Total Financial Total
Services Argos MNectar Group Services Argos Nectar Group
£m £m £m £m £m jag] £m £m
Reverue - - - - (3 - - (3) e =
Cost of sales - 2 - 2 - ? 2 g
<
Depreciation - 13) - 13) - (18) (18) %
Amortisation a (16) (25) (a2) {3) 22 2 17 %
2] (27) (25) (53) {6) 6 & @ %
pwl
Defined benefit pension expenses comprise the pension financing charge of £(8) million (2018 £(26) million) and scheme expenses of £{10) mllion (2018 2
£(10) million} (see note 30). Also included are £(2) million of pension related expenses incurred directly by the Group.
—- In addition there are £(98) million non-cash past service costs relating to Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation. The prior year included
a £31 million past service credst in relation to a Pension Increase Exchange (PIE) at retirement opticn introduced from 1 April 2018. See note 30 for
more information.
Cash flow statement
The table below shows the impact of non-underlying iterns on the Group cash flow statement, where not already separately presented in the cash flow

staternent:

_'I.'I_

2019 2018 g

m m

Defined benefit pension expenses (10) (10) %

Sainsbury’s Bank transition (66) {38) E

Business rationalisation - f1) §

Argos integration costs (52) (32) %

Homebase separation - 14) e
Restructuring costs (152) (28)

Asda transaction costs __ (39)

Cash used in operating activities (319) (123)
Proceeds from property disposals 64 54
Cash generated from investing activities 64 54
Net cash flows (255) 69

The tax impact of adjusted items is included within note 8.
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4 Segment reporting

Background
The Group's businesses are organised into four operating segrnents:

Retail ~ food:
- Retail — General Merchandising and Ctothing:
- - Financial Services (Sainshury's Bank plc and Argos Financial Services entities); and
— Propertty Investmenits (The British Land Compary PLC joint venture and Land Securities Group PLC joint venture),

As discussed in note 2, the Food and General Merchandise and Clothing segrments have been aggregated into a Retail segment in the financial statements

The Operating Board assesses the performance of all segments on the basis of underlying profit before tax. All material operations and assets are in the UK
The financial year ended 9 March 2019 includes Nectar results from 1 March 2018 to 9 March 2018 {prior financial year: four weeks),

Segrment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonabte basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Revenue consists of sales through retail outlets and online and, in the case of Financial Services, interost receivable, fees and commissions and excludes
value Added Tax. Revenue is recognised when the Group has a contract with a customer and a performance obligation has been satisfied. at the transaction
price allocated to that performance oblhigation. Further information on the impact of adopting IFRS 15 is included in note 1.

Accounting policies

Revenue

a) Retail ~ sale of goods

For sales through retail outlets and online, the transaction price is the value of the goods, net of returns, colleague discounts, vouchers and sales made
an an agency basis. Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is when the transaction is completed in-store or, for
online orders, when goods have been delivered. Commissionincome is recognised in revenue based on the terms of the contract.

b) Nectar points

Any points issued and redeemed in Sainsbury's and Argos are accounted for in line with IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Custorners’ On issuance

of Nectar points within the Group, a portion of the transaction price is allocated to the loyalty programrme using the fair value of points issued and
corresponding deferred revenue recognised in relation to points issued but not yet redeemed. The deferral is treated as a deduction from revenue.

The fair value of the points awarded is determined with reference to the fair value to the customer and conswders factors such as breakage and the maoney
off that each point entitles a customer to. Deferred revenue is subsequently recognised when Nectar points are redeemed.

) Other income
Other income generally consists of profits and losses on disposal of assets. Nectar revenue earned from non-Sainsbury’s redemption partners is included
within other income and recognised once points have been redeemed.

d) Financial Services interest receivable

Interest income is recognised in the income statement for all instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. This calculation
takes into account all amounts that are integral to the yield as well as incremental transaction costs. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the
expected future cash flows over the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability at initial recogmtion.

e) Financial Services fees and comrissions

Fees and commissicns that are not integral to the effective interest rate calculation relate primarily to certain credit card and storecard fees, ATM interchange
fees, insurance introduction commission and warranty commission receivable These are recognised in the ncome statement on an accruals basis as
services are provided. Where in the case of insurance commissions the income comprises an initial commussion and profit share, both are recognised on
completion of the service to the extent reliably measurable. Where there is a risk of potential clawback, an apprapriate element of the commission receivable
is deferred and amortised over the clawback period. Where the televant contract requires Financial Services to perform future services in respect of the
income recetvable, initial commission is recognised on completion of the service provided, with an element deferred to reflect services yet to be performed
in future periods.

f) Financial Services other operating income
Margin from the sale of travel money, representing the difference between the cost price and the selling price, is recognised when the sale to the customer
takes place within other operating incormne.

Segment revenue presents a disaggregation of revenue from custormers consistent with the Group's primary revenue streams
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4 Segment reporting continued
Income statement and balance sheet
Financial Property

Retail Services Investment Group
52 weeks to 9 March 2019 £m £m £m £m
Segment revenue
Retail sales to external customers 28,466 - - 28,466
Financial Setvices to external customers: - 541 - 541
Underlying revenue 28,466 541 - 29,007
Revenue 28,466 541 - 29,007
Underlying operating profit 692 31 - 723
Underlying finance income 3 - - 3
Underlying finance costs (99) - - ©9)
Underlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures and associates - - 8 8
Underlying profit before tax 596 31 8 635
Non-underlying expense (note 3) (396)
Profit before tax 2319
Income tax expense (Note 8) (ZO)u
Profit for the financial period 219
Assets 14,420 8,916 - 23,336
Investrment in joint ventures and associates - - 205 205
Segment assets 14,420 8,916 205 23,541
Segment liabilities (7.147) (7,938) - (15,085)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure’ 585 44 - 629
Depreciation expense? 642 7 - 649
Amortisation expense? 127 16 - 143
Net impairment and onerous contract charge 3 - - 3

36 3 - 39

Share-based payments

.

W]

Financial Serv cos income nciudes $385 millon recognised using the effective interest rate method

Reta i capital expenditure consists of property. plant and equiprent additians of £505 milf on and intangihle asset add:tions of £80 mrllon Financial Services captal cxpenditure consists of property
plant and ecuipment add Lions of £8 rmillion and intang:ble asset addit:ons of £36 millien

Depreciation within the Retal segment includes a §13 milfon charge inrelation ta the urwind of fa rvalue adjusiments recognised on accuisition of HRG and Nectar

Amartisation expense within the Retail segment ‘ncludes a £41 milhon charge in relation to the unwind of fa'r value adjustments recognised on acqu sition of HRG and Nectar Amortisation expense

within the Financial Services segment :ncludes a £1 million charge inrelation to the unwind of fa.r value ad;ustments recogmsed onacquisition of Sainshury's Bank

1
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4 Segment reporting continued

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Financial Praperty

Retail Services Investment Group
52 weeks to 10 March 2018 £m €m £m £m
Segment revenue
Retail sales to external customers 27,944 - - 27,544
Financial Services to external customers: ) - 515 - 515
Underlying revenue 27.944 515 28,459
Acquisition adjustment fair value unwind? - €) - 3
Revenue 27944 512 - 28,456
Underlying operating profit 625 69 - 694
Underlying finance income 14 - 14
Underlying finance costs® (133) (133)
uUnderlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures and associates 4 10 14
Underlying profit before tax 510 69 10 589
Non-underlying expense (note 3} (180
Profit before tax 409
Incorne tax expense (note 8) 1100)
Profit for the financial peried 309
Assets 13,897 7872 — 21,769
Investment injoint ventures and assoclates 1 - 231 232
Segment assets 13,898 7872 231 22,001
Segment liabilities (7.694) (6,896) - {14,550)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure? 540 77 - 717
Depreciation expense® 851 8 - 659
Amoartisation expense® 59 13 72
Share-based payments 20 3 33

W e

Financial Services income includes 365 mull'on recogn’sed using the ettechve ‘nterest rate method
Represents fair value unwind on loans and advances to customers resuli:ng from the Sainsbury's Bank and Home Retall Group Financial Services acguisiiions.
The coupors on Lthe perpetual capital secunties and the perpeluwal convert ble bonds are accounted for as equity m hne with 145 32 *hinancal Instrumoents Presentation’, however, are accrued

on astraight-line bas's and included as an expense wthin underlying finance costs, as detaled innote 3

IS

plant and equipment additions of £8 million and intangible asset additions of £69 millian

w1

Depreciation within the Retail segment includes an £18 mulion charge in relation to the unwind of fa'r value adjustments recognised on acounsition of HRG and Nectar.
Amartisation expense within the Retail segment includes €20 miihon income in relationto the unwind of fa'r valuc ad,ustments recognised on acquisition af HRG and Nectar. Amart:sation

expense w.ihin the Financial Services segment includes a £(3) million charge inrelation L the unwund of fa:r value ad ustments recagn.sed an acqguisibion of Sanshury's Bank.

Geographical segments

The Group trades predominantly in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and consequently the majority of revenues, capital expenditure and segment

net assets arise there. The profits, turnover and assets of the businesses in the Republic of Ireland are not material to the Group.

Retail capital expenditure consists of property, plant and equiprment additions of $570 million and intangible asset additons of £ /0 million. 1 :nancial Serv.ces capital expenditure consists of properly
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4 Segment reporting continued
Cash flow
52 weeks to 9 March 2019 52 weeks to 10 March 2018
Financial Financial
APM Retail Services Group Ratail Setvices Group
reference £m £m Em £m £m £m
Profit/(loss) before tax’ 260 (21) 239 382 27 409
Net finance costs 77 - 77 121 121
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures and associates! (4) - 4) {12 (12)
Operating profit/(loss) 333 (21) 312 491 27 518
Adjustments for.
Depreciation/amortisation 769 23 792 710 Z1 731
Non-cash adjustments arising from acquisitions’ @) — 2) (2 3 1
Financial Services impairment losses an lnans and advances - 98 98 68 58
Loss/(profit) on sale of properties 17 - 17 (1) 11
Loss on disposal of intangibles - - - 2 2
Profit an disposal of joint ventures - - - (4) - (4)
Impairment charge of property, plant and equipment 3 - 3 - - -
Share-based payments expense 36 3 39 30 3 33
Non-cash defined benefit scheme expenses 108 - 108 (21) - [21)
Cash contributions to defined benefit scheme (63) - (63) (130 - (130
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 1,201 103 1,304 ' 1,063 124 1187
Changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in working capital (a5) {510) (555) 196 143 339
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 1156 (a07) 749 1259 257 T1526
Interest paid a (63) - (63) (89) - {89)
Corporation tax paid (61) (7) (68) (72) 172)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 1,032 o n(4‘1~4) 618 1,098 267 1365
Cash flows from investing activities T
Purchase of property, plant and equipment excluding (a34) [£.3) (442) 473) 8 (481)
strategic capital expenditure
Strategic capital expenditure b (36) - (36) 80 - (80)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (a70) ® (478) {553) o (8) (561)
Purchase of intangible assets (78) (38) (116) 69) (71) (140)
Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment 64 - 64 54 54
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value through other d 39 - 39 -
cormprehensive income
Acquisition of subsidiaries C - - - (33) - 133}
Cash acquired upon acquisition of subsidiaries C - - - 168 - 168
Investment in joint ventures f (5) - (5) Q) 9)
Interest received a 4 - 4 14 14
Dividends and distributions received?® f 18 - 18 37 37
Net cash used in investing activities (428) {46) —(4771)_ (391) {79) (470)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares e 22 - 22 12 - 12
Repayment of bartowings d (593) - {593) (148) - (148)
Proceeds from borrowings d 135 - 135 - 174 174
Purchase of own shares e 30) - (30) {14) - (14)
Repayment of capital element of obligations under finance d (32) - (32) (26) - (26)
lease payments
Interest elements of obligations under finance lease a @) - @ 7 - 7)
payments
Dividends paid on ordinary shares (229) - (2249) (212} - [212)
Dividends paid on perpetual securities a (23) - (23) (23} - 23)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (752) - {752) (418} 174 {244)
Intra group funding T
Bank capital injections (110) 110 - (190) 190 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from intra group funding (110) 110 - (190) 180 -
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (258) (350) (608) 59 552 651

1 Inctudes £4mulon (2018 €8 million) relating to the Properly Investment segment
2 The total Group balance excludes a €(55) million acquisition adjustment unwind expense (?M& §(1) milion expense) already mcluded in depreciation and amertisation in this note
1 Included within dividends and distributions recewved 25 £18 milhan (2018 ¥30 million) of dividends received from property nvestment jont ventures,
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5 Supplier arrangements
Suppher incentives, rebates and discounts, collectively known as ‘supplier arrangements’ represent a materal deduction to cost of sales and directly aftect
the Group's reported margin. The arrangernents can be complex, with amounts spanning multiple products over different time periods, and there can be
multiple triggers and discounts. The accrued value at the repotting date 15 included in trade recewvables or trade payables, depending on the nght of offset.
The four key types are as follows:
Discounts and supplier incentives - these represent the majority of all supplier arrangements and are linked to individual unit sales. The incentive is
typically based on an agreed sum per itern sold on promotion for a period and therefore is considered part of the purchase price of that product.

— Fixed amounts — these are agreed with suppliers primarily to support in-store activity including promotions, such as utilising specific space. These involve
a degree of judgement and estimation in ensuring the appropriate cut-off of arrangements for fixed amounts which span period-end. These require
judgement ta determine when the terms of the arrangement are satisfied and that amounts are recognised in the correct period.

Supnplier rebates — these are typically agreed on an annual basis, aligned with the Group's financial year. The rebate amount is linked to pre-agreed targets
such as sales volurnes and reguires estimates of the amount earned up to the balance sheet date, for each relevant supplter contract. where agreements
span a financial period-end, estimations are required of projected turnover and judgement may also need to be applied to determine the rebate level
earned as agreements may involve multiple tiers. In order to minimise any risk arising from estimation, agreements from suppliers are obtained to agree
the value to be recagnised at year-end, prior to it being invoiced. By aligning the agreements to the Group's financial year, where possible, the judgements
required are minimised

Marketing and advertising income  relates to income which is directly linked to the cost of producing the Argos catalogue as well as advertising income
from suppliers through the Group's subsidiary Insight 2 Cormmmunication (12C). Income relating to the Argos catalogue is recognised once agreed with the
supplier and when the catalogue is made available to the Group, which is the noint at which the catalogue costs are recognised. Advertising income within
12C involves a level of judgement to ensure amounts arerecognised in the correct period.

Of the above categornes, fixed amounts, supplier rebates and marketing and advertising income involve a level of judgement and estimation. The amounts
recognised in the income staternent for these three categories in the financial year are as follows:

2019 2018
£m £m
Fixed amounts 281 261
supplier rebates 69 97
Marketing and advertising income o 107 92
Total supplier arrangernents - o -;57 450
Of the above amounts, the following was outstanding and held on the balance sheet at the perind-end:
2019 2018
£m £€m
Within inventory 7 7
Within current trade receivables
Supplier arrangements due 39 23
Accrued supplier arrangements 39 -
Within current trade payables
supplier arrangements dues 22 23
Accrued supplier arrangements - 14
_ Deferred income (44

Total supplier arrangements a2 53
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6 Operating profit
Accounting policies

Cost of sales
Cost of sales cansists of all costs that are directly attributable to the point of sale including warehouse, transportation costs and all the costs of operating
retail outlets. In the case of Financial Services, cost of sales includes interest expense on operating activities, calculated using the effective interest method.

Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting) the following items

2019 2018

£m £m

Employee costs (note 29) 3,170 3,134

Depreciation expense (note 11) 649 659

Amortisation expense (note 12) 143 77

Loss/(profit) on disposal of praperties (note 3) 17 11

Operating lease rentals

- land and buildings 707 706

—other leases 88 90

- sublease payments recewable (61 {54)

Foreign exchange {gains)/losses {12) 22

IFRS @ impairment losses on loans and advances® 98 68
Impairment and onerous contract charges (note 3) 3

1 Deprec atian expense includes £ 13 million (2018, 18 millien) 1n relation to the unwind of accuis:tion adjustments

2 Amortisation expense neludes £41 million charge (2018 £20 midhon) i relation to the urmwind of far value adjustments recognised on acquisition of HRG and Nectar, and a €1 mrillon charge
(2018 €3 mlhon charge) inrelatian to the unw nd of fair value adjustments recagn sed enacgus tion of Sainshurys Bank

3 Ihe prior year impa.rment charge is recogrised \n accordance with [AS 39,

2019 2018
£m £m
Auditor’s remuneration

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the parent company and consolidated financial statements 1.0 10

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services:
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 22 12
Audit related assurance services 01 02
Other non-audit fees 0.5 -

Total fees 38 24
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7 Finance income and finance costs

Accounting policies

Finance income and costs, excluding those arising from Financial Services, are recogmised in the income staternent for financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For Financial Services, finance income and finance costs are recognised in revenue and cost
of sales.

Interest paid and interest received for the purpose of the cash flow statement relates to retail only, with Financial Services interest paid and interest recelved
included in the net operating cash flow.

The coupons on the perpetual capital securities and perpetual convertible bonds are accounted for as dividends in accordance with 145 32 ‘Financial
Instruments; Presentation” and hence are not a finance cost.

2019 2018
Non- Non-
Underlying underlying Totat Underlying underluing Total
£m £m m £m £m £m
Interest on bank deposits and other financial assets 3 - 3 14 14
Finance fair value movernents ‘ - 19 19 5 5
Finance income ’ ‘ 3 19 2 14 5 19
Borrowing costs:
Secured borrowings (55) — (55) (7S - (79)
Unsecured horrowings (19) - 19) (30} - (30)
Obligations under finance leases ()] - (7 7 - 7)
Provisions — amortisation of discount (note 19} ) (6 )] (6) {7 [l} {4 (5
82 ©) (88) 117) T (121
Other finance costs:
Interest capitalised — qualifying assets (note 11) 6 - 6 7 - 7
IAS 19 pension financing charge (note 30) - {8) (8) (76) 126)
Transaction financing costs - ) (9) - -
Perpetual securities coupen (23) 23 - (23) 23
' a7) 5 ay (16} &) (19
Finance costs (99) - " (99) (133) I (140

Finance fair value movements relate to net fair value movements on derivative financial instruments not designated in a hedging relationship in addition,
£10 miltion of fair value gains recognised in other comprehensive income were recycled to the income statement on disposal of the related debt securtties.

Transaction financing costs relate to the fees associated with the financing arrangements which would have been available to the Group if the proposed
merger with Asda had completed. These have been written off to the income statement in full,

8 Taxation
Accounting policies
Current tax

Current tax is accounted for on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current tax 1s charged or credited
to the income statement, except when it relates to items charged to equity or other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is accounted for on the basis of temporary differences artsing from differences between the tax base and accounting base of assets
and liabtlities,

Deferred tax is recagnised for all terparary differences, excent to the extent where (t arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in

a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit. It is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred incormne tax asset is realised or the deferred incorme tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxabte profits will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement. except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity or other
comprehenswe income.
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8 Taxation continued [
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and joint ventures except where the Group 15 able %
to control the Liming of the reversal of the temoorary difference and #t is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 2.
sl
2019 2018 '('é
£ em =
Current year UK tax 102 121
Current year overseas tax 5 1
Over-provision in prior years (26) (1%}
Total current tax expense o I 81 07
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (31) 13)
{Oven)funder provisicn in prior years (30) 5 L
Revaluation of deferred tax balances - 1 T
Total deferred tax credit (61) ) %
----- =
Total income tax expense in income statement e 20 100 e
D
k=
Analysed as: -
Underlying tax 151 142
Non-underlying tax (131) 142}
Total income tax expense in income statement 20 100
Underlying tax rate 23.8% 24.1%
Effective tax rate 8.4% 24.4%
The effective tax rate of 8.4 per cent (2018: 24.4 per cent) 15 lower than (2018 hrgher than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19 per cent. The ;:'7
differences are explained below- A
)
2019 2018 w
£m £m a
Profit before tax 239 409 :5‘:
S
a
Income tax at UK corporation tax rate of 15.00% (2018: 19.06%) 45 78
Effects of underlying items:
Disallowed depreciation on UK properties 28 26
Under-provision in prior years 5 3
Revaluation of deferred tax balances 3 2
Other (8) n
Effects of non-underlying items:
[Loss)/profit or disposal of properties (5) 1
Investment property fair value movements - o]
Argos integration costs - 7
Homebase separation - 1
Sainsbury's Bank transition - {2
Revaluation of previously held equity interest in Insight 2 Communication LLP - b
Asda merger 7
Non-underlying finance movements 1
Over-provision in prior years (61) (12)
Revaluation of deferred tax balances 2 n
Other 1 -
Total income tax expense in income statement 20 100

1 Disclosed where the tax on non-underlying terns differs from the statutory rate

The over-provision tn prior years includes a prior year deferred tax credit of £50 million that arose on the recognitien of a UK capital loss which crystallised as
part of transactions undertaken by the Group in 2015/16 to eliminate dormant/limited activity companies relating to the US business.
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8 Taxation continued

The main rate of UK corporation tax reduced from 20 per cent to 19 per cent from 1 April 2017. A further reduction in the corporation tax rate to 17 per
cent, rather than 18 per cent, pifective from 1 April 2020 was substantively enacted in a prior period, so its effect is reflected in these financiat staiements,
Deferred tax on termparary differences and tax losses as at the balance sheet date is calculated at the substantively enacted rates at which the termporary
differences and tax losses are expected to reverse.

Income tax charged or (Credited) to equity and/or other comprehensive income during the year is as follows:

Retitement. Perpotual
Share-based benefit Fair value security [FRS @
payments? obligations® movaments* coupons® Fransition® Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m

52 weeks to 9 March 2019
Current tax recognised in equity or other comprehensive income 1) - 2 5 2) (10)
Deferred tax recognised in equity or other comprehensive income 1 216 15 - (15) 217
Income tax charged/{credited) - 216 13 (5) 17) 207
52 weeks to 10 March 2018
Current tax recognised in equity or other comprehensive incorne - {19) - (5 _ (24)
Deferred tax recognised in equity or other comprenensive income - 1g ey - 105 '
Income tax charged/(credited) - 99 (13) 5) 81

1 Recoghised in other compiehensive income.
7 Recognised inequity

The current and deferred tax in relation to the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme's remeasurements, financtal assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income fair value movernents and perpetual securities coupans have been charged or credited through other comprehensive income
where appropriate.

The rnovements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the financial year, prior to the offsetting of the balances within the same tax jurisdiction,
are shown below:

Accelerated Retirement
capital Fair value Relled over benefit  Share-based
allowances Capitallosses movements capltal gains chligations payments Other Total
£m £m £m m £m Em £m £m '
At 11 March 2018 (159) 35 (1) (85) @ 10 (19) (241)
Prior year adjustment to income statement el] 52 - - - - (21) 30
Prior year adjustment to eguity or alher - - 3 - - - - 3
cormprehensive incorme
Credit/(charge) to incorne statement 16 7 (15) 1 4 6 17 36
{Charge)/credit to equity or other comprehensive - - (20) - (241) 1) 15 (247)
income
Rate change adjustment ta income staternent (2) n [y 1] - - 1 - 5)
Rate change adjustment to equity or other
__comprenensive income ] - - 2 - 25 - - 27
At 9 March 2019 (146) 93 (50) (84) (216) 14 3 (397)
At 12 march 2017 (166) 31 (48) 84) 124 g @7 (152)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3 - 16 - - - i9
Prior year adjustment to income staterment ) 5 - 2 - 3 5)
Credit/(charge) to income statement 17 1) - 1 (11) 2 5 13
Credit/{charge) to equity or other comprehensive - - 15 - (132) - - (117}
income
Rate change adjustment to income statement 12 - - 1 - - m
Rate change adjustment to equity or ather
comnprehensive income - - 2 - 14 - 12
At 10 March 2018 (159} 35 (19) (85) 4 10 (19) (241 }
2019 2018
£m £m
Total deferred income tax labilities (504) (286)
Total deferred income tax assets 107 45
Net deferred income tax liability recognised in non-current liabilities (397) (241)

Deferied income tax assets have been recogmised in respect of all temporary differences and tax losses giving rise to deferred income tax assets because
it is probable that these assets will be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset
and the deferred income tax assets and the deferred income tax iiabilities relate to incorme taxes levied by the same taxation autharity.
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9 Earnings per share [
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares %
inissue during the year, excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Trusts (note 23), which are treated as cancelled. For diluted earnings 2.
per shave, the earnings attributable ta the ordinary sharehotders are adjusted by the interest on the senior corvertible bonds (et of tax) and by the coupons =
on the perpetual subardinated convertible bonds (net of tax). 3
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all patentially dilutive ordinary shares. These represent
share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year and
the number of shares that would be issued if all senior convertible bonds and perpetual subordinated convertible bonds are assurned to be converted.
Underlying earnings per share is provided by excluding the effect of any non-underlying iterns as defined in note 3. This alternative measure of earnings
per share is presented to reflect the Group's underlying trading performance. All operations are continuing for the periods presented.
2019 2018
million million L
Weighted average number of shares in issue 2,197.6 2186.2 @
Weighted average number of dilutive share options 421 218 %
Weighted average number of dilutive senior convertible bonds 148.1 1435 é
Weighted average number of dilutive suberdinated perpetual convertible bonds __ _ Bos 783 %
Total number of shares for calculating diluted earnings per share 2,468.6 24298 §
£m £m
Profit for the financial year (net of tax) 219 309
Less profit attributable to.
Holders of perpetual capital securities 12) (12)
Holders of perpetual convertible bonds {6) 6}
Profit for the financial year attributable t&:d{tl_a;g sharcholders 201 291
;'5"‘.
£m £m (:\!
Profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary sharehaolders 201 291 a,
Add \nterest on senior convertible bonds (net of tax) 12 12 f
idd coupon on subordinated perpetual convertible bonds (net of tax) 6 5 g
Diluted earnings for calculating diluted earnings per share 219 309 g
w
£m £m
Profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 2m 291
Adjusted for non-underlying items (note 3} 396 180
Tax on non-underlying items (131) (42)
Add back coupens on perpetual securities (net of tax)! 18 18
Underlying profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the pare;t o T T -__484 447
Add interest on convertible bonds (net of tax) 12 12
Add coupon on subordinated perpetual convertible bonds (et of tax) . & 6
Diluted underlying profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 502 465
Pence Fence
per per
share share
Basic earnings 9.1 133
Diluted earnings 8.9 127
Underlying basic earnings 220 20.4
Underlying diluted earnings 20,3 19.1

1 Underlying earnings per share calculat:on is based on underlying profit after tax altr.butable to ordinary shareholders Therefore Lthe coupons onthe perpetual securities {note 22) are added back
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10 Dividends
2019 2018
Pence per Pence per 2019 2018
share share £m £m
amounts recognised as distributions to ordinary shareholders in the year:
Final dividend of prior financial year 71 68 156 144
Interirn dividend of current financial year ) i 3.1 21 68 68
10.2 97 224 212

After the balance sheet date on 30 April 2019 a final dividend of 7.9 pence per share (2018: 7.1 pence per share) was proposed by the Directors in respect of the
52 weeks to © March 2019. This results in a total final proposed dividend of £174 million (2018: £156 million), an increase of 11.5 per cent on the previous year.
Subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting, the dividend will be paid on 12 July 2019 to the shareholders on the register at 7 June 2019.
The proposed final dividend has not been included as a liability at 9 March 2018.

11 Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policies

&) Land and buildings

Land and buildings are held at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised provision for tmpairment, Capital work in progress is held
at cost less any recognised provision for impairment. Cost includes the eriginal purchase price of the asset and the costs to bringing the asset to its working
condition for intended use. This includes capitalised borrowing costs.

b) Fixtures and equipment
Fixtures, equipment and vehicles are held at cost less accurnulated depreciation and any recognised provision for impatrment. Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and its intended use.

c) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost of the assets to their residual values, on a straight-ine basis, using the following rates: i

—- Freehald buildings and leasehold properties - 50 years, or the lease term if shorter
Fixtures, equipment and vehicles  three to 15 years
Freehold land is not depreciated

Capital work in progress 1s not depreciated.

Gains and losses on dispasal are determined by comparing proceeds less any associated costs of disposal with the asset’s carrying amount and are
recognised within operating profit

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjiisted if appropriate, at the end of cach reparting perind.

Impairment of non-financial assets .
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that

those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of its fair value less costs

to dispose and its value in use, is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (CGY) to which the asset belongs. For Retail property, plant and equipment, the CGU is deemed to be each trading stare, store pipeline developrnent
site or in the case of Argos a cluster of stores Non-store assets, including depots and IT assets, are reviewed separately, whiist Financial Services is deemed
a separate CGU.

Any impairment loss is recognised in the income statement in the year i which it occurs, Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses due to & change
in the original estirnate, the carrying amaount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, or its ariginal carrying value less
national accurnulated depreciation if lower .

Capitalisation of interest
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised to the cost of the asset, gross of tax relief,

Leased assets
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of gwnership to the Group. All other leases
are classified as operating leases. For property leases, the land and building elements are treated separately to determine the appropriate lease classification.

a) Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases are capitalised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or |
the lease term. The amount capitalised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments during the lease term.

The resulting lease obligations are included in liabilities net of finance charges. Finance costs on finance leases are charged directly to the income statement.

D) Lease incentives
Lease incentives primarily include up-front cash payments or rent-free periods. Lease incentives are capitalised and spread over the perind of the lease term.

) Leases with predetermined fixed rental increases
The Group has a nurnber of leases with predeterrnined fixed rental increases. These rental increases are accounted for on a straignt-line hasis over the term
of the lease.
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11 Property, plant and equipment continued [
Landand  Fixtures and %
buildings equipment Total %

£m £m £m g

Cost B

At 11 March 2018 10,577 5092 15,669 -

Additions 68 445 513

Disposals (87) (384) “arn)

At 9 March 2019 10,558 5,153 15,711

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 11 March 2018 2,657 3114 5,771

Depreciation expense for the year 188 461 649 —

Impairment loss for the year 2 1 3 g

Disposals o a2 (378) (a20) 2

At 9 March 2019 2,805 3,198 6,003 5

Net book value at 9 March 2019 7,753 1,955 9708 | g

Capital work-in-progress included above 135 107 242

Cost

At 12 March 2017 10,445 5.084 15,529

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 3 3

Additions 189 389 578

Disposals (55) (384) {440) 2

Transfer 10 assets held for sale o @ - (0 §

AL 10 March 2018 L 10,577 5,092 15,669 E

2

Accumulated depreciation and impairment "3“

At 12 March 2017 2494 3,029 5,523 [

Depreciation expense for the year 199 460 659 &

Disposais (36) (375) 411

At 10 March 2018 . 2657 3114 5771

Net book value at 10 March 20138 7.920 1,978 9,898

Capital work-in-progress included above 250 78 328
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11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Interest capitalised

Interest capitalised included in additions amounted to £6 million (201&: £7 million) for the Group. Accurnulated interest capitalised included in the cost
of property, plant and equipment net of disposals amounted to £336 million (2018: £340 million) for the Group. The capitalisation rate used to determine
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is 4.1 per cent (2018: 4.1 per cent).

Security
Property, plant and equipment pledged as security is as follows:

2019 2018
Net book Net book
Number of value Number of value
properties £bn properties £bn
Loan due 2018 and Loan due 2031 48 0.9 125 25
Revolving credit facility 60 1.3 50 13
Sainsbury's Property Scottish Partnership 24 0.5 24 06
Bank loans due 2018 10 0.2 10 a2z
Qther 6 0.1 6 01
148 30 225 47
Analysis of assets held under finance leases
2019 2018

Land and Fixtures and tand and Fixtures and
buildings equipment Total buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost 79 42 121 82 16 98
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (35) {6) {41) (35 (2) 37)
Net book value aa 36 80 47 14 sl

12 Intangible assets

Accounting policies

a} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodwill is considered to have an indefinite useful life. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
and aqgain whenever indicators of impairment are detected and is carried at cost less any provision for impairment.

b) Computer software

Computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment. Fxternally acquired computer software and software
licences are amortised on a straight-line basis over ther useful economic hives of five to fifteen years. Costs relating to development of computer software
for internal use are capitalised once the recognition criteria of 1AS 38, ‘Intangible Assets’ are met. Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are expensed as incurred. When the software is available for its intended use, these costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful
economic lives of five to fifteen years within administrative expenses.

<) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Intangtble assets with finite useful economic lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment and are armortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
economic lives, ranging from three to ten years, within administrative expenses

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of its fair value less costs to dispose
and its value in use, is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

Any impairment loss is recognised i the income staternent 1n the year in which it occurs. where an impairment loss, other than an impairment loss
on geodwill, subsequently reverses due to a change in the original estimate, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, or its original carrying value less notional accumulated depreciation if iower.
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12 Intangible assets continued
Computer Acquired Customer
Goodwill software brands relationships Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
AL 11 March 2018 401 525 230 32 1,188
Additions - 116 - - 116
[hsposals (t) (23) - - (24)
At 5 March 2019 B ) a00 618 230 32 1,280
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 11 March 2018 4 44 66 2 116
Amortisation expense for the year - 100 23 20 143
Disposals - {23) - - {23)
At 9 March 2019 4 121 89 22 236
Net book value at 9 March 2019 396 497 141 10 1,044
Cost
At 12 March 2017 254 429 218 01
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 147 13 12 32 204
Additions - 139 - - 139
Disposals - (56} - - (56) )
AL 10 March 2018 T 401 525 230 3% 1188
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 12 March 2017 4 50 44 - 98
Amortisation expense for the year 48 22 2 72
Disposals - (54) - - 54)
AL 10 March 2018 o 4 44 56 2 116
Net book value at 10 March 2018 397 481 164 30 1,072
Goodwill compnises the following:
2019 2018
£m £m
Jacksons Stores Limited 48 47
Home Retail Group 119 119
Sainsbury’s Bank plc 45 45
Nectar 147 147
Bells Stores Limited 16 16
Other 23 23
396 397

The goodwill balances above are allocated to the respective cash-generating units (CGUs) or group of CGUs within the Retail or Financial Services segrments.
The CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated and the level at which it is monitored in the retailing segment are deemed to be the respective acquired retail
chains of stores, whilst Financial Services is a separate CGU. Home Retail Group and Nectar are considered separate cash-generating units. The goodwill
arising on the purchases of Home Retail Group and Nectar have been allocated to the Retall segment,

The value of the goodwill was tested for impairment during the current financial year by means of comparing the recoverable amount of each CGU or group
of CGUs with the carrying value of its goodwill. The calculation of the Retall CGU's value in use is calculated on the cash flows expected to be generated by
the stores using the latest budget and forecast data. Estimates of sales and costs are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the
market. Board approved cash flow projections for five years are used and then extrapolated cut assuming flat cash flows and discounted at a pre-tax rate

of nine per cent {2018 nine per cent) over the earlier of a 25-year period (being the estimated average remaining useful life of a freehold store) or lease length

for leasehold stores.

Goodwill balances relating to Financial Services, Home Retail Group and Nectar are calculated using Board approved cash flows discounted at a pre-tax rate
of nine per cent (2018 nine per cent) over a four-year period and then into perpetuity.
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12 Intangible assets continued

Based on the operating performance of the CGUs, an impairment of goodwill of £nil million was identified in the current financial year (2018: €nil million)

The valuations indicate sufficient headroom such that a reasonably possible change to key assumptions would not result in any impairment of goodwill.
Sensitivity analysis on the impatrment tests for each group of cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated has been performed Management
are satisfied that there are no changes to assumptions that would lead to an impairment.

Additions to acquired brands and customer relationships inthe priar year arose from the acquisition of Nectar. The brand is amortised over five years whilst
the custormer relationships are amartised between one and five years. Historical additions to acquired brands arose from the acquisition of Home Retail
Group and relates to the Argos brand. This is being amortised over ten years.

13 Investments in joint ventures and associates

Accounting policies

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11, investments in jomnt arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. The Group's share of the post-tax results of its joint ventures and associates is included in the income statement using the equity method
of accounting. Where the Group transacts with a joint venture or associate, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
venture or associate.

Investments in joint ventures and assoclates are carried in the Group balance sheet at historical cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share

of net assets of the entity, less any provision for tmpairment.

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control.

The Group's principal joint venture is:

Share of
ordinary Country of
Statutory allotted  registrationor
year-end capital incorpoeration
BL Sainsbury Superstores Limited (British Land property investment) 31March 50% England

Afull st of the Group's joint ventures is included in note 39. Joint ventures with a different year-end date to the Group are reported to miclude the results up
to 28 February 2019, the nearest manth-end to the Group's year-end. Adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occurred
between 28 February and the Group's balance sheet date.

Other
British joint
Land ventures Total
£m £m £m
At 11 March 2018 187 45 232
Additions - 5 5
Disposals - (5) (5)
Dividends and distributions received ) (18) - {18)
Share of retained profit: )
Underlying profit/(loss) after tax 9 1) 8
Investment property fair value movements - 2) 2
Finance fair value movements 2) - (2)
Share of {loss)/profit on disposal of properties 3) 3 -
Share of joint venture profit after tax 4 - 4
Disposals from the Group - 13) 13)
At 9 March 2019 173 32 205
At 12 March 2017 205 32 237
Additions - 9 9
Disposals (2) 12
Dividends and distributions received (30) {7} (37)
Share of retained (loss)/profit: ,
Underlying profit after tax 10 4 14
Investment property fair value movements ) 7
Finance fair value movements )] - [€)]
Share of (loss)/profit on disposal of properties 7 i (6)
Share of joint venture (loss)/profit after tax n 13 12
Dispasals from the Graup 13 : 13

AU10 March 2018 ' 187 45 232
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13 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

[l
In the prior year, on 1 February 2018, as part of the acquisition of Nectar the Group acquired an additional 50 per cent of the share capital of Insight 2 %
Communication LLP, previously a joint venture, making the company a wholly-owned subsidiary which has been consolidated within the Group's resulls 2
from the date of acquisition anwards. The joint venture had a carrying value of £2 million and a fair value of £6 million, leading te & non-underlying gain =
of £4 million. =
The total assets, liabilities, incorne and expenses of the Group's principal joint venture BL Sainsbury Superstores Limited are detailed below.
2019 2018
£Em £m
Non-current assets 488 522
Current assets 32 80
Current liabilities (15) (21
Non-current liabilities 172) (221) L
Joint venture net assets o 333 - —560 . o
Group share of joint venture net assets (at 50%) 167 180 E
Goodwill 5 5 §
Unrealised loss on disposal of properties o 1 2 ’E
Rie]
3
Group share of joint venture net assets as disclosed above o 173 & -
Revenue 32 40
Other expenses (11) 28)
Interest expenses (12) (15}
Joint venture profit/(ioss) before tax 9 3)
Analysed as:
Underlying profit before tax 20 24 o
Investrment property fair value movermnents - @ §
Finance fair value movements @ (6} s
Loss on disposal of properties S @ o9 I
9 @ S
Underlying income tax expense 2) {4) (En
Non-underlying income tax credit - 5 %
Joint venture profit/(loss) after tax 7 @
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 7 [Vl

The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities nor capital commitments other than those disclosed in notes 34 and 36

14 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(previously available-for-sale financial assets)

Accounting policies

Financial assets that are held for both the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows and to sell are classified as fair value through other comprehensive
ncorme (FYOCT). They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date. Subsequent to initial recogmtion at fair value plus transaction costs, these assets are recorded at faw value at each period end with the movements
recogrised in other comprehensive incorne until derecognition or impaired. On derecogniticn, the cumulative gain or loss previously Tecognised in other
comprehensive income reserves is recognised in the income statement for debt instruments. Gains and losses on equity instruments are never recycled to
the income staternent. Dividenids on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incarme are recognised in the incerne staterment when the
entity’'s nght ta receve payment is established Interest on financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income debt instrurments is recegnised
using the effective interest method.

2010 2018
£m £m
Non-current
Equity
Other financial assets 233 177
Debt
Interest bearing financial assets 1 40
Financial Services related investment securities 411 373
a 645 540
Current
Debt
Financial Services related investment securities 211 203

856 743
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14 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(previously available for sale financial assets) continued

The other financial asset predominantly represents the Group's beneficial interest in a cornmercial property investment poal. The farr value of the other
financial asset is based an discounted cash flows assumning a property rental growth rate of 0.6 per cent (2018: 0.6 per cent) and a weighted average cost
of capital of nine per cent (2018: nine per cent). There were no disposals in the current year (2018: £1.6 million) and no impairment provisions in either the
current or the previous financial year. Interest bearing debt securities with a fair value of £33 million matured during the financial year.

15 Inventories

Accounting policies

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and properties held for resale or in the course of development and are valued on a welghted average cost basis
and carried at the lower of cost and net realisable valug. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Cost includes all direct expenditure and other appropriate attributable costs incurred in bringing
inventeries to their present location and condition.

2019 2018
Em £m
Goods held for resale ) 1,929 . lslo

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense and charged to cost of sales far the 52 weeks to 9 March 2018 was £21,720 rultion (2018: £21,209 million).

16 Receivables
(a) Trade and other receivables

Accounting policies
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are on commercial terms. Other receivables include both non-interest and interest bearing receivables.
Trade and other receivables are stated at their carrying amounts and are written off when management desms therm uncollectable or forgiven.

2019 2018
£m £m
Non-current
Other receivables 25 35
Prepayments and accrued income 8
o 33 44
Current
Trade receivahles 144 17
Other receivables ) 32 470
466 587
Prepayments and accrued income 195 157
661 744

Current other receivables of £322 million (2018: £470 million), which include £182 million [2018: £213 million) of bank funds in the course of settlernent,
are generally non-interest bearing. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in sterling.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from its retail cperations is minimal given that the customer base is large and unrelated and that the overwhelming
rnajority of customer transactions are settled through cash or secure electronic means. New parties wishing to obtain credit terms with the Group are credit
checked prior to invoices being raised and credit limits are determined on an individual basis.

(b) Amounts due from Financial Services customers

Accounting policies
toans and advances are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment and recognised on the balance sheet when cash is advanced.

The accounting policies for impairment under IFRS 8 are detailed in note 25.

2019 2018
£m £m

Non-current
Loans and advances to cystarmers 3,426 2373
Impairment of loans and advancas ) B 77y @n
i 3,349 2332

Current

Loans and advances to cystomers 3,808 3,451
Impairment of loans and advances (170) 91

3,638 3,360
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16 Receivables continued

Loans and advances to customers accrue interest at the effective interest rate. Financial Services has pledged the rights to £1,476 million (2018: £1,519 rmullion)
of its personal loans book with the Bank of England as collateral for its funding facilities As at @ March 2019 £950 million (2018 £950 million) of borrowings
wera drawn under the Term Funding Scherme and £75 million (2018 £nil) of borrowings were drawn under the Indexed Long Term Repo facility

Financial Services has assigned the beneficial interest in £334 million (2018 £379 millwen) of its personal loans book to a Special Purpose Entity for use
as collateral in securitisation transactions, facilitating £275 million (2018: £312 rillion) of drawings.

Refer ta note 24 for detalls on Financial Services credit risk

{c) Provision for impairment of loans and advances

2019 2018

Incurred Incurred

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 loss Total loss

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Opering provision — - - (£32) (132) 129)

IFRS 9 opening balance adjustments (35) {58) (111) 132 (72)

Transfers between stages 31 q (35) - - -

Additional provisions less amounts recovered (8) (10) (2) - (20) 68)
Write-offs - 1 54 - 55 26

Changes in credit risk during the year (22) (1) (55) - (78} 1)

Closing provision (34 (64) (149) - (247) (132)

(d) Major counterparties
The Group has one major counterparty totalling £30 million (2018: £67 million). No major counterparty balances are considered overdue or impaired.

17 Assets and liabilities held for sale

Accounting policies

Assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount s to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This candition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable within one year from the date of classification and the assets
and liabilities are financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income in their present condition. Assets held for sale are stated at the lower
of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to dispose.

20189 2018
£m £m

Assets held for sale
Retail segment properties 8 9

0f the Group's assets held for sale at 10 March 2018, £1 million were sold during the current financial year. For the remaiming assels, the sale is still considered
probable in the next financial year and so they rerain classified as held for sale

18 Payables

(a) Trade and other payables

Accounting policies

The Group's pelicy on paymeny of creditors is to agree terms of payrment prior to commenang trade with a supplier and to abide by those terms

on the timely submission of satisfactory invoices.

Accruals and deferred income/gains includes accounting for leases with fixed rental increases and lease incentives on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

2019 2018
£m £m
Current

Trade payables 3,034 2,852
Cther payables 561 598
Accruals and deferred incorne/gains 839 872
4,444 4,322

Non-current
Other payables 20 12
Accruals and deferred income/gains ) 330 301
' 320 313

Foreign currency risk
The Group has net euro denominated trade payables of £50 mullion (2018: £35 million) and US dollar denominated trade payables of £209 million

{2018 £56 million).
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18 Payables continued
{b) Amounts due to Financial Services customers and banks

Accounting policies
With the exception of fixed rate bonds, amounts due to Financial Services customers are generally repayable on demand and accrue interest at retail deposit

rates.

2019 2ms
£m £m
Current
Customer accounts 5,514 4,667
Other deposits, 167 49
Senior secured [oan notes 116 125
' ' 5,797 4,841
Non-current
Customer accounts 436 313
Other deposits 1,209 1,183
Senior secured loan notes B 159 187
1,804 1,683

sainsbury's Bank, via its subsidiary undertakings. has entered a £300 mitlion (2018, £400 million) asset backed commercial paper securitisation of consumer
loans. OF this facility, £275 million had been drawn as at 9 March 2019 (10 March 2018: £312 million). Interest on the notes is repayable at a floating rate linked
to three-month LIBOR and their contractual repayment is determined by cash flows on the relevant personal loans included in the collateral pool

Other depasits of £1,376 million (2018, £1,232 million) relate to deposits from wholesale counterparties.

19 Provisions

Accounting policies and key information

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and where the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value

of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time s recognised as interest expense.

Onerous lease and contract provisions

The need for prowisions for onerous leases, measured net of expected rental incomie, is assessed when Lhe leased property becomes vacant and is no longer
used in the operations of the business or when the leased property relates to an unprofitable trading store. Pravisions for dilapidation costs are recognised
on a lease-by-lease basis.

Provisions for gnerous leases are recognised where expected cash outflows exceed the anticipated future benefits. The amounts provided are based on the
Group's best estimate of the likely committed outflow, net of anticipated future benefils and after any impairment of pipeline development site assets where
applicable.

The onetous lease pravision covers residual lease commitments of up to an average of 34 years (2018, 34 years), after allowance for existing or anticipated
sublet rental ihcome.

Insurance provisions

The provision relates to the Group's autstanding insurance claims liabilities in relation to public and employer's liability claims, and third party motor claims.
Claims provisions are based on assurnptions regarding past claims experience and on assessments by an independent actuary and are intended to provide
a best estimate of the most likely or expected outcome.

Restructuring provisions

A restructlring provision is recognised when the Group has develaped a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised avalid expectation in those
affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement
of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuning. The charge for the year is driven by the announced
transformational changes to the Group's in-stare operating model, responding to changing customer shopping habits and reducing costs throughout the
store estate.

Financial services related provisions

Financial services related provisions are primarily in relation to Argos Financial Services customers in respect of potential redress payable arising from

the historic sates of Payment Protection Insurance (PRI, and in respect of potential customer tedress payable in relation to other customer conduct issues
arising from a review of the governance and risk management framework. In addition, ECL provisions are included n relation to loan commitrments not
yet recognised on the balance sheet

with regards to PPI provisions, the eventual cost is dependent o response rates, upheld rates, complaint rates, redress costs and claim handling costs.
The provision represents management's best estimate of future costs and (s expected to be fully utilised by August 2019 due to the claim deadline.

The remaining customer redress costs incorporate detailed calculations combined with historic experience, therefore elements of these estimates are
imherently uncertain and the ultimate financial impact may be different from that provided The prowision reflects managernent’s best estirnates and
is expected to be utilised within one year

Other provisions
Provisions for warranties and iong service awards have been included within other provisions
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19 Provisions continued
Onerous Financial
leases and Services
onerous Insurance related Other
contracts provisions Restructuring provisions provisions Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 11 March 2018 124 78 94 52 19 367
IFRS 9 opening adjustment — - - 14 - 14
Additional provisions 30 29 &7 10 18 154
Unused amounts teversed 8) (6) - (6) - (20)
Utiisation of provision (a0) (30) {139) (13) (17) (239)
Amortisation of discount 7 - - - - 7
At9March 2018 7 us 71 22 57 20 283
At 12 March 2017 100 80 50 83 21 334
Additional provisions 60 35 21 - 12 188
Unused amounts reversed 3 12) - 6) (21)
Utilisation of provision (38) (25) (37} (31) (8) {139)
Arnortisation of discount 5 - - 5
At 10 March 2018 o 124 78 94 52 19 367
2019 2018
£€m £m
Disclosed as:
Current 123 201
Non-current 160 166
" T 283 367
20 Calted up share capital, share premium and merger reserve
Accounting policies
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
2019 2018 2019 2018
million million £m £m
Called up share capital
Allotted and fully paid ordinary shares 2&Y,p 2,206 2,194 630 627
Share premium account i
Share premium 1,147 ],130“
The moverments in the called up share capital, share premium and merger reserve are set out below:
Number of Share
ordinary Ordinary premium Merger
shares shares account raserve
rillion £m £m 3]
At 11 March 2018 2,194 627 1,130 568
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 12 3 17 -
At 9 March 2019 2,206 630 1,47 568
At 12 March 2017 2188 625 1,120 568
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 6 2 10 -
AL 10 March 2018 2,194 627 1,130 568
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21 Capital redemption and other reserves

J Sainsbury pic Annual Report 2013

Financial assets
at fair value
Currency through other Capitat
lation 1 Cash flow Convertible Total ather redemption
reserve income hedge bondreserve reserves reserve
&m £m £m £m £m £m
At 11 March 2018 4 156 (52) 13 121 680
Currency translation differences 1 - - - 1 -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 46 - - 46 -
movements
Iterns reclassified from financial assets at fair value through other - (10) - - (10) -
comprehensive income reserve
Cash flow hedges effective portian of fair value mavermerts (net of tax} - - &7 - 67 -
Items reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve - - (45) - (as5) -
Amortisation of corwertible bond — equity compaonent ) - - - (8) ® =
At 9 March 2019 5 192 (30) 5 172 680
At 12 March 2017 8 143 21 21 193 680
Currency translation differences 4) - (4) -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 1 - - 1
movements
Items reclassified from financial assets at fair value through other - 2 2 -
comprehensive income reserve
Cash flow hedges effective portion of fair value movements (net of tax) - (123) - (123) -
Itermns reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve - 50 - 50 -
Amartisation of convertible bond - equity component - ) 8 @ -
At10 March 2018 4 156 (52) 13 121 680

The currency translation reserve represents the cumulative foreign exchange differences on the translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign operations

from their functional currency to the presentation currency of the parent.

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income reserve Tepresents the fair vaiue gans and losses on the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income held by the Group. The cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative effective fair value gains and iosses on cash

flow hedges in the Group.

The cenvertible bond reserve represents the equity component of the £450 million convertible bond issued in Novernber 2014,

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares. Shareholders approved a £680 million return of share capital, by way of a B share
scheme, at the Cormpany's Extraordinary General Meeting on 12 July 2004, The final redemption date for B shares was 18 July 2007 and alt transactions

relating to the B shares have now been completed

22 Perpetual securities
Accounting policies and key information

Perpetual securities (perpetual capital securities and perpetual convertible bonds) are 1ssued securities that qualify for recognition as equity. Accordingly any
periodic returns are accounted far as dividends and recognised directly in equity and as a liability at the time it becomes obligated to pay the periodic return.

Any associated tax impacts are recognised directly in equity.

On 30 July 2015 the Group issued £250 million of perpetual subordinated capital securities and £250 million of perpetual subordinated convertible bonds,
collectively known as perpetual securities. Costs directly associated with the issue of £6 million were offset against the value of the proceeds. The securities
are perpetual with no fixed redemption date. Holders of the perpetual securities do not benefit from any put option rights; however the Group does have the
right to call the perpetual subordinated capital securities at their principal amount on 30 July 2020, and the perpetual subordinated convertible bonds on

30 July 2021. The perpetual subordinated convertible bonds may be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the option of the holders at any time

up to 23 July 2021 at a conversion price of 307.5443 pence.

The Group has the right ta defer coupons an the perpetual securities on any coupon payment date where the Company has not either paid a dividend
on its ordinary shares or bought back ordinary shares (excluding shares bought to satisfy employee share schemes) within the previous 12-month peniod
The coupon rate on the perpetual subordinated capital securities increases after the fifth anniversary and for the perpetual subordinated corvertible bonds

after the sixth anniversary,
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22 Perpetual securities continued @
The next coupon date on the perpetual securities is 30 July 2019. As the Company paid a dividend to ordinary sharehalders in the 12 months prior to this date %
{in January 2019), the periodic distributions of £16 million (2018 £16 million) for the perpetual subordinated capital securities and £7 million (2018: £7 million) 2.
for the perpetual subordinated convertible bonds have been recagnised in the financial year. =
!
&)
Perpetual Perpetual -
capital convertible
securities bonds
£m £m
At 11 March 2018 248 248
Distributions to holders of perpetual securities (16) (vd)
Current tax relief on distributions to holders of perpetual securities 4 1
Profit for the year attributable to holders of perpetual securities 12 6
At 9 March 2019 248 248 L
g
At 12 March 2017 248 248 &
Distributions to holders of perpetual securities {16} 7) %
Current tax rehef on distributions to holders of perpetual securities 4 1 %
Profit for the year attributable to holders of perpetuat securities 12 6 é”
At 10 March 2018 ' 248 248 =
23 Retained earnings
Profitand Total retained
Own shares loss account earnings
£fm £m £m
At 11 March 2018 (6) 3,795 3,789
Day 1 accounting adjustments (net of tax) - (73) (74)
Frofit for the year - 201 201 %1
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension schemes (het of tax) - 1,053 1,053 %
Dividends paid - (229) (224) o
Amortisation of convertible bond — equity component - 8 8 %
Share-based payment (net of tax) - 38 38 g
Purchase of own shares (30) - (30) o
Allotted in respect of share option schemes N 17 (15) 2 @
At 9 March 2019 ) ' (19) 4782 4763
At 12 March 2017 (11 3,201 3,190
Profit for the year - 291 291
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension schemes (net of tax) - 493 493
Dividends paid - {212) (212)
Amortisation of convertible bond — equity component - 8 8
Share-based payment (net of tax) - 33 33
Purchase of own shares [14) - (14)
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 19 19} -
6) 3,795 3789

At 10 March 2018

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) trusts

The Group owns 7,240,112 (2018: 2,421,178) of its ordinary shares of 284/ pence nominal value each. At 9 March 2018, the total nominal value of the own

shares was £2.1 million {(2018: £0.7 million).

All shares (2018: all shares) are held by Group trusts for the Executive Share Plans. All Group trusts waive the rights to the dividends receivable inrespect

of the shareholder under the ahove schemes.

The cost of the own shares is deducted from equity in the Group financial statements. The market value of the own shares at 9 March 2019 was £16 million

(2018 £6 million).
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24 Financial risk management
The principal financial risks faced by the Group relate to hquidity risk, counterparty credi risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, commodity risk and
capital risk

Financial risk management is managed by a central treasury department in accordance with policies and guidelines which are reviewed and approved by
the Board of Directars. The nsk management policies are designed to minirmse potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance by dentifying
financial exposures and setting appropriate risk limits and controls. The risk managerment policies also ensure sufficient liquidity is available to the Graup

to meet foreseeable financial obligations and that cash assets are invested safely.

Financial risk management with respect to Financial Services is separately managed within the Financial Services’ governance structure The risks are more
fully described in the Financial Services section on page 135

The Group uses forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange and commedity exposures, and interest rate swap contracts o hedge interest rate exposures.
The use of financial dervatives is governed by Board approved policies which prohibit the use of derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group could be unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The principal cperational cash flow of the Group is largely stable and predictable reflecting the low business risk prafile of the food retail sector and the

cyclical profite of the non-food retail sector. Cash flow forecasts are produced to assist management in identifying future liquidity requirements The Group's
liquidity policy sets a minimum funding headroom of £400 million trr excess of forecast net debt over a rolling 12-month tirne horizon. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining a core of long-dated borrawings, pre-funding future cash flow commitments and holding contingent committed credit facilities.

In June 2018 the £1,450m RCF was extended by one year. The £1,450m facility is split into two facilities, a £300 rnillion Facility (A) rnaturing in April 2024 and
a £1,150 million Facility (B) consisting of three tranches; a £300 million tranche A maturing October 2021, a £400 million tranche B maturing October 2022
and a £450 tranche € maturing October 2023 As at 9 March 2019, £35 million had been drawn (2018: £nil).

In December 2018, a new £100 million uncommitted facility was agreed to provide an additional capacity to fund short-term working capital requirements,
Drawdowns an this facility bear interest at a margin over LIBOR. The uncammitted facility was £100 million drawn at 9 March 2019 (2018: £nil)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the rernaining period to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractuat undiscounted cash flows or an estimate of cash flows in Tespect of floating interest rate liabilities.

1ess than one one to Tweo to Morg than
year two years five years five years
Group £m £m £m £m
At 9 March 2019
Non-derivative financial labilities
Secured loans:
Loan due 202" 7)) 73) (236) (619)
Unsecured loans;
Bank overdraft (1) - - -
Short-term barrowings (135) - - -
Bank loans due 20197 (199) - - -
Convertible bond due 2019 (450) — — -
Finance lease obligations’ (23) 13) 3N {202)
Trade and other payables (4,187) - - -
Armounts due to Finan¢ial Services customers and banks® (5,836) (738) (1,086) 2
Derivative contracts - net settled ’
Commodity contracts 1 - - -
Interest rate swaps in hedging relationships' * - 1 7 -
Derivative contracts — gross settled |
Fareign exchiange fcrw;rds autflow? (1,342} {63} . -
Fareign exchange forwards - inflow? 1,351 64 - -
Commadity contracts - outflow (11) [hh 1] (21) 22)
Commodity contracts - inflow 11 1 20 26
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24 Financial risk management continued

Less than ane One to twg Two to five More than
year years years five years
im £m £m £m
At 10 March 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured loans:

Loan due 2018 [575) - -

Loan due 2031° 68) (71 (227) (698)
Unsecured loans:

Bank overdraft 2)

Bank leans due 20157 4 (202) -

Convertible bend due 2019 6) {453) - -
Finance lease abhgations? (37) (18) (27) {203)
Trade and cther payables (4,037)

Amounts due to Financial Services customers and banks® [4,841) (722} {1,205) -
Derivative contracts — net settled ; T
Commodity contracts T 1 - - -
Interest rate swaps in hedging relationships’ = o 7 8 8 -
Derivative contracts — gross settled

Foreign exchange forwards — outflow® (1,366) 69 -

Foreign exchange forwards — inflow? 1323 68 -

Commodity contracts —outflow (15) [26) (25) 4
Commodity contracts - inflow 13 20 22 5

Assumptions:

Cash flows relating to debt and swaps linked to inflation rates have been calculated using an RPI of 4 © per cent for the year ended 9 March 2019, 2.6 pa1 cent for the year ending 8 March 2020 and

3 4 per cent for fulure years (2018 RPI of 2 6 per cent for the year ended 10 March 2018, 2.7 per cent for the year ending 3 March 2019 and ? 7 per cent for future years)

Cash flows relating to debt bearing a fHoat:ng interest rate have heen calrulated using prevailing interest rates as at 9 March 2019 and 10 March 2018

Cash flows in foreign currencies have been translated using spet rates as al 9 March 20139 and 10 March 2018

The swap rate that matehes the remaining term of the ‘'nterest rate swap as at 9 varch 2019 has been used ta calculate the floating rate cash flows over the life of the interest rate swaps shown above
(2018 10 March 2018)

Cash Hlows relating to amounts due ta Samsbury's Bank custamers and banks are calculated using contractual terms and interest rates for fixed rate mstruments Where balances are contractually
repayable on demand. behav oural assumptions are applied to estimate the interest payable on those balances. These are shown as due within one year

ENOEREN] —

-

Further information relating to liquidity risk in Financial Services is more fully described in the separate section on Financial Services financial risk factors
on page 35.

Counterparty credit risk

Counterparty credit risk1s the nisk of a financial loss arising from counterparty default or non-performance in respect of the Group's holdings of cash and
cash equivatents, derivative financial assets, deposits with banks, investments in marketable securities, trade and cther receivables and loans and advances
to customers. The Group considers its maximum credit risk to be £9,485 million (2018, £8,814 million), equivalent to the Group's total financial assets and
commitments, and of this amount £8,891 mithon relates to Financial Services {2018 £7,798 million).

The Group (excluding Financial Services) sets counterparty limits for each of its banking and investment counterparties based on their credit ratings. The
minimum unsecured long-term credit rating accepted by the Group is BBB- {Standard & Poor's and Fitch) or Baa3 (Moody's) or, in the case of sterling liquidity
funds, AAA or Aaa/MR1+ from Moody's. In the event of a split credit rating, the lower rating applies.

The table below analyses the Group’s cash and cash equivalents by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store cash, cash in transit and cash at ATMs

Group Group

2018 2018

Counterparty Lang-term rating £m £m
Financial institutions — Money market funds AAAM/Aaa - 299
Financial institutions Money market deposits AAAM/ARa 84 30
Financial institutions  Money market deposits AA+/halto AJAZ 120 66
Deposits at central barks AA+fAal 308 683

Management does not expect any losses arising from non-performance of deposit counterparties.
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24 Financial risk management continued

Interest rate swaps, forward contracts and commodity contracts are used by the Group to hedge interest rate, fareign currency and fuel exposures The table
below analyses the fair value of the Group's derivative financial assets by credit exposure, excluding any collateral held.

Group Group

2019 018

Counterparty Long-term rating £m £m

Interest rate swaps AA+AGL to AJAZ 10 22

FX forward contracts Ab+/Aalto AIA? 18 2
FX forward contracts AfAD- 10 BBB+/Baal -

Commodity forward contracts AA+iAal to A/A2 2 2

Further information retating to counterparty credit risk in Financial Services is more fully described in the section on Financial Services financial risk factors
on page 135,

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of increased costs arising from unexpected movernents in exchange rates impacting the Group's fareign currency denorminated
supply contracts.

The Group's currency risk policy seeks to limit the impact of fluctuating exchange rates on the Group's incorne statermnent by requiring highly probable foreign
currency cash flows to be hedged Highly probable future cash flows, which may he either contracted or un-contracted, are hedged on a layered basis using
foreign currency forward contracts.

The Group has exposure to currency risk on batances held in forgign currency denominated bank accounts, which may arise due to short-term timing
differences on maturing hedges and underlying supplier pagments.

The Group considers that a ten per cent movement in exchange rates against sterling is a reasonable measure of volatility. The impact of a ten per cent
maverment in the exchange rate of US dollar and euro versus sterling as at the balance sheet date, with all other vanables held constant, is surmmarised in
the table below:

2019 2019 2018 2018

Change in Change in Changein Change in

exchange exchange exchange exchange

rate impact rate impact rate impact rate impact

onpost-tax  on cash flow on post-tax on cash flow

profit hedgereserve profit  hedge reserve

+-10% +-10% +H-10% +-10%

Group £m £m m £
USD/GBP M1 (101)/123 194190 (©@8)/119
EUR/GBP 1M1 (23)y28 (1) (19)/23

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of increased costs or lower income arising from unexpected movements in inferest rates and inflation rates impacting

on the Group's borrowing and investment portfolios. The Group's interest rate policy seeks to limit the imipact of fluctuating interest and iniflation rates
by maintaining a diversified mix of fixed rate, floating rate and variable capped rate liabilities.

Interest on financial instruments {s classified as fixed rate if interest re-sets on the borrowings are less frequent than once every 12 months. Interest on
financial instruments is classified as floating rate if interest re-sets on the borrowings occur every 12 months or more frequentiy. Floating rate instruments
are considered variable capped rate if the nominal interest rate is subject to a cap.
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The mix of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date was as follows:
Variable
Fined Floating capped Total

Group £m £ £m £m
At 9 March 2019
Inte-est bearing financial assets at farr value through other comprehensive income 174 449 - 623
Amounts due from Financial Services customers 4,461 2,526 - 6,987
Cash and cash equivalents 1,005 116 - 1,121
Borrowings {621) (335) (704) (1,660)
Finance lease abligations (88) (34) - (122)
Armounts due to Financial Services customers and hanks (1,124) 6,477) - (7,601)
Derwvative effect.

[nterest rate swaps (4,106) 4,106 - -

Inflation-linked swaps 540 - (540) -
Total 241 351 (1,244) (652)
At 10 March 2018
Interest bearing financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income financial assets 526 40 - 566
Amounts due from Financial Services customers 3,089 2,603 - 5,692
Cash and cash equivalents £&3 1,147 - 1,730
Borrowings (1,182} (201) (730) (2.113)
Finance lease obligations (87) (40) (127)
Amounts due to Financial Services customers and banks (739) (5.785) (6.524)
Derivative effect:

Interest rate swaps (2.607) 2,607 - -

Inflation-linked swaps {590) - 5480 -
Total (1,007) 371 (140) 778)

Further information relating to interest rate risk in Financial Services is more fully described in the section on Financial Services financial risk factors

on page 135
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24 Financial risk management continued

(i) Cash flow sensitivity for floating rate instruments

The Group considers that a 100 basis point movement in interest rates is a reasonable measure of voiatility. The sensitivity of floating rate balances to

a change of 100 basis ponts in the interest rate (or such lesser amount as would result in a zero rate of interest) at the halance sheet date is shown below:

2019 2018

2019 Impact on 2018 Impacton

Impacton cash flow Impacton cash flow

post-tax hedge post-tax hedge

profit reserve profit Teserve

£m £m £m £m

Change in floating rate +/-100bps (75 1/1) (8)/5 10/(5)

(i) Cash flow sensitivitu for variable capped rate liabilities
The Group holds £704 million of capped inflation-linked borrowings (2018: £730 million) of which £540 million (2018: £590 million) have been swapped into
fixed rate borrowings using inflation rate swaps maturing April 2019 to April 2023,

The Group considers that a 100 basis peint movement in the RPLrate is a reasonable measure of volatility. The sensitivity of variable capped balances
to a change of 100 basis points in the RPI rate at the balance sheet date is shown below:

2019 2018

2019 Impact on 2018 Tmpact on

Impact on cash flow Impact on cash flow

post-tax hedge post-tax hadge

profit reserve prafit TESETVE

£m £m €£m £m
Change in floating rate +/-100bps (/1 17/(17) 6)/6 20/(22)

Commeodity risk
Commadity risk is the risk of increased costs arising from unexpected movements in commadity prices impacting the Group's own use consumntion of
electricity, gas and diesel.

The Group hedges own use consumption of electricity and gas with forward purchases under flexible purchasing arrangements with its suppliers. The Group
uses & combination of purchasing agreements and finandial derivatives to hedge fuel exposures on a layered basis using contracts for difference.

The Group cansiders a ten per cent movement in commodity prices a reasonable measure of volatility.

2019 2018

Impact on Impacton

cash flow cash flow

hedge hedge

reserve TESETVE

£m £m

Change in the fair value of electricity, diesel and gas price +/-10% 3/(3) 24(2)

Capital risk management
The Group defines capital as total eguity plus net deht.

The Board's capital objective is to maintain a strong and efficient capital base to support the Group’s strategic objectives, provide optimal returns for
shareholders and safequard the Group's status as a going cancern. There has been no change to capital risk management policies during the year.

The Board monitors a broad range of financial metrics including return on capital employed, balance sheet gearing and fixed charge cover.

The Board can manage the Group's capital structure by diversifying the debt portfolio, adjusting the size and timing of dvidends paid to shareholders,
recycling capital through sale and leaseback transactions, issuing new shares or repurchasing shares in the apen market and flexing capital expenditure

From time-to-time the Company purchases its own shares in the market for the purpose of issuing shares under the Group’s share option programmes;
however the Group does not operate a defined shave buy-back plan.

Part of the Group's capital risk management is to ensure compliance with the general covenants included in the Group's varous barrowing facilities.
There have been no breaches of general covenants in the financial year ended 9 March 2019.

Information relating to Financial Services capital risk management is detailed on page 135.
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24 Financial risk management continued

Financial Services
Sainsbury's Bank (including Argos Financial Services) has identified a set of primary risk types (see table) that are actively managed by the Sainsbury’s Bank
Board Risk Committee (BRC) and Executive Risk Committee {ERC) in line with the guiding nsk principles and overall risk appetite approved by the

Sainsbury’s Bank Board.

1 Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 135

Financial primary risk

Primary risk

How we manage the risk

Liquidity and funding risk

The risk that the Bank is unable to meet 1ts obligations as they fall
due or can only do so at excessive cost.

How the risk may arise. Loss of confidence in the Bank leading to
a material and rapid outflow of savings depasits and/or difficulties
in accessing wholesale funding markets

Daily monitoring and reporting of key Liquidity and Funding EWIs,
with triggers in place for escalation

Liguidity and funding targets built into our strategic planmng
and capital plans

- The annual ILAAP review determines the adequacu of liquidity

and funding plans

Liquidity Contingency Plan in place with identified management
actions under stress conditions

Market risk

The risk of loss as a result of the value of financial assets or liabilities
{including off balance sheet instruments) being adversely affected
by movements in market rates or prices.

How the risk may arise: The Bank does not have a trading book, but is
exposed to the impact of sudden changes in interest rates on its lending

book as well as market risk in the assets held for liquidity purposes,

A range of market risk limits are in place. Exposures are modelled
and reported on a regular basis

— Hedging risk management strategies used to reduce exposures

to earnings volatility

-- Behavioural assumptions are applied to the treatment of non-

Interest bearing balances and expectations within the Bank's
balance sheet

Retail credit risk

Losses arising from a retail customer failing to meet their agreed
repayment terms as they fall due.

How the risk may arise: Changes in the ecenomnic conditions in the
UK may impact on the ability of our customers to repay their loans
leading to an increase in levels of bad debt.

We lend respansibly, considering the suitability of the product
to meet our customers’ needs and their ability to repay any debt

we have policies in place to support vulnerable customers and
thase in financial difficulties

Credit decisioning based on information from a number of credut
related sources

Regular stress testing is undertaken using a varlety of plausible
stress scenarios

Wholesale credit risk
Losses arising from institutional counterparties fathng to meet their
contractual cash flow cbligations.

How the risk may arise. Default or downgrades in the credit rating
of counterparties.

Counterparty limits and credit assessment processes are in place
to control exposure levels

- Key ratios are monitored and reported on a daily basis with triggers

in place for escalation

Investment activity for liquid assets focused on a small set of asset
classes with proven credit performance

Capital adequacy risk
Holding insufficient capital to absorb losses in normal and stressed
conditions or the ineffective deployment of capital.

Target risk appetite range for level of capital held

Daily monitoring and reporting of capital position, with triggers
in place for escalation

How the risk may arise: Changes in economic conditions or regulatory

—- Projected capital position updated for any changes in business
requiremnents may impact on the level of capital resources required.

strategy or the external environment
— Capital adeqguacy built in to our strategic planning and capital plans

— The annual ICAAP review deterrnines the adequacy of the level
and type of capital resources held

Further detail on each of these risks is shown below

Liquidity and funding risk
Ligutdity risk 1 the risk that the Bank cannot meet its payment obligations as they fall due, or can only do so at extreme cost. We seek to ensure that we
can meet our financial obligations at all times, even under liquidity stress conditions.

The annual Internal Liquidity Adeguacy Assessrnent Pracess {ILAAP) enables the Bank to
1. Identify and assess its mast relevant liquidity risk drivers

2 Quantify its liquidity needs under various stress scenanos and

3. Putin place appropriate controls to mitigate liquidity risks.

In meeting its internal limits as well as PRA requirements, the Bank maintains a stock of gh quality liquid assets that can be readily monetised by outrnight
sale or repurchase agreement to meet the Bank's obligations to depositors and other creditors.
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The Bank’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) are reqularly monitored and forecast alongside cash flow and funding ratios.
We prepare long-term and short-term forecasts to assess liquidity requirernents, taking into atcount factors such as ATM cash management, contractual
maturities and customer deposit patterns (stable or less stable deposits) as well as outflows regarding undrawn commitments. These reports support daily
liquichty rmanagement, with early warning indicators reviewed on a daily basis and appropriate triggers for escalation and action int line with the risk appetite,
Liquidity and Funding Policy and Liquidity Contingency Plan. Asset encumbrance ratios and risk indicators for wholesale funding concentrations by type
(total/secured/unsecured), maturity, sector, gecgraphy and counterparty are also regularly monitored and reported to ALCO

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the Bank's assets, liabilities, capital and earnings are exposed to the adverse change of the market risk drivers,
The Bank's market risks indude Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Bock (IRRBB) and foreign exchange (FX) risk. The Bank does not have a trading book

a) Interest rate risk

IRRBB arises from interest rates movements which impact present value and timing of future cash flows resulting in changes the underlying value of a
bank’'s assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments and hence its economic value, Interest tates mavernents also aflect a bank’s earnings by attering
interest-sensitive iIncome and expenses, affecting its net interest income.

The main types of interest rate risk faced by the Bank are:
Re-pricing gap risk: the risk arising from timing differences in the interest rate changes of bank assets and liabilities (e.g. fixed rate personal loans
and instant access savings accounts).
vield curve risk: the risk arising from changes in the slope and shape of the yield curve.
Basis tisk: risk arising frornimperfect correlation between different interest rate indices (e g. adrninistered rate on savings products and treasury assets
linked to LIBOR).
Prepayment risk; the risk arising from the timing of customer prepayments which differ from planning and hedging assumptions,
~— Pipeline risk: the risk of a customer drawing down, or not, a product at a rate which is unfavourable far the Bank.

-— Swap spread risk: the Bank holds a portfolio of liquid assets that are hedged using interest rate swaps; there is a risk that the yield on the assets
and the swaps do not move in line together resulting in loss.

Interest Tisk exposuie is actively managed within limits that are aligned with the Bank's risk appetite by using financial instrumants such as interest rate
swaps and by taking into account natural hedges between assets and liabilities with similar repricing characteristics Hedging strategies are implemented
and ieviewed to ensure the Bank remans within its limits

In order to measure the exposure to interest rate risk under various interest rates shack scenarios, the Bank uses both economic valug and earnings-based
rmetrics. Market Value Sensttivity and Earnings at Risk. These metrics are monthly monitored and reported to the Asset and Liability Comirmittee.

For interest rate risk measurement, products are allocated within re-pricing gap analysis based on their nearest re-pricing date {all non-maturing deposits
are assumed to re-price in month ane) and Personal Loans are allocated according to behaviowral renayment profite,

b) Foreign exchange risk
The Bank is exposed to FX nsk through its holding of cash denominated in foreign currencies, primarily euro and US dollar, within its travel money bureaux

in 1 sainsbury's stores, The FX positions are hedged on a daily basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk is central to the Bank's day to day activities and is managed in line with the Board approved risk appetite. Key developments over the course of the
year have been the migration of the Cradit Card portfelio from LBG to the New Bank programme systermns and processes, and the extension of our Mortgage
range to include Buy-to-Let and a First Time Buyer proposition. The Bank has also adopted the new 1FRS 9 financial reporting standard, utilising the suite of
models developed to support this. Compared to the prior year. the Bank’s personal loan cut-offs have been raised as a precautionary measure against future
economic variability.

Retail Credit Risk

Retail Credit Risk is the possibility of losses arising from a retail customer failing to meet their agreed repayment terms as they fall due. Retail Credit utilise
automated scorecards to assess the credit worthiness and affordability criteria of new applicants and ongoing behavioural characteristics of existing
custamers, The outcames from all scarecard maodels are monitared utilising a set of credit quality metrics to ensure actual performance is in line with aqreed
expectations. Additional expert underwriting of credit applications is undertaken by a specialist operational tearn where further consideration is appropriate.

The Retail Credit Risk Committee pravide portfolio oversight control over credit strategy to matntain lending in line with the Board approved risk appetite,
with additional aversight and control provided by the Executive Risk Cormmittee and Board Risk Committes Internal Audit provide additional assurance by
undertaking regular reviews on the adequacy of credit risk policies and procedures.

Whotesale and derivative credit risk

The Bank's treasury portfolio is held primarily for liquidity management purposes and in the case of derivatives, for the purpose of managing market risk.
The liquidity portfelio is invested in eligible investment securities that qualify for the regulatory Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and internal Operational
Liquidity Pool (OLP) These investments include the Bank of England's (BoE) reserve account, UK government securities (gilts ar Treasury bills), multilateral
development bank securities, government guaranteed agency securities, UK regulated covered bond pragrammes and asset backed securities.

Limits are established for all counterparty and asset class exposures based on their respective credit quality and market liquidity. Consideration is also given
to geographical region and the strength of relevant soveretgn ¢redit ratings. Derivatives are subject to the same credit risk control procedures as are applied
to other wholesale rarket instruments and the credit risk arising from mark to market derivative valuations 1s mitigated by daily margin calls, posting cash
collateral to cover exposures. Daily monitoring is undertaken by the Bank's Treasury department. including early warning indicators with appropriate triggers
for escalation.
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24 Financial risk management continued [
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the cornponents of the balance sheet, including denvatives. The maximum exposure %
is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of collateral agreements. L.
s
2019 2018 B
£rn £m pmd
Credit risk exposures relating to on balance sheet items
Loans and advances to customers
Unsecured 5,546 5383
Secured 1,441 309
Cash and balances with central banks 6558 1,005
Derivative financial instruments 10 13
Investment securities 622 526
Other assets 290 291 o
Credit risk exposures relating to off balance sheet items %
Loans commitment and other related liabilities 323 267 2
=3
Total credit nsk exposures 8,887 7799 o
X
m
The cammitments to lend disclosed in the above table do not include undrawn limits on credit cards and store cards. These are not considered contractual E
commitments but, because in practice Financial Services does not expect to withdraw these credit limits from customers, they are within the scope of -
unpairment provisioring in the following tables
An analysis by loan-te-value (LTV) ratio of the Banks residential rmoertgage tending is presented below. The value of collateral used in determining the LTV
ratios has been estimated based upon the last actual valuation, adjusted to take into account subsequent mavements in house prices.
Neither Past due
past due nor but not
impaired impaired Impaired Gross
£m £m £m £m g
At 28 February 2019 3
Less than 70% 779 - q 783 )
70% to 80% 314 - - 314 &
Lad
80% to §0% 229 - - 229 s
90% to 100% 109 - - 109 e
-
Greater than 100% ] - - 6 w
Total mortgages 1,437 - 4 1,441
Neither past Past due
due nor butnet
impaired impaired Impaired Gross
£m Em £m £m
At 28 February 2018
Less than 70% 203 1 1 205
70% to 80% G5 65
80% 10 90% 33 33
50% to 100% G G
Greater than 100% - i
Total mortgages 307 1 1 309

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for commitments and balances measured at amortised cost along with the related amounts
which are credit impaired at the reporting date.

Of which

secured by

Maximum collateral

exposure to (residential

credit risk property)

£m £m

Loan commitments 8,392 210
Of which credit impaired at 9 March 2019 35 -
Financial assets measured at amortised cost — Retail lending 7,235 1,441
Of which credit impaired at & March 2019 201 4
Total credit risk exposures 15,627 1,651

Of which credit impaired at § March 2013 236 4
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24 Financial risk management continued

Credit quality per class of financial asset

Loans and advances to custorners are surmmmarised as follows:

2019 2ms
£m £m
Impaired 201 169
Past due but not impaired 63 55
Neither past due nor impaired - 6,971 5612
Gross - 7,235—,5}56_
Less. aliowance for impairment (247) 132)
Less: hedging fair value adjustment - (1) (12}
Net book value W - ses7 5692
Credit quality analysis
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£m £m £m £€m
9 March 2019
Past due and impaired
Less Lhan three months, but impaired — — 32 32
Past due three to sixmanths - - 28 28
Past due six to 12 months - - 5 5
Past due over 12 months - - 1 1
Recoveries - - 135 135
Total gross impaived loans D 201 201
Past due less than three months but not impaired &6 57 - 63
Neither past due nor impaired 6,207 764 - 6,971
Total gross amount die 6,213 821 201 7,235
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Unsecured Secured
lending lending Total
£m £m £m

10 March 2018
Past due and impaired
Less than three months, but impaired 2 1 3
Past due three to six months 22 - 22
Past due six to 12 months - 1 1
Past due over 12 manths - 1 1
Recoveries 147 - 142
Total gross impaired loans 166 3 169
Past due but not impaired
Past due less than three months but not timpaired 53 2 55
Total gross past due but not impaired 53 2 55
Neither past due nor impaired
Not impaired 5,307 305 5612
Total gross neither past due nor impaired 5307 305 5612
Total gross amount due 5,526 310 5,836

Martgages held over residential properties represent the only collateral held by the Bank for retail exposures. The market value of coliateral held for impatred
loans and loans past due but not impaired was £12 millien (2018: £6 million). The fair value of collateral held against possession cases was £nil (2018: £nil).

Financial Services capital resources (unaudited)

The following table analyses the requlatory capttal resources under CRD IV, Frorn a prudential perspective, the Bank is monitored and supervised ona

consolidated basis with its subsidiary, Home Retail Group Card Services Limited, from the point of acquisition of Argos Financial Services in Septermnber 2016,
The Bank has obtaned an indwvidual consolidation waiver from the PRA, which allows the Bank to monitor its capital pesition on a consolidated basis only
Therefore, the capital position shown below 15 on a requlatory conselidated basis.

The Bank implemented IFRS 9, effective 1March 2018. The following table analyses the regulatory capital rescurces under CRD IV and aligns to the phase-in

approach of IFRS 9 irmpacts on capital. over a five-year period.

Transitional Full impact

2019 2019
IFRS & IFRS & 2018
£m £m £m

Common Equity Ter 1 (CET 1} capital:

Ordinary share capital 866 BGE6 756
Allowable reserves 66 66 174
Regulatory adjustments 147) (226) {205)
Tier 1 capital 785 706 725
Tier 2 capital (loan notes — listed) 172 172 155
Total capital 957 878 880

Requlatory capital is calculated under the Capital Requirements Regulations and Capital Requirements Directive {collectively known as CRD 1V) as enacted
in the UK. Commen Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital includes ordinary share capital, other reserves, losses and regulatory deductions
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24 Financial risk management continued
The movement of CET 1 capital during the financial year is analysed as follows

Transitional Full impact

2019 2019
IFRS S 1FRSS 2018
£m £m £m
At 1 March 2019 and 1 March 2018 725 725 567
Share captal issued 110 110 190

TFRS 9 adjustrment to retained earnings (84) (83)
Verified profits/(losses) attributable to shareholders (24) (24) 23
Transitional adjustments 79 - -
Other reserve maverments - - 3
Movement in additional value adjustments n [£)] -
Increase in intanglblg assets e (20) (20) (58)

;\ES_Februarg E(Eand 28 rebruary 2018 o o 785 706 72?_

Leverage ratio {unaudited)

The leverage ratio is defined as the ratio of Tier 1 capital ta adjusted assets, which is measured below on a regulatory consalidated basis. The denominator
represents the total non-risk-weighted assets of the regulatory group (Bank and Home Retail Group Card Services Limited) adjusted for certain off balance
sheet exposures assets and regulatory deductions and provides a non-risk-weighted ‘backstop’ capital measure. The leverage ratio is calculated below as

at 28 February 2019. The Bank's leverage ratio of 8.2 per cent exceeds the minimum Basel leverage rato of 3 per cent

Transitional

zots

1FRs e

£m

Components of the leverage ratio

Total assets as per published financial statements (Sainsbury's Bank plc) 8,832
Uplft on comsolidation of subsidiary undertakings 49
Expaosure value for derivatives and secunties financing transactions 18
Off balance sheet exposures: unconditionally cancellable {10%) 810
Off balance sheet: other (100%) 65
Other adjustments o (226)
9,548

Tier 1 capital 7 _ ' 785
Fver;ge ratio ’ 8.2%

Capital management

Full impact
2019
WRSS

£m

8,832
49

18
810
65

9,548

706

7.4%

(226)

e
£m

7765
&
27
716
G4
(205}
 ga18
725
B6%

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it inlight of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.
During the year to 28 February 2013, the Bank received further injections of £110 riltion of ordinany share tapital friom 3 Sainsbury pic Capital adequacy is
monttored on an angoing basis by semior management, the ALCO, the Executive Risk Committee and the Board Risk Carmmmittee, Our submissions to the PRA
i the uear have shawn that the Bank has complied with all externally imposed capital reguirements. The Bank’s tier 1 capital ratio of 137 per cent exceeds

internal and regulatary thresholds.

The Bank will disclose Pillar 3 information as required by the Capitat Requirements Regulations and PRA prudential sourcebook on the J Sainsbury ple

external website.
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25 Financial instruments

Accounting policies

a) Financial assets

From 11 March 2018, the Group classifies all of its financia! assets as either amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL). Before 11 March 2018, the Group classified its financial assets as loans and receivables, FVPL or available-for-sale financial assets
in accordance with IAS 39,

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, 1o be assessed
based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the mstruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCl, 1t needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principat amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level

The business model assessment reflects how the Group manages the risks relating to the underlying financial assets, including whether the Group's principal
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows arising from the instrurents (amortised cost), to sell the financial instruments (FVPL) or a combination
thereof (FVOCI)

Financial instruments at amortised cost

Financial assets that are principally held for the collection of contractual cash flows and which pass the SPPI test are classified as amortised cost For the
Group, these are financial assets that are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
and where the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amaunt outstanding. The Group has no intention of trading these loans and receivables and they include amounts due fram Financial Services
customers and amounts due from other banks, With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group
imtially measures these financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently these assets are carried at amortised cost less impairment using
the effective interest method. Income from these financial assets is calculated on an effective yield basis and is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for both the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows and to sell are classified as FVOCL. Initial recognition s at fair value
plus transaction costs, with subseguent movements in fair value being recognised through OCL. Interest income measured using the effective interest rate
method and impairment gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity investrnents as equity instruments at FYOCT when they meet
the definition of Equity under T1AS 32 ‘Financial instrurnents: Presentation’ and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Gains and losses on these equity instrurments are never recycled te the income statement. Dividends are recognised in profit or toss as
other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of the cost of
the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OC1 Equity instruments at FYOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at far value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the staterment of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the income staterment.

b) Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting for loan loss impaivments by replacing 1A% 39's incurred loss approach with a
3 stage forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Group to tecard an allowance for ECL for all loans and other debt financial
assets not held at FVPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expecied cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancemnents that are integral to the contractual terms.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group establishes provisions against trade recewables to reflect the lifetime expected credit loss, consistent
with the simplified approach under TFRS 9.

¢) Financial Services loans and advances including impairment

For Financial Services portfolios of loans, such as credit card lending, storecard lending and personal loans, impairment provisions are calculated for graups

of assets, otherwise impairment is identified at a counterparty specific level. The allowance 1s calculated by reference to the estimated probability of default

(PO}, exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD).

— The probabhility of default represents the likehhood of a borrower defaulting within 12 months from the balance sheet date or within the expected hfetime
of the borrower.

— Exposure at default represents the expected amount due from the borrower at the point of default by reference to exposure at the halance sheet date
adjusted for expected future changes including repayments and utilisation of undrawn facilities.

— Loss given default represents the expected percentage loss at the point of default relative to the EAD.
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ECL 3 stage model

— Stage 1- Impairment allowance on financial assets that have not significantly increased in credit risk since ongination, nor are credit impaired,
is calculated using the probability that a borrower will default within 12 months from the balance sheet date Interest income 15 recognised an
the gross carrying value of the financial asset.

— Stage 2 - Where a financial asset exhibits a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) but is not yet considered to be credit impaired, the probability
of default considered in the impairment allowance is based upon the lifetirne probability of the borrower defaulting. Interest income continues
to be recognised on the gross carrying value of the financial asset

-~ Stage 3- Assets considered to be credit impaired resulting from one or more events have occurred that has resulted in a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the asset Stage 3 assets will continue to recognise lifetime expected impairment losses (with a 100% probability of
defaulty and interest income will be recognised on the net carrying amount (i.e. gross amount less impairment allowance).

In determining ECL allowances, expected future recovieries are discounted to the reporting date at the original effective interest rate of the relevant
instrument

Significant increases in credit risk
The Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk by reference to quantitative thresholds, qualitative indicators and has also
chosen to adopt the rebuttable backstop presumption that credit risk has significantly increased if contractual payrments are more than 30 days past due

Definition of default
The Group's definitian of default is used in determining those accounts classified as stage 3 (i.e. credit impaired). The Group has chosen not to rebut the
backstop presumption pres¢ribed by IFRS 9 that where an account is 90 days or mere past its due date then default has occurred.

where an account no longer meets any of the default critena, such as by bringing pagmments back up to date, the Group will continue to consider the account
as being in default for a pertod of 24 months from the date when it last met the definition of default.

Expected lifetime
For the purposes of considering the lifetime probability of default, the expected lifetime of a financial asset is the contractual term where this is fixed within
the contract, or in the case of revolving products such as credit cards a behavioural life is determined by reference to historic trends

d) Financial liabilities
The classification and measurement requirements of ITRS 9 are largely unchanged with all of the Group’s financial liabilities recognised at amortised cast,
and derivative financial liabilities classified as FYPL.

Financial llabilities costs. including premiurns payable on settlement or redemption and direct isste costs, are accounted far on an accrual basis in the
income statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled
in the pertod m which they arise.

The fair value of the hability cornponent of a convertible bond is determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond.

This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds
are allocated to the conversion option which s recognised in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects and is not subsequently remeasured.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liabllity and the equity components of the convertible bonds based or their carrying amounts at the date of tssue.

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts, other deposits and amounts due to Sainsbury’'s Bank customers are recorded initially at fair value, which is generally
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Subsequently, these labilities are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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25 Financial instruments continued
Financial assets and liabilities by category
Set out below are the accounting classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities as at 9 March 2019 and 10 March 2018. Further informatton
relating to the changes in classification on adoption of IFRS 9 is included i note 1.
Fair value Derivatives Other
Amortised Fair value through used for financial
cost through OCI  profit or loss hedging liabilities Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m Em
At 9 March 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 929 - 192 - - 1,121
Trade and other receivables 347 - 144 - - 491
Amounts due from Financial Services customers 6,987 - - - - 6,987
Financial assets at FvOCl - 856 - - - 856
Trade and other payables - - - - (4,187) (4,187)
Current borrowings - - - - {832) (832)
Naon-current borrowings - - - - (950) (950)
Amounts due to Financial Services custarners and banks - - - - (7,601) (7,601)
Derivative financial instruments - - 1 (5) - a)
8,263 856 337 5 (13,570) 4,119)
Fair value Derivatives Gther
Loans and Available- through used for financial
receivables for-sale profit or loss hedging liabilities Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 10 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 1,730 - 1,730
Trade and other receivables 522 - 622
Amounts due from Financial Services customers 5,692 - 5,692
Available-for-sale financial assets - 743 - 743
Trade and other payables - - - (4,037 {4,037}
Current borrowings - - - 638) 638)
Non-current borrowings - - (1.602) (1.602)
Amounts due to Financial Services customers and banks - — [6.524) (6,524}
Derivative financiat instruments - @) 44 - (52)
8,044 743 ®) (44) (12,.801) (4.088)

) Fair vatue estimation

Set out below is a comparison of the carrying amaount and the fair value of financial instrumerits that are carried in the financial staterments at a value
other than fair value. The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are based on prices available from the market on which the instruments are traded.
Where market values are not available, the fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at

prevailing interest rates The fair values of short-term deposits, trade receivables, other receivables, overdrafts and payables are assumed to approximate their

book values.
Group
Carrying Group
amount Falr value
£m £m
At 9 March 2019
Financial assets
Amounts due from Financial Services customers! 6,987 7,006
Financial liabilities
Loans due 2031 (704) (894)
Short-term borrowings (135) {135)
Bank overdrafts (#)] (1 }]
Bank loans due 2019 (199) 199)
Convertible bond due 2018 (445) (452)
Tier 2 Capital due 2023 (176) 177)
Obhgations under finance leases {122) 122)
Amounts due to Financial Services custormers and other banks (7,601) (7,577)
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Group
Carrying Graup
amount Fair value
£m £m
At 10 March 2018
Financial assets
Armaunts due from Financial Services custorners’ 5,692 5,736
Financial labilities
Loans due 2018 (572) (575)
Loans due 2031 (730) (980)
Bank overdrafts (2 2)
Bank loans due 2019 (159) (199}
Convertible bond due 2019 (436) (452)
Tier 2 Capital due 2023 174) (184)
Obligations under finance leases (127) (127)
Amounts due to Financial Services customers and ofher banks {6.524) {6.514)

1 Included within a portfoho far value nedging relationsh p with £4,734 mlhan {2018 £3 391 milhany of interest rate swaps

The fair value of finandial assets as disclosed in the table above as at @ March 2019 was £7,006 million (2018, £5,736 million). The fair value of the financial
assets has been calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing intetest rates and is within Level 2 of the fair value hierarehy (see below for fair value
hierarchy description). The fair value of financial labilities was £9,557 million (2018: £9,033 million) of which £452 million (2018: £452 million) has been

determined using market values and (s within Level 1 0f the fair value hierarchy. The remaining £9,105 million (2018: £8,581 million) has been calculated

by discounting cash flows at prevailing interest rates and is within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value ¥ ts recog d in the balance sheet

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are recognised at fair value, grouped into Levels 1to 3 based on the degree to which

the fair value is observable:

-— Level 1 fair value measurements are derived from quoted market prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the balance

sheet date. This level includes listed equity securities and debt instrument on pubilic exchanges,

- Level 2 fair value measurements are derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assat or hability,
either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments is determined by discounting expected cash

flows at prevailing interest rates; and

-— Level 3 fair value measurements are derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

Levell Leval 2 Levels Total
Group £m £m £m £m
At 9 March 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 192 - - 192
Trade and other receivables 144 - - 144
Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Interest bearing financial assets - 1 - 1
Other financial assets - 13 220 233
Investment securities 622 - - 622
Derivative financial assets -~ 29 1 30
Derivative financial liabilities - (33) - 39)
At 10 March 2018
Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Interest bearing financial assets 40 40
Other financial assets 13 164 177
Investment securities 526 - - 526
Derivative financial assets 27 27
Derivative financial liabilities - (70) 19) (79)
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25 Financial instruments continued Fon
Recanciliation of Level 3 farr value measurements of financial assets and liabilities. %
%.
Financial =
instruments Commeaodity 8
atFVOCI  derivatives Total =
52 weeks to 9 March 2019 £m £m £m -
At 12 March 2018 164 @ 155
In finance cost in the Group income staternent - 10 10
In other comprehensive income 56 - 56
At 9 March 2019 220 1 221
Financial
instrurnents at Cermmadity
FvoC daerivatives Total o
52 weeks to I0March 2018 £m £m £m 2
AL 12 March 2017 148 15) 133 5
[a5)
In finance cost in the Group income statement - 6 5 =
T
In other comprehensive income 16 - 16 ]
At 10 March 2018 164 @ 155 B
The financial instruments at fair value through OCl relate to the Group's beneficial interest in a property investment pool. The net present value of the Group's
interest 1n the various freehold reversions owned by the property investment pool has been derived by assuming a property growth rate of 0.6 per cent per
annurn (2018 0.5 per cent) and a discount rate of nine per cent (2018 nine per cent), (see note 14). The sensitivity of this balance to changes of one per cent
in the assumed rate of property rental growth and one per cent in the discount rate holding ether assumptions constant is shown below:
2018 2019 2018 2018
Change in Change in Change in Changein
growthrate discount rate growth rate discount rate
+-1.0% +-1.0% “I10% +[10%
Em £m £m £m
Financial instruments at fair value through 0CI 13/(12) (9)/9 12/(12) (81e

The Group has entered into several long-term fixed price Power Purchase agreements with independent producers. Incduded within derivative financial
assets is £1 million (2018: £ (9) million) relating to these agreements. The Group values its Power Purchase agreements as the net present value of the
estimated future usage at the contracted fixed price less the market implied forward energy price discocunted at the prevailing swap rate. The Group also
makes an assumption regarding expected energy output based on the historical performance and the producer’s estimate of expected electricity output.
The sensitivity of this balance to changes of 20 per cent in the assumed rate of energy output and 20 per cent in the implied forward energy prices holding
other assumptions constant is shown below.
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2019 2018
2019 Change in 2018 Changein
Change electricity Change electricity
involume forward price in volume forward price
+-20.0% +/-20.0% +-20.0% +-200%
£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial instruments (0)/0 9/(10) (2)2 11/(12)

f) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset the recogrised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must

not be contingent ¢on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of

the Company or the counterparty.
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The following table sets out the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to counterparty of fsetting or a master netting agreement.
The master netting agreements regulate settlement amounts in the event either party defaults on their obiligations.

Amaunts not offset
in balance sheet

Grgss arounts Netamaumts Balances
ofrecagnised Amounts offset recognised subjecttoa
financial inthe inthe contractual
assetsang balanice Dalance ngntof  Cashrollateral
liabilities sheet sheet offset pledged Net amounts
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 9 March 2019
Derivative financial assets 30 - 30 21 - 51
Deiivative financial liabilities (34) - (33) (21) F4 (53)
Trade and other receivables 524 (33) 491 - - 491
Cash and cash equivalents 1,121 - 1,121 - - 1,121
Bank overdrafts 1) - ) - —~ (1)
Trade and other payables o ~ {2,001) 33 {1,968) - - {1,968)
i (361) - 361) - 2 (359)
AL 10 March 2018
Derwative financial assets 27 27 (37) - (10
Derivative financial iabilities (79) - (79 37 [63)] (50)
Trade and other Teceivables 657 {35) 622 - 622
Cash and cash equivalents 1,730 - 1,730 - 1,730
Bank overdrafts (2) - 2) - - @
Trade and O!her payables e rLﬂE) 35 (L677) - - (],577)7
1 - s - g en

The Group holds certain financial derivatives which are subject to credit support agreements. Under these agreements cash collateral is posted by one party
to the other party should the fair value of the financial derivative exceed a pre-agreed level. As at 9 March 2019, the Group held no collateral against financial
derivative assets (2018: nil)

Financial Services has derivatives that are governed by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association and their associated credit support annex
bilateral agreements whereby if the fair value exceeds a pre-agreed level, cash collateral is exchanged. As at @ March 2019, Financial Services and its
subsidiary undertakings had provided collateral of £7 millinn (2018 received collateral of £8 million) against the derivalives.

The Group also operates a cash pooling arrangement and collective ret overdraft facility with its main dearing bank. As at 9 March 2019, the Group had
£1 million (2018: £2 million) under this facility.

g} Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Accounting policies

The Group uses detivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure ta foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity risks. All derivative financial
instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are also measured at fair value at subseguent reporting dates. Where derivatives
do not qualify for hedge accounting, any changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument are recognised in the income statement as finance
income or costs as they arise.

To qualify for hedge accounting, the Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the hedging risk mariagerment strateqy, the relationship between
the hedging instrurment and the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risks being hedged and an assessment of the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship to ensure it is highly effective on an ongoing basis.

Where a derivative does qualify for hedge accounting. any changes in fair value are recognised depending on the nature of the hedge relationship and the
itern being hedged as follows;

Cash flow hedges

Hedge relationships are classified as cash flow hedges where the derivative financial instrurnents hedge the Group’s exposure to variability in cash flows
resulting from a highly probable forecasted transaction. These mclude the exchange rate risk of inventory purchases denominated in foreign currency, as
well as the commodity risk on purchases of power and fuel. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instrurnents that are designated and effective
as hadges of future cash flows are recagnised directly in ather comprehensive income and the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the

income statement.

If a cash flow hedge is hedging a firm commitment or forecast transaction that results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, then, at the time
the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are
included in the initial measurernent of the asset or liahility.
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Portfolio hedges

Sainsbury's Bank uses portfotio fair value hedging as a risk managernent tool for hedging interest rate risk on the Personal Loans and Mortgage portfolios.
Portfolio fair value hedging allows the designation of the whole or part of a portfolio of assets o~ liabilities with similar risk exposures The hedged itern can
be designated based on expected matunties to match the hedging dervative maturity.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrurnent expires or is sold, lerminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
At that time, any cumulative gain or lass on the hedging instrument recognised in other comprehensive income is retained in equity until the forecasted
transaction occurs. If 2 hedged transaction 1= no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income

is transferred to the income statement for the period.

Fair value hedges

Hedge relationships are classified as fair value hedges where the derwvative financial instruments hedge the change in the fair value of a financial asset or
liability due to movements in interest rates. The changes in fair value of the hedging instrument are recagnised in the income statement. The hedged item
is also adjusted for changes in fair value with the corresponding adjustment made in the income statement.

The effects of hedge accounting on the Group’s financial position and performance

Amounts related to hedging instruments
The fair value of derivative financial instruments has been disclosed in the balance sheet as follows:

2019 2019 2018 2018
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£m £m £m £m
Non-current 9 17) 17 (25}
Current 21 {17) 10 {53)
Total 30 {34) 27 (79)
2019 2018
Assat Liability Asset Liability
Fair value Notional Fair value Notional Fair value Notional Fair value Notional
£m £m £m Em fm £m £m £m

At 9 March 2019
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 10 2,183 11) 2,552 18 2.559 8) 942
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps - - (e )] 100 - - 2} 100
Inflation rate swaps - - @ 540 - - 7 590
Foreign exchange forward contracts 18 634 (15) (708) 3 277 (50 1.080
Commadity contracts 1 15 - - 2 22 - -
Derivatives not in a formal hedging
relationship
Interest rate swaps - 53 - 119 4 404 (3) 302
Commuedity contracts 1 13 - - 9 15

Totat 30 2,898 G4 2,603 27 3212 (79 3,029
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25 Financial instruments continued
Amounts related to hedged itemns

Accumulated amount
of fair value hedge adjustments

Carrying amount included in the carrying amount Balance in
of the hedged item af the hedged item Line item cash flow
infinancial hedgereserve
Assets Liabilities Rssets Liabilities statements (net of tax)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 9 March 2019
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 4,734 - (1) —  Amounts due N/A
from Financial
Services
customers
Interest rate swaps 98 - - - Financial
assets at
FVOCI
Interest rate swaps - (176) - — Borrowings
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps N/A (100) N/B N/A N/A (44
Inflation rate swaps N/A (540} NIR NIR N/A N
Foreign exchange forward contracts N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A (23)
Commodity contracts N/A N/RA N/A N/A N/A 1

Accumulated amount
of fair value hedge adjustments

Carrying amaunt included in the carrying amount Balancein cash
of the hedged item of the hedged itern Line item flow hedge
in financial Tesarve
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities statements {net of tax)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 10 March 2018
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 3.391 - 12 Amoun:s due N/A
from Financiat
Services
custoraers
Interest rate swaps 38 - - Avallable-far-
sale hinaneial
asses
Interest rate swaps 174) — pd Boirowings
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps N/A (100 NFA N/A N/A (2)
Inflation rate swaps N/A (590) NAA N7A N/A €)
Foreign exchange forward contracts N/A N/A N/A N/A, N/A (45)
Commadity contracts N/A N/A N/A NiA N/A 1
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25 Financial instruments continued v
=
Amounts affecting income statement / other comprehensive income %
[ral
Hedging ;
gains{losses 3
Hedge recognised Amounts =
ineffectiveness Line item inother reclassified Line itemto L
recognised in inincome comprehensive  fromcash flow which recycling
profit orloss staterment income hedge reserve has occurred
£m £m £m £m £m
At 9 March 2019
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps (1) Fimance costs N/A N/A N/A
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps - - - 1  Financecosts
Inflation rate swaps - - ) 2  Fimancecosts o
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 66 (a4) Inventory 5
i
Commodity contracts - - 4 (4) Costofsaless z
admin expenses g
fa vl
X
T
o
Hedging gains/ =]
Hedge losses recognised Amounts -
ineffectiveness Line item inather reclassified from Lineitem to
recognised in in income comprehensive cash flow hedge which recycling
profit or loss staterment income reserve has accurred
£m £m £m £m £m
At 10 March 2018
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 1 Finance casty N/A N/A N/A
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps - - 1 2 Financecuss
Inflation rate swaps - - (4 m Finance coss
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - (121) 51 lnvemicry
— 1 2 Cast of sates/

Comrnodity contracts -
admin expenses

Derivatives not in a hedge relationship
Some of the Group's derivative contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore not designated in a hedging relationship. In addition, where
gains or losses on a derivative contract economically of fset the losses or gains on an underlying transaction, the dertvative is not designated as being

in a hedging relationship.
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Interest rate and foreign exchange swaps

Sainsbury’s Bank and its subsidiaries hold a £172 million portfolio of interest rale swaps hedging mortgage pipeline offers that do not qualify for hedge
accounting (2018: £156 milllon) with fair value movernents accounted for in full through the P&L, with no effective offset. The fair value movement crediting
the income statement for interest rate swaps economically hedging mortgage pipeline interest rate risk but not qualifying for hedge accounting was a cost
of £2 million (2018: a credit of £1 million).

Commodity forward contracts
Commodity forward contracts at fair value through profit and loss relate to the Group's long-term fixed price power purchase agreements with

independent producers
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26 Cash and cash equivalents
Accounting policies
Cash and cash equivalents

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Cash and bank halances comprise cash in hand and at bank, deposits at central banks, investments in money market funds and deposits and other short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible te @ known amount of cash and are subject to an insigrificant risk of changes in value

Bank overdrafts that are repayable un demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash

equivalents for the purpases of the cash flow statement.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2019

2018

£m £m
Cash in hand and bank balances 609 585
Money market funds and deposits 204 462
Deposits at central banks 308 683
Cash and bark balances ) ) 1121 1730
Bank overdrafts - (1) {2)
Net cash and cash equivalents N 1,120 1728

Of the above balance, £49 million (2018 £38 million) was restricted as at year-end.

27 Analysis of net debt

The Group’s definition of net debt includes the capital injections to Sainsbury's Bank, but excludes the net debt of Sainsbury’s Bank and its subsidiartes
Sainsbury's Bank's net debt balances are excluded because they are required for business as usual activities.

A reconciliation of opering to dosing net debt is included below. Balances and movemnents for the total Group and Financial Services are shown in addition
to Retail to enable reconciliation between the Group balance sheet and Group cash flow statement.

Cash changes

Non-cash changes

Cash flows Net interest Other
11 March excluding (received)/ non-cash Changes in 9 March
2018 interest paid movements fair value 2019
£m £m £m £m £m fm
Retail
Financial assets at fair value through cther comprehensive income' 10 (39) - - - 1
Derivative assets 9 - @ 2 13 20
Derivative liabilities (72) - 3 1) a7 (23)
Cash and cash equivalents 725 (259) - - . 466
Bank overdrafts (2) 1 - - - (1)
Borrowings® (1,937) 458 60 (64) - {1,483)
Tinance leases (127) 32 7 (34) - (12
Retail net debt i 1,364) 193 66 (7 60 ) (1,142)
Financiatl Services
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’ 526 97 - - (1} 622
Derwative assets 18 - - - (8) 10
Derivative liabilities (7) - - f5l} (3) (11)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,005 (350) - - - 655
Borrowings? i B 1749) - - - (@ (176)
Financial Services net debt 1,368 (253) - (1) (14) 1,100
Group
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income! 566 58 - - (51] 623
Derivative assets 27 - @) 2 5 30
Derivative liabilities (79) - 3 2 44 (34)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,730 (609) — - - 1,121
Bank averdrafts ) 1 - - - n
Borrowings’ (2,111) 458 60 642 @ {1,659)
Finance leases (127) 32 7 (34) - {122)
Group net debt a {60) 66 (98) a6 (a2)

Other non-cash movernents relate to interest accruals and new finance leases.
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Cash changes

Nen-cash changes

Cash flows Het interest
12 March excluding (received)/ Acquisition  Other non-cash  Changes in fair
2017 interest paid mMovemernts rmovements value 10 March 2018
£m £m £m £m £m im £m
Retail
Financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive 39 i) - 1 1 40
income!
Derwvative assets 103 - (20) — 19 (93) 9
Derivative liabilities (38) 17 (15) 136} {72)
Cash and cash equivalents 630 95 725
Bank overdrafts &) 4 - - - - 4]
Borrowings? (2,067) 148 79 (15} &7) 5 (1.937)
Fnance leases (138) 26 7 - (22) - (1273
Retail net debt - (1.477) 273 82 (15) (104) (123) (1364}
Financial Services
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 333 192 - - - 1 526
income*
Derivative assets 1 - - - 17 18
Derivative liabilities 22) - - - - 15 7)
Cash and cash equivalents 453 552 - - - - 1,005
Borrowings - (174) - - (174)
Financial Services net debt 765 570 - 33 1368
Group
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 372 192 O 1 2 566
mcore’
Derivative assets 104 - (20) - 18 [76) 27
Derivative liabilities 60) - 17 - (15) (21 (79)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,083 647 - - - - 1,730
Bank overdrafts &) 4 - - - - (2)
Borrowings? (2,067 (26) 79 (15} (87) 5 (2,117}
Finance leases (138) 26 7 22) (127)
Group net debt (712) 843 82 15) (104) (90) 4

1 tmancial assets at tair value through other comprehens:ve income exclude equity related linancial assets {see

property investment pool.

7 Borrowngs exclude bank overdrafts and finance leases as they are d'sclosed separately

note 14) which predom:nantly relate to the Graup's bel

nefic.al interest in a commercal

28 Borrowings
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
£m £Em £m £fm £m £m
Loan due 2018 - - - 572 - 572
Loan due 2031 36 668 704 3 697 730
Shott-term borrowings 135 - 135 - - -
Bank overdrafts 1 - 1 2 - 2
Bank loans due 2019 199 - 199 - 199 169
Convertible bond due 2019 445 - 445 1 435 436
Sainsbury's Bank Tier 2 Capital due 2023 - 176 176 - 174 174
Finance lease obligations 16 106 122 30 97 127
Total borrowings 832 950 1,782 638 1,602 2,240
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28 Borrowings continued

a) Loan due 2031

The secured loan is secured on 48 (2018: 48) supermarket properttes (note 11) and consists of a loan from a finance company, Longstone Fnance plc. This is

an inflation-linked amortising loan from tongstone Finance ple with an outstanding principal value of £687 million [2018: £712 million} at a fixed real rate of

2.36 per cent where principal and inlerest rate are uphfted annually by RPI subject to a cap at five per cent and a floor at nil per cent with a carrying amount
of £704 rnillion (2018, £730 rmillion) with a final repayment date of April 2031.

The Group has entered into inflation swaps to convert £540 million (2018: £590 million) of the £687 million (2018: £712 million) loan due 2031 from RPI linked
interest to fixed rate interest for periods maturing April 2019 to April 2023. These transactions have been designated as cash flow hedges (nate 24).

The principal activity of Longstione Finande plc is the issuing of commercial mortgage backed securities and applying the pioceeds towards the secured loans
due 2031 with the Group as summansed above.

Intertrust Corporate Services Limited holds all the issued share capital of Longstone Finance Holdings Limited on trust for charitable purposes. Longstone
Finance Holdings Limited beneficially owrnis all the tssued share capital of Longstone Finance plc. As the Group has no interest, power ar bears any risk over
these entities they are not included in the Group consalidation.

b) Bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and bear interest at a spread above Bank of England base rate.

c) Short-term borrowings
On 22 June 2018 the Group extended its syndicated committed revolving credit facility by one year. The facility of £1.45 bilon has four, five and six-year
tranches with a current final maturity for the longer dated tranche of April 2024. As at 9 March 2019, £35 million had been drawn {2018: £ril).

The revolving credit facility incurs commitment fees at market rates and drawdowns bear interest at a margin above LIBOR.

In December 2018, a new £100 million uncommitted facility was agreed to provide an additional capacity to fund short term working capital requirernents.
Drawdowns of this facility bear interest at a margin over LIBOR. The uncommitted facility was £100 million drawn down at 8 March 2018 (2018 £nil).

d) Bank loans due 2019

On 5 May 2015, the Group amended its £200 million unsecured bank loan due August 2019 into a secured corporate £200 million bank loan due August 2019
at a floating rate of interest. £100 million of this has been swapped into a fixed rate liability. The £100 million portion of the loan and associated interest rate
swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge.

e) Convertible bond due 2019
In Novermnber 2014, the Group issued £450 million of unsecured convertible bonds due November 2013. The bonds pay a coupon of 1.25 per cent payable semi-
annually. Each bond is convertible into ordinary shares of 1 Sainsbury plc at any time up to 21 November 2019 at & conversion price of 302.31 pence.

The net praceeds of the convertible bond have been split as at 9 March 2019 into a hability component of £445 million and an equity component of £5 million.
The equity component represents the fair value of the embedded option to convert the bond into ordinary shares of the Company.

2019 2018

m £m

Liability component brought forward 436 427
Interest expense 14 14
Interest paid ) )
Other? - 1 1
Liability cormponent as at the end of the year o 445 436

1 Other relates to foes.

f) Sainsbury’s Bank Tier 2 Capital due 2027

The Bank issued £175 million of fixed rate reset callable subgardinated Tier 2 notes on 23 November 2017, The notes pay interest an the principal amount

at a rate of six per cent per annum, payable im equal instalments semi-annually 1 arrears, until 23 November 2022 at which time the interest rate will reset.
The Bank has the option to redeem these notes on 23 November 2022.




Financial Statements J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 153

28 Borrowings continued -
g) Finance lease obligations %
LD,
Present jat
value of Present b
Minimum Minimum minimum value of 8
Tease lease lease minimum lease ~+
payments payments payments payments
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
Obligations under finance leases:
Less than 1 year 23 37 16 30
Within 2 and 5 years inclusive 50 45 27 23
After 5 years ) 202 203 79 74
) 275 285 122 o 127
Less- future finance charges (153) [158) o
Present value of lease obligations 122 127 S
g
i}
)
Disclused as. o
Current 16 30 2
N@n-current ) 106 97 -
122 127
Finance leases have effective interest rates ranging from 4.3 per cent to 8.5 per cent (2018 4 3 per cent to 8.5 per cent). The average remaining lease term
15 70 years (2018: 71 years).
h) Asda transaction financing
In June 2018, the financing of the consideration for the proposed Asda merger was arranged. Financing was in the form of Term Loans amounting to £3.5

billion. split over two Facilities. In addition, an upsize of £550 million to Facility B of the existing Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) was arranged int order to provide

sufficient contingent funding to the Group. The Terms Loans and the RCF upsize were only available to the Group had the transaction completed. %’
3
29 Employee costs 5
2019 2018 ﬁ
Em £m S
Employee costs for the Group dunng the year amounted ta- g
Wages and salarnes, including bonus and termination benefits 2,822 2,811 "
Social security costs 189 186
Pensicn costs — defined contribution schemes 120 104
Share-based payments expense (note 31) 39 33
3170 3134
2019 2018
Humber Nurnber
q00s 000s
The average number of employees, induding Directors, during the year was.
Full-time 38.9 528
Eﬁf_‘dme 141.0 1341
- 179.9 1869
Full-time equivalent ﬂ 1164 1212

Details of key management compensation can be found in note 37 and within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 70 to 85,
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30 Retirement benefit obtigations

Accounting policies

In respect of defined benefit pension schemes, the surplus or deficit recognised in the balance sheet represents the difference hetween the farr value of
the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. The defined benefit abligation is actuariatly calculated
on an annual basis using the projected unit credit method. Plan assets are recorded at fair value.

Actuarial gains and losses are reported in the staternent of other comprehensive income as incurred, and comprise hoth the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions and experience adjustrnents arising because of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred.,

The income statement charge consists of a financing charge. which is the net of interest cost on pension scherne liabilities and interest income on plan gssets
and defined benefit pension scheme expenses.

The financing charge is determined by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit ebligation to the pension scheme liabilities and plan
assets at the beginning of the financial year.

The Graup contributions to defined contribution pension schernes are charged to the income statement as ncurred. Any contributions unpaid at the balance
sheet date are included as an accrual as at that date. The Group has no further payment obligaticns once the contributions have been paid.

Background
Al 9 March 2019, all retirement benefit obligations related to the Sainsbury's Pension Scheme plus two unfunded pension liabilities relating to former semar

employees of Sainsbury's and Home Retail Group

On 20 March 2018, the Home Retall Group Pension Scheme was merged into the Sainsbury’s Pension Scheme The Sainsbury’s Pension Scheme now has two

sections, the Sainsbury’s section which holds all the Schemne assets and liabilities prior to the merger, and the Argos section which holds all the assets and

liabilities transferred into the Scheme from the Home Retail Group Pension Scheme. There have been o changes to mernbers benefits and each section’s

assets have been segregated by deed and ring feniced for the benefit of the rnembers of each section. The Scherme has 11 Trustee Directors (including three ;
from the Home Retail Group Pension Scheme). No further liabilities or assets remained in the Home Retail Group Pension Scherne and it was subsequently

wound up on 31 August 2018

The retirement benefit obligations at the year-end have been calculated by KPMG, the actuarial advisers to the Group, using the projected unit credit method
and based on adjusting the position at the date of the previous trienniat valuations (see beiow) for known events and changes in market conditions as i
atiowed under 1AS 18 ‘Employee Benefits’ Assets are valued at bid price and are held separately from the Group's assets.

Sainsbury’s section

The Sainsbury’s section of the Scheme has three different benefit categories: final salary, career average and cash balance. For final salary and career
average members, benefts at retirement are determined by length of service and salary For cash balance merbers, henefits are determined by the accrued
retirement account credits.

The section was closed ta new ernployees on 31 January 2002 and closed te future accrual on 28 Septermnber 2013. The Scheme is also used to pay life
dssurance benelits to current (including new) colleagues.

This section was subject to a triennial actuartal valuation. carmed out by Willis Towers Watson for the Trustee, as at 14 March 2015 on the projected unit basis
and arecovery plan was agreed. On the basis of the assumptions agreed, the actuarial deficit at 14 March 2015 was £740 million, an increase of £148 rrillion
from the March 2012 deficit

The section continues to receve annual coupons fram the Sainsbury’s Property Scottish Partnership that was established in 2010 which are based on the
average weighted discount rate used in the triennial valuation and so are effectively reset every three years. These coupons are £19 million a year. i

The section has a well-defined investment strategy which has been agreed with the Company. This aims for it to be funded on a low risk basis by 2023
referencing investment returns by asset class and based on forward-looking assumptions.

Argos section
The section holds the assets and liabilities transferred from the Home Retail Group Pension Scheme, which was ciosed to new employees in 2009 and
to future accrual in January 2013 Pension benefits were based on service and final salary.

The Home Retail Group Pension Scheme was subject to a triennial valuation, carried out by willis Towers Watson for the Trustee, as at 31 March 2015 on
the projected unit basis and a recovery plan was agreed. On the basis of the assumptions agreed, the actuarial deficit as at 31 March 2015 was £315 million,
an increase of £157 million from the March 2012 deficit.

Following merger the section has defined its investment strategy which has been agreed with the Companuy. This airms for it to be funded on a low risk basis
by 2025 referencing investment returns by asset class based on forward-looking assumptions
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued [w
Contributions to Scheme %
Under the Recovery Plans agreed as part of the 2015 triennial valuation process the Group is contracted to make contributions totalling £124 million in 2015/20 2
which includes the £18 rullion coupon from $ainsbury's Property Scettish Partnership. The 2018 triennial valuation is currently being agreed with the Trustee ES
he=
Q
Unfunded pension liabilities ~
The unfunded pension liahilities are unwound when each emnployee reaches retirement and takes their pension from the Group payroll or is crystallised
in the event of an employee leaving or retiring and choosing to take the provision as a one-off cash payment.
IFRIC 14
IFRIC 14 is the interpretation that detaits when a company can recognise any pension surplus that exists Furthermore, if the company has a funding
commutment in excess ol the 1AS 19 deficit, then IFRIC 14 requires recognition of this excess in those circumstances when the surplus that would result
on fulfilling that commitment cannot be recognised A surplus may be recognised either because of an unconditional night to a refund to the company,
or on graunds of a future contribution reduction where schemes are still open to future accrual
For the Sainsbury's secticn, management is of the view that it has an unconditional right to a refund of surplus under IFRIC 14. As such no adjustment _m
has been rmade for potential additional liabilities. %
S
Based on the net deficit of the Argos section as at 9 March 2015 and the committed payments under the Schedule of Contributions signed on 2 September %
2016, there is & notional surplus of £134 million. °
@
s
Management is of the view that, based on the scheme rules, 1t does not have an unconditional right to a refund of surplus under IFRIC 14, and therefore an g
additional balance sheet liability in respect of a ‘minimum funding requirement’ of £134 million has been recognised.
a) Income statement
The amounts recognised in the income statermertt are as follows
2012 2018
£m £m
Excluded from underlying profit before tax:
Interest cost on pension liabilities! 279) {289) -
Interest income on plan assets 271 263 é
Total included in finance costs (note 7) _ ® (26) g.
)
Defined benefit pension scheme expenses (10) (10) b=
Past service (cost)/credit {98) 31 g
i =
Total excluded from underlying profit before tax (116) (5) [y
Total income statement expen?e ) (116) 15}

1 Includes mterest of €1 milk:on tor the unfunded pension scheme (2018 11 mllion) and 2 m'll-on ‘n relation to interest on the muininur funding requirerment

Past service amounts

0n 26 October 2018, the High Court ruted in the tandmark Lloyds Banking Group case on Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs). The judgment requires
equalisation between men and women for the effect of unequal GMPs. The Group has worked with the Trustee of the Scheme and independent actuaries and
estimated the cost of equatising benefits at £98 milllen for the Sainsbury’s section and £3 million for the Argos section.

This cost for the Sainsbury’s section has been recogrised in the consclidated income statement as a non-underlying item for the 52 weeks ended 9 March
2018 (2018: Enil). The cost for the Argos section has been recagnised as an experience loss in other comprehensive income due to GMP egualisation in 1997
Any subsequent changes to these amounts in future periods will be treated as a change in actuarial assurmnption, and as such will be recognised in other
comprehensive Income.

In the prior year, the past service credit of £31 miilion was in relation to a Pension Increase Exchange (PIE) opticn introduced in the Sainsbury’s section of the
Scheme from 1 April 2018, following a deed of amendment signed during the prior financial year.
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued

b) Other comnprehensive income
Remeasurement of the retirement benefit obligations has been recognised as follows.

2019 2018
£m £m
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 212 (57)
Actuanial gains/(iosses) arising from changes in:
Finance assurmptions! (80) 495
Demographic assumptions? 547 245
txperience B i 644 13)
Total actuarial gains/(losses) 1,111 727
Additional liability due to iU funding requirements (IFRIC 14} 7 (54) (78)
Total remeasurementﬁ o 1,269 532

1 Includes £nil milkan gawn fer the unfunded pension scherme (2018 £2 mi:lton gaury
¢ Inctades ¥1 1rithon gann for the unfunded pension scheme {2018 €3 milhon gain).

As neted, the Group is currently in the process of agreeing the 2018 triennial valuation with the Trustee. As part of this, the membership data underlying the
1AS 19 calculations has been updated from those used in the 2015 trienmial valuation to be consistent with those used in the 2018 triennial valuation. This has
resulted in experience gains of £644 million in the financial year.

Actuarial gains of £547 million have also been recognised as a result of updating mortality tables to reflect the latest experience in the scherne, as well as
updating to the most up-to-date (as at the year-end} mortality improvement tables.

¢} Balance sheet
The amaunts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Sainsbury's Argos Group Sainsbury’s Argos Group

2019 2012 2019 2018 2018 2018

£m £fm £m £m £m £m

Present value of funded obligations (7.654) (1,202 (8,856) (8 744) (1.284) (10.028)
@1 r ,",al%',e of plan assets 8,759 1,224 9,983 8,669 1,215 9,884
o 1,105 22 1,127 (75) ©9) (144)
Additional liability due to minimum funding requirements {IFRIC 14) - (139) (134) {/8) (78)
Retirement benefit surplus/(deficit) 1,105 (112) 293 (75) 147) (222)
Present value of unfunded cbligations (20) 149 (34) 21y (14) (35)
Retirement benefit surplus/(deficit) 1,085 (126) 959 (96) (161) (257)
Deferred income tax (liability)/asset (note 8) (241) 25 (216) 138) 34 {4)
Net retirement benefit surplus/(deficit) 844 (101) 743 {134) {127) (261)

The retirement benefit obligation and the associated deferred income tax balance are shown within different line iterns on the face of the balance sheet.

The movements in the Group's net defined benefit abligation are as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m
As at the beginning of the ygar (257) (974)
Interest cost 8) (26)
Remeasurement gains 1,269 592
Pension scheme expenses (1) (10)
Contributions by employer 63 130
Past service (charge)/credit (98) 31

As at the end of the year 959 (257)
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The rnovernents in the retirernent benefit obligations (incdluding unfunded obligations) a=e as follows: %
[ta]
2018 2018 ;
£m £€m "‘UOD
As at the beginning of the year (10,141) (10,894) -
Interest cost {279) [289)
Remeasurement gains 1,111 727
Additional liability due to mimrmurn funding requirements (IFRIC 14) (54) (78)
Benefits paid 430 362
Past service (charge)/credit (98) 31
Liabilities extinguished on settlement 7 -
As at the end of the year (9,024) (10,141)
9
Analysed as. 5
Retirement benefit obligatians {8,856) 110,028) §
Unfunded obligations 34) (35) ﬁ
Additional liability due to minimum funding requirements (IFRIC 14) (1349) (78) §
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2019 2018
£m €m
As at the beginning of the year 9,884 9,820
Interest income on plan assets 271 263
Pension scheme expenses (10) (10
Remeasurement gans/(losses) 212 (57) -
Contributions by employer 63 130 E-
Benefits paid (430) (362) 2.
Assets distributed on settlerment 7) - :,,""
As at the end of the year 9,983 G834 g
3
3
(4]

Risks associated with the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme
The defined benefit scheme exposes the Group to a number of risks as detailed below:

Risk Description Mitigation
Asset Returns on assets that vary from the discount rate create All equities are invested passively. The equity portfolio
volatility funding level volatility. Both sections of the Scheme hold a includes both emerging markets and smaller companies in
significant proportion of growth assets such as equities and order to track glebal economic growth by replicating global
real estate. Whilst growth assets are expected to outperfarm equity capitalisation. Asset volatility is therefore mitigated by
corporate bond yields over the long term this might not always  investing inas many companies as possible. All other assets
occur in the short term. are invested actively and are widely diversified to reduce
returns tisk and enhance returns.
Currency The Scheme’s liabilities are sterling based whereas the majority  Currency hedging programmes help dampen returns
of assets are denominated in foreign currencies. volatility caused by the fluctuation of sterling against other
leading currencies.
Changes in A decrease in bond yields, which in turn drive the discount rate, A significant proportion of assets are held in corparate bands
bond yields will increase the present value of the Scheme's liabilities for that provide a hedge against falling bond yelds. Furthermore
accounting purposes. significant levels of interest rate hedging within the Scheme's
liability hedging portfolios through interest rate derivatives
serve to protect against falling bond uields. Buy-in policies
transfer a proportion of interest rate risk to an insurer.
Inflation The majority of the Scheme’s Liabilities are linked to UK price Liability hedging portfolios hedge significant proportions
inflation indices (to a maximum of five per cent per year). of inflation liabilities by holding tindex linked bonds and
inflation rate derivatives. The Scheme's equity portfolio
provides a natural hedge against inflation. Buy-in policies
transfer a proportion of inflation risk to an insurer.
Longevity Beneficiaries living longer than expected could increase the Buy-in policies transfer some longevity risk to an insurer.
Scheme's liabilities.
Operational Pocr adrmunistration of benefits may result in anincreased The Scheme’s benefits administrators have agreed service

defined benefit obligation in future years.

level agreements and controls are carefully monitored.
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

Quoted Unquoted' Quoted Unguoted'
2019 2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m £m
Equity
Public’ 972 - 1422 -
Private - 322 - 267
Bonds?
Government bonds 1,620 - 1,269
Corporate bonds 3,950 {51) 3,695 (35)
Emerging market bonds 462 (6) 444 -
Derivatives* 278 743 163 ot
Alternatives
Real estate 67 591 64 561
Private debt - 479 - 404
Diversified growth - - 188 -
Insurance policies® - 306 - 334
Cash and cash equivalen_ts 252 2 558 8)
7.601 2,382 7803 2081

Notes

o

and emerq.ng markets,

W W

Bonds —c'rea 83 per cent of the Scheme's bonds are mvested ininvestment grade cred’t The remannder are helow nvestment grade,

Swap contract derivatives outstanding at the year-end are stated at the net present value of future discounted cash flaws of each leg of the swap
Insurance policies of £306 million (2018 £334 mudlion) refers ta buy-in pol.cies held by the Argos section of the scherne, The ncome from these policies exacthy matches the amaunt and tniing
of all of the benefits payable for the insured pensioner members Therefore the fair vatue of the insurance palicies have been calrulated to be the present value of the related obligations

Of the above assets, £3418 millon are denorninated in sterling and £6,565 million are denominated in overseas currencies

d) Assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Certainunquoted fixed interest securties, private equty and debt investments and property mvestments are stated at far value These fair values may ciffer from the'r realisable values due
to the absence of iguid markets in these Investments
Quoted equities ~ circa 70 pet cent of Lhe Scheme's equities are invested n publicly cuated, highly qu'd secunt-es actoss developed rmarkets i he remainder are invested 'n smaller comparies

2019 2018

% %

Discount rate 2.80 2.80
Inflationrate RPI 3.20 315
Inflationrate  CPI 2.20 215
Future pension increases 2.00-3.05 190 3.00

The base mortality assumptions are based on the SAPS 52 tables, with adjustments to reflect the Schermne’s population. Future mortality improvements have
been updated from CMI 2017 projections at 2018 year-end to CMI 2018 projections with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25 per cent p.a. at 9 March 2018
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30 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The life expectancy for members aged 65 years at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Sainsbury's Sainsbury's Sainsbury’s Sainsbury’s
section section section section
Main Executive Argos Main Txecutive Argos
Scheme Scheme section Scheme Scheme section
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Years Years Years Years Years Years
Male penstoner 19.8 24.0 21.5 213 244 223
Fernale pensioner 23.5 25.1 23.9 239 255 246

The life expectancy at age 65 for members aged 45 years at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Sainsbury's Sainsbury's Sainsbury’s Sainsbury’s
section section section section
Main Executive Argos Main Executive Argos
Scheme Scheme section Scheme Scheme section
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Years Years Years Years Years Years
Male pensioner 21,1 253 229 227 257 237
Female pensioner 25.0 26.5 254 254 270 26.1

2) Sensitivities

The following sensitivities are based on management's best estimate of a reasonably anticipated change. The sensitivities are calculated using the same
methodology used to calculate the retirement benefit obligation, by considering the change in the retirernent berefit obligation for a given change in
assumption. The net retirerment benefit obligation is the dif ference between the retirement benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. Changes

in the assumptions may occur at the same time as changes in the fair value of plan assets There has been no change in the calculation methodology since
the prior period

Sainsbury's Argos! Total

£m £m m

Anincrease of 0.5% in the discount rate would decrease the present value of funded obligations by 681 102 783
A decrease of 0.5% in the discount rate would increase the present value of funded obligations by 774 118 892
Anincrease of 0.5% in the inflation rate would increase the present value of funded obligations by 489 97 586
A decrease of 0.5% in the inflation rate would decrease the present value of funded obligations by 478 87 565
Anincrease of one year to the life expectancy would increase the present value of funded obligations by 283 28 311

1 Changes:n the insured’ defined benef t obligations are matched by changes in the tair value of the buy-in pol cy and therefore the sensit'vities above elate to the nan-insured defined benefit
aobl'gatians only.

f) Future benefit payments
Details of future committed payments are included in the Background section at the beginning of this note.

The duration of the plan liabilities is around 19 years for the Sainsbury's section and 21 years for the Argos section. The following table provides infarmation
on the tiring of benefit payments (amounts undiscounted):

2019

£m

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 193
Between 2 and 5 years 850
Between 6 and 15 years 3422
Betweer 16 and 25 years 4477
Beyond 25 years 7,961

Total expected payments 16,903
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31 Share-based payments

Accounting policies

The Group provides benefits ta employees {including Directors) of the Group in the form of equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares, rights aver shares or the value of those shares in cash terms.

For equity-settled share-based payments. the fair value of the employee services rendered is delerrmined by reference to the faur value of the shares awarded
or options granted, excluding the impact of any nen-market vesting conditions. All share optians are valued using an option-pricing maodel (Black-Scholes or
Mante Carlo). This fair value is charged to the income statement over the vesting period of the share-based payment scherne with a corresponding increase
in equity.

Tor cash-settled share-based payments, the fair value of the employee services rendered is determined at each balance sheet clate and the charge
recognised through the income statement over the vesting period of the share-based payment scheme, with a corresponding increase in accruals.

The value of the charge is adjusted in the income statermnent over the remainder of the vesting period to reflect expected and actual levels of options vesting.
with the correspanding adjustrnents made in equity and accruals.

The grant by the Company of options cver its equity instruments to the ermployees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting penod
as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a carrespanding credit to equity.

The Group recagnised £39 million (2018. £33 million) of employee costs (note 28] related to share-based payment transactions made during the financial year.
Of these, £1 rillion (2018: £nil) were cash-settled.

The Group operates a number of share-based payment schemes as set out below:

a) Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (Sharesave)

The Group cperates a Savings-Related Share Gption Scheme, which 1s open to all UK employees with more than three months’ continuous service. Thisis
an approved HMRC scheme and was established in 1880. Under Sharesave, participants remaining in the Group's employment at the end of the three-year
or Five-year savings period are entitled to use their savings to purchase shares in the Company at a stated exercise price. Fmployees leaving for certain
reasons are able to use their savings to purchase shares within six months of therr leaving

A recongiliation of Sharesave option movernents is shown below:

2018 2018

2019 Weighted 2018 Weighted

Number of average Nurmber of average

options exercise price options exercise price

million pence milhon pence

Dutstanding at the beginning of the year 68.5 196 66.5 210
Granted 17.2 260 23.7 184
Forfeited (13.6) 205 (15.8) 230
Exercised ) _ {10.7) 205 5.9 207
Outstanding at the end of the year 614 211 68.5 196
Exercisable at the end of the year 5.6 224 6.4 228
Exercisable price range 184 to 332 184 to 332

The weighted average share price for options exercised over the year was 272 perice (2018 257 pence). The weighted average rernaining contractual life
of options outstanding at 9 March 2019 was 2.1 years (2018: 2.3 years).
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31 Share-based pagments continued

Options granted during the year were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. No performance conditions were included in the fair value
calculations The fair value per option granted during the year and the assurmptions used in the calculation are as follaws:

2019 2018

Share price at grant date (pence) 300 238
Exercise price (pence] 260 184
Expected volatility —3year period (%) 24.5 27.2
— 5 year petiod (%) 26.9 26.0

Option life 3 year period [years) 3.2 32
5 year peniod (years) 5.2 52

Expected dividends f{expressed as dividend yield %) 35 48
Risk-free interest rate — 3 year perod (%) 0.9 08
— 5 year period (%) 13 13

Fair valug per option - 3 year period (pence) 53 51
--5year period (pence) 62 49

The expected volatitity is based on the standard deviation of the Group’s share price for the period immediately prior to the date of grant of award, over the
periad identical to the vesting period of the award, adjusted for management's view of future volatility of the share price.

b) Long-Term Incentive Plan
Under the Long-Term Incentive Plan, shares are conditionally awarded to the senior managers in the Company. The core awards are calculated as a
percentage of the participants’ salaries and scaled according to grades.

Performance is measured at the end of the three-year performance period. If the required performance conditions have been met, the awards vest and
50 per cent of the award will be released. Subject to participants remaining in employment for a further year. the balance will then be released one year after
the vesting date. Options granted to acquire the award of shares will expire five years from the grant date.

For Executive Directors, awards will normally be subject to a two-year holding period foliowing the end of the three-year performing pericd. Options granted
to acquire the award of shares will expire six years from the date of grant.

Dividends will accrue on the shaves that vest in the form of additional shares.

The core award can grow by up to four times, dependent on the level of performance. Straight-line vesting will apply if performance falls between two paints.
Awards are structured as nil cost options.

A reconciliation of the number of shares conditionally allocated is shown below:

2015 2018
million milliors

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 7.2 5.8
Conditionally allocated 4.2 32
Forfeited (0.9) 1.2}
Released to participants ] 2.1) 08
Outstanding at the end of the g;r 8.9 72
The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at 9 March 2019 was 1.4 years (2018: 16 years).
Details of shates conditionally allocated at 9 March 2019 are set out below

2019 2018
Date of conditional award million million
15 May 2014 (2014 Future Builder) 0.2 0.9
14 May 2015 (2015 Future Builder) 1.6 1.6
12 May 2016 (2016 Future Builder) 2.0 2.0
11 May 2017 {2017 Future Builder) 25 27
11 May 2018 {2018 Future Builder) 2.6 -

8.9 72

1ioday nbajells ‘

1oday SdUPLIRACD h

jutl
s
=3
a,
[
W
-
a
P
T
E
o
=3
=
&



162 Financial Statements 3 Sainsbury plc Annual Repart 2019
Nutes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 share-based payments continued

No performance conditions were inctuded in the fair value calculations. The fair value per option granted during the year and the assumptions used in the
calculation are as follows:

2018 2018
Share price at grant date (pence) 301 267
Option life {years) 3org 4
Fair value per option (pence) 301 267

During the year, a total number of 2.1 million shares were exercised (2018. 0.6 mullion shares). The weighted average share price during the year for options
exercised was 303 pence (2018: 266 pence).

¢) Deferred Share Award

The Deferred Share Award targets a diverse range of financial and strategic scorecard meastres. These are intended to reward the Directors in the Company,
including Fxecutive Directors, for driving the short-terrn objectives that will directiy lead to building the sustainable, long-term growth of the Companu.
Awards are stiuctured as ml cost ophons.

Share-based awards are made to participants subject to performance against a basket of measures. At least 50 per cent of the awards are based on the
delivery of financial performance and returns to shareholders. The balance is based an measures which will assess the Company's performance relative
to its competitors as well as key strategic goals.

Performance against the target is measured over one financial year. Any shares awarded are deferred for a further two years to ensure that management's
interests continue to be aligned with those of shareholders. The shares are subject to forfeiture it the participant resigns or is dismissed. Dividends accrue
on the shares that vest in the form of additional shares.

A reconciliation of the number of shares granted over the year is shown below:

2019 2018
millien millign
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 34 3.0
Granted 2.2 20
Forfeited (2.0) 07
Exercised ©.1) {0.9)
Qutstanding at the end of the year ) 335 34
The number of shares allocated at the end of the year is set out below:
2019 2018
million millien
13 May 2016 - 18
12 May 2017 1.5 16
11 May 2018 2.0
o ) 3.5 34

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at 9 March 2019 was 0.6 years (2018. 0.5 years). The weighted average share
price during the year for options exercised was 301 pence (2018: 260 pence).



Financial Statements J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019 163

31 Share-based payments continued

(%)
d) Bonus Share Award %
The bonus arrangements for our senior managers and supermarket store managers include carporate and personal performance targets. A profit gateway 2
1510 ptace where a certain level of underlying profit before tax must be achieved before any bonus related to the corporate element of the bonus 1s released. e
=
60 per cent of the bonus is paid in cash and 40 per cent awarded in shares. They are automaticaily released after three financial yeass Shares are subject 2
to forfeiture if the participant resigns or s dismissed
Dividends acerue on these shares and are released at the end of the three-year retention period.
Areconciliation of the numher of shares granted over the year is shown below:
2019 208
milllon rnillion
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10.2 109 -
Granted 51 38 o
Forferted (3.0) (3.4) 3
. 40
Exercised o . (0.9) 1 §
Outstanding at the end of the year 114 10.2 i
1]
=]
The number of shares allocated at the end of the year is set out below: 2
2019 2018
mitlion million
14 May 2015 0.0 22
13 May 2016 4.4 50
17 May 2017 27 30
11 May 2018 B 4.3
114 10.2

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options cutstanding at 9 March 2019 was 1.0 years (2018 11years) The weighted average shave price
during the year for opticns exercised was 246 pence (2018: 267 pence).

32 Acquisition of subsidiaries

Accounting policies for business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of identifiable assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition date. Acquisition-retated costs
are expensed as incurred.

Acquisition of Nectar Loyalty scheme

On 1February 2018, the Group acquired 100 per cent, of the share capital of Nectar Loyalty Holdmmg Limited, a United Kingdom registered private company
which owns the Nectar loyalty scheme as well as the remaining 50 per cent share of the Group’s joint venture Insight 2 Communication LLP. The acquisition
enabled the full and independent operation of the Nectar Loyalty Programme in the UK.

Considevation fair value at
acquisition date

Form of consideration £m
Cash 33
Acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest 6
ot T o 39

None of the goodwill recognised of £147 million is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The goodwill was calculated as the difference between
the fair value of consideration paid and the fair value of net assets acquired as set out in the following table.

m
)
o
=
o,
o
2,
w
[ad
7]
[=d
B
3
®
3
-
n




164 Financial Statements J Sainsbury plc Annual Repart 2019
Notes to the consalidated financial statements cantinued

32 Acquisition of subsidiaries continued
‘The assets and liabilities recogrised as a result of the acquisition are as follows

Fair value of net assets acquired £m

Fixed assets 3

Intangible assets 57

Trade and other receivables 141

Deferred tax assets 19

Cash and cash equivalents 168

?;al assets acquired ) 7 B 388

Trade and other payables ‘ ’ ’ 228)

Deferred revenue (268)

TJotal liabilities acquired ] h ) B ' (49?)

Net identifiable assets acquired at fair value N (]E i
Goodwill arising on acquisition i ] ] 147

Purchase consideration transferred 39 '

Intangible assets
Intangible assets of £57 million relate to the Nectar brand, customer relationships and reacquired rights in relation to existing contractual relationships with
Sainsbury's, as well as acquired software assets.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other recewables of £141 million includes £nil of provisions for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash acquired included cash left in the business to settle accounts payable balances owed to the Group.

Deferred revenue
£265 million of the deferred revenue relates to points issued by issuance partners {including Sainsbury’s) but not yet redeemed and have been included
within trade and other payables within the Group balance sheet

Cash impact of acquisition

£m
Cash consideration (33)
Caslrawyuiied 168
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (included in comparative cash flow statement) 135

Acquisition-related costs

Acquisition-related costs in the prior year (induded in administrative expenses and recognised outside of underlying profit) amounted to £2 million (see

note 3). In addition, an acquisition fair value gain of £4 million on the previously held equity interest in Insight 2 Communication LLP was recorded in other

income (and excluded from underlying profit before tax). i

33 Operating lease commitments

Accounting policies

Leases are classified as finance leases when the termns of ihe lease transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group. Alt ather leases
are classified as operating leases. For property leases, the land and building elements are treated separately to deterrminie the appropriate lease classification

a) Operating leases
Rental expenses for assets leased under operating leases are charged directly to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) Sale and leaseback
A sale and leaseback transaction is one where a vendor sells an asset and immediately reacquires the use of that asset by entering into a lease with the
buyer

For sale and finance leasebacks, any apparent profit or loss from the sale is deferred and amortised over the lease term. For sale and operating leasebacks,
generally the assets are sold at fair value, and the profit or loss from the sale is recogrused immediately in the income statement.

¢) Leases with predetermined fixed rental increases
The Group has a number of leases with predetermined fixed rental increases. These rental increases are accounted for on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Where future rental increases are non-predetermined. future increments are only incuded f they can be reliably estimated.
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33 Operating lease commitments continued (v
d) Operating lease income %‘
Operating lease income consists of rentals from sub-tenant agreements and is recognised as earned on a straight-ling basis aver the lease term. 2
The Group leases various retail stores, offices, depots and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases The leases have varying terms, escalation _;;F’
clauses and renewal rights =
The table below sets out the Group's reasanably certain future lease payments:
2013 2018
£m £m
Aggregate future minimum lease pagments:
Within one year 765 743
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,559 2.565
After five years 6,774 6711 o
10,098 10.019 2
]
Further analysis of the Group's future minimum lease payments after five years is as follows %
2019 2018 é?
£m £m 151
Aggregate future minimum lease payments:
Greater than five years but less than ten years 2,082 2,073
Greater than ten years but less than 15 years 1,484 1,396
After 15 years 3,208 3,242
o T T 6,774 6,711

The commercial terms of the Group’s operating leases vary, however they commonly include either a market rent review or an index linked rent review

(with a cap and collar). The trning of when rent reviews take place differs for each lease. The Group has pre-emption rights aver a minor number of properties, s}
which provides the Group with the right of first refusal to purchase the property in the event the landlord chooses to sell. The option price payable for the z
asset in each instance is normally referenced to current market value prevailing at the point of pre-emption. 3
=
The Group sublets certain propertties: iAo
g
2019 2019 2018 2018 E
Leased Owned Leased Owned g
properties properties properties properties -
£m £m £rn £m
Aggreqate future minirnurn lease receipts:
Withinone year 23 20 21 20
In the second to fifth years inclusive 61 54 56 57
After five years ) 58 a9 62 57
142 123 135 134

34 Capital commitments
AL 8 March 2019, capital commitments contracted, but not provided for by the Group, amounted to £9Q million (10 March 2018- £103 million) and £7 million for
the property joint ventures (10 March 2018 £55 million).

35 Financial commitments
Sainsbury’s Bank has off-balance sheet commitments to extend credit to customers of £323 million (2018: £267 million)

At the year-end, £18 million of expected credit loss provisions are recognised intespect of off-balance sheet loan commitments in line with IFRS .

36 Contingent liabilities

The Group has a number of contingent liabilities in respect of historic lease guarantees, particularly in relation to the disposal of assets, which if the current
tenant and their ultimate parents becormne insolvent, may expose the Group to a material liability. This is not expected to materialise. In addition, the Group
has a guarantee in relation to its beneficial interest in the property investment pool. The hikelihood of a material claim against this quarantee is considered to
berernote.

Along with other retallers, the Group is currently subject to approximately 2,000 claims brought by current and ex-emplayees in the Employment Tribunal

for equal pay under the Fquality Act 2010 and/or the Equal Pay Act 1970. Typically. claims of this nature can take many years to be determined. Given that the
claims against the Group are stil at a relatively early stage and the outcome of such claims is highly uncertaln at this stage, the Group considers the likelihocd
of a material payout to be remote.
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37 Related party transactions

a) Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Group comprise members of the J Sainshury plc Board of Directors and the Operating Board The key management

personnel compensation is as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

Short-term employes benefits 11 9
Past-employment emplouee henefits 1 1
Share-based payments ) _ ‘ 10 5
' ) 22 15

Five key management personnel had credit card balances with Financial Services (2018; eight). These arose in the normal course of business and were
irmrnaterial to the Group and the individuals Three key management personnel held saving deposit accounts with Financial Services (2018: three). These
balances arose in the normal course of business and were immaterial to the Group and the indwiduals.

b) Joint ventures and associates
Transactions with joint ventures and associates
For the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019, the Group entered into various transactions with joint ventures and associates as set out below:

2019 2018
£m £m
Management services provided - 1
Income share received from joint ventures and associates - 26
Dividends and distributions received 18 37
Repayment of loans from joint venture (5) -
Rental expenses paid (38} 46)
vear-end balances arising from transactions with joint ventures and associates
2019 2018
£m £m
Receivables
Other receivables - 6
Payables
Other payables %) -
Loans due to joint ventures - (5)

Insight 2 Communication LLP became a wholly owned subsidiary as at 1 February 2018; up until this point it was a joint venture All transactions up
to the acquisition date have been included above. Outstanding balances as at § March 2019 have been excluded as it has now been fuliy consalidated,

Loans with joint ventures are interest bearing and repayable on demand.

©) Retirement benefit obligations
As discussed 1 note 30, the Group has entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scherme Trustee as part of the funding plan for the actuarial deficit
in the Schemne. Full details of this arrangement are set out 1n note 30 to these financial statements.

38 Post balance sheet events

After the balance sheet date, in April 2013, Sainsbury's and joint venture partner The British Land Company PLC approved the sale of 12 properties to

Realty Income Corpoeration for £425 million. The transaction is expected to complete during the first half of the financial year ending 7 March 2020, with
Sainsbury’s share of the net proceeds from the disposal expected to be £133 million. Sainshury's interest in the praperties is currently included within the
Group's investment in joint ventures line item on the halance sheet. Sainsbury's will enter inta deeds of variation and reversianary leases with Realty Income
Corporation to operate from the stores.
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Y2l
39 Details of related undertakings (ES'
All campanies listed below are awned by the Group and all interests are in the ordinary share capital. except where otherwise indicated. All subsidiaries =
have been consclidated. E:”?
Q
a) Ssubsidiary undertakings =
The Group holds a majority of the voting nights of the following undertakings:
Countryof
Entity incorporation  Interest Helding Address*
ARG Persanal Loans Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
ARG Services Lirmited UK. 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Argos Best Sellers Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Argos Business Solutions Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury =
Argos Card Transactions Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn )
Argos Direct Limited UK 160% Indirect 33 Holborn E
Argos Distributors (Ireland) Limited Ireland 100% Indirect Unit 7, Ashbourne Retail Park %
Argos Extra Limited UK 100% Inditect 33 Holborn =
Argos Holdings Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury g
Argos Limited UK, 100% Indirect Avebury -
Argos Retanl Group Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Argos superstores Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Argos Surbs Investments Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Barleygeld Limited UK 160% Indirect 50 Bedford Street
Bed Stare & More Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holhorn
Bells Stores Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
BLSSP (PHC 7) Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn s
Braemar Caslle Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holbern §
Brand-Leader’s Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holbern E-
Chad Valley Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn E
Clearance Bargains Limited LK 100% Indirect 33 Holbarn %
Cliffrange Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn 2
Coolidge Investments Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn 5
Financial Recovery Services Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
First Stop Stores Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Flint Castle Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Glebal (Guernsey) Limited Guernsey  100% Indirect PO Box 33, Dorey Court
Habitat Retail Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Halborn UK Investments Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holbarn
Home Retail (Asia) Limited Hong Kong  100% Indirect Units C & D 5/F, D? Place Two
Home Retail (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong  100% Indirect Units C & D 5/F, D7 Place Two
Home Retail Group (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus 100% Indirect Michalaki Karaoli, 8
Home Retail Group (Finance) LLP UK 100% indirect Avebury
Home Retail Group (Guernsey) LP Guernsey  100% Indirect PO Box 33, Dorey Court
Home Retail Group Jersey) Limited Jersey 100% Indirect 44 Esplanade
Home Retail Group (UK) Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Home Retail Group Card Services Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Home Retail Group Holdings [Overseas) Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Horre Retail Group Insurance Services Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Home Retail Group Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Home Retail Group Nominees Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Horne Retail Group Pension Scherne Norminees Limited UK 100% Indirect Avebury
Home Retail Group UK Service Company Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Horne Store & More Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Insight 2 Communication LLP UK 100% Indirect 80 Strand
1 Sainsbury Commmon Investment Fund Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
) Satnsbury Distribution Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Hotborn
JSainsbury Limited Ireland 100% Direct 5th Floor, South Bank House
J5ainsbury Pension Scheme Trustees Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
13ainsbury Truslees Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Jacksans Stores 2002 Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Jacksons Stores Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn

*See full address on page 171
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39 Details of related undertakings continued

Country of
Entity incorparation Interest Holding Address*
15 Information Systems Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holbarn
1S Insurance Limited Isle of Man  100% Direct Third Floor, St George’s Court
J5D (Lenden) Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Jungle Online UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Jungle.com Holdings Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Jungle.com Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Nash Court {(Kenton) Lirmited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Nectar EMEA Limited UK 100% Indirect 80 Strand
Nectar Loyalty Holding Limited UK 100% Direct 80 Strand
Nectar Loyalty Limited UK 100% Indirect 80 Strand
Premier Incentives Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Quarternate Holdings Limited Jersey 100% Indirect. 44 Esplanade
Ramhbeath Properties Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Hothorn
Sainsbury Bridgeco Holdco Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsbury Holdco A Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holbom
sainsbury Holdco B Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsbury Propco A Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Sainsbury Propco B Lirmited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
sainsbury Propce C Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Sainsbury Propco D L imited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsbury Property Investments Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Sainsbury’s Argos Asia Commercial Limited Hong Kong  100% Indrect 7/F Mapletree Bay Point
Sainsburys Argos Asia Sourcing Lirnited Hong Kong  100% Indirect 7/F Mapletree Bay Point
Sainsbury's Argos Commercial Consulting (Shanghai) Limited China 100% Indirect 26/F, Tower 1
sainsbury's Group Holdings Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Sainsbury's Argos Asta Limited Hong Kong  100% Indirect 71F Mapletree Bay Point
Sainsbury’s Argos Asia Technical Limited Hong Kong  100% Indirect 7/F Mapletree Bay Point
sainsbury's Bank plc UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsbury’s Commercial Consulting (Dangguan) Company Limited China 100% Indirect Room 1813, 18/F, Block 2, Haide Plaza
Sainsbury's Convenience Stores Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsburys Corporate Director Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsbury's Heather GP Limited UK 100% Indirect 3 Lochside Avenue
Sainshury’s Intermediate Holdings Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Sathsbury'’s Limited Ireland 100% Direct 6th Flogr, South Bank House
Sainsbury’s Limited UK 100% Direct No .2 Lochrin Square
Sainsbury’s Manor GP Limited UK 100% Direct Hurlawcrook Road
Sainshury's Manor 11 Property Limited UK 100% Direct Hurlawcrook Road
Sainshury's Manor Property Limited UK 100% Direct Hurlawcrook Road
Sainsbury's Planet Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Sainsbury’s Property Holdings Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Halbarn
Sainsbury’s Rose LP Lirmited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
sainsbury’s Supermarkets Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
sainsbury's Thistle Scottish Limited Partnership UK 100% Indirect 3lochside Avente
Saftware Warehouse Holdings Limited UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Stamfard House Investments Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Starmford Properties One Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Starnford Properties Three Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Starnford Properties Two Limited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Stanhope Finance Limted UK 100% Indirect 33 Holborn
Tintagel Castle Lirnited UK 100% Direct 33 Holborn
Town Centre Retail (Bicester) Limited UK 100% Inditect 33 Hothorn

*see full address on page 141
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b) Associated undertakings

The Group has a participating intetest in the following undertakings.
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Countryaof
Entity incorporation Interest Holding Address®
3BW Limited UK 50% Indirect 33 Holborn
Arcus FM Limited UK Preference  Indirect Enterprise House
Shares
Arcus Solutions Limited UK Preference  Indirect Enterprise House
Shares
BL Sainsbury Superstores Lirmited UK 50% Indirect Yotk House
Harvest 2 GP Limited UK 50% Indirect 100 Victona Strect
Harvest 2 Limited Partnership UK 50% Indirect 100 Victoria Street
Harvest Development Management Limited UK 50% Indirect 100 Victona Street
Harvest GP Limited UK 50% Indirect 100 Victoria Street
Hedge End Park Limnited UK 50% Direct 33 Holborn
Manor 11 Property Scottish Partnership UK 0.01% Indirect Hurlawcrook Road
Manor Property Scottish Partnership UK 0.01% Indirect Hurlawcrook Road
Manar Scottish Limited Partnership UK 0.01% Indirect Hurlawcrook Road
PXS Limited UK 85,0008 Indirect One New Change
Shares
Sainsbury's Property Scottish Limited Partnership UK 10% Indirect Hurlawcrook Road
Sainshury’s Property Scottish Partnership UK 33% Indirect Hurlawcrook Road

c) Undertakings other than subsidiaries and associated undertakings

The direct ot indirect holder of 100 per cent of the voting interests in the following undertakings is an assaciate of the Group

Country of
Entity incorparation Interest Helding Address*
B.LLT. (10775) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Esplanade
B.L.LT. (11546) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Esplanade
B.L.CT. (20720) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Esplanade
B.L.CT (27255) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 tsplanade
B.L.CT. (38775) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Esplanade
B.L.LT (39214) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Esplanade
B.L.C.T. (38215) Limited Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Fsplanade
BL Crawley Jersey 50% Indirect 47 Fsplanade
BL Superstores {(Funding) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BL Superstores Finance PLC UK 50% Indirect Yerk House
BLS Non Securitised 2012 1 Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLS Non-Securitised 2012 2 Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (Cash Management) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (Lending) Lirnited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 1 2010) Limited UK 50% Indirect ‘York House
BLSSP (PHC 12012) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 1) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 10) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 12) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 14) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 16} Limited UK 50% Indrect York House
BLSSP (PHC 19) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 2 2010) Lirnited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 2) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 20) Limited LK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 21) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 22) Lirmited LUK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSF (PHC 23) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 24) Limnited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 25) Limited UK. 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 28) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 3) Limited UK. 50% Indirect York House

*See full address on page 171
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Naotes to the consclidated financial statements continued

39 Details of related undertakings continued

Country of
Entity incarparation  Interest Holding Addresst
BLSSP (PHC 32) Limited UK 50% Tndrect Yark Housze
BLSSP (PHC 33) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 34) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP {P14C 35) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 5) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP (PHC 6) Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
BLSSP Property Hodings Limited UK 50% indirect York House
British Land Superstores (Non-Secuntised) LUK 50% Indirect York House
Clarendon Property Company UK 50% Indirect York House
Harvest 2 Selly Oak Limited UK 50% Indirect 100 Victoria Street
Harvest Nominee No. 1 Limited UK 50% Indirect 100 Victoria Street
Harvest Nominee No. 2 Limited LK 50% Indirect 100 Victoria Street
Pencilscreen Limited UK 50% Indirect York House
Selected Land and Property Company UK 50% Indirect York House
Ten Fleet Place UK 50% Indirect York House
Vyson UK 50% Indirect York House
d) Overseas branches
The Group has the following branches overseas:
Entity Country Holding Address
sainsbury's Argos Asia Limited - Bangladesh Liaison Office India Indirect Level 10, Simpletree Anarkall
Sainsbury's Argos Asia Limited — India Branch Office India Indirect Unit No. 1, 1st Floor, Ambience Corporate Tower I1
sainsbury’s Commercial Conseiting (Donggua) Company Limited China Indirect Suite 2202-2205, 22F, Raffles City
-- Shanghai Brangh Qffice
e) Companies in liquidation

Country of
Entity incorparation  Interest Holding Address®
J% Finance Corporation Treland 100% Indirect 29 Earlsfort
Partfolio Investrments Ltd UK 100% Indirect Hill Houge
Maloney's Retail Stores (Shepperton) Limited UK 100% Indirect 1020 Eskelale Road
Netto Limited UK 50% Direct 33 Helborn
<tockdale Land (Bicester) Limited UK 100% Indirect Hill House

*see full address on page 171
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39 Details of related undertakings continued

Address Full address

100 Victoria Street 100 Victoria Street, London, SWIE 5L, Umted Kingdom

33 Holborn 33 Holborn, London, ECIN 2HT, United Kingdom

44 Esplanade 44 Esplanade, St Heler, Jersey, JE4 9WG, Channel Islands

47 Esplanade 47 Esplanade, St Heher, Jersey, JE1 0BD, Channel Islands

50 Bedford Street 50 Bedford Street, Belfast, BT2 7FN, United Kingdorn

80 Strand 80 Strand, 6th Floor, London, WC2R ONN, United Kingdom

5th Floor, South Bank House 6th Floor, South Bank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4

Avebury Avebury, 489-439 Avebury Boulevard, Milton Keynes, MKS 28w, United Kingdom

No 2 Lochrin Square
Enterprise House
Level 10, Simpletree Anarkali

0One New Change
Michalaki Karaoll, 8
Paradigm Wing A

Room 1813, 18/F, Block 2, Haide Plaza

Hurlawcrook Road

Units C & D 5/F, D2 Place Two
Unit 7 Ashbourne Retail Park

Unit No. 1, 1st Floor, Ambiance Corporate Tower I1

Suite 2202-2205, 22F., Raffles City

York House

Third Floor, St George's Court
Hill House

29 Earlsfort

1020 Eskdale Road

3 Lochside Avenue

7/F, Mapletree Bay Point
26/F, Tower 1

PO Box 33, Dorey Court

No.2 Lachrin Square, 96 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, EH3 904, United Kingdem

Enterprise House, 168-170 Upminster Road, Upminster, Essex, RM14 ZRB, United Kingdom
Level 10, Simpletree Anarkali, 83 Gulshan Avenue Plet 03, Block — CWS(A),

Dhaka — 1212 Bangladesh

One New Change, London, EC4M 9AF, United Kingdom

Michalaki Karaoli, 8, Anemomylos Buillding, 4th Floor, Flat/Qffice 401, P.C 1504, Nicasia, Cyprus
Paradigm Wing A, ist Floor, Mindspace, Matad (West), Murmbai, 400 064, India

Room 1813, 18/F, Block 2, Haide Plaza, No. 200, Hongfu Road, Nancheng District, Dongguan,
People’s Republic of China

Scottish Commercial Office, Hurlawcrook Road, Langlands Park Industrial Estate, East Kilbride, G75 0QH.
United Kingdom

Units C & D S/T, D2 Place Two, No 15 Cheung Shun Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Unit 7, Ashbourne Retail Park, Ballybin Road. Ashbourne, Republic of Ireland

Unit No. 1, 1st Floor, Ambience Corporate Tower 11, Ambience Island, NH-8, Gurgaon — 122011,
Haryana, India

Suite 2202-2205, 22F, Raffles City, 268 Xi Zang Middle Road, Shanghai 200001,

People’s Republic of China

York House, 45 Seymour Street, London, W1H 7LX, United Kingdom

Third Floor, St Gearge's Court, Upper Church Street, Douglas. IM1 1EE, Isle of Man

Hill House, 1 Little New Street, London, EC4A 3TR, United Kingdom

Delotte, 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2

1020 Eskdate Road, Winnersh, wokingham, RG41 5TS

3 Lochswde Avenue, Edinburgh, EH1Z 9D, United Kingdom

348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

26/F, Tower 1, Kerry Everbnght City Phase l1I-Enterprise Centre, No.128, West Tian Mu Road,
Shanghal 200070, Peaple’s Republic of China

PO Box 33, Dorey Court, Admirat Park, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 4AT
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Five year financial record

Five year financial record

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Financial results (Em)
Underlying sales (including VAT, including fuel, 32,412 31,741 29,112 25,829 26,122
including Financial Services)
Underlying operating profit
Retail 692 625 626 635 720
Financial Services 31 69 62 65 62
723 694 688 700 782
Underlying net finance costs’ (96) (119) (119) 1121) 107}
Underlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures B 8 14 12 8 6
Underlying profit ‘befme tax? B 635 9589 581 587 681
Increase/{decrease) on previous year (%) 7.8 14 10y (13.8) 14.7)
Retail underlying operating margin (%)° 243 224 242 274 3.07
Earnings per share
uUnderluing (pence) 22.0 20.4 218 24.2 264
Increase/(decrease) on previous year (%) 7.8 64) 19.9) 83 (19.5)
Proposed dividend per share (pence)® 11.0 10.2 102 121 132
1 Net finance casts before non-underlying finance movements, IAS 19 pension fnanc.ng charge but after acerued coupons on the perpetual securities
& Wrotit before tax from continuing eperations before non-underlymag items as described innate 3
3 Retal operat'ng profit margin based on reta’l sales excluding value Added Tax. including fuel, excluding Financial Serv:ces
4 Total proposed d vidend to ardinary shareholders inrelat:on to the financal year
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Company balance sheet B
&
At 9 March 2019 and 10 March 2018 2
2019 2018
Note £fm £m
Non-cwirent assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 220
Investments in subsidiaries 3 6,161 5013
Investments in joint ventures and associates 4 1 6
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 5 1 40 70———
Other recevables 6 189 219 2
Derivative financial instruments 8 7 =z
6,580 6,285 5
Current assets §
(s
Trade and other recetvables 6 2,343 2.656
Derivative financial instruments - 4
Cash and cash equivalents 60 309
- 2,403 2959
Total assets 8,983 9,254
Current liabilities
=
Trade and other payables 7 (669) (824) £
Borrowings 8 {779) {n E
Dertvative financial instruments (1) 3 %
Provisions 9 (48] o] %
Taxes payable 3) (33) g
(1,453) {862) z
Net current assets 950 2,107
Non-current liabilities
Borrawings 8 - 634)
Derivative financial instruments 8) )]
Provisions 9 (8] 1
® (644}
Net assets 7,521 7748
Equity
Called up share capital 1 630 £27
Share prermium account 11 1,147 1,130
Merger resetve 11 568 568
Capital redemption reserve 11 680 630
Other reserves 11 8 23
Retaned earnings 12 3,992 47224
Total equity before perpetual securities 7,025 7,252
Perpetual capital securities 248 248
Perpetual convertible bonds 248 248
Total equity 7,521 7748

The notes on pages 175 to 180 form an integral part of these financial staterments.
The financial statements on pages 173 tc 180 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2019, and are signed on its behalf by:

Mike Coupe Kevin 0’Byme
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the 52 weeks to 9 March 2019

Capital Total equity
Calledup Shate redemption pefore Perpetual Perpetual
share premium Merger and other Retained perpetual capital  convertible
capital account reserve reserves carnings securities securities bonds  Total equity
Note £€m £m £m £m £m £fm £m £m £m
At 11 March 2018 B i 627 1,130 568 703 4,224 7,252 248 248 7,748
(Loss)/profit for the year 12 - - (54) (54) 12 6 (36)
Other comprehensive expense 11 - - (7} {7 7)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ - - - 7 (54} 61) 12 5 (43)
income for the year ended 9 March
2019
Transactions with owners:
Dividends 12 - - - (224) (224) - - 224
Distribution to holders of perpetuat - - 12) id)] 113)
securities [net of tax)
Amortisation of convertible bond equity 11,12 - - 6] 3 - - - -
component
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 11,17 3 17 - - 38 58 - - 58
At 9 March 2019 630 1,147 568 688 3,992 7.025 248 248 7.521
AL12 March 2017 625 1120 563 708 3730 6751 48 248 7247
Profit for the year 12 - - - - &85 665 12 5 683
Other comprehensive income 11 - 3 - 3 - 3
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 3 665 668 12 6 686
ended 10 March 2018 )
Transactions with owners
Dividends 12 - - - - (212) (212) - - (212}
Distribution to holders of perpetual 1,12 - - - - - (12 6) (18)
seeurilies (el ol ldx) 1
Amortisation of convertible bond 11,12 - ® 8 . -
equity component
Allotted inrespect of share option schernes 2 10 - - 33 45 - - 45
At 10 March 2018 627 1130 568 703 4724 7252 248 248 7748

The notes on pages 175 to 180 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Basis of preparation

The parent company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, in particular Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006. FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a ‘qualifying
entity’ as defined in the Standard, which addresses the financial reporting reguirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual financial staternents
of gualifying entities that otherwise apply the recogrition measurement and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Unicn,

The Company’s transition date ta FRS 101 was 13 March 2016. FRS 101 sets out amendments to 1FRS as adopted by the European Union that are necessary
to achieve compliance with the Companies Act and related requlations

The financial year represents the 52 weeks to @ March 2019 (prior financial year 52 weeks to 10 March 2018).

The disclosure exemptions adopted by the Company in accordance with FRS 101 are as follows:
The requirements of TAS 7 to present a cash flow statement.

The requirements of paragraph 17 of 1AS 24 ‘Related Party Transactions’, to disclose information related to key management perscnnel, and the
requirements of 1AS 24 to disclose related party transactions between two or more mernbers of a group for wholly owned subsidiaries.

- — The requirernents of paragraphs 30 and 31 of TAS & to disclose information assessing the possible impact of new standards issued but which are not
yet effective
- The requirernents of IFRS 7 and 1FRS 13 for disclasure of financial instruments and fair values.

The financiat statements are presented in sterling, rounded to the nearest £million unless ctherwise stated. They have been prepared on the going concern
hasis under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments and financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income
that have been measured at fair value.

Amendments to published standards

Effective for the Group and Company in these financial statements:

The Company considered the following amendments to published standards that are effective for the Company for the financial year beginning
11 March 2018 and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Company or they do not have a significant impact on the Company's financiat
staterents. These standards and interpretations have been endorsed by the European Union.

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ on the classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions
--- Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ on the transfers of investment property
IFRIC Interpretation 22 ‘Foregn Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
— Annual Improvements Cycle 2014-2016 (issued in December 2016)
— IFRS 4 ‘Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments wath IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’
— IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’

— 1FRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Standards and revisions effective for future periods:
The following standards and revisions will be effective for future periods:

- IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
IFRIC Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’
Armendments to IFRS 8 ‘Financial [nstrurnents’ on prepayment features with negative compensation

— Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” and TAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ on the definition
of material

--— Amendments to 1AS 18 ‘Ermployee Benefits’ on plan amendrnents, curtailments or settlements
— Amendments Lo IAS 28 ‘Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures' on long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
Annual Improvements Cycle 2015-2017 (issued in December 2017)

The Directors have taken advantage of the exernption avallable under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not presented an income statement
nor a staterment of comprehensive income for the Company alone.

The loss after tax for the Company for the year was £36 miliion (2018: profit of £683 million).
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policies

a) Land and buildings

Land and buildings are held al historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any recagnised provisian for impairment Capital work in progress s held
at cost less any recognised provision for impairment. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs to bringing the asset to irs working
condition for intended use. This includes capitalised borrowing costs.

b) Fixtures and equipment
Fixtures, equipment and vehicles are held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised provision for impairment. Cost inciudes the original
puichase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and its intended use.

¢) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost of the assets to their residual values, on a straight-ine basis, using the following rates
— Freehold huildings and leasehold properties — 50 years, or the lease term if shorter
Fixtures, equipment and vehicles -- three to 15 years
— Frechold land is not depreciated

Capital work in progress is not depreciated.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds less any assotiated costs of disposal with the asset's carrying amount and are
recognised within operating profit.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting peried.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At cach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and eguipment to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher cf its fair value less costs
to dispose and its value in use,1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the wmpairment loss.

Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (CGL) to which the asset belongs. For Retait property, plant and equipment, the CGU is deemed to be each trading store or store pipeline
development site. Non-store assets, including depots and IT assets, are reviewed separately.

Any impairment loss is recognised in the income staterment in the year in which it occurs. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses due to a change
in the original estimate, the carrying amount of the asset s increased to the Tevised estimate of its recoverable amount, o its original carrying value less
notional accumulated deprectation if lower

Land and Fixtures and
buildings equiprment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 11 March 2018 - - -
Additions 213 7 220
At 9 March 2019 213 7 220

No depreciation was charged during the year due to additions taking place at the end of the financial year.
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3 Investments in subsidiaries [w
Accounting policies %
Investments in subsidiaries are carnied at cost less any impairment loss in the financial statements of the Company. 2
a
2019 2018 B
£m £m =
Shares in subsidiaries
At the beginming of the yea- 6,013 5.757
Additions 148 256
At the end of the year 6,161 6,013
Additions in the current year predominantly relate to capital injections into Sainsbury's Bank of £110 million Additions in the prior year predominantly relate
to capital injections into Sainsbury's Bank of £190 million, as well as the acquisition of Nectar of £33 million.
4 Investments in joint ventures and associates o
Accounting policies “g
Investments 1n jont ventures and associates are carried at cost less any impairment loss in the financial staternents of the Company. &
o
Lge)
Company Company ﬁ
shares at cost shares at cost g
2019 2018 =
£m £m
At the beginning of the year 6 10
Provision for dirminution in value of investrment - (4)
Disposals () -
At the end of the year 1 5

5 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(previousty available-for-sale financial assets)

Accounting policies

Financial assets that are held for bath the purpase of collecting contractual cash flows and to sell are classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income {FYOCI). They are included in non-current assets unless managernent intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date. Subseguent to initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs, these assets are recorded at fair value at each period end with the movernents
recognised in other comprehensive incorne until derecognition or impaired. On derecognition, the curnulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income reserves is recognised in the income statement for debt instrurnents. Gains and losses on equity instruments are never recycled
to the income statement. Dwidends on FVYOCT equity instrurnents are recognised in the income staterment when the entity's right to receive payment is
established. Interest on FYOCI debt instrurments is recognised using the effective interest method.
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£m £m

Non-current
Interest bearing financial assets 1 40

Interest bearing debt securities with a fair value of £3% million matured during the financial year

6 Other receivables

Accounting policies
Receivables are recognised imtially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

2019 2018
£m £m
Non-current
Amounts owed by Group companies ) 189 219
Current
Amounts owed by Group comparntes 2,340 2642
Other debtors 3 14

2,343 2,656
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7 Trade and other payables

Accounting policies

I sainsbury plc Annual Report 2018

Payables are recogrused initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

2019 2018
'm £€m
Current

Arnounts owed to Group entities 643 794
Other payables - 26 30
- 669 824

8 Borrowings
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
Bank loans due 2019 199 - 199 - 199 199
Short-term borrowings 135 - 135 - -
Convertible bond due 2019 445 - 445 1 435 436
Total borrowings 779 - 779 1 634 635

9 Provisions
Accounting policies

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of
econemic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and where the armount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured
at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of tine is recognised as interest expense.

Onerous leases
and onevous Disposal
contracts provision Total
m £m £m
At 11 March 2018 and 12 March 2017 1 1 2
Additional provisions _ _
Utilisation of provision -
At 9 March 2019 and 10 March 2018 1 1 2
2019 2018
£ £m
Disclosed as:
Current 1 1
Non-current 1 1
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10 Taxation

Accounting policies
Deferred tax is accounted for on the basis of temporary differences arising from differences between the tax base and accounting base of assets and liabilties.

Deferred tax is recognised for all tempaorary differences, except to the extent where it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a
transaction that is not a business cambination and, at the time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit It is determined using tax
rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive incame.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences associated with investrnents in subsidiaries, branches and joint ventures except where the Company is
able to control the tirmng of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary differance will not reverse in the foreseeabte future.

Capitat Rolled over

losses  capital gains Total
£m £m £

At 10 March 2018 and 9 March 2019 21 (21
2019 2018
£m £m
Total deferred incorne tax liabilities (21) {21)
Total deferred income tax assets 21 21

Net deferred income tax liability recognised in non-current liabilities -

11 Share capital and reserves

Accounting policies
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown n equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Share capital, share premium and merger reserve

2018 2018 2018 2018
million million £m £m
Called up share capital
Allotted and fully paid ordinary shares 28%p 2,206 2,194 630 627
Share premium account
Share premium 1,147 1,130
The movements in the called up share capital, share premium and merger reserve accounts are set out below
Number of Share
ordinary ordinary premium Merger
shares shares account resatve
million £m £m £m
At 11 March 2018 2,194 627 1,130 568
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 12 3 17 -
At 9 March 2019 2,206 630 1,147 568
At 12 March 2017 2,188 625 1,120 568
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 5 2 10 -

Hoday nbaeig
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11 Share capital and reserves continued
Capital redemption and other reserves

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report 2019

Financial
assets at
fair value
throaugh other Capital
comprehensive Cash flow Convertible Total other Tedemption
income hedge reserve bond resarve Teserves reserve
£m £m £m £m m
AL 11 March 2018 1 1) 13 23 580
Financiat assets at fair value through other comprehensive income movements 2 - 2 -
(net of tax)
Items reclassified from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 110 - (10}
reserve
Items reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve 1 - i -
Amortisation of convertible bond — equity component & @) -
At 9 March 2019 3 - 5 ] 680
At 12 March 2017 10 (3 21 28 680
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income movements 1 - - 1 -
(net of tax)
Iterns reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve - 2 2 -
Amortisation of convertible hond  equily component - - 8) 8 -
At 10 March 2018 1 1) 13 23 680

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incomne reserve represents the far value gains and losses on the financial assets at fair value
through olher comprehensive income held by the Company. The cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative effective fair value gains and losses on

cash flow hedges in the Company.

The convertible bond reserve represents the equity component of the £450 million convertible bond issued in November 2014

The caprtal redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares. Shareholders approved a £680 million return of share capital, by way of a B share
scheme, at the Company's Extraordinary General Meeting on 12 July 2004. The final redemption date for B shares was 18 July 2007 and all transactions

relating to the B shares have now been completed.

12 Retained earnings

2018 2018

£m £m

Beginning of the year 4,224 3730
Profit for the year (54) 665
Dwidends pawd {224) 212)
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 38 33
Amortisation of convertible bond — equity component 8 8
End of the year ] 3,992 4,224

13 Contingent liabilities

Through the normal course of business. the comparniy has 1ssued guarantees covering various commitments of its subsidiaries. No liabilities have beer
recognised in the Company's accounts as it is considered remote that the guarantees will be called on.
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Additional shareholder information
Financial calendar
Ex-dividend date & June 2019
Record date 7 June 2019
Last date for return of revocation of BRIP mandates 21 June 2019
Q1 Trading Statement 3 July 2018
Annual General Meeting 4 July 2019
Payment date and DRIP share purchase 12 july 2015
Interim results announced 7 Novermnber 2019
Q3 Trading Staternent 8 January 2020
Preliminary Results announced 29 Apnil 2020
Annual General Meeting 2 July 2020*
* prav’sional dates
The interim dwvidend was paid on 21 December 2018.
Shareholder profiles
End of year information as at 9 March 2018,
2019 2018
Nurnber of sharehplders ) 118,272 124,464
Nurnber of shares iﬁ issue 2,206,007,678 2194100874
By size of halding
Shareholders % Shares %
2019 2018 2019 2018
500 and under 68.80 £58.56 040 043
501 to 1,000 10.98 1112 0.44 0.47
1.001 to 10.000 18.37 18.48 2.70 2.89
10,001 to 100,000 1.36 139 1.81 197
100,001 to 1,000,000 0.34 031 641 5.85
Over 1,000,000 0.15 013 88.24 8839
" 100 100 100 100
By category of shareholder
Sharehalders % Shares %
2019 2018 2019 2018
Indwiduals 96.83 96,44 4.31 484
Insurance Companies 0.00 000 0.00 0.00
Banks and Nominees 1.22 126 83.74 8139
Investment Trusts 0.01 0.0 0.00 0.01
Pension Funds 0.00 000 0.00 0.00
Other Corporate Bodies 1.94 229 11.95 1376
100 100 100 100
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Additional shareholder information continued

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The AGM will be held at 11.00am on Thursday, 4 3uly 2019 at QE11 Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SWIP 3EE. The Notice of the Meeting

and the proxy card for the meeting are enclosed with this report.

Registrars
For information about the AGM, shareholdings, dividends and to report changes to personal details, shareholders should contact:

Equiniti Registrars
Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

BNI9 6DA

Telephone 0333 207 6557

Please remember to tell Equintti if you move house or ehange bank details or if there is any other change to your account information.

You can view and manage your shareholding online at www.shareview.co.uk. You will require your 11 digit Shareholder Reference Numnber (SRN) to logn.
1t can be found gn share certificates and dividend confirmations.

Dividends

Having your dividends paid directly into your bank or building soclety account is a mare secure way than receiving your dividend by cheque. If you would
prefer your dividends to be paid directly into your bank or building society account further information is available from Equiniti (address and telephone
number above), You will still receive an annual dividend confirmation detailing each dividend ta enable you to complete your tax return to HMRC.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP)

The Company has a DRIP, which allows shareholders to reinvest their cash dividends in the Company’s shares bought in the market through a specially
arranged share dealing service. No new shares are allotted under this DRIP and approximately 26,173 shareholders participate in it. Full detalls of the DRIP
and its charges, together with mandate forms, are available from the Registrars. Alternatively, you can elect to join the DRIP by registering for Shareview
at www.shareview.co.uk.

Annual Dividend Confirmations
The Company sends cut an Annual Dividend Confirmation (ADC) in relation to dividend payrments. This means that those sharehalders receiving their
dwndend directly into their bank account will receive an ADC once a year detailing all payrments made throughout that year

Shareholder communications website

J Sainsbury plc Interim and Annual Reports, and results announcements are available via the internet on our website at www.about.sainsburys.co.uk.
As well as providing share price data and financial history, the site also provides background information about the Company, regulatory and news releases,
and current issues.

Electronic shareholder communications
The Company encourages all shareholders to receive their shareholder communications electronically 1 order to reduce our impact on the environment i
and has set up a facility for shareholders to take advantage of electronic comrmunications. The service allows you to:

view the Annual Report and Financial Staterments on the day it is published;
—— receive electronic notification of the availlability of future shareholder information (you must register your email address for this service),
—- check the balance and current value of your shareholding and view your dividend history; and
—- submit your vate online prior to a general meeting.

To register visit www.shareview.co.uk You will need your 11 digit Shareholder Reference Number which can be found on your share certificate or recent
dividend confirmation.

Shareholder security
Shareholders are advised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to buy shares at a discount or offers of frec company annual reports. If you receive )
any unsolicited investment advice, whether over the telephone, through the post or by email. You should. :

— make sure you get the name of the persen and organisation; i
— check that they are properly authorised by the FCA befare getting involved by visiting https:/iregister.fca.org.uk/; and

-— report the matter to the FCA either by calling 0800 111 6768 or by completing an online form at
www.fca.org.itk/consumers/report-scam-unauthorised-firm.

Details of any share dealing facilities that the Company endorses will be included in Company mailings.

More detailed information on this or similar activity can be found on the FCA website www.scamsmart.feca.orguk.
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Share dealing services
To buy or sell yaur J Sainsbury ple ordimary shares. please visit your stockbroker or a high street bank who will usually be able to assist you.
Alternatively. you may consider using

— The Share Centre Ltd who offer a postal dealing service and they can be contacted at The Share Centre, PO Box 2000, Oxford Road. Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire HP21 87B. Telephone, 01286 414141 or Freephone 08000 282812 and quote Sainsbury's; or

Equinitiwho offer a telephone and internet facility whch gives sharehalders the oppartunity to trade at a known price. The telephone
service is available from 8 00am to 4.30pm, Menday to Friday, excluding bank holidays, on telephone number 0345 68037 037 The internet
share dealing service gives shareholders the option to subrmt instructions to trade online and more information can be found by wisiting,
http://www.shareview.co.uk/4/Info/Portfolio/Default/en/Home/products/pages/buyandselishares.aspx

Further information and detailed terms and conditions are available onrequest by calling either provider.

American Depository Receipts (ADRs)
The Company has & sponsored Level I ADR programme for which The Bank of New York Mellon acts as depositary The ADRs are traded on the over-the-counter
(OTC) market in the US under the symbol JSATY, where one ADR is equal to four ordinary shares, All enquiries relating to ADRs should be addressed to:

Bank of New Yark Mellon
Shareholder Correspondence
PO Box 505000

Louisville

KY 40233-5000

Tell Free Telephone # for US domestic callers: 1-888-269-2377
International callers can call: -1-201-680-6825

Website, www.mybnymdr.com

Email shrrelations@bnymellon.com

ShareGift

If you have only a small number of shares which would cost rmore for you to sell than they are worth, you may wish to consider donating them to the charity
ShareGift (Registered Charity 1052686) which specialises in accepting such shares as donations. The relevant stock transfer form may be obtained from
Equiriti. There are no implications for Capital Gains Tax purposes (ne gain or loss) on gifts of shares to charity and it is also possible to obtain income tax relief.
Further information about ShareGift may be obtained on 020 7830 3737 or from www.sharegift.org.

ProSearch

Sainsbury’s has instructed ProSearch, a specialist tracing company, to identify and communicate with shareholders who may be owed dividends or shares in
Sainsbury’s. If you have received a communication from ProSearch and think you may be due some dividends or shares in Sainsbury’s and would ke further
information, please contact ProSearch directly. You can call them on 0800 389 6479 or for more information visit www.prosearchassets.com.

Tax information - Capital Gains Tax (CGT)
For CGT purposes, the market value of 1 Sainsbury ple ordinary shares on 31 March 1382 adjusted for all capital adjustrents was 91.99 pence and B shares
10.941 pence.

CGT information on historic Home Retail Group corporate actions can be found in the Investor Section on our website www.about.sainsburys.co.uk/investors

Share capital consolidation

The original base cost of shares appartioned between ardinary shares of 28 4/7 pence and B shares is made by reference to the market value of each class
of shares on the first day for which a market value is quoted after the new holding came into existence. The market value for CGT purposes of any share or
security quoted on the Stock Exchange Daily Official List is generally the lower of the two quotations on any day plus one quarter of the difference between
the values.

On Monday, 19 July 2004 the values were determined as follows
New ardinary shares 2575 pence
B shares 35 pence

Historic share capital consolidation information relating to Home Retail Group can be found in the Investor Section on our website
www.about.sainsburys.co.uk/investors.
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Additional sharcholder inforrnation continued

Key contacts and advisers
General contact details
For general enquiries about Sainsbury’s Bank call 0808 540 5060.

For any customer enquines please contact our Sainsbury’s Custorner Careline by calling 0800 636 262 or Argos helpline by calling 0345 640 2020

Registered office

1 Sainsbury plc

33 Holborn

London ECIN 2HT
Registered number 185647

Investor relations
Jarnes Collins

Head of Investor Relations
J Sainsbury plc

33 Holbom

London ECIN 2HT

investor relations2@sainsburys.couk

Registrar

Fquiniti Reqtstrars

Aspect House ,
Spencer Road

Lancing

BNS9 6DA

www.shareview.co.uk

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place

London SE1 2AF ,

Solicitors
Linklaters LLP
One Silk Street
London EC2Y 8HQ

Stockbrokers

uBs

5 Broadgate

London

ECZM 2Q5 ;

Morgan Stanley
25 Cabot Square
Canary Wharf

London E14 4QA

Cautionary statement

Certain statements included in this Annual Report are forward looking and are therefore subject to risks, assumptions and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ raterially from those expressed or implied because they relate to future ovents. These forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to, statemnents relating to the Company's expectations. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of relevant terminology
including the words: ‘believes), ‘estimates’, anticipates, ‘expects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘goal, ‘target’, ‘aimv, ‘may’, “will, 'would’, ‘could’ or ‘should’ or, in each |
case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology and include ali matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places
throughout this Annual Report and include staterments regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations and those of our officers, Directors and
employees concerning, amongst other things, our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and the businesses
we operate. Consequently, our actual future financial condition, performance and results could differ materially from the plans, goals and expectations
set aul in our forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result
of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Alternative performance measures (APMs)

In the reporting of linancial information, the Directors use various APMs which they believe provide additional useful information for understanding the
financial performance and financial health of the Group These APMs should be considered in addition to, and are not intended to be a substitute for, IFRS
measurements As they are not defined by International Financial Reporting Standards, they may not be directly comparable wath other companies who

use similar measures. All of the following APMs relate to the current period’s results and comparative periods where pravided.

Closest equivalent

APM IFRS measure

Definition/Purpose

Reconcilation

Income statement

Like-for-like sales No direct

Year-on-year growth in sales including

Retail like-for-like sales {excluding fuel) decreased by 0.2 per cent

equivalent VAT, excluding fuel, excluding Financial 12017/18 1.3 per cent increase) mainly as a result of like-for-like
Services, for stores that have been open sales declines in General Merchandise and Clothing.
for more than one year. The reallocation
of Argos stores into Sainsbury’s 2019 208
SUDermarkets 1s classified as new space, Underlging retail ike-for-dike (exc. Fuel) (0.2)% 1.3%
while the host supermarket is classified Underlying net new space impact 0.6% 0.3%
like-for-like. The measure isused widely  ypgerlying total retail sales growth 0.4%  16%
in the retail industry as an ndicator (exc. fuel)
of current trading performance and is ) o . .
useful when comparing growth between Argos consolidation and Pharmacy impact - 84%
retatlers that have different profiles of Underlying total retail sales growth 04% 100%
expansion, disposals and closures. (exc. fuel)
Fuel impact 1.7% (12%
Underlying total retail sales growth 2.1% 8.8%
(inc. fuel)
Bark impact - 0.2%
Underlying Group sales inc. VAT 2.1% 9.0%
Underlying Revenue Total sales less acquisition fair value A recanciliation of the measure 1s provided in note 4 of the
Group sales unwinds on Argos Financial Services financial staternents.
This is the headline measure of revenue
for the Group. It shows the annual rate
of growth in the Group's sales and is
considered a good indicator of how rapidly
the Group's core business is growing. ] -
Underlying profit Profit before tax  Profit or loss before tax before any items A reconciliation of underlying profit before tax is provided in note 3
before tax recognised which, by virtue of their size of the financial statements.
and/or nature, do not reflect the Group's
underlying performance. B
Retail underlying Profit before tax Underlying earnings before interest, tax, A reconciliation of the measure is provided in note 4 of the

operating profit Financial Services operating profit and financial statements.
Sainsbury’s underlying share of post-tax
profit from joint ventures and associates.
Underlying basic  Basic earnings Earnings per share using underlying A recanciliation of the measure 1s provided in note 9 of the

earnings per share per share profit as described above. financial staterments.

This is a key measure to evaluate the

performance of the business and returns

generated for investors.
Retail underlying No direct Retail underlying operating profit as A reconciliation of the measure is provided on page 40 of the
EBITDAR equivalent/Profit above, before rent, depreciation and Financial Review.

before tax

armnortisation.
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Alternative perforrmance measures continued
Closest equivalent
APM IFRS measure Definition/Purpase Reconciliation

Cash flgws and net debt

Cash flow items in No direct

10 hetp the reader letaﬁd cash flows_

Financial Review equivalent of the business, a summarised ¢ash flow
staternent is included withim the Financial
Review As part of this a number of line
items have been combined. The cash
flow in note 4 of the fimancial staternents
includes a reference to show what has
been combined in these line itemns.
Retail free Net cash Net cash generated from retail
cash flow generated operations, adjusted for exceptional
from operating pension contyibutions, after cash capital
activities expenditure but before strateqic capital

Cash generated
from operations

Cash generated
from retail
operations (per
Financial Review)

expenditure and after investrents
injoint ventures and associates and
Sainsbury's Bank capital injections.
This measures cash generation,
warking capital efficiency and capital
expenditure of the retail business.

__Retail free cash flow

2018

2018

Retatl cash generated fium operations
after changes in working capital but
before pension contributions and
exceptional pension contnbutions,
This enables management to assess
the cash generated from its core retail
operations,

Core retail capital No direct
expenditure equivalent

Capital expenditure excludes Financial
Services, after proceeds on disposals
and before strategic capital expenditure.

This ailows management to assess core
retail capital expenditure in the period
inorder to review the strateyic business
performance,

The teconcitiation from the cash flow
staterment is included here.

Ref £m £m
Net interest paid ’ a (89)7 (105)
Strategic capital expenditure b (36) (80}
Acquisition of subsidiaries C - 135
Repayment of borrowings d (a51) (174}
Other e {8) 2
Joint ventures f 13 28
) ) - 2018 wms
Reconciliation of retail free cash flow £m £m
Cash genetated from refai operations 1,156 1,259
Net interest paid (ref (a) above} (89) [105)
Corparation tax (61) (72)
Retail purchase of property, plant and (470) (553)
equipment
Retail purchase of intangible assets (78) 69)
Retall proceeds from disposal of property, 64 54
plant and equipment
Add back: Strategic capital expenditure 36 %0
Dividends and distributions recewed 18 37
Investment in joint vertures and associates 5 9
Bank capital injections (110} (190)

461 432

The reconciliation between retail and Group cash generated from

aperations is provided in nate 4 of the financial statements.

2019

2018

Puichase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangibles

Cash capital expenditure before
strategic capital expenditure (note 4)

Strategic capital expenditure (ref (b) above)

Proceeds on disposal

Cash capital expenditure including
strategic capital expenditure

Capitalised interest

Gther {including strateqic capital expenditure)

Total net retail core capital
expenditure

£m £m
@31 @)
(78) (69)
512) (547
@6 B
64 54
@a8q) (569
®) @
36 80
(a5a) (295
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APM

Closest equivalent
IFRS measure

Uetiniton/Purpose

Reconciliation

Cash flows and net debt

Retail net debt

Borrowings, cash,
derivatives and
financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income, finance
leases

Net debt includes the capital injections
into Sainsbury’s Bank, but excludes
the net debt of Sainsbury's Bank and
its subsidiaries. Sainsbury's Bank's net
debt halances are excluded hecause
they are required for business as usual
activities.

It1s calculated as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (excluding equity investments)
- net derivatives « net cash and cash
equivalents + loans + finance lease
obligations. This shows the gverall
strength of the balance sheet alongside
the liquidity and its indebtedness and
whether the Group can cover its debt
cormmitments.

A remnclliatioﬁ_of the measure is provided in note 27 of the
financial statements.

Gearing

No direct
equivalent

Retail net debt divided by Group
net assets.

Gearing measures the Group's
proportion of borrowed funds to
15 equity.

Retall net debt as per above and net éssets as pér the Grbu[:;_"
balance sheet.

Other

Lease adjusted
net debt/
underlying
EBITDAR

No direct
equivalent

Net debt plus capitalised lease
obligations dwided by Group underlying
EBITDAR.

This helps management measure
the ratio of the business's debt to
operatonal cash flow.

A reconciliation of this is provided in the Financial Review on
page 43.

Retumn on capital
employed

No direct
equivalent

Return on capital employed is
calculated as return divided by average
capital employed

Return is defined as underiying profit
before interest and tax.

Capital employed is defined as net
assets excluding net debt. The average
is calculated on a 14 point basis.

This vepresents the total capital that the
Group has utilised in order to generate
profits. Managerment use this to assess
the performance of the business.

An explanation of the calculation is provided in the Financial
Review on page 43.

Interest cover

No direct
equivalent

Underlying operating profit, plus
underlying share of post-tax profit from
ot ventures and associates, divided
by underlying net finance costs, where
interest on perpetual securities is
included in underlying finance costs.

This measures the ability of the Group
to pay the interest on its outstanding
debt. This measurement is used by
creditors, lenders and nvestors to
determine the risk of lending funds
to the Group.

Underlying operating profit as per note 4 of the financial statements.
Underlying share of post-tax profit from joint ventures and
assoclates as per note 4 of the financial staterments

Underlying net finance casts as per note 7 of the financial
statements.

Fixed charge
cover

No direct
equivalent

Group underlying EBITDAR divided by
net rent and underlying net finance
costs, whete interest on perpetual
securities is included in underlying
finance costs.

This helps assess the Group's ability

to satisfy fixed financing expenses
from performance of the business,

EBITDAR is reconciled in the Financial Review on page 40.
Underlying net finance costs as per note 7 of the financial staternents
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Glossary

Active Kids - Our nationwide scheme to help inspire school children to
take more exercise and to eat more healthily. Launched in 2005, Active Kids
is open to all nursery. primary and secondary schools as well as Scouts and
Girl Guides in the UK. www.sainsburys.co.uk/activekids

Annual General Meeting (AGM) — This year the AGM will be held
on Thursday 4 July 2012 at The Queen Elizabeth 11 Conference Centre,
Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London $W1P 3EE at 11.00am.

Argos Financial Services (AFS) ARG Personal Loans Limited;
Home Retail Group Card Services Limited; and Hame Retail Group Insurance
Services Limited

basics Sainsbury's entry leve!l own-brand range of products.
bps - Basis points.
by Sainsbury's Core own-label brand,

Click & Collect — Service which allows customers to place general
merchandise and grocery orders online for collection in-store.

CMBS Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities.

Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability (CR&S) Thencedto
act responsibly in managing our impact on a range of stakeholders. custormers,
colleagues, investors. suppliers, the community and the environment.

CPI -- Consumer Price Index.

Dividend cover - Underlying profit after tax frorm continuing operations
attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by total value of dividends
declared during the year

Earnings Per Share (EPS) - Earings attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, excluding those held by ESOP Trusts, which are treated
as cancelled.

Fair value The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or
a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties inan arm’s
length transaction.

FTSE4Good - The FTSE Group, an indexing company, runs the FTSE4Good
index serles to measure the performance of companies that meet corporate
responsibility standards, and to facilitate investment in those companies
www.ftse.com/productsfindices/FTSE4Good

FVPL — Fair value through profit or loss. Method of valuing & financial
instrument where changes in fair value are recognised directly in the
income staterment.

FVOCI — Fair value through other comprehensive income. Method of valuing
a financial instrument where changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group - The Company and ils subsidiaries

IFRIC - International Financial Reporting Interpretations Cormmittee
IFRSs- International Financial Reporting Standard(s).

Joint venture (JV) A husiness jointly owned by two or more parties.

Kantar Worldpanel (Kantar) Anindependent third party providing
data on the UK grocery market.

LTIP — Long-Term Incentive Plan

MSC - Marine Stewardship Councll.

Nectar - One of the most popular loyalty schemes in the UK

PRA - Prudential Regulation Authority.

Real discount rate -- Discount rate less mflation rate.

RPI - Retail Price Index.

Taste the Difference - Sainshury’s premium own-brand range of products.

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) - The growth in value of a sharehalding
over a specified period, assuming that dividends are reinvested to purchase
addtional units of the stock

Tu —Sainshury's own-label clothing range
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